New Issue

This Of cial Statement provides information about the Ban@®me of the information appears on this
cover page for ready reference. A prospective shae should read the entire @fal Statement to make an

informed investment decision.

Dated: Date of Delery

Bond Ratings

Interest Payent Dates
Redemption

Source fPayment

Tax Matters

Purpose

Initial Deniminations
Closing

Global Book-Entry System

Bond Counsel
Financial Advisor
Issuer Contact

Dated June 12, 2014

$112,945,000
STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS
Consisting of

$40,045,000 2014 Series A

(Federally Taxable)

and

$72,900,000 2014 Series B

Due: as shown on the inside cover

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. See “RATINGS™ herein.
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services. See “RATINGS  herein .

June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2014.
The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bonds will be general obligations of the State of Maine e (‘the State”) and the
full faith and credit of the State are pledged to the punctual payment of principal
of and interest on the Bonds, with the State Treasurer bein g obligated under the
Maine Constitution to set aside available General Fund re2venues to the extent
needed to make said payments if legislative appropriatioms are insutient, as
more fully described herein. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS"” herein.

In the opinion of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Bond (Counsel to the State,
interest on the Series B Bonds is excluded from gross incomme for federal income
tax purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as tamended. Interest on
the Series B Bonds is not a specilc preference item for pwrposes of the federal
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, althoough such interest is
included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative
minimum taxable income. Interest on the Series ABonds is included in the gross
income of the owners of the Series A Bonds for federal i ncome tax purposes.
Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from ggross income for State
income tax purposes. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion reegarding any other tax
consequences related to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt
of interest on, the Bonds. See “TAX MATTERS™ herein.

The Bonds are beingissued to payat maturityon June 30, 20144 the principal amount
of certain bond anticipation notes issued by the State to Chance certain capital
expenditures of the State and to Chance certain additional c:apital expenditures of
the State. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS™ herein.

Multinjes of $5.000.
June 24, 2014.

The Bonds, when issued, bélregistered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), N&ark, New York. DTC
will act as securities depository (the “SecuritiegpDsitory”) of the Bonds.
Purchasers of the Bonds will not receive ceréites representing their interests
in the Bonds purchased.

Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP. See “TAX MATTERS&din.
Public Financial Management, Inc. Se®&NANCIAL ADVISOR” herein.

Neria R. Douglass, Treasurer of State. Se€BIUSANEOUS” herein.



MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES AND YIELDS
$112,945,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds

$40,045,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

Maturity Principal Interest CUSIP'

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield No.
2015 $11,295,000 0.20% 0.20% 56052AXR2
2016 11,295,000 0.55 0.50 56052AXS0
2017 11,295,000 1.15 1.06 56052AXT8
2018 6,160,000 1.55 1.46 56052AXU5

$72,900,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series B

Maturity Principal Interest CUSIP

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield No.
2018 $ 5,135,000 5.00% 1.01% 56052AXV3
2019 11,295,000 5.00 1.34 56052AXW1
2020 11,295,000 5.00 1.61 56052AXX9
2021 11,295,000 5.00 1.87 56052AXY7
2022 11,295,000 5.00 2.08 56052AXZ4
2023 11,295,000 5.00 2.27 56052AYA8
2024 11,290,000 5.00 2.39 56052AYB6

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorired3tgte to give any information or
to make any representation, other than those contained in thisaDSteitement. If given or made, such other
information or representation must not be relied upon as having beeorized by the State. This Official
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitatian offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the
Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful foisperson to make such offer, solicitation or
sale. The information and expressions of opinions herein are stibjebinge without notice and neither the
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereum@ddéirisder any circumstance create any implication
that there has been no change in the affairs of the State since the date hereof

" Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIPnbers have been assigned by an independent compaaffiliated with
the State or the Financial Advisor and are includelkly for the convenience of the holders of trends. The State is not
responsible for the selection or uses of the CUfbifAbers and no representation is made as to thegatness on the Bonds or
as indicated above. The CUSIP number for a spetifiturity is subject to change after the issuaridbe Bonds as a result of
various subsequent actions including, but not &ohito, a refunding in whole or in part of such miaguor as a result of the
procurement of secondary market portfolio insuramrcether similar enhancement by investors that begpplicable to all or a
portion of certain maturities of the Bonds.
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$112,945,000
STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Consisting of
$40,045,000 2014 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

and
$72,900,000 2014 Series B

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover page hereof and the Apmsnldéreto, sets
forth certain information in connection with the issuance by thes $ifaMaine (the “State” or
“Maine”) of its $40,045,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A (Fed@aathble) (the
“Series A Bonds”) and its $72,900,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Setiies t5éries B
Bonds” and, together with the Series A Bonds, the “Bonds”). The Bondatrarized by, and
are being issued pursuant to, Article IX, Section 14, of the Constitofithe State and certain
laws of the State which were ratified by voters of the Stateng in elections thereon. See
Appendix D hereto. The Bonds will be general obligations of the State.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

The Bonds will bear interest from the date of their delivery lplgyaemiannually on
June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing December 1, 2014, untihtpaiyine
principal of the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds will be paid on theestt@ayment dates, and
principal of the Bonds will be paid at maturity, to The DepositonysTCompany, New York,
New York (“DTC”) or its nominee as registered owner of the Bonfis. long as DTC or its
nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, disbursement of such paym®&iC is the
responsibility of the State, disbursement of such payments to thet Pa#icipants (as defined
under the heading “The Depository Trust Company” below) is the respogsdiilDTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners (as defimdedl the heading “The
Depository Trust Company” below) is the responsibility of the Difearticipants or Indirect
Participants (as defined under the heading “The Depository Trust Compaloy) as more
fully described herein. See “The Depository Trust Company” below. Bohds will bear
interest at the rates and will mature on the dates and imtbends set forth on the inside cover
page hereof. Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basgeday month and a 360-
day year.

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bonds are general obligations of the State and the full faith and crddit $tate are
pledged to the punctual payment of principal of and interest on the Bomtide X, Part Third,
Section 5 of the Constitution of the State provides that if saffifunds are not appropriated
to pay the principal of and interest on all bonded deitluding the Bonds), when due,



then the Treasurer of State is obligated to set afpam the first General Fund revenues
received an amount sufficient to make payment of ppaloof and interest on the Bonds as
such principal and interest become due.

The Bonds are being issued (i) to pay the principal of the State’s $65,0(Bed@0dal
Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes which were issued to financeinertital expenditures of
the State and (ii) to finance certain additional capital experadi of the State. See Appendix D
hereto.

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE STATE

Certain information regarding the State is included in Appendix A dwer&éhe State’s
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012rsaid other selected
financial information pertaining to the State are included in AppendikeBeto. Certain
information with respect to revenues of the State is includeflppendix C hereto. Certain
information regarding authorized and outstanding debt of the State is ishcludgpendix D
hereto. Certain information derived from actuarial valuation regortthe retirement programs
administered by the Maine Public Employee Retirement System lisd@tt in Appendix E
hereto. Selected economic information pertaining to the State is included in AppenditoF here

LITIGATION

There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or, to the kigevid
the Department of the Attorney General, threatened, seekingttaineor enjoin the issuance,
sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any way contesting atiaffehe validity of the
Bonds, or any law or other authorization with respect to the isswarsade of the Bonds, or the
payment of the Bonds, or the existence or powers of the State, otleéh® tiheir respective
offices of the present officers of the State who are responsibthd issuance, sale, execution or
delivery of the Bonds. See “Litigation” in Appendix A hereto.

TAX MATTERS
Series B Bonds — Tax Exempt Bonds

In the opinion of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Bond Counsel to the §&tad
Counsel”), based upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulingsp@andlecisions, and
assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain covenantsstirdar¢ghe Series B
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes3axtem 103 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is of the fuieion that
interest on the Series B Bonds is not a specific preference fde purposes of the federal
individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes. However, Bond Coobserves that such
interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculadipgrate alternative minimum
taxable income. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any otheal feder
consequences arising with respect to the ownership or dispositiontbe accrual or receipt of
interest on, the Series B Bonds.

The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion fom® igcome for
federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as flee BeBonds. Failure to
comply with these requirements may result in interest on thesSBrBonds being included in



gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the datigiogl issuance of the
Series B Bonds. The State has covenanted to comply with sgeineraents to ensure that
interest on the Series B Bonds will not be included in federal gnossne. The opinion of
Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these requirements.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest cBetines B
Bonds is excluded from gross income for Maine income tax purposes. (Bams$el expresses
no opinion regarding any other Maine tax consequences arising with réspeet Series B
Bonds. Bond Counsel also has not opined as to the taxability of the BeBends or the
income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Mainecon#plete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Series B Borsas forth in
Appendix G hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series B Bonds is less thaotme am
to be paid at maturity of such Series B Bonds (excluding amountsl $tatee interest and
payable at least annually over the term of such Series B Boidsifference constitutes
“original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allecatdach Beneficial
Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Series B Buanidh is excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Maine personalanzms. For this
purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Seri&sn8s is the first price at which a
substantial amount of such maturity of the Series B Bonds is stieé foublic (excluding bond
houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the tgaphainderwriters,
placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discountesibat to any maturity of the
Series B Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of seibsSB Bonds on the basis of a
constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-linepaodgons between
compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added wjuked basis of such
Series B Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (incalgedemption, or
payment on maturity) of such Series B Bonds. Beneficial Ownetedé¢ries B Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequenasgnefship of Series B
Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of purchedergio not purchase
such Series B Bonds in the original offering to the public at thiepiirse at which a substantial
amount of such Series B Bonds is sold to the public.

Series B Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherarisan famount
greater than the stated principal amount to be paid at maturity lofSarees B Bonds, or, in
some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Series B @@retsium Bonds”), will be
treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal income taogas and for Maine
personal income tax purposes. No deduction is allowable for theizabée bond premium in
the case of obligations, such as the Premium Bonds, the irdaregtich is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Beneficial Gsvbasis in a Premium
Bond will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properhalalboto such
Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should cbtiseit own tax advisors
with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premiumhem particular
circumstances.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any persoimewhay
actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring)théedate of issuance of
the Series B Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tag sfanterest on, the Series B
Bonds.



Prospective Beneficial Owners should be aware that from tintene legislation is or
may be proposed which, if enacted into law, could result in interest @eties B Bonds being
subject directly or indirectly to federal income taxation, or otherwrevent Beneficial Owners
from realizing the full benefit provided under current federal taxdatine exclusion of interest
on the Series B Bonds from gross income. To date, no such legisiagdoeen enacted into
law. However, it is not possible to predict whether any sugikl&ion will be enacted into law.
Further, no assurance can be given that any pending or future legislatioding@mendments
to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including ameisdimé¢he Code,
or any future judicial, regulatory or administrative interpretatiodeselopment with respect to
existing law, will not adversely affect the market value andketability of, or the tax status of
interest on, the Series B Bonds. Prospective Beneficial Ovanersrged to consult their own
tax advisors with respect to any such legislation, interpretation or development.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series B Boeasluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and for Maine pklsgcpae taxes
purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipteoésnbn, the Series B
Bonds may otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal aie gbx liability. The nature and
extent of all such other tax consequences will depend upon the partexlatatus of the
Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial Owner’s other items ofoine, deduction or exclusion.
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, &idl Benef
Owners should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences.

Series A Bonds — Federally Taxable Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Seri&snds is
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsedsegporn® opinion
regarding any other federal tax law consequences related to the dpmerdisposition of, or
accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series A Bonds.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest oBeties A
Bonds is excluded from gross income for Maine income tax purposes. BondeCexpresses
no opinion regarding any other Maine tax consequences arising with respgbet $eries A
Bonds. Bond Counsel also has not opined as to the taxability of the SelBesds or the
income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Maineconfplete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Series A Bosas$ forth in
Appendix G hereto.

The following discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal tax denagions generally
applicable to Beneficial Owners of the Series A Bonds that actjugir Series A Bonds in the
initial offering. The discussion below is based upon laws, regulatioimgysuand decisions in
effect and available on the date hereof, all of which are subjechange, possibly with
retroactive effect. Prospective investors should note that no rukavgsieen or are expected to
be sought from the IRS with respect to any of the U.S. federal incame&onsequences
discussed below, and no assurance can be given that the IRS wdkeaatontrary positions.
Further, the following discussion does not address all U.S. fede@héntax consequences
applicable to any given investor, nor does it address the U.S. fedevaie tax considerations
applicable to investors who may be subject to special taxing malgardless of whether or not
such persons constitute U.S. Holders), such as certain U.S. expatbatks, real estate
investment trusts, regulated investment companies, insurance compdamesxempt



organizations, dealers or traders in securities or currencigsefsnips, S corporations, estates
and trusts, investors who hold their Series A Bonds as part of a htadge)esor an integrated
or conversion transaction, or investors whose “functional currency” isheotUtS. dollar.
Furthermore, the following discussion does not address (i) alternaivemum tax
consequences or (ii) the indirect effects on persons who hold equitgsisten a Beneficial
Owner of Series A Bonds. In addition, this summary generally igeliinto investors who
become Beneficial Owners of Series A Bonds pursuant to thd wififiing for the issue price
that is applicable to such Series A Bonds (i.e., the price at vehsttbstantial amount of such
Series A Bonds is first sold to the public) and who will hold tissries A Bonds as “capital
assets” within the meaning of the Code.

As used herein, “U.S. Holder” means a Beneficial Owner of &$Sé Bond who for
U.S. federal income tax purposes is an individual citizen or residetiteobUnited States, a
corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created anipegain or under the laws of
the United States or any State thereof (including the Disifi€@olumbia), an estate the income
of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless sbiurce or a trust with respect
to which a court within the United States is able to exercigeapy supervision over the
administration of the trust and one or more United States pem®meiined in the Code) have
the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trusta(tnust that has made a valid
election under Treasury Regulations to be treated as a domediic thssused herein, “Non-
U.S. Holder” generally means a Beneficial Owner of a Sé&iB®nd (other than a partnership)
who is not a U.S. Holder. If an entity classified as a partnefship).S. federal income tax
purposes is a Beneficial Owner of Series A Bonds, the tax teeatof a partner in such
partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner and upactithigees of the
partnership. Partners in such partnerships should consult their own tax achgsoding the tax
consequences of an investment in the Series A Bonds (including thes a$aU.S. Holders or
Non-U.S. Holders).

U.S. Holders

Interest. Stated interest on the Series A Bonds generallgenidxable to a U.S. Holder
as ordinary interest income at the time such amounts are accrigioed, in accordance with
the U.S. Holder's method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

“Original issue discount” will arise for U.S. federal incotag purposes in respect of any
Series A Bond if its stated redemption price at maturity édeés issue price by more than a de
minimis amount (as determined for tax purposes). For any SeriemdsBssued with original
issue discount, the excess of the stated redemption price at ynafuthait Series A Bond over
its issue price will constitute original issue discount for U.8effal income tax purposes. The
stated redemption price at maturity of a Series A Bond is thedofuali scheduled amounts
payable on such Series A Bond other than qualified stated intereSt. HOlders of Series A
Bonds generally will be required to include any original issue discount in income foredegalf
income tax purposes as it accrues, in accordance with a constahimgtiod based on a
compounding of interest (which may be before the receipt of cash payateiliutable to such
income). Under this method, U.S. Holders of Series A Bonds issuedrginal issue discount
generally will be required to include in income increasingly greateyuats of original issue
discount in successive accrual periods.



“Premium” generally will arise for U.S. federal income tax pugsos respect of any
Series A Bond to the extent its issue price exceeds its gtateipal amount. A U.S. Holder of
a Series A Bond issued at a premium may make an election, &bpltoaall debt securities
purchased at a premium by such U.S. Holder, to amortize suchupnemnsing a constant yield
method over the term of such Series A Bond.

Disposition of the Series A Bonds. Unless a nonrecognitionigioov of the Code
applies, the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursw@anbfter by the State),
reissuance or other disposition of a Series A Bond will be a taxable event foede&lfincome
tax purposes. In such event, a U.S. Holder of a Series A Bond gemaliailycognize gain or
loss equal to the difference between (i) the amount of cashhgdair market value of property
received (except to the extent attributable to accrued but unpaidsinte the Series A Bond
which will be taxed in the manner described above under “Interest’)ig the U.S. Holder’s
adjusted tax basis in the Series A Bond (generally, the purchase price paid b$.thelder for
the Series A Bond, increased by the amount of any original issue disceuiougty included in
income by such U.S. Holder with respect to such Series A Bond ancsiegriey any payments
previously made on such Series A Bond, other than payments of qualified sterest, or
decreased by any amortized premium). Any such gain or loss geneilalhe wapital gain or
loss. Defeasance or material modification of the terms pfSaries A Bond may result in a
deemed reissuance thereof, in which event a Beneficial Owner dkthased Series A Bonds
generally will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the differbateeen the amount realized
from the sale, exchange or retirement (less any accrued qualifitsti interest which will be
taxable as such) and the Beneficial Owner’s adjusted tax basis in the Sened.A B

In the case of a non-corporate U.S. Holder of the Series A Bondsakimmum marginal
U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to any such gain maywes khan the maximum
marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to ordinacgnie if such U.S. Holder’'s
holding period for the Series A Bonds exceeds one year. The deductibitgpivél losses is
subject to limitations.

Medicare Tax on Unearned Income. The Health Care and EduBatcamciliation Act
of 2010 (P.L. 111-152) requires certain U.S. Holders that are individutsesr trusts to pay
an additional 3.8% tax on, among other things, interest and gains from thersather
disposition of the Series A Bonds for taxable years beginning aéeerbber 31, 2012. U.S.
Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts should consulttéxemdvisors regarding the
effect, if any, of this legislation on their ownership and disposition of the Series A.Bonds

Non-U.S. Holders

The following discussion applies only to non-U.S. Holders. This discussionndbes
address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that magldvamt to non-U.S. Holders in
light of their particular circumstances. For example, specigsrmay apply to a non-U.S.
Holder that is a “controlled foreign corporation” or a “passive foremyestment company,”
and, accordingly, non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors taonuhetethe
United States federal, state, local and other tax consequences ofjhiblliSeries A Bonds that
may be relevant to them.

Interest. Subject to the discussion below under the heading “Infomfaéporting and
Backup Withholding,” payments of principal of, and interest on, any Seriderd to a Non-



U.S. Holder, other than a bank which acquires such Series A Bond in catismesf an

extension of credit made pursuant to a loan agreement entered ithte ordinary course of
business, generally will not be subject to any U.S. withholding tax providethth&eneficial

Owner of the Series A Bond provides a certification completed irpkance with applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements, which requirements are discheked under the
heading “Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” or an exemption is vateer
established.

Disposition of the Series A Bonds. Subject to the discussiamwhahder the heading
“Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” any gain realized by a Nonfibfler upon
the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offdre bgtate),
reissuance or other disposition of a Series A Bond generaliyatilbe subject to U.S. federal
income tax, unless (i) such gain is effectively connected withrcdimneluct by such Non-U.S.
Holder of a trade or business within the United States; oin(the case of any gain realized by
an individual Non-U.S. Holder, such holder is present in the United $tat&83 days or more
in the taxable year of such sale, exchange, redemption, retiremeuadlifngcbursuant to an offer
by the State), reissuance or other disposition and certain other conditions.are met

U.S. Federal Estate Tax. A Series A Bond that is held by anduo@ivivho at the time
of death is not a citizen or resident of the United Statesnailbe subject to U.S. federal estate
tax as a result of such individual’'s death, provided that at the tinseabf individual's death,
payments of interest with respect to such Series A Bond would not beere effectively
connected with the conduct by such individual of a trade or business within the United States

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding—U.S. Holders and non-U.S. Holders

Interest on, and proceeds received from the sale of, a Pessd generally will be
reported to U.S. Holders, other than certain exempt recipients, sucbrgorations, on IRS
Form 1099. In addition, a backup withholding tax may apply to payments with respbe
Series A Bonds if the U.S. Holder fails to furnish the payor withraect taxpayer identification
number or other required certification or fails to report interestwidetds required to be shown
on the U.S. Holder’s federal income tax returns.

In general, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup withholdiny negpect to
interest payments on the Series A Bonds if such non-U.S. Holderriéisdtéo the payor under
penalties of perjury (i) the name and address of such non-U.S. Hold@r) &amat such non-U.S.
Holder is not a United States person, or, in the case of an individual, that such non-U.S.sHolder i
neither a citizen nor a resident of the United States, and the gag®mot know or have reason
to know that such certifications are false. However, informatiparteg on IRS Form 1042-S
may still apply to interest payments on the Series A Bonds made td.B8omolders not subject
to backup withholding. In addition, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to bacithipolding
with respect to the proceeds of the sale of a Series A Bwuk within the United States or
conducted through certain U.S. financial intermediaries if the payeivescthe certifications
described above and the payor does not know or have reason to know thattfficdtions are
false, or if the non-U.S. Holder otherwise establishes an exemgiion-U.S. Holders should
consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of informa@porting and backup
withholding in their particular circumstances, the availability ofnep&ons and the procedure
for obtaining such exemptions, if available.



Backup withholding is not an additional tax, and amounts withheld as backup
withholding are allowed as a refund or credit against a holder'salegeome tax liability,
provided that the required information as to withholding is furnished to the IRS.

The foregoing summary is included herein for general infiam only and does
not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxatiah tiay be relevant to a particular
Beneficial Owner of Series A Bonds in light of the B&oial Owner’s particular
circumstances and income tax situation. Prospectivetionesire urged to consult their
own tax advisors as to any tax consequences to them fromputtehase, ownership and
disposition of Series A Bonds, including the applicatiord a&ffect of state, local, foreign
and other tax laws.

Circular 230 Disclaimer

The preceding tax matters discussion related to the Series A Bondsintended or written to
be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose of avoiding penalties that mapdediomder
federal tax law in connection with the Series A Bonds. Such disouass written to support
the promotion or marketing of the Series A Bonds. Each purchaser adrihe & Bonds should
seek advice based on such purchaser’s particular circumstances from an indeprradiigdr.

DOCUMENTS ACCOMPANYING DELIVERY OF THE BONDS

Absence of Litigation

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the State will furnish an opinion of the Dmpat of the
Attorney General, dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, to tket ¢fiat there is no litigation
of any nature pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuashelévery of the Bonds or
in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any gbtbeeedings taken with
respect to the issuance and sale thereof or the levy or collettany taxes to pay principal of
or interest on the Bonds. In addition, such opinion will state thatdb@aseonsultations with
certain officers of the State, there is no litigation of anymreahow pending or threatened by or
against the State wherein an adverse judgment or ruling could haverahstverse effect on
the financial condition of the State or adversely affect the powtreoState to levy, collect or
enforce the collection of taxes or other revenues for the payment amnitsBvhich has not been
disclosed in this Official Statement.

Treasurer’s Certificate

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the State will furnish a certificatthefTreasurer of State,
dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, to the effect that to tlieobé®r knowledge this
Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement cfteriad fact or omit to state any
material fact necessary to make the statements made harkghtiof the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading.



Legal Opinions

The opinions of Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP with respect to theityaand tax status
of the Bonds will be delivered at the time of delivery of the Bondsubstantially the forms set
forth in Appendix G to this Official Statement.

Secondary Market Disclosure

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the State will unddrtake Bonds to
provide annual financial information and notices of certain events purgaaMunicipal
Securities Disclosure Rule, 17 CFR 8240.15c2-12 (the “Rule”), promulggtélde Securities
and Exchange Commission. Such undertakings of the State are sumnrari&ependix H
hereto.

The following information describes the instances in the previousyags of non-
compliance known to the State with the terms of certain @régious undertakings entered into
pursuant to the Rule.

In 2006, the State issued its general obligation bonds, certain matafitidsch were
insured by Financial Security Assurance Inc. ("FSA"), and provided anaorg disclosure
undertaking with respect to such bonds. FSA was downgraded by Moody's from Aaa on
November 21, 2008 on which date the State was rated Aa3 by Moody's. FSA wagatad
by Fitch on May 11, 2009 from AAA to AA+ on which date the State was rated AA. &nl9,
2009, the State notified each nationally recognized municipal secumftiesation repository of
both the Moody's November 21, 2008 downgrade and the Fitch May 11, 2009 downgrade. FSA
was further downgraded by Fitch on October 12, 2009 from AA+ to AA on whiehtlda State
was rated AA. The State did not file a notice of this downgrade. wawe April, 2010, Fitch
recalibrated its U.S. public finance ratings for states andicatiaer entities and in connection
with that recalibration changed the State's rating from AA to Afltich had been the rating on
the FSA insured bonds prior to the October 2009 downgrade of FSA. Theilgthteofice of
the April 2010 change with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Bo&ldstronic Municipal
Market Access ("EMMA") system on April 13, 2010. On January 22, 2013, Kitgaréd the
State's general obligation bond rating from AA+ to AA and notice sfadhange was filed with
EMMA on January 28, 2013.

The State has provided continuing disclosure undertakings with respestgentgral
obligation bonds issued from time to time and with respect taindsonds issued from time to
time by the Maine Governmental Facilities Authority ("MGFA") aagteed therein to provide
audited financial statements and annual financial information andtopgedata within one year
after the June 30 end of each of its fiscal years. In ordaulfih $uch continuing disclosure
undertakings, it has been the State's practice to post its offiaieiments with respect to such
bonds on EMMA and to associate such official statements with Coh@tibers to which such
continuing disclosure undertakings apply. On June 5, 2012, the State's offiteatestt dated
May 31, 2012, which included annual financial information and operating data filsdakyear
ended June 30, 2011, was posted on EMMA. However, that filing did not spéciissociate
such official statement with CUSIP numbers to which continuing disidasndertakings apply.
On August 16, 2013 a corrective filing was made with respect to the anmaifil information
and operating data for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. In addition,téhbaStdetermined
that while its annual financial information and audited financiatestents were filed with



EMMA in a timely manner each year, such filings did not spediyieegsociate such filings with
the MGFA bonds CUSIP numbers to which its continuing disclosure undertadopdys. On
August 19, 2013, the State made a corrective filing with respectst@nnual financial
information and audited financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2008 through 2012.

As described above, the Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the “Bank”) hasdssi&rant
Anticipation Bonds (Maine Department of Transportation) (the "GARMEonds") and, in
connection with such bonds, entered into substantially similar continuirigilise agreements
with the trustee for such bonds and the State, acting by and through éiseréreof State and
MaineDOT. In or about July, 2012, it was determined that MaineDOT hadongtlied in a
timely fashion with its continuing disclosure undertaking to post on EMNtAinvthree months
after the end of each federal fiscal year annual financial ifoorm and operating data with
respect to federal highway apportionments, obligation authority and reiembant receipts
available for GARVEE Bond payments. Such information for the fedeselfyears ended
September 30, 2011 and 2012 was filed on EMMA on July 9, 2012 and January 8, 2013,
respectively.

The Bank has issued its Transportation Infrastructure Revenue BivedST¢ansCap
Bonds"), Series 2008A, Series 2009A, Series 2009B and Series 2011A and, irticonmitic
such bonds, entered into substantially similar continuing disclosure agresewith the trustee
for such bonds and MaineDOT. Before the issuance of the TransCap Bends, ZD11A, it
was determined that MaineDOT had not complied in a timely fashidim #& continuing
disclosure agreements pertaining to the TransCap Bonds with resgectain annual financial
information. On November 3, 2011, Maine DOT made filings that fulféligbreviously unmet
continuing disclosure undertakings related to such TransCap Bonds and MAinadised the
Bank that it had implemented procedures that MaineDOT believed tmdguate to assure
timely filing of information sufficient to comply with its continuing dissure undertakings with
respect to the TransCap Bonds. With respect to the Decerap20B2 filing deadline, certain
financial information was filed on EMMA April 1, 2013. Audited financghtements of the
State required to be filed by June 30 of each fiscal year forfesmal year ended the prior June
30, were filed with EMMA in a timely manner; however, certaimds did not specifically
associate such filings with TransCap Bonds CUSIP numbers to wbitimuing disclosure
undertakings apply. On August 16, 2013, the State made a corrective filmgegpiect to those
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2009 through 2012.
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THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bondswilssued as fully-
registered securities registered in the name of Cede &B0&’'s partnership nominee) or such
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of»€QGully-registered
Series A Bond certificate will be issued in the aggregate ipagh@amount of each maturity
thereof and will be deposited with DTC. One fully-registered Sdi®@ond certificate will be
issued in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity thereof idnokevdeposited with
DTC.

DTC, the world’'s largest securities depository, is a limited-p@wptvast company
organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” witlennteaning of
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve Syat&iearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and leafing agency”
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Seclikemnge Act of 1934, as
amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 millios isbueS. and non-
U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money mstrkehents (from
over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Particiggrdeposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Partitspaf sales and other securities
transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerizedebtgktransfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This elingriageneed for physical movement
of securities certificates. Direct Participants include ddt8. and non-U.S. securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and cdnainrganizations. DTC
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Catpmt (“DTCC").
DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Cleariogp@ation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearingcagge DTCC is owned by
the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to thedy$€m is also available to others such
as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trushiesmgad clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship avDirect Participant,
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTkas a Standard & Poor’s rating of
AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are orviith the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or throegh Di
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTr€tords. The ownership interest
of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) isifim to be recorded on the
Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Ownernd not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners laogjever, expected to receive
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as agejperiodic statements of their
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Osiered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds beeaccomplished by entries
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behBHEnaficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representheir ownership interests in Bonds,
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by DiegtitiPants with DTC
are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Celde. &or such other name as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The a#d®asitds with DTC and
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTCinemrdo not effect any
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change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual @ahéfivners of the
Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the DirectiPigants to whose accounts such
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owndrs.Direct and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of thedimgd on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Directipants, by
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by DiRatticipants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, stijeny statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to. tiBeneficial Owners of the Bonds
may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmissitreno of notices of significant
events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions and defaultexaRwmle, Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holdingtits Bor their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Ownerghe alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the rgtaieqaest that copies of
notices be provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will coneemnote with
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participaacordance with DTC’'s MMI
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxyStateeas soon as
possible after the record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede’&cGosenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bondsealieed on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy).

Principal and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTCucprés to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts, upon DTC'’s receipt of funds and corresponding id&athation from
the State on payable date in accordance with their respectivadgeokhown on DTC’s records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be govehyedtanding instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities beldhé accounts of customers in bearer
form or registered in “street name,” and will be the respoitsilmf such Participant and not of
DTC, or the State, subject to any statutory or regulatory requireraenhay be in effect from
time to time. Payment of principal, interest and redemption procéeats, to Cede & Co. (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representddiV€)ofs the
responsibility of the State, and disbursement of such paymentsecat Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Bah&ieners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities deposiitnyr@spect to the
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the State. Under istuginstances, in the
event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Boiffidatest are required to be
printed and delivered.

The State may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entfgrsathsough
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bonficagzs will be printed and
delivered to DTC.
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The information concerning DTC and DTC'’s book-entry system has been obfr@med
sources that the State believes to be reliable, but the State takspowsibility for the accuracy
thereof.

THE STATE WILL NOT HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO
PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NINEES WITH
RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF N@H FOR THE DIRECT
PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENHCIAL OWNERS OF
THE BONDS. NO ASSURANCES CAN BE PROVIDED THAT IN BHEVENT OF
BANKRUPTCY OR INSOLVENCY OF DTC OR A DIRECT PARTIGANT OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT THROUGH WHICH A BENEFICIAL OWNER HOLDINTERESTS IN THE
BONDS, PAYMENT WILL BE MADE BY DTC, THE DIRECT PARTIGPANT OR THE
INDIRECT PARTICIPANT ON A TIMELY BASIS.

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS NOMINEE OF DTC, IS THE HOER OF ALL OF
THE BONDS, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE OWNERS OR HOLERF THE BONDS
SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFITAL OWNERS.
THEREFORE, ANY STATEMENTS IN THE OFFICIAL STATEMENTSUMMARIZING
THE TERMS OF PAYMENT AND REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS, AN
REQUIREMENTS OF NOTICE TO HOLDERS OF THE BONDS ANANY RIGHTS OF
CONSENT OF THE HOLDERS OF THE BONDS SHALL APPLY TCEDE & CO., AS
HOLDER OF THE BONDS, AND NO REPRESENTATIONS ARE MADE RESPECT OF
THE FOREGOING TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS.

RATINGS

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Seraagigision of
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., have assigned their municipal bomfysadf “Aa2” with a
“Stable” outlook and “AA” with a “Stable” outlook, respectively, to therls. The State has
furnished such rating agencies with certain information and matedaterning the Bonds and
the State, some of which is not included in this Official Statégm Generally, each such rating
agency bases its ratings on such information and materials and alsxlomngestigations,
studies and assumptions as each may undertake or establish independently.

The ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds arsliehahting
should be evaluated independently and should not be relied on in making any investment
decision. Such ratings reflect only the respective views auwh erating agency, and an
explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from the rating agerstyirigr
the same. There is no assurance that a rating will contina@yagiven period of time or that a
rating will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by any or all offstating agencies if, in its or
their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision bdraiwal of a rating
could have an adverse effect on the market prices of the Bonds.

COMPETITIVE SALE OF BONDS

The Bonds were offered for sale at competitive bidding on June 12, 2(detardance
with the Amended and Restated Notice of Sale dated June 11, 2014e@ttec Appendix ).
J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”) was the successful bfdd¢he Series A Bonds.
Information provided by J.P. Morgan regarding the interest rates and mepffeelds of the
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Bonds is set forth on the inside cover of this Official Stateniém. Series A Bonds are being
purchased from the State by J.P. Morgan at an aggregate price of $40,075,786c2bgréhe
principal amount of $40,045,000.00, plus aggregate original issue premium of $61,164.45, les
underwriter’s discount of $30,434.20. Raymond James & Associates, Inc. (“Rayamoed”)

was the successful bidder for the Series B Bonds. Information pdowigeRaymond James
regarding the interest rates and reoffering yields of the Borgkt iorth on the inside cover of

this Official Statement. The Series B Bonds are being purcHesedthe State by Raymond
James at an aggregate price of $87,251,833.50, reflecting the principal amfount o
$72,900,000.00, plus aggregate original issue premium of $14,679,883.50, less underwriter’s
discount of $328,050.00.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc. (“PFM”) has served as finaadwsbkor to the State
for the issuance of the Bonds. PFM is not obligated to undertake, and hesledaken, either
to make an independent verification of or to assume responsibility lier, atcuracy,
completeness, or fairness of the information contained in thigi@ffstatement. PFM is an
independent financial advisory firm and is not engaged in the business ofvritidgy trading,
or distributing securities or other public securities.

MISCELLANEOUS

Any provisions of the constitution of the State, of all laws and ofralbeuments set
forth or referred to in this Official Statement are only summed, and such summaries do not
purport to be complete statements of any of such provisions. Only thd stuaf such
provisions can be relied upon for completeness and accuracy.

This Official Statement, including all appendices hereto, contamaircdorward-looking
statements that are subject to a variety of risks and umtessaihat could cause actual results to
differ from the projected results, including without limitation geh@@onomic and business
conditions, conditions in the financial markets, the financial conditiotnefState and various
State agencies and authorities, receipt of federal grangmtilitn, arbitration, force majeure
events and various other factors that are beyond the control of teeaBthits various agencies
and authorities. Because of the inability to predict all factioas may affect future decisions,
actions, events or financial circumstances, what actually happgnberdifferent from what is
set forth in such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statermentadicated by use of
such words as “may,” “should,” “intends,” “expects,” “believes,” “antitgsd’ “estimates” and
others.

All estimates and assumptions in this Official Statement leen made on the best
information available and are believed to be reliable, but no repeatiems whatsoever are made
that such estimates and assumptions are correct. So far astasayents in this Official
Statement involve any matters of opinion, whether or not expressfataal, they are intended
merely as such and not as representations of fact. The variousnayle®t add due to rounding
of figures.

Neither the office of the State Auditor, nor any other independent aardsinhave
compiled, examined or performed any procedures with respect to amgcifihanformation
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contained herein, nor have they expressed any opinion or any other form ahassoim such
information.

The information, estimates and assumptions and expressions of opinkia @fficial
Statement are subject to change without notice. Neither the delivdrg @ifficial Statement nor
any sale made pursuant to this Official Statement shall, uaglercircumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the @tds agencies, authorities or
political subdivisions since the date of this Official Statement, exceppasssly stated.

Questions regarding this Official Statement or requests fortiawlali information
concerning the State should be directed to Neria R. Douglass, Treafs8tate, 39 State House
Station, Augusta, Maine 04333, telephone: 207-624-7477; facsimile: 207-287-2367.

STATE OF MAINE

By:/s/ Neria R. Douglass

Dated: June 12, 2014 Treasurer of State
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GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

The State of Maine (the “State” or “Maine”) became the twenty-third sfdtee United States in
1820. The government of the State is divided into three distinct bramicbédsgislative, executive and
judicial, as outlined in the chart below.

Electorate

I
Legislative Branch

Judicial Branch

Senate and Executive Branch Supreme Judicial
House of Court

Representatives
Other Courts

Attorney Treasurer Secretary State
General of State of State Auditor

Commissioners
Administrative Agriculture, Defense, Veteran
. . . Conservation & Corrections & Emergency
& Financial Services
Forestry Management
Economic & ) ) )
Community Education Environmental Health and Human Inland Fisheries
Development Protection Services & Wildlife
Marine Professional & . ;
Labor RESOUrCes Financial Regulatior Public Safety Transportation

Executive Branch

The Offices of Governor, Secretary of State, Treasurer of Statéttorney General are created
by the Constitution of the State. The Governor is elected quadilgnat a general election and is
limited to two consecutive four-year terms of office. The fiestn of the present Governor began in
January 2011. The Secretary of State, Treasurer of State and YAteemeral are each elected
biennially by a joint ballot of the state Senators and Representatieesivention. A person may not
serve more than four consecutive terms as either Secretanatef $teasurer of State or Attorney
General.

Governor. The executive power of the State, including the power to memainmeasures to
the Legislature, and the power to appoint, with the advice and conséet $€mhate, certain officers of
State government, is vested in the Governor. The Governor is respoositile £nforcement of the
laws of the State.
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Governor’s Cabinet. The Governor’s cabinet, which assists the @ovaradministration and
policymaking, includes the commissioners who head the 14 executive deparamentho serve at the
pleasure of the Governor.

Secretary of State. The Secretary of State, a constitutiffiaer, serves as executive head of
the Department of the Secretary of State, and is authorizedpdiseffice at the seat of government,
have the custody of the state seal and preserve all recordhinféige at the expense of the State; to
keep and preserve the records of all the official acts and pliagseof the Governor, Senate and House
of Representatives, and, when required, lay the same before eiimeh lof the Legislature, and
perform such other duties as are enjoined by the Constitution oreedpyi law. The Secretary of State
attends to the Governor, Senate and House of Representatives ahalerespectively require;
appoints and renews all notaries public commissions; prepares coomsidor appointees, and
certificates of election to office for presentation to the Goveumoler the seal of the State; distributes
printed information and instructions, ballots and blanks for all eleceturns required by law to clerks
of the several towns; files articles of incorporation; filestices of certain security interests and
performs other receiving, filing and recording functions for which feay be collected; files rules
adopted pursuant to the Administrative Procedure Act; annually regisigtor vehicles and issues
licenses for operators thereof; issues certificatestlef ticenses new and used car dealers; maintains
official state records considered to be permanently valuabdiministers the State’s address
confidentiality program and the Office of the Small Business Aafteycand supervises the
Department’s subdivisions as required by statute and recommends ltegisature such changes as
may be required to modernize and improve the functions and services rendered by the Department

Treasurer of State. The Treasurer of State, a constitubéficdr, is authorized to receive and
keep records of all items of income accruing to the State; to deposit such itemksnrbeonciling said
balances and temporarily investing idle funds; to sell bonds and notes Stfatkeas approved by law
and keep records pertaining to such debt; to maintain monthly exhibiternog: these moneys; to
enter into contracts or agreements with banks for custodialacateservicing of negotiable securities
belonging to the State; and to establish accounts with such banksvicingeState agencies. The
Treasurer of State also administers the Unclaimed PropertyaRtogihe Treasurer of State is an ex
officio member of the boards of a number of authorities and bodidsligiséal by the State, including
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, the Maine Public Employees Retire®gstem, the Maine Health
and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, the Maine Governmerdallities Authority, the Maine
State Housing Authority, the Finance Authority of Maine, the Maine Puliliity Financing Bank, the
Adaptive Equipment Loan Board, the Northern Maine Transmission CorporatienBdard of
Emergency Municipal Finance, the Indian Housing Mortgage Insurance @emnthe Dirigo Health
Agency Board of Trustees, Maine Vaccine Board and the Maine Edudatioaa Authority, and is
Chair of the NextGen Investment Advisory Board.

The Treasurer of State is responsible daily for the investmehbosé funds not required to meet
current expenditures. Daily deposits are placed in local depesitstatewide, wired daily to a central
working account and invested fully. All check disbursements are madeebjréasurer of State on
warrants issued by the State Controller. Funds are disbursed on banintacestablished under
competitive bidding. Funds are transferred from receipt accoudiskiorsement accounts by wire as
needed to meet balance requirements.

The Treasurer of State maintains a record of all reca@lgisursements and transfer activity and
balances to the State Controller monthly. The Treasurer of Staietains the records of the
investments of the State through the State investment pool. Themewtgiool comprises the entire
cash availability of the State (all funds) as well as compowmeits that elect to participate. Monthly
transfers of earnings are made by the Treasurer of Statetiwpading funds. The Treasurer of State
compiles a listing of State investments held monthly.
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When there is money in the State Treasury that is not neededetocareent obligations, the
Treasurer of State may invest, with the concurrence of tae £ontroller or the Commissioner of
Administrative and Financial Services and with the consent of tdwer@or, those amounts in bonds,
notes, certificates of indebtedness or other obligations of the USim#s and its agencies and
instrumentalities that mature not more than 36 months from theotlateestment, or in repurchase
agreements that mature within the succeeding 12 months that aredskegurbligations of the United
States and its agencies and instrumentalities, prime conah@aper, tax-exempt obligations and
corporate bonds rated “AAA” that mature not more than 36 months frordateeof investment, or
banker's acceptances or so-called “no-load” shares of any investoeigany registered under
applicable Federal law that complies with certain Federal pugdeand maintains a constant share
price.

Attorney General. The Attorney General’s primary responsibditg protect public rights and
preserve order through serving as the State’s chief law officelegatirepresentative of the State. In
this capacity, the Attorney General ensures enforcement of Néairsethrough instituting, conducting,
and maintaining such actions and proceedings as the public interestanag.r No State agency may
appear and advocate positions before a court without the approval of the Attorney General.

The Department of the Attorney General is authorized to (a) appethe State, or any State
agency or official, in all civil actions and proceedings in which ttaéeSs a party or interested, or in
which the official acts of such officers are questioned in Stateederal courts or Federal agencies; (b)
control and direct the investigation and prosecution of homicides and ratjer crimes, including
frauds against the State; (c) render all legal servegsined by State officers, boards and commissions
in matters relating to their official duties; (d) issue \erntopinions upon questions of law submitted by
the Governor, the head of any State department or agency, or by eitiwr bfdhe Legislature or any
member of the Legislature on legislative matters; (e) enfdwee application of funds given or
appropriated to public trusts and charities within the State aedempr breaches of trust in the
administration thereof; (f) consult with and advise the DisW#ttbrneys in matters relating to their
duties, and, in the discretion of the Attorney General, act in ghoe with them in instituting and
conducting prosecutions for crime; and (g) administer and enforcstaite unfair trade practices and
antitrust laws.

Beyond the general purposes discussed above, the Attorney General hagangadef duties
which the office is specifically directed to perform. Thoseaesduinclude a review and approval as to
form and legality of all regulations of State agencies subje¢ch@éoAdministrative Procedure Act.
Among other specific statutory functions, the Attorney General nastreview and approve write-offs
of debts owed to the State, enforce standards of conduct of the legal profession andtpantitipking
investment decisions regarding the State trust funds.

Office of the State Auditor

The Office of the State Auditor is headed by the State Auditoo, i elected by the Legislature
by a joint ballot of the Senators and Representatives in convention twffiokl for a term of four
years. A person may not serve more than two consecutive termat@sA8titor. The Office of the
State Auditor is authorized to audit all accounts and other finanetalrds of State government,
including the Judiciary and the Executive Department of the Governor, ékee@overnor's expense
account, and to report annually on this audit, and at such other tirttes lasgislature may require; to
review and study departmental budgets and capital programs for bedteffcient management of
State government; to serve as a staff agency to the Legislatute the Governor in making
investigations of any phase of the State's finances; and to perfiita af all accounts and financial
records of any organization, institution or other entity receiving or réggesn appropriation or grant
from the State; to issue reports on such audits and investigahodsto conduct financial and
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compliance audits of financial transactions and accounts kept by Stdi@ agencies subject to federal
single audit requirements.

The Legislature

The legislative power of the State is vested in a Senate aHduae of Representatives
(collectively, the “Legislature”), each of which has a negativéhenother. The Senate consists of 35
members and the House of Representatives consists of 151 membafrsyradin are elected for two-
year terms from single-member districts. A person may ngésapore than four consecutive terms as
either a senator or a representative.

The Legislature is organized into 16 Joint Standing Committeels, cesprised of 3 Senators
and 10 Representatives. Current Joint Standing Committees areulfgec Conservation and
Forestry; Appropriations and Financial Affairs; Labor, Commerce, eideh and Economic
Development; Criminal Justice and Public Safety; Education air@l Affairs; Health and Human
Services; Inland Fisheries and Wildlife; Insurance and Fiaa&arvices; Judiciary; Veterans and Legal
Affairs; Marine Resources; Environment and Natural Resourcese Sand Local Government;
Taxation; Transportation; and Energy Utilities and Technology. Fromtartime, the Legislature has
established joint select committees on such matters as Mamekéorce and economic future, property
tax reform, health care reform, research and development, corrections, Indisraafiaules.

The Legislature of the State convenes in even-numbered years onsth&Védnesday of
December following the general election in what is designatedrgtedgular session of the Legislature
and also convenes on the first Wednesday after the first Tuesdaguafrylan the subsequent even-
numbered year in what is designated the second regular session ofjilatisee. The business of the
second regular session of the Legislature is limited to budgetatgraydegislation in the Governor’s
call, legislation of an emergency nature admitted by the Legisld#grislation referred to committees
for study and report by the Legislature in the first regular sessidnlegislation presented to the
Legislature by written petition of the voters pursuant to tbhas@itution of the State. The Legislature
may convene at such other times in special session on the thdé Bfresident of the Senate and the
Speaker of the House, with the consent of the majority of the merobéhe Legislature of each
political party, all members of the Legislature having first beenegol The Governor may, on
extraordinary occasions, also convene special sessions of the Legislature.

The Constitution requires the Legislature to enact appropriate statutasydimtihe length of the
first and second regular sessions. Under the statute curremffeat, the first regular session of the
Legislature adjourns no later than the third Wednesday in June andctimel segular session of the
Legislature adjourns no later than the third Wednesday in April. LHugslature, in the case of
emergency, may by a vote of two-thirds of the members of each of theteSand House of
Representatives present and voting, extend the date for adjournment by nihanofige legislative
days, and, in the case of further emergency, further extend the datgolamenent by five additional
legislative days. The times for adjournment for the first andrgkcegular sessions may also be
extended for one additional legislative day for the purpose of considering anlgywthe Governor of
any bill or resolution passed by the Legislature. Theé'12gjislature is currently meeting in its second
regular session.

The Legislature, with certain exceptions, is authorized to makestablish all reasonable laws
and regulations for the defense and benefit of the people of ther&tatepugnant to the Constitution
of the State, nor to that of the United States. Legislaiacted by the Legislature may be vetoed by
the Governor. The Governor’'s veto may be overridden by the subsequent voleast awvo-thirds of
each of the House of Representatives and the Senate. The Goveortasatline-item” veto power to
decrease appropriations or allocations and to increase deappropriatibeellocations within one day

A-5



after the Governor receives legislation for approval. The Goverribns-item” veto may be
overridden by the subsequent vote of at least a majority of each obtlse ldf Representatives and the
Senate. Legislation does not become effective until 90 days héieretess of the session of the
Legislature in which it was passed, unless in case of emerdentegislature shall, by a vote of two-
thirds of all the members elected to each of the House of Remtges and the Senate, otherwise
direct.

The Constitution of the State provides that, upon written petition bysvetgral to not less than
10% of the total vote cast in the last gubernatorial election giregsuch petition and filed on or before
the ninetieth day after recess of the Legislature requestingetiisiation passed by the Legislature but
not then in effect be submitted to referendum for ratification mapority of those voting thereon, such
legislation does not take effect, if at all, until thirty dajterathe Governor has announced that such
legislation has been ratified by the voters. Any such ratification wotdd take place at the next
statewide or general election, not less than 60 days after the Gohas@roclaimed that sufficient
signatures have been submitted.

The Constitution of the State provides that, by written petition, vetgral to not less than 10%
of the total vote cast in the last gubernatorial election precadiciy petition and filed before a regular
session of the Legislature may propose legislation to the Legssldbr its consideration. The
legislation, unless adopted by the Legislature without change, musbbetted to referendum in the
next November after the Legislature recesses.

Pursuant to the Constitution of the State, legislative enactmieictading bills, orders or
resolutions, may originate in either the Senate or the Housepfesentatives, and may be altered,
amended, or rejected in the other, but all bills for raising a revehnak originate in the House of
Representatives, but the Senate may propose amendments as in sghepaavided that the Senate
shall not, under color of amendment, introduce any new matter whichndbe®late to raising a
revenue.

The Judiciary

The judicial power of the State is vested in the Supreme Ju@ioiat and such other courts as
the Legislature may establish. The Legislature has established theoEQpert and the District Court.
The courts are administered by the Administrative Office ofQberts under the direction of the State
Court Administrator, who is appointed by and serves at the pleasure GhitbleJustice. In addition,
the Constitution of the State provides for probate courts in each of the 16 counties dethe Sta

The Supreme Judicial Court is the highest court in Maine, and aaw€ourt is the court of
final appeal. It consists of the Chief Justice and six Aseodiastices, each of whom is appointed by
the Governor with the consent of the Legislature for a seven-year term.

The Superior Court and the District Court are both trial courtsinoiteld, complimentary
jurisdiction. The Superior Court offers jury trials and the misCourt does not. The Superior Court
consists of a Chief Justice and 16 justices, who are appointed byvweenGr with the consent of the
Legislature for a seven-year term. The Superior Court holds sessions in each of theié$. count

The District Court consists of a Chief Judge, a Deputy Chief Judty84judges, each of whom

is appointed by the Governor with the consent of the Legislature forea-gear term. There are 13
districts and several divisions of the court.
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Independent Authorities and Agencies

The State has established several independent authorities and sgbedmidgets of which are
not included in the annual budget of the State. Certain of these aeth@mtd agencies receive
appropriations from the State from time-to-time. Certain of ethasthorities and agencies are
authorized by the statutes creating such authorities and agendesu¢obonds and to undertake
financial obligations, payment of which are secured in part by special reservé“fDagigal Reserves”)
to which the State may appropriate funds in order to maintain theaCd&@serves at amounts
determined by such statutes or by such authorities and agenciegp{i@l‘Raserve Provision”). While
the bonds and obligations of such authorities and agencies and the CagataleRerovisions do not
constitute legally enforceable obligations of the State or crayedebt on behalf of the State, the
Constitution of the State does not prohibit future Legislatures fpproariating sums requested by any
such authority or agency in compliance with its Capital Reserve Rnovi€ertain of these authorities
and agencies have been authorized by statute to insure or guaranyeeergpaf certain loans and
bonds. See “Fiscal Management - Constitutional Debt Limit” ‘@wttain Public Instrumentalities”
herein.

County and Municipal Government

The State is divided into 16 county governments responsible for varioumhsaencluding the
operation of county jails and registries of probate and deeds. Each county goversseesés the costs
of its operations upon the cities, towns and Unorganized Territ@gased within the county. A law
which took effect in 2008 modified the responsibility of county governmentgpéoate county jails.
That law was intended to produce savings in State General Fund expeaniditlceunty jail operations
in future fiscal years and also established a State board of corrections, the ptivposé is to develop
and implement a unified State and county correctional system.

The State is further divided into 22 cities, 433 towns, 34 plantations4 dndian nations or
territories which exercise the functions of municipal government,dnad the provision of elementary
and secondary education. There are also a number of unorganized townshipastadand inland
islands and three Indian Reservations. Cities are governeévieyak variations of the mayor and
council form of government. In most towns, executive power has beegdplaa board of three, five,
or seven selectmen, elected to terms of from one to threg ged legislative power has been retained
by the voters themselves, who assemble in periodic open town meetihgse aFe various regional
districts for school, water supply, solid waste, wastewater disposal and other purpose

Municipal revenues consist of property taxes, local aid (including Steébsidies for education
and revenue sharing), local receipts (including motor vehicle and vadtezgcise taxes, fines, license
and permit fees, charges for local services and investment income) and othes. source

FISCAL MANAGEMENT
Department of Administrative and Financial Services

The Department of Administrative and Financial Services, undesupervision and control of
the Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Services, iptimeipal fiscal department of State
government. The Commissioner of Administrative and Financial @srvas certain duties and
authorities, including serving as the Governor’s principal fiscal aide, coordirfatancial planning and
programming activities of the State government for review andrably the Governor, preparing and
reporting to the Governor and the Legislature such financial datatmstistaas may be required or
requested by them, planning with respect to the fiscal needs ofgetadenment and ensuring that all
publications stating the salary of a State employee alsotstat@lue of the employee’s fringe benefits.
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The Department of Administrative and Financial Services incltltee8ureau of the Budget, headed by
the State Budget Officer, the Office of the State Contraliet the Bureau of Maine Revenue Services,
headed by the State tax assessor and the Associate Commissioner fordax Poli

Constitutional Debt Limit

Article IX, Section 14, of the Constitution of the State provides ttia Legislature shall not at
any time create any debt or debts, liability or liabilities, on Bedfahe State, which shall singly, or in
the aggregate, with previous debts and liabilities incurred, exceed $2,000)08G;ept to suppress
insurrection, to repel invasion, or for purposes of war; (ii) excepefaporary loans to be paid out of
money raised by taxation during the fiscal year in which they are raade(iii) excepting also that
whenever two-thirds of both the Senate and the House of Representdtaledeem it necessary, by
proper enactment ratified by a majority of the electors voting dhesiea general or special election, the
Legislature may authorize the issuance of bonds on behalf of the State at suchdimesuah amounts
and for such purposes as may be approved by such action. See ExhiBel&xted Information
Regarding Authorized and Outstanding Debt of the State - Authorized Expesditherein sets forth
information regarding bonds currently authorized pursuant to certain esmdstiwhich have been
ratified by a majority of the voters at various elections. Tempdmans to be paid out of moneys
raised by taxation during any fiscal year shall not exceed in thegaggrduring the fiscal year in
guestion an amount greater than ten percent of all the moneys appdy@dk®rized and allocated by
the Legislature from undedicated revenues to the General Fund and etkdesesnues to the Highway
Fund for that fiscal year, exclusive of proceeds or expenditurestirersale of bonds, or greater than
one percent of the total valuation of the State, whichever is the lesser.

The Constitution also allows the Legislature to authorize therissuaf bonds (i) in the amount
of up to $4,000,000 to guarantee student loans; (ii) to insure payments o$4j910,000 of mortgage
loans for war veterans; and (iii) to insure payments on up to $90,000,00@rtfage loans for
industrial, manufacturing, fishing agricultural and recreational enseprThe Finance Authority of
Maine is authorized to guarantee student loans and to insure paymestsaom mortgage loans. See
“Certain Public Instrumentalities — Finance Authority of MaineThe Constitution also allows the
Legislature to authorize the issuance of bonds to insure payments on up to $1,00m06a0aife loans
for Indian housing. The Maine State Housing Authority is authorized toeinmyments on mortgage
loans for Indian housing. See “Certain Public Instrumentalitiesain®State Housing Authority”
herein. Although the Constitution also allows the Legislature tooaméhthe issuance of bonds to
insure the payment of revenue bonds of the Maine School Building Authoritghoolsprojects not
exceeding $6,000,000, the statutory authorization for insurance of Maine Sakitubhdd Authority
revenue bonds has been repealed. No bonds are outstanding pursuant to any obtizatious
described in this paragraph.

Overview of the Budget Process

The budget of the State government must present a complete financial plan for ehgledisof
the ensuing period of two fiscal years, commencing July 1 in odd-numberad yidsr budget must set
forth all proposed expenditures for the administration, operation and mace of the departments
and agencies of State government, all interest and debt redemptigescharing each fiscal year and
all expenditures for capital projects to be undertaken and exedurttied) each fiscal year of such two-
year period. In addition, the budget must set forth the anticipated revehine State government and
any other means of financing expenditures proposed for each fiscal year of such twatgdar pe

The State budget consists of a budget message by the Governor (or theoGeleat) that
outlines the financial policy of the State government for the egsperiod of four fiscal years,
describing in connection therewith the important features of the falgsian. The Governor's budget
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overview must also lay out a vision for the State’s long-range fiaaptan and describe how the
proposed budget complements that longer vision, which includes the curreniubyieand the two
succeeding biennia.

The budget includes a general budget summary setting forth the aggrggete 6f the budget
showing the balance between total proposed expenditures and total amtiogyvateues, together with
other means of financing the budget for each fiscal year of thengnisuo fiscal years, contrasted with
the corresponding figures for the last completed fiscal year andisited year in progress. For
information regarding the revenue projection process, see “Fiscalgelaeat — Revenue Forecasting”
below. The budget specifically describes the estimated loss inuekiring the last completed fiscal
year and the fiscal year in progress and the anticipated loss mueefa each fiscal year of such two-
year period caused by tax expenditures provided by law. The general budgeargumust be
supported by explanatory schedules or statements, classifying the exyendiintained therein by
organization units, objects and funds, and the income by organization units ssandcéunds. The
budget also includes statements of the bonded indebtedness of thgoS8tatenent showing the debt
redemption requirements, the debt authorized and unissued, and the condition of the sinking funds.

Pursuant to Public Laws of Maine 2005, chapter 2 (“*2005 Chapter 2”), theGetaral Fund
appropriation for each of the two fiscal years in the biennial budggtnuot exceed the General Fund
appropriation limit established by law, except as otherwise providéhbySee “Fiscal Management —
General Fund Appropriation Limit.” 2005 Chapter 2 became effectivdidcal biennia of the State
beginning July 1, 2005 and is subject to modification or repeal at any time by the Legislature.

On or before September 1 of even-numbered years, all departments andgethaes of the
State government and corporations and associations receiving or desireweive State funds must
prepare and submit to the State Budget Officer estimates of éRkpenditure and appropriation
requirements for each fiscal year of the ensuing two-year fisdabpeontrasted with the corresponding
figures of the last completed fiscal year and the estimatedefigor the fiscal year in progress. The
growth in the State’s General Fund appropriations is limited byttawhe ten-year average annual
growth in real personal income (not to exceed 2.75%) plus the ten-yeagawerpopulation growth.
State general purpose aid for kindergarten to grade 12 education (“GRxXtluded from the General
Fund appropriation limit until such time as the State’s sharelwtation funding reaches 55% of total
state and local education funding. See “Fiscal Management — GEnelAppropriation Limit” and
“State Budgets” below.

The Governor (or the Governor-elect), with the assistance dbtdite Budget Officer, reviews
the budget estimates and may alter, revise, increase or detheasems of the estimates as may be
deemed necessary in view of the needs of the various departmentgean@s and the total anticipated
income of the State government during the ensuing two-year fiscal pdit@dState Budget Officer, at
the direction of the Governor (or the Governor-elect), then preparedeabbidget in the form required
by law. The Governor must transmit the budget to the Legislature not later thaid#yefélfowing the
first Monday in January of odd-numbered years. A Governor-elect torkistdrm of office must
transmit the State budget to the Legislature not later than tdayHollowing the first Monday in
February in odd-numbered years.

Not later than June 1 of each year, the head of each departmegesny of State government
must submit to the State Bureau of the Budget a work program fonsling fiscal year. Such work
program must include all appropriations, revenues, transfers andfotfis made available to that
department or agency for its operation and maintenance and for theitemygwoisproperty, and must
show the requested allotments of said sums by quarters for tihe fescal year, classified to show
allotments requested for specific amounts for personal servigetl @& penditures and amounts for all
other departmental expenses. The Governor, with the assistance oteélusiget Officer, reviews the
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requested allotments with respect to the work program of each mepardr agency and may revise,
alter or change its allotments before approving the same. Thegaggrof such allotments may not
exceed the total sums made available to each department or &getieyfiscal year in question. The
State Budget Officer transmits a copy of the allotments as amgplyvéehe Governor to the head of the
department or agency concerned and also a copy to the State Controll&tatEh€ontroller authorizes
all expenditures to be made from the sums available on thedéagish allotments and not otherwise.
Thereafter, the head of any department or agency of the State gonemmang request, and the
Governor may approve, revisions of the allotments for the remaining quarters of a figcal ye

Whenever it appears to the Commissioner of Administrative and Fata®ervices that the
anticipated revenue and other available funds of the State will reatffigient to meet the expenditures
authorized by the Legislature, the Commissioner so reports imgvtid the Governor and to certain
officers of the Legislature. After receiving the report, the Gowmemay temporarily curtail allotments
equitably so that expenditures will not exceed the anticipated inamcheother available funds. The
Governor, upon the curtailment of any allotment, notifies certain offioérthe Legislature of the
specific allotments curtailed, the extent of curtailment ofhealfotment and the effect of each
curtailment on the objects and purposes of the program so affected.

No State department or agency may make expenditures of any Federabrfaxgenditures in
anticipation of receipt of Federal funds for any new or expanded proguatess such Federal funds
are approved by the Legislature. The Governor may authorize the expeodisuich Federal funds for
a period not to exceed twelve calendar months and shall notifyftice ©f Fiscal and Program Review
of the Legislature of such action.

Revenue Forecasting

Statutory Responsibilities. A Revenue Forecasting Commégtessponsible for providing the
Governor, the Legislature and the State Budget Officer with analiisdesigs and recommendations
relating to the projection of revenues for the General Fund and the Highwa based on economic
assumptions recommended by the Consensus Economic Forecasting Commise®nRevenue
Forecasting Committee includes the State Budget Officer, #iseddate Commissioner for Tax Policy,
the State Economist, an economist on the faculty of the UniversiimeViSystem selected by the
chancellor, the Director of the Office of Fiscal and Prograeni®v of the Legislature and another
member of the Legislature’s nonpartisan staff familiar wethenue estimating issues appointed by the
Legislative Council. The Revenue Forecasting Committee meetstatdaatimes a year.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee develops current fiscal biemmdniwo ensuing fiscal
biennia revenue projections using the economic assumptions recommended bystesGs Economic
Forecasting Commission. The Revenue Forecasting Committee suboutarmendations for State
revenue projections for the next two fiscal biennia and analyzes revenueipngjéat the current fiscal
biennium. No later than December 1 of each even-numbered yeaeubeuR Forecasting Committee
submits to the Governor, certain members of the Legislature anddtee BBidget Officer analyses,
findings and recommendations for General Fund and Highway Fund revenue @ngjdati the next
two fiscal biennia. No later than May 1 and December 1 of each odbemadyear and no later than
March 1 and December 1 of each even-numbered year, the Revenue tigyébammittee submits to
the Governor, certain members of the Legislature and the State tBdffger analyses, findings and
recommendations for adjustments to General Fund and Highway Fund reverthe farrrent and
ensuing fiscal biennia.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee makes all determinationssagceto calculate the
General Fund appropriation limit established by law. See ‘Fislanagement — General Fund
Appropriation Limit.”
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The State Budget Officer uses the revenue projections of the Relvereaasting Committee in
setting revenue estimates for inclusion in the State budget and imipge@aneral Fund and Highway
Fund revenue and expenditure forecasts for the budget.

The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission is responsible for proweiGpyernor,
the Legislature and the Revenue Forecasting Committee with esafygdings and recommendations
representing State economic assumptions relevant to revermoading. The Consensus Economic
Forecasting Commission consists of five members appointed by the Goasnpimvided by law. Each
Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission member must have pnafiessiedentials and
demonstrated expertise in economic forecasting. The Consensus kcdéimwvetasting Commission
meets at least four times a year.

The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission develops five-year andarten-ye
macroeconomic secular trend forecasts and one-year, two-year and do@cgaomic forecasts. The
Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission submits recommendationstafer ésonomic
assumptions for the next fiscal biennium and analyzes economic asmsnfur the current fiscal
biennium. No later than November 1 of each even-numbered year, the Gannagsbmits to the
Governor, the Revenue Forecasting Committee and certain members bédiséature analyses,
findings and recommendations for economic assumptions related to reweecasfing for the next
fiscal biennium. No later than April 1 and November 1 of each oddared year and no later than
February 1 and November 1 of each even-numbered year, the Commission sulimeit§overnor, the
Revenue Forecasting Committee and certain members of the Legitlad Commission’s findings and
recommendations for adjustments to the economic assumptions for the currebidiscaim.

Fiscal Year 2013 and 2014 Reports. The Consensus Economic Fogedasthmission
(“CEFC”) issued its latest report dated February 1, 2014, which eghdbe forecast it released in
November 2013. National and state economic indicators suggest continued grgmioakment in
economic conditions since the CEFC report dated November 2013, with Mato@emy continuing to
grow more slowly than the nation. Nationwide, consumer sentiment aadtlareiness optimism are up
over year-ago levels. Personal income in Maine grew 2.5% year-oveinyiar first three quarters of
2013, while wage and salary income grew 2.7% over the same period. Ther@omgice Index was
1.5% higher in December 2013 than it was in December 2012.

The price of crude oil declined 0.3% in the fourth quarter of 2013 to $109 pet. bome sales
in Maine were up 11.5% in December 2013 compared to December 2012. Monthanthr housing
permits in Maine were 14.4% higher from December 2012 to November 201 #tkze previous 12
month period. The median home price in the Portland Metropolitatist®t Area (York,
Cumberland, and Sagadahoc Counties) increased by 5.3% year-over-yeahirdtqedrter of 2013.
Mortgage delinquency rates remain above pre-recession levels but pebdwcrisis levels. The
foreclosure rate in Maine declined in the third quarter of 2013 althougmdined above the national
rate.

Actual wage and salary employment data for 2011 and 2012 were strongerrdherugby
forecasted, resulting in higher growth rates for those two yearsNokember 2013 report revised
downward the wage and salary employment, wage and salary income, supplements to wadg@sesnd s
and, and total personal income. These changes were made based on thsusoiisg Moody’s
Analytics and Global Insights forecasts were based on overly optimpgiulation projections for the
state of Maine, causing employment forecasts, among other things, tagaowunattainable rate. The
February 2014 CEFC report kept these components unchanged from the Novemhepafl3Total
personal income growth remained unchanged for 2013 and was revised downwartsntly & a
percentage point for each year of 2014-2017. The November 2013 report adjfigtehj as measured
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by the Consumer Price Index (CPI), downward for 2013 and 2014 and slightly ujowa@l5-2017.
The February 2014 report left these items unchanged.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee met in late February 2014 to ram@wpdate the
December 2013 revenue forecast. The revised forecast, whichsuad isn March 1, 2014, adjusted
General Fund revenue estimates downward by $.2 million in fiscal2@dat, increased revenues by
$2.5 million in fiscal year 2015 and decreased the 2016-2017 forecast by $.5 million.

Individual Income Tax revenues were unchanged in this forecast. Whitet#idax line was
close to budget at the time the Revenue Forecating Committean fRebruary, estimated payments
were under budget by $12.3 million and were being offset by surpluses on thesotinees of
individual income tax receipts. Through April, individual income toeipts were $28.1 million over
budget. It is expected that individual income tax will end fiscal 28a¢d over budget by approximately
$20 million. The committee assumed that slightly stronger final patsrend lower refunds would
negate the weaker than projected final estimated payment for thée20gy&ar. In both the December
and March reports the committee needed to take into account; (ihphet of the 2013 income tax
cuts, (2) the shifting of income into 2012 to avoid federal tax inese@s2013, and (3) the repeal of the
state’s stand-alone circuit breaker program and replacementawRnoperty Tax Fairness Credit
administered through the income tax return.

The March 2014 forecast made no changes to sales and use tax andpsewis forecasts.
While sales tax revenues were over budget through January 2014 by $4.7 thdicommittee was
concerned that a weakening in consumer spending that started durindettae ¢g@vernment shutdown
and extended through the holiday shopping season would continue through the first afu2otbt.
The end of the long, cold winter experienced by most of the country was expedbring increased
household spending activity during late spring and early summer. The Corpoatee Tax forecast
was unchanged for the 2014-2015 biennium as well. Corporate income tax receiptagyeopnately
4% during the first ten months of fiscal year 2014 compared to the anmonth period last year. The
Revenue Forecasting Committee took a cautious approach with this stotecarecognizing the
continuing impact on corporations of the Maine Capital Investment Graditeir Maine tax liability,
the ability to use net operating loss carryforwards again &bttite level now that the disallowance of
carryforwards for 2009, 2010, and 2011 has ended and the recapture of previouddpoacistion, to
which the State did not conform.

For a description of enacted and proposed laws amending the budgetsdbydars 2013, 2014
and 2015 and for information regarding fiscal year 2013, 2014 and 2015 revenu&ase®tidgets”
below.

General Fund Appropriation Limit

Pursuant to 2005 Chapter 2, the rate of growth of General Fund appropriatiofiscal year is
limited in one of two ways (the “Growth Limit Factor”). Fosdal years when the “state and local tax
burden” of the State ranks in the highest one-third of all state§rthveth Limit Factor is “average real
personal income growth,” but no more than 2.75%, plus “average population grdvathfiscal years
when the “state and local tax burden” of the State ranks in theerodélthird of all states, the Growth
Limit Factor is “average real personal income growth” plus €fasted inflation” plus “average
population growth.”

“Average population growth” means the average for the prior ten calgades of the percent
change in population from July 1 of each year. “Average real persawhéngrowth” means the
average for the prior ten calendar years of the percengeharpersonal income in the State less the
percent change in the consumer price index for the calendar yearecadBted inflation” means the
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average amount of change of the consumer price index for the caleadathat are part of the ensuing
two fiscal years forecasted by the Consensus Economic Forecastimgnission in its November 1

report in even-numbered years. “State and local tax burden” meamdahantount of state and local
taxes paid by residents of the State per $1,000 of income.

As of December 1 of each even-numbered year, a General Fund appropriatiendstablished
for the ensuing two fiscal years. For the first fiscal year, the General Fund agigoodimit is equal to
the “biennial base year appropriation” multiplied by one plus the Growatit Eactor. For the second
fiscal year, the General Fund appropriation limit is the Geilrenadl appropriation limit of the first year
multiplied by one plus the Growth Limit Factor. “Biennial base yaggoropriation” means the amount
of the General Fund appropriation limit for the current year as of December Inefievibered years.

The General Fund appropriation limit applies to all General Fund apgtiops, except certain
education costs described in the following paragraph. The General Fund gmodmit was
approximately $3.4 billion for fiscal year 2011, $3.5 billion for fiscal y2@t2, $3.5 billion for fiscal
year 2013 and is approximately $3.6 billion for fiscal year 2014. The Growvih Eactor for fiscal
year 2011 was 2.76%. The Growth Limit Factor for the 2012-2013 bienniur@.@&%. The Growth
Limit Factor for the 2014-2015 biennium is 1.37%.

2005 Chapter 2 provides that the additional cost for certain edseshtizational programs and
services (“Essential Programs and Services”) for kindergartgratie 12 education (“K-12 Education”)
over the fiscal year 2004-05 appropriation for general purpose aid &rsidwools is excluded from the
General Fund appropriation limit until the State share of tbst ieaches 55% of the total State and
local cost (the “EPS Costs”). Current law provides thatState will pay 55% of the total State and
local cost of K-12 Education for fiscal year 2016 and that the GeRerad appropriation limit will
include the State share of the cost of K-12 Education beginning witd fisar 2016. See “Certain
Expenditures and Obligations - Education Funding” herein.

The General Fund appropriation limit may be exceeded for certairoghtrary circumstances
which must be outside the control of the Legislature, including (akttaphic events, such as natural
disaster, terrorism, fire, war and riot, (b) unfunded or underfunded &taffeederal mandates, (c)
citizens’ initiatives or other referendum, (d) court orders or @scar (e) loss of Federal funding.
Extraordinary circumstances do not include changes in economic conditewesjue shortfalls,
increases in salaries or benefits, new programs or program expathsibge beyond existing program
criteria and operation. The General Fund appropriation limit may rbpotarily increased for such
other purposes only by a vote of both Houses of the Legislature in ateapaesure that identifies the
intent of the Legislature to exceed the General Fund appropriatiitn RB@05 Chapter 2 is also subject
to modification or repeal at any time by the Legislature.

“Baseline General Fund revenue” and other available budgeted Generardsondces that
exceed the General Fund appropriation limit plus the EPS Costs must be reansféine Maine Budget
Stabilization Fund (the “Stabilization Fund”). If the StabilieatFund is at its limit of 12% of General
Fund revenue of the immediately preceding fiscal year, then amouhigabla otherwise have been
transferred to the Stabilization Fund must be transferred to theR&kef Fund for Maine residents.
“Baseline General Fund revenue” means the recommended Generaklande forecast reported by
the Revenue Forecasting Committee in its December 1 repewemnumbered years, increased by the
estimated amount of net General Fund revenue decrease, if anil,doa@ed changes reducing the
state and local tax burden included in that forecast.

Public Laws of Maine 2005, chapter 519 (2005 Chapter 519”) changed theypdater of
distributions from the unappropriated surplus of the General Fund. Itsdiransfers to the State
Contingent Account as the first priority (until the balance therein leggamaximum amount of
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$350,000) and permits transfers to the Loan Insurance Reserve asath@ ggority in amounts up to
$1,000,000 per year. After these transfers are made, the then avhdddtee of unappropriated
surplus is distributed as follows: 35% to the Stabilization Fund; 20%etReétirement Allowance Fund;
20% to the Reserve for General Fund Operating Capital; 15% ®Retivee Health Insurance Internal
Service Fund; and the final 10% to the Capital Construction and Improvements Haseive

Public Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 1 (“2011 Chapter 1") required thefdramfs$3,188,702
from the fiscal year 2011 unappropriated surplus of the General Fund $tathézation Fund no later
than June 30, 2011. Public Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 28 (2011 Chapter 28”) ctiangedrity
order of distribution for fiscal year 2011 and directed the transfeup to $25 million to the
Stabilization Fund as the first priority following the transfershie State Contingent Account and the
Loan Insurance Reserve and before the 35% transfer to the StamiliZanhd. The State closed fiscal
year 2011 with approximately $82 million available in General Fund unappexpsarplus before the
year end transfers. The total transfer to the Stabilizatiowl Fncluding the $25 million authorized in
2011 Chapter 28, was $35.3 million and the Reserve for General Fund Opeggiitaj @ceived $5.9
million. The remainder of the year end balance was distdbate follows: $5.9 million to the
Retirement Allowance Fund, $4.4 million to the Retiree Health Fund, $2l®mto the Capital
Construction and Improvement Reserve Fund, $1 million to Loan Insuraneev&daund and $350
thousand to the State Contingent Account. Additionally, $5 million wasféraed to the Department of
Health and Human Services Bureau of Medical Services account &) 888 was transferred to the
Department of Administrative and Financial Services, Accidenkn8gs and Health Insurance Internal
Service Fund.

Public Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 380 ("2011 Chapter 380") further changedattty order
of distribution. Prior to the percentage distributions ordered in 2005 ChHpté011 Chapter 380
provides for two transfers from the unappropriated surplus, if anyarsfér of $15,000,000 to a
retirement reserve account to provide a non-cumulative COLA paymegtirees for fiscal years 2012,
2013 and 2014 and a transfer of $25,000,000 for hospital settlements in fisc20324this language
was extended to fiscal year 2013 in Public Laws of Maine 2011, cléfpigr After the transfer of
$15,000,000 to the retirement reserve account, the remaining unapproprigtes dalance of
$9,688,205 was transferred for hospital settlements. Public Laws a&N8il1, chapter 692 (“2011
Chapter 692”), “An Act to Provide Tax Relief for Maine’s Citizelmg Reducing Income Taxes,”
amends the Tax Relief Fund for Maine Residents, and provides that ajbamtg, credited to this
fund in the future will be used to allow for potential future incremlergductions in the individual
income tax rates to 4%. The bill provides for the State Tax Assessor to cadculatdly the amount by
which income tax rates may be reduced in subsequent years using the avadabte from the Tax
Relief Fund for Maine Residents to offset the lower tax revenue experbe received in the following
year. 2011 Chapter 692 provides for an initial minimum reduction of 0.2 pageepbints. 2011
Chapter 692 only provides for reductions in tax rates and does not provide for any increases.

2011 Chapter 692 also changes the distribution of the unappropriated surplusGangral
Fund to: 35% Stabilization Fund; 13% Retirement Allowance Fund; 138ériRe for General Fund
Operating Capital; 9% Retiree Health Insurance Internal Sefviind; 10% Capital Construction and
Improvements Reserve Fund and 20% to the Tax Relief Fund for MairdeRss If the General Fund
has an unappropriated surplus and the Tax Relief Fund for Maine Ressidntly funded, this
legislation further provides for an individual income tax ratuotion until the individual income tax
rate reaches 4 percent. Maine Revenue Services estimatesréaction of the individual income tax
rate from its current top rate of 7.95% to 4% would decrease anraialr8venues by approximately
$600 million. Maine Revenue Services has also estimated thaden tor provide the initial minimum
reduction of 0.2 percentage points, the balance in the Tax Relief Fundifioe Residents would need
to be approximately $40 million and that aggregate unappropriated Genedasfirpluses of over $200
million would be needed to generate such a balance in the fund.
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Public Laws of Maine 2013, chapter 1 (“2013 Chapter 1”) further changedithigyporder of
distribution after transfers to the State Contingent account, Losuwradnce Reserve account, and
Reserve for Retirement Benefits account to 48% to the Stalmhz&und, 13% to the Reserve for
General Fund Operating Capital account, 9% to the Retiree Healtlames Internal Service Fund and
10% to the Capital Construction and Improvements Reserve Fund. An exdeptentransfers of the
statutory year-end reserves was included in 2013 Chapter 1 that zegh8€% of the year — end
reserves to be transferred to the Budget Stabilization Fund, witlhethaining 20%, allocated as
follows: to the Reserve for General Fund Operating Capital, 25%eRdtealth Insurance Internal
Service Fund, 17.5%, Capital Construction and Improvements Reserve Fund, 189 diad Relief
Fund for Maine Residents, 38.5% for fiscal year 2013 only. This law further authoriaesfartiof $40
million from the Budget Stabilization Fund and $17.1 million from the Reséor General Fund
Operating Capital fund to unappropriated surplus in fiscal year 2013.

The Retirement Allowance Fund is used to make supplemental paymhemg, to reduce the
State’s unfunded pension liability and, therefore, does not carry a balancedftnavaryear to year. As
of March 31, 2014, the balances in the Retiree Health Insurance Irffemvece Fund and the Capital
Construction and Improvements Reserve Fund were $11.3 million and $3.2 million, respectivel

The fiscal year 2013 year-end balance in the Budget Stabilizationvirasm@59.7 million. The
increase in the Budget Stabilization Fund, as compared to the paoralance, is primarily related to
the transfers of $13 million from unappropriated surplus as authoriz@1ibh Chapter 657, and of
$42.1 million which represents the one-time transfer of 80% of theeywhreserves as authorized in
2013 Chapter 1. 2013 Chapter 451 authorized the transfer of $21 millionhfeoBudget Stabilization
Fund to the unappropriated surplus of the General Fund no later than June 3@0231Ghapter 487
repealed this transfer, leaving the balance in the Budget Stabilization Fund at $6807 mil

Citizen Initiative Petitions

Pursuant to the Constitution of the State an initiative petitioniakos of the State entitled, “An
Act to Allow Marriage Licenses for Same-sex Couples and Protect Religioesdrné was presented to
the Legislature in 2012. The Legislature did not pass this initiahejt was placed before the voters
of the State at the statewide election on November 6, 2012 for aodeors whether to enact the
initiated legislation.  This initiative was voted into law on Novemb®e2012, and became effective
December 29, 2012. This initiative has no fiscal impact. Pursudimé tGonstitution of the State, the
deadline to file a citizen initiative for consideration by the FRsgular Session of the 126th Legislature
was January 24, 2013. As no petitions were filed with the Secret&tataf as of that date, no citizen
initiative questions appeared on the November 5, 2013 ballot. On M&r@954, a citizens initiative
seeking to prohibit the use of dogs, bait or traps when hunting bears emdeptcertain circumstances
was certified to go forward by the Secretary of State. Thisettéwer be advanced in the form of
legislation or may appear on the Novemb¥ 2014 ballot. The Secretary of State will determine
whether or not it will be on the Novembéf Ballot at the conclusion of the 128" Regular Session.
This initiative has no fiscal impact.

The Accounting System

The Department of Administrative and Financial Services, through thee @f the State
Controller, is authorized to maintain an official system afegal accounts (unless otherwise provided
by law) embracing all the financial transactions of the Stateexamine and approve all contracts,
orders and other documents to ascertain that moneys have been duly appremdasliotted to meet
such obligations and will be available when such obligations will becomaradlpayable; to audit and
approve bills, invoices, accounts, payrolls and all other evidence oisgldemands or charges against
the State government (State government is defined to include the dudacid the Executive
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Department of the Governor); to implement internal control standgoplécable to State agencies and
departments; and to exercise certain other rights, powers and duties as inpregsatibed by law.

The principal Funds established by the State for budgetary accounting pugresdise
Governmental Funds (which include the General Fund, the Special Revende &nd the Capital
Projects Funds), the Proprietary Funds (which include the Enterprise Bodde Internal Service
Funds) and the Fiduciary Funds (which include the Trust and Agency Fundsfuit® are used as
follows:

The Governmental Funds account for the general governmental actofittbe State. The
General Fund is used to account for all governmental transattianare not accounted for in another
fund. Sales tax, individual and corporate income taxes and other busixesgtovide most of the
funds available for appropriation by the Legislature for general govetameperations, such as
education, human services, corrections, the judiciary and the Legislailime General Fund is the
State’s major operating fund.

The Special Revenue Funds account for specific revenue soatitesthan expendable trusts
or major capital projects that are legally restricted to expenedi for specified purposes. The Special
Revenue Funds include the following:

The Highway Fund is used to account for revenues derived fromragigistof motor vehicles,
operators’ licenses, gasoline tax and other dedicated revenuesg, fexdépderal matching funds and
bond proceeds used for capital projects. The Legislature allobegdaind for the operation of various
Department of Transportation programs, including construction and maintenartighways and
bridges, for a portion of the State Police administration and for other State programs.

The Other Special Revenue Funds are used to account fousyapecial purpose funds which
have been established on a self-supporting basis. Revenues are gdnetakes, licenses, fees and
Federal matching funds and grants.

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resources useatdoire or construct major
capital assets other than those financed by proprietary funds. Eseseces are derived primarily
from proceeds of general obligation bonds. The State also includes Futtd the proceeds from bond
issues for uses other than major capital facilities.

The Proprietary Funds account for the State’s ongoing activitiearaimilar to those found in
the private sector. The Enterprise Funds account for tramsacelated to resources received and
used to finance self-supporting activities of the State. The cbgt®viding goods and services to the
general public on a continuing basis, including depreciation, are financedowered primarily through
user charges.

The Internal Service Funds account for the financing and sajeanfs or services between
agencies of the State or other governmental units on a user charge basis.

The Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by the State actirtheasadirustee or an agent for
individuals, private organizations and other governmental units or other Filhd€Expendable Trust
Funds account for assets held in a trustee capacity wheregoptiaod income may be expended for the
funds’ designated operations. The Nonexpendable Trust Funds acoowasséts held in a trustee
capacity where only income may be expended for the funds’ designatedarserafgency Funds
account for assets which the State, as custodian, holds for others.

In addition, the State has established the General Long-Terngadibhs Account Group to
establish control and accountability for long-term obligations of thee Statluding those related to
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general obligation bonds, capital leases, certificates of pattaipand compensated absences, not
accounted for in Proprietary Funds or Nonexpendable Trust Funds. Teé&aalso established the
General Fixed Assets Account Group to establish control acwbatability for all capital assets of
the State not accounted for in Proprietary Funds. The State records itd gmrgeterm obligations and
capital assets in the government-wide statement of net assets.

The accounting system is designed to assure that expenditures do notaemoaets authorized
by legislative appropriation and to conform, to the extent possibleandatds of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) and its predecessor, the Natimahcil on Governmental
Accounting. Financial transactions are recorded in the General thenélighway Fund and certain
other funds as described above and in Appendix B hereof.

Accounting Reports and Practices

The State Controller prepares a Comprehensive Annual Financial REQFKER”) in
accordance with standards established by GASB. This repbe wficial financial report of the State
government.

The State Controller’s annual financial report for the figear ended June 30, 2013 is set forth
in two separate publications. The first publication consists of the Basic Fin8tatiainents of the State
of Maine for the year ended June 30, 2013 which are set forth in SeafoAppendix B. Certain
information which is included in the second publication and certain infamahich has been derived
from provisions of the State Controller's annual financial repoots dertain prior fiscal years
comparable to the second publication is included in Section Il offp®. The information set forth
in Section Il of Appendix B is based on budgetary and legal requirements.

The Basic Financial Statements of the State of Maine foygaeended June 30, 2013 which are
set forth in Section | of Appendix B have been prepared by the StateolBorand have been audited
by the Office of the State Auditor in accordance with auditing standards ggreedpted in the United
States of America. The Office of the State Auditor hasedsan unqualified opinion on the Basic
Financial Statements.

Because of the variety of activities and programs run by the 3$tateState Controller has
established several specialized accounting conventions, which arsteotigiapplied within the fund
accounting system. For more information on the basis of accounting utiesl $tate, see Appendix B,
Section I, “Notes to the Financial Statements, June 30, 2013.”

Annual financial reports prepared by the State Controller for tbal fyear ending June 30, 2013
and for prior fiscal years are available upon request directedist Earlow, Deputy State Treasurer,
39 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333, telephone: 207-624-7477; facSimik8722867.
The CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and for prior fisaal gesmalso available at http://
www.maine.gov/osc/finanrept/cafr.shtml

Audit Reports

The State Auditor is required by law to audit the Basic Fird8tatements included within the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report prepared by the State Controlleclidiseal year. The State
Auditor’s Independent Audit Opinion dated December 23, 2013 with respélee tfiscal year ending
June 30, 2013 is set forth in Appendix B hereto. Single audit reports prdyyatiee Office of the State
Auditor for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013 and for certain priofl fiseas are available upon
request directed to the Deputy State Treasurer. See “Miscellaneous’ herei
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All information in this Official Statement for any period endingeaftune 30, 2013 is unaudited
and therefore is subject to change.

STATE BUDGETS

Laws authorizing General Fund and Highway Fund expenditures for fisaal 3840 through
2015 have been enacted and provide for such expenditures in the amounts set forth in the table below.

Fiscal Year General Fund Highway Fund
Ending June 30 Expenditures Authorized Expenditures Authorized
2010 $ 2,849,227,923 $ 316,706,397
2011 2,872,754,172 304,310,083
2012 3,130,209,894 318,920,211
2013 3,081,951,199 317,272,450
2014 3,199,811,630 311,621,111
2015 3,184,175,891 304,097,673

For information regarding fiscal years 2010 through 2015 expenditures, seaifiC
Expenditures and Obligations — General Fund Expenditures” below.

On December 1, 2010, the Revenue Forecasting Committee issued a schpdated forecast.
The December report reflected an upward adjustment of reven®4 b6 million in fiscal year 2011,
$170.5 million in fiscal year 2012 and $195.1 million in fiscal year 2013. TherDer report also
projected revenues of $3.3 billion in fiscal year 2014 and $3.4 billion in fiscal year 2015.

On January 12, 2011, the Governor released his supplemental budget recommeridatio
provide $248 million in State and federal funds for hospital settlendetitsg back to fiscal year 2006.
The budget recommendations also addressed projected growth in the Maipeggaams and a phased
reduction in the Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentage from &.2 percentage points by June 30,
2011.

A second supplemental budget was released by the Governor on March 28, 26dtbro a
deappropriation included in 2009 Chapter 571 related to the disallowance oél féidencial
participation for targeted case management claims in fiscab y#302 and 2003. The funds were
proposed to be restored to the Medical Care — Payments to Provideenptogaddress shortfalls that
resulted from the deappropriation with the expectation that the Federal gememuould be reimbursed
in fiscal year 2012. The budget recommendations further addressed grdatwehMaineCare program
and provided funds for Child Development Services to address a projected shortfalpi@gtiaen.

On February 8, 2011, the Legislature enacted the first supplemental budget dra the
Governor’'s recommendations; the Governor signed that budget into law teedagmThe law, 2011
Chapter 1, amended the 2010-2011 biennial budget enacted in the spring of 2009, 2002 CB @ie
the 2010-2011 supplemental budget enacted in the spring of 2010, 2009 Chapter 571. Q4, April
2011, the Legislature enacted the second supplemental budget for fiacaROjl based on the
Governor’'s recommendations; the Governor signed that budget into law sartieeday. The law,
2011 Chapter 28, further amended the budgets previously mentioned.

Prior to the December 2010 upward revenue projection, the Bureau Butyet updated its
four year revenue and expenditure forecast in September 2010 for thgdmcanding June 30, 2013.
As required by State law, the forecast assumed the continuationreficlaws and included reasonable
and predictable estimates of growth in revenues and expendituresobasatibnal and local trends and
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program operations. At the time of the forecast the structural gap was mragebee$1.2 billion for the
2012-2013 biennium.

The gap assumed increases in General Purpose Aid for Local SEB&@#S of $216.5 million
in fiscal year 2012 and $238.4 million in fiscal year 2013 over fiscal 3@ht levels. The preliminary
amounts would increase GPA $423.9 million over the previous 2010-2011 bienniumhiexk gbe
commitment made in 2005 Chapter 2, as amended, for a 55% State sleahecation costs. The
structural gap also reflected significant increases in futtate Sontributions to address the increased
unfunded pension liability for state employees and teachers. SeenéDefenefit Retirement
Programs” below.

In order to address the projected shortfall, the Governor’'s recomohéndiget for the 2012-
2013 biennium included proposals to delay the attainment of 55% for GPAthmti2014-2015
biennium and to make several changes to pension benefits in ordelute e unfunded pension
liability for state employees and teachers. 2011 Chapter 380 was sigrthe Governor on June 20,
2011. In addition to delaying the attainment of 55% for GPA unti2€@iet-2015 biennium, it amended
the requirement to include the cost of teacher retiremengddtachers’ health insurance and retired
teachers’ life insurance in the calculation. See “Certain ikpges and Obligations — Education
Funding” below. It increased the retirement age of state emplagdeteacher members of the
Retirement System having less than 5 years of service to 650feags, froze cost-of-living increases
for retirees for 3 years and capped them at 3% for the first $20,00thimegin fiscal year 2014. The
pension changes resulted in savings to the General Fund of $123.1 millimeaihyear 2012 and
$126.2 million in fiscal year 2013 and eliminated $1.7 billion, or 41%, of the ttenaged unfunded
pension liability. See “CERTAIN EXPENDITURES AND OBLIGATNKIS - Defined Benefit
Retirement Programs — Litigation” below.

The Governor's budget amended statutory provisions pertaining to retireltetgahealth
insurance to include 10 year vesting periods, require retirees t@Q88% of the cost of their health
insurance if they retire before reaching their normal retirement age and captéie &ist for premiums
at fiscal year 2011 totals. These changes resulted in savings to the Gendral $5.5 million in fiscal
year 2012 and $9.2 million in fiscal year 2013. The State’s cost dhhealirance premiums for active
employees for the 2012-2013 biennium was also capped at fiscal year 2@ iegtting in savings to
the General Fund of $4.6 million in fiscal year 2012 and $9.5 million éalfigear 2013. In addition to
freezing merit increases for State employees for the bienandreliminating longevity payments for
certain individuals not eligible on June 30, 2011, the approved budget offergment incentive to
employees who were eligible to retire. These three initstresulted in estimated savings to the
General Fund of $7.7 million in fiscal year 2012 and $12.6 million in fiscal year 2013.

The December 2010 upward projection of revenue allowed the Governor to ptapcags
intended to stimulate economic growth in his biennial budget for 2012-2013. Q@dgter 380
reformed the income tax provisions by flattening the rate structureealucing the top rate from 8.50%
to 7.95%. It conformed to the federal income tax code Section 179 expensimgjopoyor small
business investment and to the federal standard deduction for jerst(fiharriage penalty relief) and
personal exemption amount. These changes resulted in the reduction of atedetkgenue to the
General Fund of $17.3 million in fiscal year 2012 and $81.0 million in fiseat 2013. The approved
budget adopted the new Maine Capital Investment Credit to provieala equal to 10% of the federal
bonus depreciation on certain qualified property place in service ineMasulting in an estimated
reduction of General Fund revenues of $24.7 million in fiscal year 2013&€@dnillion in fiscal year
2013. It eliminated the requirement that out-of-state residentsnpayne taxes after 10 days and
exempted meals provided at retirement facilities from thesdabe These initiatives resulted in an
estimated reduction of General Fund revenues of $4.5 million in figeal 2012 and $3.1 million in
fiscal year 2013.
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2011 Chapter 380 has amended the Maine Residents Property Tax and Redi &efCircuit
Breaker” program to permanently fund the program at 80%. This incr&asestal Fund revenues by
$11 million in fiscal year 2012 and $11.3 million in fiscal year 2013. Bitldget authorized the transfer
of the 5% local government fund share of certain taxes that increesagedurrent levels as a result of
revised revenue projects and other tax initiatives to the General fésntting in an increase of
undedicated revenue of $42.4 million in fiscal year 2012 and $48.6 million in fiscal year 2013.

In December 2011, the Governor proposed a budget to address a projected shdhéa
MaineCare program of approximately $120.9 million in fiscal year 2012 and $10lidhrim fiscal
year 2013. At that time the Legislature also received a budgetfletted the recommendations of the
Streamline and Prioritize Core Government Services Task Fonaduce spending by approximately
$25 million by fiscal year 2013. In its December 2011 report, the Reveongzasting Committee
revised its May 2011 forecast for the General Fund and increasedtmmos for fiscal year 2012 by
$10.6 million and decreased projections for fiscal year 2013 by $9.6 milliba.Legislature chose to
address the fiscal year 2012 portion of the shortfall first and comhimedproposals into the
streamlining budget. The result was 2011 Chapter 477, which was approved Gpvwbor on
February 23, 2012. In addition to implementing the recommendations of damBtre and Prioritize
Core Government Services Task Force, it provided General Fund appoogriataling $107.3 million
in fiscal year 2012 to address the MaineCare shortfall. It recedjrsavings in fiscal year 2013
intended to reduce the overall cost of the MaineCare prograndbging rates paid to agency per diem
homes by 5% ($3.7 million), reducing funding for contracts ($2 million), iligitaccess to certain
combination drugs ($0.6 million), and increasing compliance with standaesdating the use of generic
drugs ($5.8 million). It extended the freeze on new enrollment in theekzare childless adult waiver
program, saving $11 million in fiscal year 2013 and provides one-time saviigi® ahillion from the
Dirigo Health program to fund a portion of the fiscal year 2012 coshefchildless adult waiver
program. 2011 Chapter 477 also authorized a one-time assessment onshegpialto 0.39% of
hospital net operating revenue resulting in $14.2 million in revenue in fiseal2013 to the General
Fund.

On May 16, 2012, the Governor signed into law 2011 Chapter 657, which addressedahet f
year 2013 shortfall in the MaineCare program of $78.6 million. In auditb resolving the revised
fiscal year 2013 MaineCare shortfall, it provided $4.3 million for tienicipal general assistance
program to fund an increase in demand for services and $3.8 million for operation of the Bepadnpr
It transferred $13 million to the Budget Stabilization Fund in figear 2013 and included authority to
transfer up to $7.4 million from the fund, if necessary, to add to $3li@mélppropriated for the State’s
psychiatric hospitals for the cost of forensic patients deteranineligible for federal reimbursement,
and an additional transfer of $3.8 million, if necessary, to reimbbeséetieral government for funds
drawn for ineligible MaineCare recipients. It generated savhogs eliminating of some MaineCare
optional coverage and services, resulting in fiscal year 2013 samintge General Fund of $13.8
million. It reallocated Fund for a Healthy Maine resourcesh® MaineCare program, providing
savings of $9.9 million, and directed the Department of Health and H@wuarices to develop a
Medicaid stabilization plan to achieve savings of $5.3 million. imiabkted $2 million from the Head
Start program and reduced funding by requiring hospital based primargreatiEes that also provide
mental health services to participate in the Maine Health $scEeundation’s integrated care initiative
for outpatient mental health and primary care service, saving $1i6miill fiscal year 2013. It raised
the loan reserve cap for the Finance Authority of Maine from $3%omiltb $40 million and transferred
$2 million to the General Fund, implemented a use tax compliance and educatiormptogra
generate $5.3 million in one-time revenue, and authorized the use tinevey enhance the collection
of tax receivables, resulting in net savings of $1.7 million. In figeal 2013, it required revenues in
excess of $10.6 million from the Oxford casino that would otherwise geetDepartment of Education
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for essential programs and services to be transferred to the epadf Health and Human Services to
be used for hospital settlements.

2011 Chapter 657 amended the pension income tax subtraction modificatiorrt@in c
retirement benefits to raise the $6,000 limit to $10,000, it provided ama¢ax exemption to active
duty military service men and women for pay received while in seout®de of Maine and provided a
sales tax exemption for commercial wood harvesting and commeratslhgnese and nursery products.
These changes are expected to result in a revenue loss of $8.7 milfiscal year 2014 and $23.5
million in fiscal year 2015.

Prior to the December 2012 downward revenue projection the Bureau Bfidiget updated its
four year revenue and expenditure forecast in September 2012 for thgdmcanding June 30, 2015.
As required by State law, the forecast assumed the continuationreficlaws and included reasonable
and predictable estimates of growth in revenues and expendituresobasatibnal and local trends and
program operations. At the time of the forecast the strudamivas projected to be $755.5 million for
the 2014-2015 biennium.

The gap assumed increases in General Purpose Aid for Local Sc&&él ¢f $119.4 million
in fiscal year 2014 and $135.1 million in fiscal year 2015 over the figeal 2013 level. The
preliminary amounts would increase GPA $274.1 million over the previoud2Wi3 biennium and
achieve the commitment made in 2005 Chapter 2, as amended by 2007 Chapteds534) for a 55%
State share of education costs. The structural gap assumét Bled Human Services increases
totaling $298.6 million for the biennium, which reflects increasepfogram growth and utilization in
MaineCare over the 2014-2015 biennium in the amount of $148.1 million.

On December 1, 2012, the Revenue Forecasting Committee issuedaalyespiieduled update
to the forecast. The December report reflected a downwardtradjisof General Fund revenues of
$35.5 million in fiscal year 2013, $58.3 million in fiscal year 2014 and $68li@min fiscal year 2015.
The December report also projected revenues of $3.1 billioncial figar 2016 and $3.2 billion in fiscal
year 2017.

On January 11, 2013, the Governor released his supplemental budget whiclseaddnes
revenue shortfall and funded a projected Medicaid shortfall; offsetshe revenue shortfall were
initially implemented by the Governor’'s temporary curtailment oftalents. 2013 Chapter 1 was
enacted into law, without the Governor’s signature, on March 6, 2013. Thieswgpll budget for
fiscal year 2013 provided $2 million to address unmet needs in the concesd fig Bates vs. DHHS,
$3.6 million for foster care/adoption assistance and $85.1 millionh®orState’s Medicaid program.
These appropriations were offset with savings initiatives originaicluded in the temporary
curtailment, revenue enhancements, transfers from other fundssllaaswtargeted reductions in the
Medicaid program. The Department of Health and Human Servicediteaged to reduce rates by 5%
for services provided by licensed clinical professional counselors emaséd marriage and family
therapists, limit hospital and therapeutic leave days from nuraagilifies, and implement targeted care
management for the top 20% of high-cost members in the Medicaid progdandune 14, 2013, the
Governor signed an additional supplemental budget bill, 2013 Chapter 248, providingli®36more
in appropriation to the MaineCare program for fiscal year 2013.

In order to address the projected shortfall in fiscal years 2014 and 2@1585dvernor’s
recommended budget, LD 1509, for the 2014-2015 biennium included proposals to delajirtheatt
of 55% for GPA until the 2016-2017 biennium. In addition to this delay, the Govegtd4s2015
Biennial Budget proposal shifts the responsibility for funding the norimstt component of teacher
retirement from being 100% borne by the State to a 50/50 state andulodialg responsibility. This
proposal would reduce funding to the Teacher Retirement program by $i#l&8 im fiscal year 2014

A-21



and by $29.9 million in fiscal year 2015 representing the total costeoformal cost component for
teacher retirement and appropriates $14.4 million and $14.96 million & fiear 2014 and 2015,
respectively, to the General Purpose Aid for Local Schools prograthd@tate's share of normal cost.
The Governor's budget recommended increasing appropriations to MaineGhee amount of $318
million over the 2014-2015 biennium, offset by deappropriations totaling $148i8aler the 2014-
2015 biennium. The Governor’'s recommended budget suspended revenue sharing transfers of 5% of the
Sales, Income, Corporate and Service Provider taxes to muniepatitthe amount of $281.5 million
during the 2014-2015 biennium. The recommended budget also contained initidtigkscantinued
the freeze on employee merit increases and longevity pay, lagsw&oze the amount of funding
available for employee and retiree health insurance for both 2014 and 201#ly, Ftax proposals
included restructuring the Maine Residents Property Tax Program, soinseé BETR program,
coupled with movement of equipment in the BETR program to the BETE pnpghe inflation
adjustment pertaining to the income tax and the repeal of tretaglexemption for publications issued
at average intervals.

On May 1, 2013, the Revenue Forecasting Committee issued a regulagtuled update to the
forecast. The May report reflected an increase to revenug$3d million in fiscal year 2013, and a
downward adjustment of $33.8 million in fiscal year 2014 and $24.3 milliois¢alfyear 2015. The
May report also projected revenues of $3.1 billion in fiscal year 2016 and #®8 i fiscal year
2017.

On May 8, 2013, the Governor released the recommended changes to theefis@i14-2015
budget proposal, LD 1509, which included additional recommended changes foydmcalD13. This
change package addressed the revenue shortfall forecasted on the May lep@0tL3or the next
biennium and utilized the additional revenue forecasted in fiscal3@8 of $45.3 million to fund a
projected MaineCare shortfall of $33.4 million, a $1.9 million initiathdeled by the legislature in PL
2013, Chapter 1 to delay MaineCare payments until 2014, $1.0 million for divee MLommission on
Indigent Legal Services and $3.0 million in assistance for Mainefy @aimers. This change package
provides additional savings in 2014-2015 through initiatives that tatfjassavings for retired teacher
and retired state employee health insurance for the most redearial valuation, merit and debt
service savings. This change package also provides savings frorarniert of available balances in
Maine Revenue Services, and statewide initiatives for the latstal of natural gas and reduction in
rates for risk management. Finally, the Department of HeatttHuman Services was able to reduce
their requests for the biennium by further refining savings proposatgymemng a lesser reduction to
federal funding than originally included and requesting additional gtaffperform disability
determinations in a timely manner thereby avoiding temporary Medaghorizations at a 100% state
only cost.

The final version of the bill was passed by the Legislaturevataed by the Governor. The
Legislature overrode the Governor’'s veto and Public Law 2013 Chapter 368naated on June 26,
2013. The law included several of the Governor’s proposals includingathstiion of 100% of the
responsibility for the normal cost of Teacher Retirement to edabols. One-half of the normal cost is
appropriated in the 2014-2015 biennium into the General Purpose Aid for labeadlS program. The
Governor’s proposal capped the State’s cost of health insurance psefoiuactive employees for the
2014-2015 biennium at fiscal year 2011 levels resulting in savings to theaGEened of $3.8 million
in fiscal year 2014 and $8.0 million in fiscal year 2015. In the final eersf the bill, the Legislature
authorized a 1.5% increase in spending for the State’s health insymangram; however, because the
bill was enacted after the deadline for the State’'s Hed#th Besign in April, 2013, the increased
amount will not be spent in fiscal year 2014. In addition, the apprhoweget froze merit increases for
State employees in 2015 and froze longevity payments for the bienniultingesn savings of $4.6
million over the biennium. Finally, the approved budget adjusts fundinchéoState Police to 65%
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General Fund and 35% Highway Fund at a total cost to the General Fund ofiiérbin fiscal year
2014 and $6.7 million in fiscal year 2015.

The enacted biennial budget restored a portion of the revenue sharing by appheving
Governor’'s proposal for a statewide study to reduce the cost of goverttimaungh analysis of the
structures and functions designed to save a total of $33.75 million instvatiural and operational
savings over the biennium, establishing a task force to review taxdifgpres saving $40 million and
authorizing an increase in the Sales tax, from 5% to 5.5% and Mehlsodging tax from 7% to 8%.
Both the Sales and Meals and lodging tax increases have a sunset provision of June 30, 2015. The 2014
2015 enacted biennial budget included the repayment of a deferral dioa pdthe June 2013 subsidy
payment for General Purpose Aid to Local Schools in the amount of #iiién, funding for the
MaineCare program, elimination of benefits under the Maine Residemperty Tax program that
resulted in an estimated savings of $50.7 million over the biennium, ektablit of the Property Tax
Fairness Program at a General Fund cost of $65.5 million angargzation the Business Equipment
Tax Reimbursement (BETR) and Business Equipment Tax ExemptionE)Bfdgrams for a savings
of $11.7 million over the biennium. Finally, the Governor's proposal wasoap@rto suspend the
inflation adjustment for tax years beginning in 2014 and amending the infeatjostment calculation
for tax years beginning after 2015 based on the Chained Consumer Pric€GAdBX) instead of the
Consumer Price Index (CPI). This tax change resulted in estireaténgs to the General Fund of $8.7
million over the biennium.

On January 15, 2014, the Governor presented a request to the Appropriations acalFina
Affairs Committee for net additional General Fund needs of $119.5khéa2014-2015 biennium. The
request comprised of six departments and agencies offset by theseaneGeneral Fund revenues in
the December 1, 2013 Revenue Forecasting Committee update of $20.6NMeardu®e decrease from
the reinstatement of the sales tax exemption for free newspEE3sl million over the biennium. The
Department of Health and Human services, MaineCare program codrésmajority of the request in
the amount of $108 million. The remaining Health and Human Servicpsests of $14.7 million,
primarily address the action plan to ensure staff and patieny safétcomply with federal certification
requirements at Riverview Psychiatric Center. On January 24, 2014 effeatident of Health and
Human Services presented an update of its forecast for MaineGente resulted in a reduction in the
net request over the biennium of $30 million. The final requested @uliBupplemental General Fund
need over the 2014-2015 biennium by the Governor totaled to $89.5 million. Qrafeb?, 2014
Health and Human Services further reduced the request for RiveRsageahiatric Center of $8.6M
based on the Department’s position of Riverview’s status as atutedor Mental Disease, in which
the hospital decertification does not affect the continuance to deprogortionate share funding. If
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) uitiipadisagrees with this opinion, the
potential future findings may include an estimated $8.6 million fop#reod of January 1, 2014-June
30, 2014 and $6.35 million already drawn for the period of September 2, 2013 throughbBe86m
2013.

On April 3, 2014 LD 1843 became law without the Governor’'s signature (2013teCHz02)
which primarily provided funding for the fiscal year 2014 portion of the Guwés request. The
MaineCare shortfall was funded at less than the Governor’srégakst, at a net increase of $31M, due
to the actual trending of current MaineCare cycle paymentsth 8avings initiatives and one-time
resources were included to fill the gap, including elimination of thenhec Tax Super Credit for
substantially increased research and development for tax years beginrongfter January 1, 2014.
Transfers to fund balance included $10.1 million from the forecastednileer ' increase in casino
revenues over the biennium, $6.2 million in transfers resulting frendissolution of the Dirigo Health
Fund and other balances in the Fund for a Healthy Maine, $5.1 million, amglgessonal services
balances in the Education Unorganized Territory account of $1.8 million. Agdih 15, 2014 the
Legislature passed LD 1858 pending action by the Governor, funding primarily the renfisrahgear
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2015 portion of the Governor’'s request and enacting the remaining struaturexperations savings
initiatives (Part F of 2013 Chapter 368). Both savings initiatives andimoeeransfers to fund balance
were included to offset a reduced request primarily for Maine@afescal year 2015. Timing of
MaineCare payments from the current approximate timing of 7 to 12 deg/extended permanently to
one weekly payment cycle before required federal deadlines to yieldnondsdoked savings in the
MaineCare program of $20 million. This language also providedD#partment discretion in the
application to those providers considered to have the financiatyatoliwithstand the change in
payments. Other savings initiatives included a proposal by Maine Re@suiees to continue to
automate tax collection functions, for $1.9 million in fiscal year 2848 increased recoveries and
savings from enhanced MaineCare program integrity activities. ®ransf fund balance consisted of
$1 million from the Finance Authority of Maine’s loan insurancgeree, $1 million from Maine State
Housing Authority’s Housing Opportunities for Maine fund and a reduction of rdresfer from
Professional and Financial Regulation of $1 million that was included in LD 1843, 2013 GGibter

CERTAIN EXPENDITURES AND OBLIGATIONS
General Fund Expenditures

The following table sets forth, by certain major categories, Gekaral expenditures set forth
in 2009 Chapter 213, the budget for fiscal years 2010 and 2011, as amended byptemental
General Fund budget, 2009 Chapter 571, 2011 Chapter 1 and 2011 Chapter 28.

2010 2011
Governmental Support and Operations $251,862,046 36,824,102
Economic Development & Workforce Training 35,70'847 34,588,383
Education 1,412,297,179 1,398,741,990
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,461,189 7,1785
Natural Resources Development & Protection 68,44®,2 66,225,967
Health & Human Services 795,586,471 850,852,097
Justice & Protection 277,894,340 271,331,877
Business Licensing & Regulation 7,000,000
Total $2,849,227,923 $2,872,754,172

The following table sets forth, by certain major categories, @eR@nd expenditures set forth
in 2011 Chapter 380, the budget for fiscal years 2012 and 2013, as amended lyyptemental
General Fund budgets, 2011 Chapter 477, 2011 Chapter 655, 2011 Chapter 657, 2013 Chapter 1, 201.
Chapter 248, 2013 Chapter 368, 2013 Chapter 377 and other miscellaneous laws.

2012 2013
Governmental Support and Operations $255,174,711 59,622,199
Economic Development & Workforce Training 33,738%74 32,351,279
Education 1,373,401,473 1,358,129,798
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,422,644 7,633
Natural Resources Development & Protection 67,9849 65,000,840
Health & Human Services 1,116,567,462 1,082,063,410
Justice & Protection 275,909,945 274,709,069
Business Licensing & Regulation 3,647,984
Total $3,130,209,894 $3,081,951,199

The following table sets forth, by certain major categories, GéR@ind expenditures set forth
in 2013 Chapter 368, the budget for fiscal years 2014 and 2015, as amended by 201318hapddr3
Chapter 502, 2013 Chapter 595 and miscellaneous laws.
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2014 2015

Governmental Support and Operations $240,632,732 43,804,986
Economic Development & Workforce Training 31,26843 32,526,011
Education 1,430,575,788 1,422,067,932
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,450,637 7,260
Natural Resources Development & Protection 67,88,9 69,554,737
Health & Human Services 1,123,503,952 1,103,101,684
Justice & Protection 297,423,132 306,455,771
Business Licensing & Regulation 1,140,000

Total $3,199,811,630 $3,184,175,891

Total spending in the authorized budget and miscellaneous laws fairyiesrs 2014 and 2015
through the end of the Second Regular Session of the 126th Legislature R0ddne approximately
$6.38 billion, an increase of 2.7% over the prior biennium.  The incre&sseasl on a net spending
increase in fiscal year 2014 of $26.3 million and an increase of $13i@nmil 2015. Of the $6.38
billion in the biennium, 44.8% is attributable to education, 35.11% to health aremhhservices, and
20.20% to other purposes of State government.

For additional information regarding General Fund expenditures during fyseak 2009
through 2013, and for information regarding Highway Fund expenditures during fiscal 2@29
through 2013, see Exhibits B and C hereto. See also “Certain Public Instrumehtedrias.

Education Funding

At the initiative of certain citizens of the State, purduto the Constitution of the State, the
voters of the State voted to enact legislation known as the Schookc€&idat of 2003 (the “Initiated
School Finance Act”) at a statewide election held June 8, 2004. Infttded School Finance Act
required that the Legislature each year provide at least 55% obshef the total allocation for K-12
Education from General Fund revenue sources, and 100% of the State arabs$bal providing all
special education services mandated under federal or StateT lavinitiated School Finance Act was
amended by 2005 Chapter 2 to provide that, beginning in fiscal year 2009gthlatuee each year will
provide, as a target, (a) 55% of the statewide adjusted total £dbe awomponents of Essential
Programs and Services, and (b) 100% of a school administrative unit's specaicdoosts calculated
pursuant to applicable State law.

Public Laws of Maine 2007, Chapter 539 which took effect on March 31, 2008 (“20@ieCha
539”) provided that, as a target, (a) the State would provide 53.51% and 54.0d8¢tivet/, of the
statewide adjusted total cost of the components of EssentialaRegnd Services, and (b) the State
would provide 100% of a school administrative unit's special education calkstglated pursuant to
applicable State law for fiscal years 2008 and 2009. The budgeasdat years 2008 and 2009, as
amended by 2007 Chapter 539, included approximately $1,966,000,000 to fund the State’skshare of
12 Education costs attributable to the Initiated School Finance 2@0.7 Chapter 539 also amended
applicable law to provide that the State’s payment of 55% of tla& $tate and local cost of K-12
Education would be delayed until fiscal year 2010, and that inclusion 8tdlte share of the cost of K-
12 Education in the General Fund appropriation limit would be delayed until fiscal year 2011.

The Governor's Executive Order issued in November 2009 included curtailoheState
spending for K-12 Education in the amount of approximately $38.1 million. Théesugmtal General
Fund budget, 2009 Chapter 571, includes a reduction in baseline funding for G&&aliryéar 2010 in
an amount equal to this curtailment, and it also includes a redustGPA funding for fiscal year 2011
of approximately $9 million. These reductions do not violate the “xaa@mtce of effort” requirements
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (“ARRA”).
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With the enactment of the supplemental budget, 2009 Chapter 571, GPAppragimmately
48.93% of the total State and local cost of K-12 education in fiscal2@d® and 45.84% in fiscal year
2011 as amended by 2011 Chapter 1. The State General Fund contribution wasnapgly $909.2
million in fiscal year 2010 and approximately $872.6 million in fisedry2011, totaling approximately
$1,781,800,000 for the 2010-2011 biennium. The balance of the government payments are derived from
ARRA monies awarded to the State for K-12 Education and added appieli®al6 million over the
course of the 2010-2011 biennium. Total payments by the State to local sdtaotsd{including
ARRA monies) comprised 49.78% of the total cost of Essential PrograirServices in fiscal year
2010 and comprised of 47.83% in fiscal year 2011.

The biennial budget enacted in 2011 Chapter 380, as amended by 2011 Chapter 477, 2011
Chapter 655 and 2013 Chapter 1 for fiscal years 2012 and 2013 included a Stetel Gend
commitment to the cost of K-12 education of $888,752,379 in fiscal year 2012 an@788987 in
fiscal year 2013. Those General Fund appropriations resulted in a 45.8&96l&tre of the total cost of
education in fiscal year 2012 and 44.91% in fiscal year 2013. Maine publidselsmreceived federal
jobs funds of $36,214,417 for the 2012-13 biennium to help retain or hire critiffal $tee enacted
budget also includes the State share of teacher retiremerd tetircher’s health insurance, and retired
teacher’s life insurance of $172,592,848 in 2012 and $174,932,892 in 2013 when considering’the Stat
contribution for Essential Programs and Services. Including the &iatribution to teacher retirement,
retired teacher’s health insurance, and retired teachex'snburance the State’s contribution towards
the total cost of education was 49.47% in fiscal year 2012 and 49.35% in fiscal year 2013.

For fiscal year 2014 the biennial budget enacted in 2013 Chapter 368nandexl in 2013
Chapters 487 and 502 has a State commitment to the cost of K-12 edot&tiohl 1,006,225 which is
made up of General Fund appropriation and Education’s portion of funding redemwedcasino
revenues. The State’s contribution towards the total costiwfation including teacher retirement,
retired teacher’s health insurance and retired teacher’s life neuis150.44% in fiscal year 2014.

LD 1843, 2013 Chapter 502, appropriated $9.6 million to offset the savings recommendation in
the 2013 Chapter 368, Part F structure and operations review findings to the General Pdrpmse Ai
Local Schools program. LD 1858, pending action by the Governor included funding initiatives for fiscal
year 2015, $300,000 in additional funding for the Jobs for Maine’s graduates program and one-time
funding in the amount of $650,000 for th¥ gear of the comprehensive early college program.

Health and Human Services Funding

After education, proposed spending for health and human services and prograpmse the
second most significant area of expenditure, at approximately 35.14% afaGEned appropriations
for the 2014-15 biennium. Furthermore, General Fund expenditures for ths Btatkcaid program,
MaineCare, are the largest, comprising $1.59 billion or 70.8%, of allhheald human services
spending. The State continues to make significant efforts to hold dowat¢hef increase in the growth
of MaineCare expenditures. While remaining committed to prowidess to care for the State’s most
vulnerable residents, the State is employing even more aggressevemeaagement techniques,
continues to standardize provider reimbursement rates and helspl more capacity in the area of
third party recovery. Regardless of these efforts, additional GefRenal resources were needed for
fiscal year 2011 totaling $46 million, and funding amounting to approxim&&h8 million was
provided for the 2012-2013 biennium. The first 2012-2013 supplemental budget, 2011 Chapter 477,
proposed more changes to the MaineCare program in the areas of gkuogriatilization, opioid
prescribing policies, rate reform, service limitations andaeced efforts in the area of collection of
overpayments, legal settlements and through increased cost avoiddrmeyigeed funding to address
an estimated shortfall of $108 million. A second 2012-2013 supplemental budgeCRaiter 657,
included structural changes to the MaineCare program by eliminating Bledicaid optional services
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and coverage options; despite these initiatives, additional 2012-2013 Genadalrésources of
approximately $66.8 million were required. Several of the changes popos2011 Chapter 657
required the approval of the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 8erf@MS). The Department of
Health and Human Services was notified that some of the proposald woldte the Maintenance of
Effort provisions of the Affordable Care Act and therefore could notirbplemented. The
Department’s budget was reduced in 2011 Chapter 657 and without approval M3n tle
Department would require additional General Fund monies in fiscal 3@48. The Governor’s
supplemental budget addressed this issue, as well as an overadilisimatttie program. 2013 Chapter 1
was enacted on March 6, 2013 and provided $85 million for the Medicaid programontinue
providing payments in fiscal year 2013. An additional $35.3 million was aparegto the Medicaid
program in 2013 Chapter 248, which was signed by the Governor on June 14, 2013. This final
appropriation enabled the Department to fully fund Medicaid cycle paymentsahyfesr 2013.

During fiscal year 2008-09 and the 2010-2011 biennium, the ARRA provided a substantial
infusion of federal funds into the MaineCare program which was gtymarthe form of enhanced
federal matching dollars. This funding assisted the State iningette increases in demand for
MaineCare services occurring as a result of the economic dowmntdrim aedeploying some General
Fund resources to provide more timely payment of MaineCare settleméésne hospitals, helping to
ensure those facilities are able to retain employees, avoid further jeb brs$ maintain the spectrum of
services required by residents, particularly in rural arefiseo$tate. However, the extension passed by
Congress phased down the federal match rate and required Maine to wcidititenal General Fund
support of $33 million in fiscal year 2011. The 2012-2013 baseline appropriati the Medicaid
program provided approximately $360 million in General Fund resourcessay to replace reduced
federal funds.

The 2012-2013 budget continued funding for the patient-centered medical honteseéntta
encourage Maine health care providers to provide better accessnyypcare physician services to
MaineCare members. Funding was also provided to address shorifah& imunicipal General
Assistance program resulting from the economic downturn, to pay fooshefcforensic patients at the
State’s psychiatric hospitals, to provide sufficient resourcesh®ofdster care and adoption assistance
programs, to service individuals with intellectual disabiliteesl autism who are current waiting for
services, to increase funding available for mental health setzeidesse not Medicaid eligible and for
housing services for individuals with mental illness.

The 2012-2013 budget supported Maine’s efforts to pay its obligations to hospital§imely
basis. General Fund resources of approximately $63 million were designaransition payments to
Maine’s noncritical access hospitals from a prospective inteaipment system to methodologies based
on diagnosis related groupings and ambulatory payment classifications int@mnaiy hospitals on a
real-time basis and reduce the use of paying hospital settlensmisalsyears after hospitals have
incurred costs. The budget also continued the effort to pay outstandintahssttiements through an
initiative which provided over $9 million General Fund resources from 2012 year enddsalanc

In recent years, the State had accrued a liability to hospdalMedicaid services provided by
such hospitals with the use of a Prospective Interim Payment methoddiodglye 2012-2013 budget,
Maine transitioned from the Prospective Interim Payment sysienethodologies based on Diagnosed
Related Groupings and Ambulatory Payment Classifications, which Mayse’s noncritical access
hospitals on a real-time basis, based on claims. As of June 30, 2013gthgate liability totaled
approximately $484.4 million, of which $186.3 million was the State shatte tné balance expected to
be paid on or after October 1, 2013 by the federal government as itsl fiedéch. On June 14, 2013,
the Governor signed into law 2013 Chapter 269, An Act to Strengthen Maiog{stils and to Provide
for a New Spirits Contract. This law authorized the Maine MpaldBond Bank to issue up to $187.0
million of revenue bonds, the proceeds of which were used, together withlfeameys, to satisfy this
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obligation to the hospitals. The bonds are payable from moneys to beteteiconnection with an
agreement for certain wholesale liquor activities. Paymémntsettle the debts owed to hospitals were
made in September of calendar year 2013.

The 2014-2015 budget, 2013 Chapter 368, continued funding the priorities identified in previous
budgets. The Department requested additional resources in botlyéiac2014 and 2015 to address
needs in the Medicaid program. In addition to the request for insré¢@adbe baseline budgets, the
Department received the funding necessary to fill waiver slotsvorot the State’s largest Medicaid
waivers serving those with developmental or intellectual disasilitFunding was also provided for the
General Assistance program while coupled with structural chaaglee program that mitigated a larger
request. The budget included funding to provide additional mental healthesexvitfiose not Medicaid
eligible in fiscal year 2014 and to fund adequately the foster degian assistance programs based on
the increasing number of children in care in both years of the bmnniln an effort to reduce
expenditures and restructure the services offered by the Departiidetith and Human Services,
there are several proposals in the budget which would restructure bsomaéts for dually eligible
members and implement two new waivers to better serve thosdnaithinjury and other conditions.
The Department also proposed to save funds based on the implementasimoanagement for high-
cost users in the Medicaid program. An additional $31 million imlidéd funding was provided for
fiscal year 2014 in a supplemental budget prepared by the Legislature and enacted in 201 3@hapte

The supplemental budget enacted as 2013 Chapter 502 also provided addiidingl for the
state’s two psychiatric hospitals. In September of 2013, the DegrarbhHealth and Human Services
was notified that the Riverview Psychiatric Center would no longeive CMS hospital certification.
This de-certification called into question the ability of the ha$épio continue receiving Medicaid
Disproportionate Share Hospital funding which accounts for more than haté dfudget. The
Department requested additional General Fund support to enact sghaerges at the hospital while
they pursue re-certification. The Department also maintainghbgtare eligible to continue receiving
Disproportionate Share Hospital funding as they are an InstituteeotaliDisease and do not need
Medicare hospital certification to receive this funding. Sevézais in 2013 Chapter 502 are intended
to increase recruitment and retention at both Riverview Psyichi@gnter and the Dorothea Dix
Psychiatric Center in Bangor.

The Governor’s Office is still evaluating its options on any Medieaigansion relating to the
enactment of the federal Affordable Care Act. The DepartmieHealth and Human Services has had
discussions with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Servegrding expansion and awaits
responses to several questions. It is anticipated that the expaniibawe some financial impact on
residents in Maine who have been eligible for MaineCare but havercimad to apply and who will
forego private health insurance because they are MaineCare eliffibteexpected that 100% of the
medical expenses for these residents would be covered by the federal government.

Debts of the State

As of April 30, 2014, there were outstanding general obligation bonds of #te 8t the
principal amount of $347,170,000, including $239,665,000 to be paid from the General Fund and
$107,505,000 to be paid from the Highway Fund. As of April 30, 2014, there are oulgtaodd
anticipation notes of the State in the principal amount of $65,000,000 whichendaine 30, 2014.

Debt service requirements to maturity for the outstanding genenglatbh bonds are set forth in
Exhibit D herein.

As of April 30, 2014, there are no outstanding tax anticipation notes ofatee $s of April 30,
2014, the State is using interfund borrowings from the State investmentirpdbe amount of
$148,000,000 to satisfy its fiscal year 2014 cash flow needs. The Statglaals to continue to use
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internal cash flow borrowing to meet cash flow needs in fiscal 3@B5. Additional external borrowing
may be needed in fiscal year 2015. The amount budgeted to be borrowedlgxtefizaal year 2015
is not currently expected to exceed $150,000,000. If external borrowing is reguaechbination of
tax anticipation notes and a proposed line of credit could be usedtimiing and amount of any such
borrowings will depend upon the actual cash flow needs of the State.

As of April 30, 2014, there is indebtedness authorized by the voters of dtee f&t certain
purposes, but unissued as either bonds or notes, in the aggregate pamoipal of $254,077,809. As
of April 30, 2014, the aggregate principal amount of bonds of the State aathbsizhe Constitution
and implementing legislation for certain purposes, but unissued, is $99,000,008. “FiSeal
Management — Constitutional Debt Limit” and “Certain Public Insentalities — Finance Authority of
Maine” and “— Maine State Housing Authority” herein.

For additional information concerning long-term debts of the State, see Exhibit D hereto.
Lease Financing Agreements

From time to time, the State enters into lease agreenfientthe purpose of acquiring or
financing capital equipment and buildings. A lease agreement isedesalely by the equipment or
building which is the subject of such agreement and is not a pledge @il faith and credit of the
State. Lease payment obligations are subject to appropriation bydistatige. In certain instances,
the State has issued certificates of participation in thgelpayments to be made pursuant to certain
lease agreements. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal amawthokease obligations
outstanding was $117,056,371. For additional information regarding such leasenegse see
Appendix D hereto. For information regarding rental payments to be madee fytate, subject to
appropriation, to the Maine Governmental Facilities Authority, see RTJAN PUBLIC
INSTRUMENTALITIES - Maine Governmental Facilities Authority.

Defined Benefit Retirement Programs

Overview. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System (“NPERS” or “System”)
administers three defined benefit pension plans (often referr@sl “t®Brograms”) on behalf of the State
with approximately the following membership as of June 30, 2013: the Bitaployee and Teacher
Retirement Program, with 41,809 active, 35,124 inactive, non-vested, 6,794 tednwasted and
31,624 retired members and surviving beneficiaries; the JudiciakeRetnt Program, with 60 active,
1 inactive, non-vested, 0 terminated, vested and 65 retired members and sunveiingares; and the
Legislative Retirement Program, with 182 active, 96 inactive, non-vested, ririiidted, vested and
155 retired members and surviving beneficiaries (collectively é3eans”). In addition, MainePERS
administers the Participating Local District ConsolidatedRla behalf of 296 participating state and
local public entities (“PLDs”). In addition, the System also adstéms a group life insurance plan
which provides or makes available life insurance benefits foveaaind retired System members and
employees of certain PLDs. As of June 30, 2013, the System’s groupslii@mnce plan, for actuarial
purposes, was comprised of approximately 31,104 active members and 17,086, netiieh includes
5,573 PLD active members and 2,590 PLD retirees and surviving benediciafefull actuarial
valuation of the group life insurance program is done on a biennial esigioist recent as of June 30,
2012. Therefore, the June 30, 2012 participation counts were carrieddant@the June 30, 2013
valuation that was completed for disclosure purposes. The next fultivalwdll be completed as of
June 30, 2014. The State has no retirement or group life insurance obligatibasPLDs or to their
covered employees. The trust fund balances associated with eacdpimistered by MainePERS are
segregated. The funds are commingled only for investment purposes. dhesaative operating
expenses of the System are charged against each trust fund badadoected by statute and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting standards. The buddetadstrative operating
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expenses of the System for fiscal year 2014 are $11,400,000, as compared to $1X@58s¢aPyear
2013.

The System’s retirement programs provide defined retirement teehafied on members’ three-
year average final compensation and service credit earng#fdretirement. Vesting (i.e., eligibility for
benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon the earning of five peaervice credit (effective
October 1, 1999, the prior ten-year requirement was reduced by legistzdtoreta five years for state
employees and teachers; separate legislation enacted the realoced requirement for judges,
legislators, and employees of PLDs). Vesting also occurs upon thegeafione year of service credit
immediately preceding retirement at or after normal retirerage. Normal retirement age for “regular
service retirement plan” State employees and teachers, judddsegislative members is age 60, 62 or
65". The normal retirement age is determined based upon the amoentio€é g0 which a member is
credited as of a specific date. For “regular serviceeragnt plan” PLD members, normal retirement
age is 60. The monthly benefit of members who retire beforealoetirement age by virtue of having
at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a statutoegnived factor for each year of age that a
member is below her/his normal retirement age at retirenigmt. System also provides disability and
death benefits which are established by statute for State employeeschied teambers and by contract
with other participating employers under applicable statutory provisions.

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employee cowoimbate refundable
with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrakaccumulated contributions results in
forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights. The annual afieterest credited to members’
accounts is set by the System’s Board of Trustees and is cursedfily Employer contributions for
terminated members are not refunded and remain assets of the applicable plan.

Other Available Information
The following documents related to the System and the Programs are incorporated hefeirebger:

» Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the System for the fygeal ended June 30, 2013
available at http://mainepers.org/PDFs/CAFRS/CAFR13.pdfActuaaalation Report for each
of the retirement programs administered by the System as of Jun20B®, available at
http://www.mainepers.org/bonds.htm.

* Final Report of the State Employee and Teacher Retirement Program expstuelycelated
December 22, 2011 available at
http://www.mainepers.org/PDFs/Bonds/Maine%20Assumption%20Changes 12222011 vf.pdf.

*  “New Pension Plan Design and Implementation Plan” dated March 2012 prepared leywthe N
Pension Plan Working Group available at http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/diitiet R-5-
2012.pdf.

* New Pension Plan proposed legislation and plan document submitted to the JalimgSta
Committee on Appropriations and Financial Affairs on January 15, 2013 available at
http://mww.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP1%20Package%2001172013.pdf.

* New State/Teacher Retirement Plan Report to the Legislature, “NésyT&t@acher Plan 2
Proposed Legislation and Implementation Plan” submitted to the Joint Standimgit@eon

1 Because of the nature of their jobs, certain employees, typically thoseénfiarcement positions, are members of a
“special service retirement plan,” rather than the “regular sernvicement plan” which covers most employees. Special
plans typically differ from regular plans in the areas of retiremenbéitgirequirements, benefit determination, and
contribution rates. Special plans are typically more expensive thanrrplguis.

A-30



Appropriations and Financial Affairs on May 6, 2013 available at
http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP%20Report%20Final%2005072013.pdf.

For additional information about the System contained in this InformataterSent, see also
Note 9 and Required Supplementary Information in the State’s finastatements on pages B-60 — B-
65 and B-101 — B-103 herein and “Exhibit E — Maine Public Employees RetteSystem Actuarial
Balance Sheet, June 30, 2013".

Funding Policy and Status

The costs of the State Plans, including those of the State Empmoge@eacher Retirement
Program, generally consist of two elements:

Normal Costs - the present value of future pension benefits eayredployees in the current
year. Normal costs are based on each year’s projected anhectiv®demployee earnings. The State’s
share of the normal cost was 5.5% of such earnings from July 1, 2007 througB0J@@d1. As a
result of an experience study as well as changes to the plan desigescribed below in “Recent
Legislative Changes Affecting Benefits Levels” effective July2@11, the State's share of the normal
cost was reduced to 2.94%, in effect for the fiscal years 2012 and 201%tafés share of the normal
cost for fiscal years 2014 and 2015 is 3.67%. Most State employeesaghdrs are required by statute
to contribute 7.65% of their earnings. As previously noted, some Stateye@plmay pay a higher rate
as a result of participation in a so-called “special plan”, Wwhigpically permit a member to retire
younger or with fewer years of service. Other State employegayaa lesser rate as a result of a
collective bargaining agreement or other arrangement with the. STedhe employee contribution rate
did not change as a result of the recent experience study or plan design changes.

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) - the asant by which the actuarial liability
for current and former employees is greater than pension as8eg¢sactuarial liability is the present
value of prospective pensions owed to members when they retire basadioa as of the calculation
date.

State Employee and Teacher Retirement Program annual and/or bmsiglare defined as
those normal and UAAL costs required by State law and the Maineitdtostto fund the plan. The
State’s employer normal cost contributions, along with current meaaeributions, support benefits
currently being earned by active members. The State’s unfunded dcagarized liability (UAAL)
contribution is a payment on the amortized debt that representaliiigylifor benefits in excess of the
amount supported by assets of the System. The Maine Constitutioresetiat the June 30, 1996
UAAL be fully funded in not more than 31 years from July 1, 1997. In additienytiaine Constitution
requires that unfunded liabilities resulting from experience lossest be retired over a period not
exceeding 10 years.

Maine is one of 14 states that do not participate in Social $edoriState employees, judges,
legislators or teachers while they are active memberseoState Plans. Neither the State nor covered
plan members contribute any amounts to Social Security. This meacsvwkatd members do not earn
Social Security credits.

The State appropriates funding for pension costs associated withatkeP&ins, covering all
State employees and teachers, legislators and judges. Retirelisability and death benefits provided
by the System are funded by employee contributions as set by statutg amployer contributions
determined on an actuarial basis. An actuarial valuation is naekp@nnually and the valuation
completed in the even year for each of the state’s three defimefitb@ans is used to determine the
State’s employer contribution requirements for the ensuing bienniwmexample, the valuation as of
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June 30, 2010 was used to set contributions for the 2012-2013 biennium, and thervdhiatl as of
June 30, 2012 was used to establish the contributions to be made in the 2014-2015 biennium.

For State employees and teachers, the State’s annual requiredutmmtrithe “ARC”) is
comprised of the normal cost contribution plus the payment required to artbdiState Employee and
Teacher Retirement Program’s UAAL. As of June 30, 2013, the adtuahiee of assets of the State
Employee and Teacher Retirement Program (which does not include rseafb#re judicial and
legislative programs) was $9,177,749,627 and the actuarial accruedyliatmlg $11,830,649,882
resulting in a UAAL of $2,652,900,255 and a funded ratio of 77.6%. The State istetligader an
amendment to the Maine Constitution adopted in 1995 to amortize the UAAE S8tate Employee and
Teacher Retirement Program as of June 30, 1996 by no later than thefisodl ofear 2028. As of
June 30, 2013, 15 years remained in the current, constitutionally mandated aimorpgedaod for the
unfunded liability of the State Employee and Teacher Retirement ProgranMalie Constitution also
prohibits the creation of new unfunded liabilities other than those@riom experience losses. Any
such liabilities are required to be amortized within 10 yedise constitutional requirement does not
apply to the Legislative Retirement Program or the JudiciatdReent Program. MainePERS monitors
all relevant proposed bills to ensure continued compliance with the constituéquaement.

The judicial retirement plan had an unfunded actuarial liability of $1,31%63dne 30, 2013.
The legislative retirement plan had an actuarial surplus of $2,899,341 at June 30, 2013.

The State has generally funded its annual required contribution for é3tgleyees, teachers,
judges and legislators as shown in the table below. Differenceedetthe ARC and the actual
contribution may be the result of the differences between projectedcamal salary amounts for any
given year. Differences may also be the result of additional combmisupaid by the State, as
previously required by statute, from general fund surplus money available elbse of a given fiscal
year. In 2013, the statute was amended by th8 L&gislature such that general fund surplus money is
no longer allocated to MainePERS.

Valuation Annual Required Actual Contribution Percent
Date 6/30/YY Contribution Contributed

2013 $264,341,000 $264,381,000 100.0%
2012 252,830,000 252,830,000 100.0
2011 328,075,000 333,944,000 101.8
2010 317,992,000 329,207,000 103.5
2009 320,112,000 320,112,000 160.0
2008 305,361,000 305,361,000 160.0
2007 303,076,000 303,075,774 100.0
2006 286,439,000 303,438,610 106.0
2005 261,698,000 274,697,901 105.0
2004 251,483,000 273,482,848 108.8
2003 252,709,000 263,209,148 104.2
2002 242,486,000 242,486,089 160.0

As of June 30, 2013, the State had a net pension obligation (“NPQO”) in comneti the State
Plans of $1,988,859. The NPO is the cumulative difference between anms@npeost and the
employer's contributions to a plan, including the pension liability atadgransition, if any. Measured
is the annual pension cost equal to (a) the ARC, (b) one yearssinten the NPO, and (c) an
adjustment to the ARC to offset the effect of actuarial éimairon of past under- or over-contributions.
“Transition” refers to the point in time when the employer impleteg¢ GASB Statement # 27 and
measured its initial pension liability or asset at that point in time.
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The amount paid by the State in fiscal year 2013 was $264,381,000. The amountetoje
be paid by the State in fiscal years 2014 and 2015 are $295,529,000 and $305,439,822, respectively.

The State does not have specific projections of future expected contributions. Homeeusrst
recent actuarial valuation for the Programs, as of the fiseal June 30, 2013, does project that future
State contributions are expected to remain at approximately 18% of lpghayooigh fiscal year 2028,
assuming all current actuarial assumptions are met. This ieawEso includes a projection of State
and Teacher Program Benefit Payments and Contributions for thé yesrs 2014 through 2023 (see
Table 1I-4 in the report referenced below under the heading “Actudalaation”). This table projects
expected State contributions to increase from $309 million atheofend of fiscal year 2014 to
approximately $421.9 million as of the end of fiscal year 2023.

It should be noted, of course, that the actual amounts required to be contributed by the State in
the future will likely differ from these amounts and, depending upon actual circumstsuncies
differences may be substantial.

The ARC originally determined for the 2012-2013 biennial budget was based mgstiraate
of the assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2010. The estimatésliaskeded the June 30, 2010 assets
(at market value), except that the private market values lvegsed on the March 31, 2010 value, with a
projection of total cash flows for the year. The liabilities udeld the June 30, 2009 liabilities, rolled
forward based on projected actuarial assumptions for fiscal year 20il®.new process, as compared
to the prior process of waiting for all values at June 30 to beawadable, was recommended by
Cheiron, the System’s actuary, and approved by the System’s Board afeBruamtd was implemented
in order to provide employer contribution rates to the State as a&aghpssible in the biennial budget
process. The completion of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2010 ®ysteen’s actuary, using
all values as of June 30, 2010, demonstrated no material differencesbhéhgeestimated results, used
to establish the employer contribution, and the results of the actuaktieal. This same methodology
was used to determine the ARC for the 2014-2015 biennial budget.

Recent Actuarial Assumption Changes. State law provitisat least once in each six-year
period, the System’s actuary is to make an investigation intouatgrogram demographics and
changes in program demographics, employment patterns and projectioventreleonomic measures
and expectations and other factors that the Board or actuary congjddisasmt. The actuary must also
make recommendations for certain modifications of the actuasahgsions, as needed. As a result of
the 2008 adverse market conditions and a specific request from thé&atiegish September 2010, the
System conducted an experience study for the State Employee and TRetofeenent Program, which
has resulted in the adoption of different assumptions, as described b€loanges to the economic
assumptions implemented as a result of the experience studypplga@the Legislative Retirement
Program and the Judicial Retirement Program. The final reponeaéxperience study is available at
http://www.mainepers.org/bonds.htm.

The results of the experience study led to the adoption by the Systeard &f Trustees on
April 14, 2011 of certain changes in economic and demographic actuarialpsissisrused in the
calculation of the liabilities of the State Employee and Teacher Retirémagriam.
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The key findings as it relates to the demographic assumptions were as follows:

: Generally more members than expected retire before age 60, and fewer
Retirement .
than expected retire after age 60
Very close to assumed levels up to 15 years of service; more than
Turnover )
expected above 15 years of service
- Very close to assumed levels up to age 50; less than expected gpbove
Disability
age 50
. Fewer male deaths and more female deaths occurred than were
Mortality
expected
Individual Salary .
(Merit) Increases were generally less than previously assumed

The actuary recommended updating the demographic assumptions, moving partaray tbe
observed experience and keeping with sound actuarial practices. ThePEHRBeBoard of Trustees
adopted the demographic assumption changes recommended by the actuarggradeteaimpact of
adoption of these demographic changes was estimated to increasA@Ahebl) approximately $200
million.

The MainePERS Board of Trustees also adopted the following changdg teconomic
assumptions, as recommended by the actuary:

Old Assumption New Assumption
Discount Rate 7.75% 7.25%
Inflation 4.75% 1.5% for two years and 3.5% thereafter

The impact of the reduction in the discount rate was estimatedctease the UAAL by
approximately $700 million. The impact of the reduction in the imifaissumption was estimated to
decrease the UAAL by approximately $1.1 billion. The net impact dhellchanges to the actuarial
assumptions was an estimated decrease in the UAAL by approximately $200 million.

The application of the newly adopted actuarial assumptions to the JuB613D,valuation
resulted in a decrease in the ARC for the 2012-2013 biennium. The Syiséeted its actuaries to
perform the recalculation, which, in combination with the plan changss ‘Recent Legislative
Changes Affecting Benefits Levels” below), resulted in changéisetdARC for all State Plans for the
2012-2013 biennium.

Actuarial Valuation. By State law, the System’s assets and liab#itie calculated annually by
the System’s actuaries. Each even year’s valuation servig dsasis for the State’s ARC in the
biennium that begins two years from the date of the valuation. @&pdstris delivered to the State in
late October and contains an actuarial valuation of the plans athredivy the System as of the end of
the most recent fiscal year and sets out the ARC for the upgdmennium. The report also includes,
for each plan, a description of the actuarial assumptions and methemisaubrief summary of the
principal plan provisions and a summary of member data. The acttept@is for the fiscal year
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ending June 30, 2013 the “2013 Valuations” (the most recently completed actemoat) are
incorporated by reference herein and are available at http://www.mainepers.org/lbonds.ht

The actuarial valuation calculates the actuarial accruedityafor each of the defined benefit
plans, which represents the present value of benefits the Sysliepayvto its retired members and
active members upon retirement, based on certain demographic and ecaseumgptions. Some
examples of these assumptions include an expected rate of retussets; age of retirement of active
members, future salary increases for current employees and asswriatity rates for retirees and
beneficiaries. If the actual experience of a plan differs filoese assumptions, the UAAL of the plan
may increase or decrease to the extent of any such variancecotllldshave a resulting impact on the
ARC, which may increase or decrease the amount of the State’duadatrito the plans. As previously
discussed, the actuarial assumptions of the State Employee anukeiT &eatirement Program were
recently changed to reflect the results of the latest experg&ndy. See “Recent Actuarial Assumption
Changes” above. See also “Recent Legislative Changes AffectingfiBelLevels” below for
information regarding legislative changes and the resulting impacthenUAAL and required
contributions.

The actuarial valuation also compares the actuarial accruelityiatith the actuarial value of
assets and any excess of that liability over the assets themgAAL of the system. The actuarial
valuation will express the percentage that a plan is funded through a “fundgdwhich represents the
actuarial value of assets of the plan divided by the actuarialextt@ability of such plan. The actuarial
valuation will also state an annual required contribution (“AR@hYich is a recommended amount that
the State and other sponsoring employers contribute to the applicable Tthe ARC consists of two
components: (1) normal cost, which represents the portion of the pvedeatof retirement benefits
that are allocable to active members’ current year service, and (2) an athpdrzaon of the UAAL.

With respect to the expected rate of return of assets,cthal aate of return on investments
depends on the performance of its investment portfolio. The valudeofsécurities and other
investments in the investment portfolio changes from one fiscal gehe tnext, which, in turn, causes
increases or decreases in the funded ratio of each plan and iAshe Currently, the assumed rate of
return is 7.25%. This is a reduction from the earlier assumed earnings rate of 7. 78%udadrom the
Board’s adoption of new actuarial assumptions at its April 14, 2011 ngeet described above. For
fiscal year 2013, the actuarial rate of return of the assess6W&% as compared to a market rate of
return of 11.2%. Information about the System’s Investment Prograravadable at www.
mainepers.org/Investments/Investments.htm.

The 2013 Valuation includes an analysis of the impact of both higher anddowel rates of
return, as compared to the current assumed rate of return of 7.2H3%. Pifograms were to earn 8.25%
annual returns, the State’s contribution rate would decline from thecped rate in the 2013 Valuation
of 18.06% and the unfunded actuarial liability would be paid in full by 2025 réthaer 2028. If,
however, the Programs were to earn 6.25% annual returns, the contrib@winoudd rise to about 24%
of payroll and the funded ratio as of the end of fiscal year 2028 would or8¢%e Again, as noted
above, the actual future circumstances will likely vary fithimse assumed in the 2013 Valuation and
thereby result in potentially significantly different required contribution amounts.
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The following table sets out the actual rate of investment retsircompared to the actuarial
assumed rate of return (taking into account the three-year smoothihgdmiescribed below) for the
calendar years 2013 through 1991, inclusive.

Actual Rate of Actuarial Assumed
Calendar Year Investment Return Rate of Return*

2013 11.20% 7.25%
2012 12.86 7.25
2011 0.22 7.25
2010 12.20 7.75
2009 21.50 7.75
2008 -27.60 7.75
2007 9.10 7.75
2006 11.30 7.75
2005 7.70 8.00
2004 13.10 8.00
2003 25.60 8.00
2002 -10.30 8.00
2001 -5.00 8.00
2000 -3.80 8.00
1999 15.30 8.00
1998 15.30 8.00
1997 18.50 8.00
1996 13.50 8.00
1995 25.70 8.00
1994 -0.10 8.00
1993 13.90 8.00
1992 7.20 8.00
1991 23.90 8.50

*Changes effective July 1 of stated year

In addition to the above-described assumptions, the actuarial valuatitvespdins use the entry
age normal (“EAN”) method to calculate the actuarial valuassets and actuarial accrued liability.
The System believes that the EAN method is a more accuratatordit actuarial funding progress and
it is now, in fact, the predominant method used by public retirementnsysteoughout the United
States.

An additional actuarial method used in arriving at the actuarifdlatian is so-called
“smoothing,” whereby the difference between the market value of assetseamttuarial value of assets
is smoothed over a period of three years to offset the effeetdaiility of market values in any single
year. The following chart presents, for each program, the actaadaled liability, the actuarial value
of assets, the unfunded actuarial liability, the funded ratio of thre jaed on the actuarial value of
assets, the market value of assets, the funded ratio of the plahdmade market value of assets and
the ratio of the actuarial value of assets over the market value of assets.
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State & Teachers
Valuation Actuarial Unfunded Funded Funded Agtsusaertlgl
date Accrued Liability Actuarial Assets Actuarial Ratio Market Assets Ratio Over
6/30/YY Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2013 $11,830,649,882  $9,177,749,627  $2,652,900,255 77.58% $9,091,347,964 76.85% 101.00%
2012 11,553,306,281 8,880,730,120 2,672,576,161 76.87 8,453,862,754 73.20 105.10
2011 11,281,665,186 8,736,885,121 2,544,780,065 77.44 8,677,947,874 76.90 100.70
2010 12,617,144,005 8,313,459,810 4,303,684,195 65.90 7,239,332,094 57.40 114.80
2009 12,321,219,332 8,325,951,236 3,995,268,096 67.60 6,620,849,642 53.70 125.80
2008 11,668,032,511 8,631,557,629 3,036,474,882 74.00 8,311,970,624 71.20 103.80
2007 11,157,770,138 8,245,520,019 2,912,250,119 73.90 8,668,381,195 77.70 95.10
2006 10,547,299,194 7,504,219,546 3,043,079,648 71.10 7,503,201,781 71.10 100.00
2005 9,999,250,038 6,964,597,457 3,034,652,581 69.70 6,997,802,832 70.00 99.50
2004 9,442,389,399 6,452,570,244 2,989,819,155 68.30 6,280,951,942 66.50 102.70
2003 9,442,389,399 6,452,570,244 2,989,819,155 68.30 6,280,951,942 66.50 102.70
Judicial
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Market Funded Actuarial
date Accrued Assets Actuarial Ratio Assets Ratio Assets Ovelf
6/30/YY Liability Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2013 $52,374,785 $51,055,251 $1,319,534 97.50% $50,574,604 96.60% 101.00%
2012 46,340,678 49,735,004 -3,394,326 107.32 47,344,407 102.20 105.10
2011 47,868,297 49,324,784 -1,456,487 103.00 48,992,049 102.40 100.70
2010 53,149,699 47,677,635 5,472,064 89.70 41,517,520 78.10 1114.80
2009 50,543,320 48,478,344 2,064,976 95.90 38,550,289 76.30 125.80
2008 47,634,452 50,418,942 -2,784,490 105.80 48,552,160 101.90 103.80
2007 46,842,351 48,225,053 -1,382,702 103.00 50,698,214 108.20 95.10
2006 43,102,409 44,350,649 -1,248,240 102.90 44,344,633 102.90 100.00
2005 41,804,673 41,842,216 -37,543 100.10 42,041,709 100.60 99.50
2004 36,388,731 39,210,995 -2,822,264 107.80 38,168,105 104.90 102.70
2003 41,931,130 41,842,216 88,914 99.80 42,041,709 100.30 99.50
Legislative
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Market Funded Actuarial
date Accrued Assets Actuarial Ratio Assets Ratio Assets Over
6/30/YY Liability Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2013 $6,872,614 $9,771,955 $-2,899,341 142.20%  $9,679,959 140.90% 10[1.00%
2012 6,243,939 9,322,419 -3,078,780 149.31 8,874,321 142.10 10%.10
2011 5,725,193 9,040,180 -3,314,987 157.90 8,979,197 156.80 100.70
2010 6,073,364 8,634,635 -2,561,271 142.20 7,519,010 123.80 114.80
2009 5,499,809 8,717,885 -3,218,076 158.50 6,932,518 126.10 12%.80
2008 5,605,005 9,099,133 -3,494,128 162.30 8,762,234 156.30 103.80
2007 5,095,638 8,721,571 -3,625,933 171.20 9,168,846 179.90 9%.10
2006 7,944,468 7,944,468 0 100.00 7,943,390 100.00 100.00
2005 7,406,475 7,406,475 0 100.00 7,441,788 100.50 99.50
2004 6,827,478 6,827,478 0 100.00 6,645,888 97.30 102.70
2003 7,406,475 7,406,475 0 100.00 7,441,788 100.50 99.50
2002 6,246,247 6,246,247 0 100.00 5,411,908 86.60 11%.40
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ALL STATE PLANS

Valuation Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Funded Agtsusaertlgl
date Liability Actuarial Assets Actuarial Ratio Market Assets Ratio Over

6/30/YY Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2013 $11,889,897,281 $9,238,576,833  $2,651,320,448 77.70% $9,151,602,527 77.00% 1P1.00%
2012 11,605,890,598 8,939,787,543 2,666,103,055 77.00 8,510,081,482 73.30 105.10
2011 11,335,258,676 8,795,250,085 2,540,008,591 77.60 8,735,919,120 77.10 1¢0.70
2010 12,676,367,069 8,369,772,080 4,306,594,989 66.00 7,288,368,624 57.50 114.80
2009 12,377,262,461 8,383,147,465 3,994,114,996 67.70 6,666,332,449 53.90 125.80
2008 11,721,271,967 8,691,075,704 3,030,196,263 74.10 8,369,285,018 71.40 103.80
2007 11,209,708,127 8,302,466,643 2,907,241,484 74.10 8,728,248,255 77.90 9%.10
2006 10,598,346,071 7,556,514,663 3,041,831,408 71.30 7,555,489,804 71.30 1(0.00
2005 10,048,461,186 7,013,846,148 3,034,615,038 69.80 7,047,286,328 70.10 99.50
2004 9,485,605,608 6,498,608,717 2,986,996,891 68.50 6,325,765,935 66.70 102.70
2003 9,491,727,004 6,501,818,935 2,989,908,069 68.50 6,330,435,439 66.70 102.70
2002 8,511,834,626 5,920,475,637 2,591,358,989 69.60 5,129,650,969 60.30 115.40

For further information regarding the actuarial method and significesuingptions used to
determine the ARC, see Note 6 to the System’s Comprehensive Afinaatial Report for the year
ended June 30, 2013, which is available at www.mainepers.org/Publicatiortafutd.htm, and also
“Recent Actuarial Assumption Changes” above. The estimated maket of All State Plans as of
April 30, 2014 was $9,981,311,262.

Legislative Changes. The Legislature has in the past adoptedhHatwhave had the effect of
both increasing and decreasing future retirement benefits payable underrooee of the State Plans.
Any increases in retirement benefits have the effect of asang the actuarial accrued liability of the
plan, which also has the effect of increasing the ARC with réspehe State Plans. Any decreases in
benefits have the effect of limiting the future growth of the a@laccrued liability of the plan, which
also has the effect of limiting the growth of the ARC for the Statéhfoplan in future years.

In June 2011, the 199 egislature passed 2011 Chapter 380, the biennial budget for fiscal years
2012 and 2013. Part U of the budget established a working group to develop an implementation plan
designed to close the current State Employee and Teacher RetiremeatrPandrreplace it with a
retirement benefit plan that is supplemental to Social Security. The new plahapply to all state
employees and teachers first hired after June 30, 2015. In March, 2012, the Working Grougsissued i
report entitled “New Pension Plan Design and Implementation Plan” which ialaleaalt
www.mainepers.org. The Legislature considered the report and enacted additistatidaghat
required MainePERS to submit, no later than January 15, 2013, proposed legislation to implement the
new plan as described in the report. The proposed legislation and accompanying documertesg submit
by MainePERS on January 15, 2013, can be found at
http://mwww.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP1%20Package%2001172013.pdf. On May 6, 2013,
MainePERS submitted a report for plan implementation to supplemeegikkation submitted on
January 15, 2013. The report can be found at
http://mww.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP%20Report%20Final%2005072013.pdf. As of the nmbst rece
legislative session, no sponsored legislation has been submitted and no legislativis @etnding
pertaining to the new plan. The Legislature has not formally carried over Engesilaining to the
proposed new plan, but the matter may be taken up again by the Legislature in the next session
commencing in January 2015.

Pursuant to other provisions of 2011 Chapter 380, several changes werto reedState Plans.
The changes include: changes to the retiree cost-of-living prosjdimeiuding a three-year freeze on
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cost-of-living adjustments, a reduction in the cost-of-living cap from 4% to 3%harestablishment of
a $20,000 limit on the amount of benefit subject to the cost-of-living mdfuns; an increase in the
normal retirement age from age 62 to age 65 for non-vested memlikesrefjular plan component of
the State Employee and Teacher Retirement Program (the non-gpecitiers); and a change that ties
eligibility for subsidized health insurance coverage (health insufagefits are funded directly by the
State) to normal retirement age. See “Litigation” below.

The following table sets forth a projection of the contributionsweae expected to be made by
the State to pay both the normal cost and to amortize the UAAheoState Employee and Teacher
Retirement Program for the period from fiscal year 2012 through freeal2028 before the legislative
changes pursuant to 2011 Chapter 380 described above. The dollar amounts ateogh@srfuture
year dollars and current year (2011) dollars (discounted at a 3.5% rateambunts shown in the table

below also reflect the recent experience study changes described above.

Projected Contributions - Pre-Legislative Changes

Fiscal

Normal Cost

Nor mal Cost

UAL Payment

UAL Payment otal Payment
Year (future dollars) (current dollars)(future dollars) (current dollars)(future dollars) (current dollars)

Total Payment

2012 $74,385,840 $ 74,385,840 $340,989,985% 340,989,988 415,375,825% 415,375,825
2013 75,501,627 72,948,432 346,280,748 334,570,771 421,782,375 407,519,203
2014 78,910,322 73,663,630 443,406,392 413,924,612 522,316,714 487,588,241
2015 81,672,183 73,663,630 458,925,615 413,924,611 540,597,798 487,588,241
2016 84,530,710 73,663,630 533,409,081 464,835,198 617,939,791 538,498,828
2017 87,489,285 73,663,630 552,078,399 464,835,198 639,567,684 538,498,828
2018 90,551,409 73,663,630 603,441,533 490,900,076 693,992,942 564,563,705
2019 93,720,709 73,663,630 624,561,987 490,900,076 718,282,696 564,563,706
2020 97,000,934 73,663,630 663,117,371 503,578,995 760,118,305 577,242,625
2021 100,395,966 73,663,630 686,326,479 503,578,995 786,722,445 577,242,624
2022 103,909,825 73,663,630 670,616,161 475,412,413 774,525,986 549,076,043
2023 107,546,669 73,663,630 639,649,452 438,125,150 747,196,121 511,788,780
2024 111,310,802 73,663,630 618,439,186 409,272,724 729,749,988 482,936,354
2025 115,206,681 73,663,630 610,133,908 390,122,155 725,340,589 463,785,785
2026 119,238,914 73,663,630 606,647,320 374,775,667 725,886,234 448,439,297
2027 123,412,276 73,663,630 612,248,652 365,445,477 735,660,928 439,109,106
2028 127,731,706 73,663,630 620,606,971 357,907,709 748,338,677 431,571,339

The amounts shown above were calculated in 2011 prior to enactment ejititative changes
and do not reflect any changed circumstances since they wereeggkefaney are presented solely for
purposes of showing the projected effects of 2011 Chapter 380 by compatisernable below, which
shows the projected contributions after the changes pursuant to 2011 GB@pdesscribed above. The
following table sets forth the estimated impacts of the latv& changes pursuant to 2011 Chapter 380
on the State/Teacher plan for fiscal years 2012 and 2013.
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Before After
Legislative Legislative Difference*
Changes* Changes*
MainePERS Budget/Costs
with Legislative Changes

FY 2012

Estimated Normal Cost $75 $50 $25
Estimated UAL Amortization 341 200 141
Estimated Total Appropriation 416 250 166
FY 2013

Estimated Normal Cost 76 1 25
Estimated UAL Amortization 346 203 143
Estimated Total Appropriation 422 254 168
FY 2012-13 Estimated Biennial Contribution 838 504 334

*All costs in millions

The changes in the cost-of-living provisions were the most significontributor to the
reduction in the required fiscal year 2012-2013 biennial contributions atedethove. Specifically,
more than 95% of the reduction can be attributed to those changes. Tigesclaiso resulted in a
significant reduction in the UAAL of the State/Teacher Plan. JRAL at the start of fiscal year 2012
was approximately $1.77 billion less than it otherwise would have bekthéglan design changes not
been implemented. Of that reduction in the UAAL, approximately 95%beaattributed to the changes
made to the cost-of-living provisions. See “Litigation” below.

The following table sets forth a projection of the contributions expeotbd made by the State
to pay both the normal cost and to amortize the UAAL of the Stafdyee and Teacher Retirement
Program for the period from fiscal year 2012 through fiscal year 2028.ddllae¢ amounts (expressed
as millions) are shown both as future year dollars and currentpélars (discounted at a 3.5% rate).
The amounts shown in the table below are based on the plan as iméi#edhe changes pursuant to
2011 Chapter 380 and the recent experience study changes, and include theofrékaltactuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2012. The State has not prepared more re@tigm®jn connection with the
preparation of the 2013 Valuation.
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Projected Contributions

Fiscal Normal Cost Normal Cost UAL Cost UAL Cost Total Cost Total Cost
Year future dollars* current dollars* future dollars* current dollars* future dollars* current dollars*
2013 $64 $64 $203 $203 $267 $267
2014 66 64 243 235 310 299
2015 69 64 252 235 320 299
2016 71 64 281 253 352 317
2017 74 64 290 253 364 317
2018 76 64 316 266 393 331
2019 79 64 328 266 406 331
2020 82 64 342 269 423 333
2021 85 64 354 269 438 333
2022 88 64 361 265 449 329
2023 91 64 364 258 454 322
2024 94 64 369 253 463 317
2025 97 64 363 240 460 304
2026 100 64 354 226 454 290
2027 104 64 359 222 463 286
2028 108 64 368 220 476 284

*All costs in millions.

The amounts in the preceding table are based on projections derivedh&d2012 actuarial
assumptions and other information then known to the State and the Systeenredent projections
have not been prepared. The actual amounts required to be contributedStgt¢hm the future will
likely differ from these amounts and, depending upon actual circumstaus differences may be
substantial. The actual contributions to be made by the Stateyfduwre fiscal year, including the
amount required to amortize the then UAAL, will be based upon actuastment results and other
factors as they occur in the future and the applicable adtvahetion used to certify the contribution
rates for such year and will reflect all actuarial assionptand circumstances then in effect. The State
cannot predict what the actual dollar amount of required contributiotiee System will be for fiscal
years beyond fiscal year 2015.

Pursuant to 2013 Chapter 368, beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, the employer notnfai cos
teacher members must be paid by local school administrative units. Those cogisevieresly paid by
the State. The amount paid by the State was $28,477,233 in fiscal yearT2@l8mounts to be paid by
the local school administrative units is $28,898,559 in fiscal year 2014 apdbjected to be
$29,910,009 in fiscal year 2015. The State continues to pay the employer unfubdiyg diasts for
teacher members.

Group Life Insurance Program. MainePERS also admisistgroup life insurance program
which is available to eligible participants. As of June 30, 2013, the pndgad an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $104.7 million. The annual required contribufionfiscal year 2013 was
$9.0 million and the annual contribution paid was $7.1 million, representing 78f7%e annual
required contribution. As the result of a group life insurance prensiuchy in 2012, the actuary
recommended an increase in premiums to be more consistent wigh @l projected program costs.
The Board of Trustees adopted increased rates, which were impdenteginning in fiscal year 2014.
Differences between the annual required contribution and the actualiprenay also be the result of
the differences between projected and actual coverage amounts for the year.

Litigation. On February 13, 2012, a lawsuit was brought by the Maine Ateacid Retirees
and four of its active members against the Board of TrusteeManhePERS in the United States
District Court for the District of Maine. The court subsequegthnted a motion to intervene filed by
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the Maine State Employee Association, the Maine Education Assocatd the Maine State Troopers
Association. Maine Association of Retirees, et al. v. Boartro$tees of the Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, Docket No. 1:12-CV-00059-GZS. The Plaiats#ed the District Court to declare
that the 2011 cost-of-living adjustment (“COLA”) statutes disedsabove violate either or both the
Contract Clause of and the Fifth Amendment to the Federal ComstituBy agreement of the parties,
the Contract Clause claims were presented first for sumradgnjent. On June 24, 2013, the United
States District Court (Singal, J.) dismissed all of Plaintiffshata concluding that there was insufficient
evidence of a legislative intent to contract and that, in any elentost-of-living adjustments did not
cause a “substantial” impairment of any contractual obligation. Tdieti#fs filed a timely appeal to the
1% Circuit Court of Appeals of the decision of the District Coudral argument was heard on March 4,
2014. The next step in the proceedings is the issuance of a decision BZireuit Court of Appeals.

The System cannot predict the outcome of the appeal to the @auwit. If the Circuit Court
affirms the decision of the District Court, the Plaintiffs coalgpeal the case to the United States
Supreme Court, which appeal would be by certiorari, discretionary hetiCourt. If the Circuit Court
reverses the decision of the District Court and remands theerntattthe District Court, further
proceedings in the case would be dependent on the precise nature ottiteGourt’s decision and
what guidance the court provides to the District Court in its order of remand.

The final outcome and the time frame for decision are currently unknolvthe Plaintiffs
prevail in their appeal and ultimately in one or more of thamtd, the court might ultimately grant
Plaintiffs’ request that the court order the MainePERS Boardmi#ke cost-of-living adjustments
retroactively beginning in September 2011, and continuing thereafter, putsudet provisions of 5
M.R.S.A. 8 17806(1)(A) as it provided prior to the enactment of the 2011 COhgn@ments for
members of the MainePERS System who were retired as of Jug8120; The Plaintiffs complaint
also seeks an award of costs and attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 ULS88. § If the Plaintiffs prevail
and the legislative changes related to COLA as discussed gislateve Changes Affecting Benefits
Levels" above are completely reversed by the court, following finding @leACprovisions of 2011
Chapter 380 violated one or more constitutional provisions, ikeédylthat approximately 95% of the
reduction in the State’s fiscal year 2012-2013 biennial contributionshangduction of approximately
$1.68 billion (95% of $1.77 billion) in the UAAL would also be reversed.

The actual dollar impact on the State in this event, without adjusting for all bteyes that
have occurred during the same period, would likely be a higher annual required contribution than would
have been the case without the 2011 legislative changes. However, determining theosiciudhe
event of an adverse decision will require a new actuarial valuation.

The System is also involved in a small number of administrative Eppbeaught by members
whose requests have been denied by the System. Most often, thosereaggseals from adverse
decisions in connection with applications for disability retirememtefiss. Less often, there are
administrative appeals involving or relating to group life insuranceaensabr retirement eligibility
matters. In each case, the relief requested by appellaiothas/e the System’s determination in their
case reversed and the sought-after benefit granted.

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

GASB has promulgated its Statement 45 (“GASB 45”) which reqtie$State, for fiscal years
beginning on and after July 1, 2007, to account for retiree health caretbemadi other post-
employment benefits in a manner similar to that required for pemsoefits. GASB 45 does not
require that such benefits be funded in advance. If the State conbrpesgtuch benefits as they come
due, however, it is expected that annual cost and liability accruals will incteatse GASB 45.
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The State funds post-employment health care benefits for mosdré&tate employees and
legislators and a portion of the health insurance premiums fioeddeachers. The State pays 100
percent of post-employment health insurance premiums for eligiineesivho were first employed on
or before July 1, 1991. A pro rata portion, ranging from zero percentigdsielretirees with less than
five years participation to 100 percent for eligible retirees veithar more years of participation, is paid
for eligible retirees first employed after July 1, 1991. Retiveles are not eligible for Medicare retain
coverage in the same group health plan as active employees. An ebgitdle must pay for Medicare
Part B coverage to be eligible to participate in the Statddd companion plan. Coverage for retirees
who are not eligible for Medicare includes basic hospitalizatsupplemental major medical and
prescription drugs, and costs for treatment of mental health, alsoh@nd substance abuse. The State
contribution to the health insurance premiums for retired teachetgriently 45 percent. County and
municipal law enforcement officers and municipal firefighters hegaverage in fiscal year 2008 with
the State contributing 45 percent of the cost of their respective plans.

Title 5 MRSA §286-B authorizes an Irrevocable Trust Fund for (QRest-employment Benefits
to meet the State’s unfunded liability obligations for retiree health herefieligible participants in the
State Employee Plan who are the beneficiaries of the irrevotabtefund. Annually, beginning with
the fiscal year starting July 1, 2007, the Legislature shall approduatis to meet the State’s
obligations under any group health plan, policy or contract purchased by theE®iglieyee Health
Commission. Unfunded liabilities may not be created except those¢ingsiubm experience losses.
Unfunded liability resulting from experience losses must be retiredeoperiod not to exceed 10 years.
The unfunded liability for retiree health benefits for eligible pgytints must be retired in 30 years or
less from July 1, 2007. Public Law 2007 Chapter 240 amended Title 5 MRSAeChgt by
establishing the Irrevocable Trust for Other Post-employmentfiBendhe Maine Public Employees
Retirement System holds and invests long-term funds in the irrevotraBtefund. Its fiduciary
responsibilities include setting investment policy in order to fund the plan in ancerdéh a projected
disbursement schedule that does not begin before the year 2027. PubR01BwChapter 380, Pt. Y
82 established separate Irrevocable Trust Funds for Other Postyemeplt Benefits to meet the State’s
unfunded liability obligations for retiree health benefits for elmgibhrticipants in the Teachers Plan and
the First Responders Plan who are the beneficiaries of their irfldedecast funds. Annually, beginning
with the fiscal year starting July 1, 2011 for eligible first resposaidend July 1, 2013 for eligible
teachers, the Legislature shall appropriate funds to meet treesStatigations to retire the unfunded
liability in 30 years or less from July 1, 2007.

Contribution requirements are set forth in State law. The amtit post-employment benefit
(“OPEB”) cost (expense) for each plan is calculated based anthyer's ARC, which is an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASBrnstatd5. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover noostakach year and to
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) aymriod not to exceed thirty years.
The State’s annual OPEB cost for fiscal year 2013 and the dald@t@mation for each plan are as
follows:
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(Expressed in Thousands)

First

State Employee's Teachers Responders
Annual required contribution $ 94,00 $ 44,000 $ 1,689
Interest on net OPEB obligation 4,000 7,000 146
Adjustment to annual required contribution (11,000) (14,000) (272)
Annual OPEB cost 87,000 37,000 1,563
Contributions made 68,000 25,000 577
Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation 000¢, 12,000 986
Net healthcare obligation beginning of year 92,228 173,956 3,658
Net healthcare obligation end of year $ 111,228 185,956 $ 4,644

As of June 30, 2013, there were 9,587 retired eligible State employees, &6 teachers,
and 80 retired first responders. In fiscal year 2013, the State omadebutions for other post-
employment healthcare benefits of $68 million for retired employe®ss $25 million for retired
teachers. The actuarial determined budgeted amounts for fiscal3@Bt and 2015 are $67 million
and $72 million for the state employee plan and $24 million and $26 miléspectively, for the
teacher plan.

The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2013 was as follows:

(Expressed in millions)

(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© (b-a)/c)

UAAL (as
Actuarial a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of covered
Plan Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll payroll)
State June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
Employees June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
June 30, 2011 112 1,544 1,432 7.25% 567 252.56%
June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
Teachers June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
June 30, 2011 0 801 801 0.00% 1,098 72.95%
First June 30, 2013 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
0, 0,
Responders June 30, 2012 0 21,921 21,921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%
June 30, 2011 0 19,158 19,158 0.00% 53,821 35.60%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported ama@untt assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future, and actuarially detesd amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and nevessirmanade about the future.
The required schedules of funding progress presented as required suppienméoitanation in the
State’s audited financial statements (see Appendix B hereis¢mgrenultiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing aad@og over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.

Employee Relations

As of April 22, 2014, the State had approximately 10,673 Executive Branch employees.
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The State Employees Labor Relations Act allows State emplaydbs Executive Branch to
engage in collective bargaining. As of April 22, 2014, approximately 9,487 emplogeesovered by
the law. There are seven bargaining units within the Executi@acBr The Maine State Employees
Association (MSEA-SEIU) is the bargaining agent for four bargainumgts which include
approximately 8,216 employees. The American Federation of State, CounMuaitibal Employees
(AFSCME) represents the employees in State institutions; Miagne State Law Enforcement
Association (MSLEA) represents those in law enforcemenvies excluding State Police; and the
Maine State Troopers Association (MSTA) represents the Fatee. The Commissioner of
Administrative and Financial Services, acting through the Offic&rmaployee Relations within the
Bureau of Human Resources, is the Governor’s designee for colleatgeeriiag and is responsible for
the negotiations and all other employee relations functions. The Statedeatiated with the MSEA-
SEIU, AFSCME, MSLEA, and the MSTA for successor agreements that wileekpne 30, 2015.

Collective bargaining has also been extended to employees of the Judkpaltment,
Legislative Branch, the University of Maine System, the Maine Conityn College System, the Maine
Maritime Academy, and to employees of counties, municipalities araspstricts, including public
school teachers.

Interfund Transactions

Due to Other Funds are amounts owed by one State fund to another for gloodls services
rendered. Due from Other Funds are amounts to be received from tsméuSthby another for goods
sold or services rendered. The following is a summary of amountfaineother funds and due to
other funds as of June 30, 2013:
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Interfund Receivables
(BExpressed in Thousands)

Due to Other Funds

Other

Special Other
Due from Other Funds General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 1,307 $ - $ -
Highway 3] 3 9,860 - -
Federal 5,569 1 126 5 -
Other Special Revenue 43,820 75 1,294 147 17
Other Governmental 484 - - - -
Employment Security - - 231 -
Non-Major Enterprise 100 86 2 -
Internal Service 9,493 3,24¢& 3,604 3,221 -
Fiduciary 20,550 - - - -
Total $ 80,021 $ 3,413 $ 142 $ 3,375 $ 17

Employment Non-Major Internal

Due from Other Funds Security Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ 5,723 $ 5,417 $ 86 $ 12,513
Highway - 1 - 9,869
Federal - - - - 5,701
Other Special Revenue 1 23 - 45,382
Other Governmental - - - 484
Employment Security - - - 231
Non-Major Enterprise - - - 188
Internal Service - 237 889 10 20,702
Fiduciary - - - 20,550
Total $ $ 5,941 $ 6,335 $ 96 $ 115,620

Advances to or from other funds are for long-term loans made by one fund to aradkences
from the General Fund are for inventory of the Postal, PrintingSaqgbly Fund. The following is a
summary of interfund advances as of June 30, 2013:

Schedule of Advances to or from Other Funds
June 30, 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Working Capital Working Capital

Fund Type Receivable Payable
General $ 111 $ -
Other Special Revenue - -
Internal Service - 111
Total All Funds $ 111 $ 111
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REVENUES OF THE STATE
General

In order to fund its programs and services, the State collectsietyvof taxes and receives
revenues from other non-tax sources, including the federal government andsvéges, fines,
reimbursements, interest earnings and transfers from non-budgetargyssétoc additional information
concerning revenues of the State, see Exhibits B and C.

General Fund revenue collections for the month of April 2014 were over budged iByrfillion
or 2.8%. Revenues for the ten month period ending April 2014 totaled $ 2,3710% @il were over
budget by $32.9 million or 1.4%. Compared to the same period lastyfearalGeneral Fund revenues
are up $ 22.5 million or 1.0%. Individual Income Tax revenues were over buddet foohth by $8.7
million or 4.0% and were over budget year-to-date through April 2014 by $2dnror 2.6%. Sales
and Service Provider Taxes, combined, were under budget for the month by $ibr2 onit1.4%, and
$1.5 million or 0.1% over budget year-to-date. Corporate Tax revenue®werbudget for the month
by $300 thousand or 1.2%, and $3.4 million or 2.6% over budget year-to-date. BstgenvEre under
budget by $600 thousand or -21.4% for the month and $0.9 million or -5.1% under budgety&arthe
to-date. Cigarette and Tobacco Taxes were $25 thousand or -0.2% under duttgetrfonth, and over
budget by $237 thousand or 0.2% for the year-to-date. Insurance CompaniessTarewhudget by
$4.7 million or 39.1% for the month and over budget by $ 4.9 million or 12% for theordate. Fines,
Forfeits and Penalties were $129 thousand under budget or -6.8% for the morgh3ankdousand or
-1.2% under budget for the year. Lottery income was under budget by $29 thous@r@wfor the
month, and under budget by $1.3 million or -2.8% for the year. TransfersX¥delief were essentially
on budget in April, and $2.9 million or 4.7% over budget for the year-to-@diter Taxes and Fees
were under budget by $76 thousand or -.9% for the month, and were over budget bylih. bm
1.1% for the year-to-date. “Other Revenues” were over budget for the month by $.5 million or 3.5%, and
over budget by $.5 million or 1.6% for the year-to-date.

The following table for fiscal year 2013, reflects the updated budgetedue re-projections
after the December 2008, the budget through th& 1i28 regular session and the May 2013 Revenue
Forecasting Committee Meeting. The following tables for 2014 and 20¥xtrife updated budgeted
revenue re-projections after December 2010, the March 2014 Revenuast@emmittee meeting and
the budgeted updates through the"™l&6écond regular sessidbee “State Budgets” above.
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Fiscal year 2013 Fiscal year 2013 Fiscal year 2013
CATEGORY Baseline Budget budget through the| revised by the May
December 2008 RFC| 126" 1% Regular 2013
Sales and Use Tax $1,127,405,489 $1,006,986,404 $ 984,910,746
Service Provider Tax 61,840,807 53,586,812 48,739|710
Individual Income Tax 1,621,165,0Q0 1,413,890,000 1,495,00Q,000
Corporate Income Tax 183,670,4p5 186,021,32 171,021,732
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 143,392,321 138,180}000 138,180,000
Insurance Companies Tax 71,990,000 80,715)000 80,71%,000
Estate Tax 64,878,175 70,230,328
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 43,592,953 24,452]139 24,55p,639
Income from Investments 43,581 66,082 83,883
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,534,2h0 52,550,p00 52,550,000
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (139,734,1%0) (112,086,562) (112,084,562)
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharin (150,191,917) (93,076,067) (95,086,810)
Other Taxes and Fees 142,602,960 151,399(353 150,8H4,327
Other Revenues 31,693,401 40,219,187 38,637,097
Total Undedicated Revenues $3,190,005,450 $3,007,782,25" $3.048,342,09(

Fiscal_ year 2014 Fispal year 2014 as bE(Ing;::tl %er?)ruégltie
CATEGORY Baseline Budget Revised by the March 1260 ond Regular
December 2010 RFC RFC Session
Sales and Use Tax $1,036,894,436 $1,108,677,783 $1,107,378,483
Service Provider Tax 64,809,166 49,317,427 49,317)427
Individual Income Tax 1,662,574,000 1,380,685,000 1,380,684,000
Corporate Income Tax 252,110,983 169,706,p58 169,706,958
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 138,621,367 135,900{000 135,900,000
Insurance Companies Tax 76,015,000 80,715]000 80,715,000
Estate Tax 54,924,035 27,553,98p 27,553,982
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 30,777,049 23,468,666 23,46B,666
Income from Investments 205,585 132,323 132,623
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,034,260 53,500,000 53,500,000
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (115,257,5f9) (62,258,870) (62,258,370)
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharin (153,458,062) (64,904)675) (64,839,710)
Other Taxes and Fees 138,401,848 128,459,912 128,659,912
Other Revenues 43,317,313 43,200,283 44,447,248
Total Undedicated Revenues $3,281,969,01 $3,074,154,489 $3,074,367,119
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Fiscal year 2015 baselintla Fiscal year 2015 as bllj:jsc;l tyher?)ru2?11t5he
CATEGORY budget December 2010| Revised by the March gh nd 9
126" 2" Regular
RFC RFC .
Session
Sales and Use Tax $1,070,820,224 $1,189,592,383 $1,187,737)653
Service Provider Tax 66,947,869 50,303,776 50,303,776
Individual Income Tax 1,754,681,00( 1,447,229,000 1,455,836,R00
Corporate Income Tax 267,054,252 177,651,245 177,651,225
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 136,200,611 133,590,000 133,590,000
Insurance Companies Tax 76,015,000 80,715,000 80,715,700
Estate Tax 56,950,563 26,457,040 26,957,040
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 30,772,049 23,421,666 23,421,666
Income from Investments 205,585 93,85¢ 93,898
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,034,250 57,350,462 57,350,462
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (115,281,994 (58,183,362) (58,183,362)
Transfer to Municipal Revenue (160,928,111 (20,728,612) (61,066,2388)
Sharing
Other Taxes and Fees 140,272,961 131,988,458 132,978,084
Other Revenues 42,850,998 38,820,547 39,939,411
Total Undedicated Revenues $3,418,595,p61 $3,278,301,391 $3,247,324,774

Certain State Taxes

Individual Income Tax. The State assesses individual income #dxgrogressive rates from
0% to 7.95%, based on classifications or brackets of taxable incomeddepepon filing status and
after specified deductions and exemptions. Taxable income of mesiabviduals is derived from
federal adjusted gross income. The dollar amounts of the taxakdés tare indexed for inflation. For
tax year 2014, the maximum rate applies to Maine taxable income of $4dr,&p6ater for married
persons filing joint returns ($20,900 for single individuals and marriesopsrfiling separate returns
and $31,350 for individuals filing as heads of households). A resident individadbiged $3,950
(same as federal) for each exemption to which the individuahtileel for the tax year for federal
income tax purposes. For resident taxpayers not itemizing deductionsandardtdeduction is the
same as the federal standard deduction of the taxpayer, which isndksed at the federal
level. Nonresident Maine taxpayers are taxed in a similar fadbnthey are allowed a credit for their

non-Maine sourced income.

Sales and Use Taxes. A sales tax is imposed on the valudarfgable personal property and
taxable services sold at retail in the State. The rataxak 7% on the value of liquor sold in licensed
establishments, 7% on the value of rental of living quarters in any hmtehting house, tourist or trailer
camp, 10% on the value of rental for a period of less than one yaarantomobile, 7% on the value of
prepared food, and 5% on the value of all other tangible personal propetaxabl# services. The 7%
rate is temporarily increased to 8% for the period October 1, 2013 to30ur#915. The 5% rate is
temporarily raised to 5.5% for the same time period.

A use tax is imposed at the rates provided for sales taxes, ornotiages use or other
consumption in the State of tangible personal property or a service, the sale of which weuldpbieto

sales tax.
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No sales or use tax is imposed on sales, storage or use afnc&hgible personal
property. Some of the major exemptions are grocery staples (which ohelode liquor, and prepared
food); prescription medicines; certain products used in agricultndahgua cultural production; certain
motor fuels; coal, oil, wood and all other fuels, except electricihernmbought for cooking and heating
in residential units; the first 750 kilowatt hours of residentietteicity per month; fuel oil or coal, the
by-products from the burning of which become an ingredient or component pangdfléapersonal
property for later sale; packaging materials; certain pericjisales to incorporated hospitals, licensed
and incorporated non-profit nursing homes, licensed and incorporated non-profinbaandi facilities,
medical research facilities, schools, regularly organized churchdssimilar institutions; water
pollution and air pollution control facilities certified by the $ta€ommissioner of Environmental
Protection; and ninety-five percent (95%) of the sale price dfi@lland electricity purchased for use at
a manufacturing facility.

Corporate Income Tax. An income tax is imposed upon the Maine net incbtagable
corporations at progressive rates from 3.5% on Maine net income nds2%,600 to 8.93% on Maine
net income in excess of $250,000. The tax computed using Maine net incdrea epportioned to
Maine. Maine net income is derived from taxable income of the taxpagkr the laws of the United
States, adjusted by certain modifications, including additions foriceda deductions, certain net
operating losses and certain depreciation deductions, and subtractiamsofoe iexempt by law from
taxation by the State, certain apportionable dividend income and certain neihgdesses.

Certain Motor Fuel Taxes. An excise tax is imposed at the rate of $0.300 per gallon oh interna
combustion engine fuel (gasoline) sold or used within the State. An ergisis imposed on all
suppliers of special fuel sold and on all users of special fuelingbe State at the rate of $0.312 per
gallon of distillate. Low-energy fuel such as liquefied natural gas, peppaethane and butane is taxed
at a rate based on the energy content of each fuel as compayasbtime. Special fuels include all
combustible gases and liquids used in an internal combustion engine, ertegpibfect to the gasoline
tax. Indexing of motor fuel excise tax rates was repealed effective July 1, 2013.

Estate Tax. 2011 Chapter 380 reformed the estate tax with réspeetedents dying after
December 31, 2012. The exclusion amount increases from $1,000,000 to $2,000,000. Also beginning
in 2013, a progressive rate structure applies: 8% on estate value of nmo$2 0@0,000 but less than or
eqgual to $5,000,000; 10% on estate value of more than $5,000,000 but less than or%&;080t000;

12% on estate value of more than $8,000,000.

Pursuant to the Constitution of the State, all revenues derived &esy éxcises and license
taxes relating to registration, operation and use of vehicles on publicayghand to fuels used for
propulsion of such vehicles shall be expended solely for the cost of adatiarststate enforcement of
traffic laws, statutory refunds and adjustments, and the cost of wctitt; reconstruction, maintenance
and repair of public highways and bridges and for the payment of interegtiacigal on bonds issued
for, and the payment of obligations incurred in, the construction and recaiostrat highways and
bridges. Such funds may not be diverted for any other purpose.

Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement

The State entered into the tobacco master settlement agreginec”Settlement Agreement”) on
November 23, 1998 with certain tobacco manufacturers to settle #hes State brought against those
tobacco manufacturers. The State is one of forty-six statediandJ.S. territories (the “Settling
States”) that executed the Settlement Agreement with #meifacturers. The lawsuit included a variety
of claims, including claims to recover smoking related Medicaitsqgise “Claims”). Pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, the manufacturers who have joined thenSattl Agreement (“Participating
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Manufacturers”) have agreed to make certain annual paymenh&r¢hallocated among all the Settling
States.

Certain initial and annual payments by the Participating Manufasttirat were allocated to the
State pursuant to the Settlement Agreement commenced DecEd88er The initial payments ended in
2003 and the annual payments are expected to continue in perpetuity.

The State expects to expend the annual payments received fromtibip&erg Manufacturers
for smoking prevention, cessation and control activities, prenatal and youdrestslcare, child care
for children up to 15 years of age, health care for children and ad@$syiption drugs for adults who
are elderly or disabled, dental and oral health care to low-inconsensewho lack adequate dental
coverage, substance abuse prevention and treatment and comprehensivehsahboprograms,
pursuant to 22 MRSA §1511(6).

In addition, certain payments (the “Strategic Contribution Paymenmnts’e made by the
Participating Manufacturers and allocated among certain SettlaigsSin recognition of strategic
contributions made by specific Settling States, including Mainé¢hdonegotiation of the Settlement
Agreement were established pursuant to the Settlement Agmeenide Strategic Contribution
Payments began in 2008 and will be made annually ending in 2017.

Annual payments received by the State pursuant to the Settlemeetegtehave ranged from
approximately $63,000,000 in fiscal year 2000 to approximately $46,000,000 in fiac20@5. The
State received $56,392,902.34 in fiscal year3fiirsuant to the Settlement Agreement.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Participating Manufactaegrslispute annual payment
amounts. Participating Manufacturers have disputed certain amounglofyear’'s payment since
2003. The predominant dispute, though not the only dispute, is that certaimpBingcManufacturers
have claimed that they are entitled to a downward adjustmem iamhount they owe because of loss of
market share to non-participating manufacturers. If the Parimgpddanufacturers prevail on this
claim against the State, the amount the State is entitleat ®ath disputed year would decrease. The
State is involved in arbitration, pursuant to the Settlement Agregrto obtain a determination that it
diligently enforced its “qualifying statute,” in keeping with themerof the Settlement Agreement, and
that accordingly Maine is entitled to the full amount of its annugingat without a reduction for the
market share loss to non-participating manufacturers. Other Seftiaigs are involved in similar
arbitration proceedings seeking a determination of the amount to wigghate entitled for previous
years’ tobacco settlement payments to their states.

Maine prevailed in the arbitration proceeding that determinduadt diligently enforced its
gualifying statute as the issue related to Maine’s 2003 paymentrésikh of that favorable decision,
the State determined that it was entitled to an additional @atyof $5,569,152.87, which amount was
paid to the State in April, 2014. The State has received its 2014 payniecth may have included
additional funds as a result of a miscalculation by the Independent AlRit@. PwC is continuing to
modify its calculations, and the State’s payment may be subject to subsequent adgustme

State Investment Pool

As described above under the heading “Governmental Organization — ExeBrdiveh —
Treasurer of State,” when there is money in the State Tred#lsaryis not needed to meet current
obligations, the Treasurer of State may, with the concurrence of tdte ESontroller or the
Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Services and witlctimsent of the Governor, invest
those amounts in certain instruments authorized by State law.Tr€asurer of State maintains the
records of the investments of the State through the State invegtawntThe average daily balance of
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the State investment pool was $509,220,614.60 in fiscal year 2013. The baldrecState investment
pool as of April 30, 2014 was approximately $679,000,000.

Collateralized bank accounts, repurchase agreements and dedibfaeposit collateralized by
U.S. Treasuries and Agencies and direct holdings in U.S. Treasurkesupahe cash pool portfolio.
On April 30, 2014, the weighted average final maturity of the pool was 182 days.

CERTAIN PUBLIC INSTRUMENTALITIES
Maine Governmental Facilities Authority

The Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (“MGFA”) is authedizto assist in financing the
acquisition, construction, improvement, reconstruction or equipping of, or cortratean addition or
additions to, structures designed for use as court facilitiestate offices and the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction or repair of equipment or othsonpérproperty, all of
which are rented to agencies of the State. MGFA was creatE@Bih and was known as the Maine
Court Facilities Authority until 1997 when its name was changed asdpitrposes were
broadened. Under current statutory limits, the MGFA may not isseerrises in excess of
$332,835,000 outstanding at any one time except for the issuance of revenuengefeulirities
authorized by the Act and provided that no less than $136,000,000 shall be éltocedert facilities
and provided further that no less than $85,000,000 shall be allocated to cpalefzcilities, no less
than $33,000,000 shall be allocated to a psychiatric facility in Augustipa less than $33,485,000
shall be allocated to capital repairs and improvements miugastate facilities. No securities may be
issued without the prior approval of the Legislature. Neither thefdith and credit nor the taxing
power of the State or of any political subdivision of the State tgelé to the payment of the principal
of, redemption premium, if any, or interest on MGFA’s bonds. MGFA has nogtgpower. As of
March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal amount of MGFA'’s bonds outstanding was $181,626@00. T
State has agreed, subject to appropriation, to make rental paymbatapplied to payment of MGFA’s
bonds. Debt service on MGFA'’s bonds for the State fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 is $26,296,845.

Finance Authority of Maine

The Finance Authority of Maine (“FAME”) was created in 1983 to un#éertaarious economic
development finance programs and to assume the responsibilities cdl saaaller state authorities.
FAME is currently authorized to insure repayment of commercialsl@ad to require the State to fund
its insurance obligations, from proceeds of bonds of the State orditioen sources, provided that
insurance obligations and bonds of the State issued to fund insurance obliglagilbmet exceed in the
aggregate at any one time outstanding the principal amount of $90,000,000 phddiaonal
$4,000,000 with respect to loans for eligible veterans. As of March 31, 2014, ancostanding
pursuant to these authorizations were $75,104,000 and $589,000 respectively. Sédldriagement
- Constitutional Debt Limit” herein. Since the creation of FAME 983, the Treasurer of State has not
been asked to issue bonds of the State to pay off defaulted loaredibyuFAME pursuant to these
authorizations.

In 1990, FAME was authorized to provide certain student financiatassesservices, including
continuation of a student loan insurance program meeting certain festguakments in order to secure
loans to students attending institutions of higher education. Pursuduns tuthorization, FAME has
entered into agreements with the United States Secretaryuniatiwh relating to federal, state and
private programs of low-interest insured loans to students in instisuof higher education. The
Constitution allows the Legislature to authorize the issuahbends in the amount of up to $4,000,000
to secure funds for loans to Maine students attending institutions of leidheation. As of March 31,
2014, the student loan insurance obligations of FAME were $572,441,000. See Maseglement -
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Constitutional Debt Limit” herein. Since 1977, the Treasurer ateStas not been asked to issue bonds
of the State to pay off defaulted loans insured pursuant to the bond issuanceaighaet forth in the
Constitution.

In addition, FAME may issue bonds and other obligations which shall not be a diabtliby of
any municipality, the State or any political subdivision thereof. Thatetagoverning FAME include
Capital Reserve Provisions. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate priaciymaint outstanding of
FAME's obligations undertaken pursuant to its Capital Reserve Rynsisvas $11,685,000 for waste
motor oil disposal site remediation projects and $26,358,000 for other projEeé State has not been
asked to restore FAME'’s Capital Reserve since the inceptiots @apital Reserve Provision. See
“Governmental Organization - Independent Authorities and Agencies” herein.

Maine State Housing Authority

The Maine State Housing Authority (“MSHA”) was created in 1969 to dakle various
programs related to housing. The bonds and other obligations of MSHA shédé reotdebt of any
municipality, the State or any political subdivision thereof and neitleeBtate nor any municipality nor
any political subdivision thereof shall be liable thereon. As ofchlaBl, 2014, MSHA had
$1,217,795,000 of housing bonds outstanding which require a capital reserve. The gtateteing
MSHA include Capital Reserve Provisions. The State has notdskea to restore MSHA’s Capital
Reserves since the inception of its Capital Reserve Provisiors. “Gvernmental Organization -
Independent Authorities and Agencies” herein. MSHA also has $44,135,000 of Besrgy, Housing
and Economic Recovery Bonds for a grand total of $1,261,930,000 outstanding.

MHSA is also authorized to insure repayment of mortgage loans on Ihdizsing and to
require the State to fund these insurance obligations, from procebdads of the State or from other
sources, provided that insurance obligations shall not exceed in the aggatgahy one time
outstanding the principal amount of $1,000,000. As of March 31, 2014, MSHA'’s Indian housing
mortgage insurance obligations were approximately $380,000. See “Fisqahgdmaent —
Constitutional Debt Limit” herein.

Maine Municipal Bond Bank

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank (“MMBB”) was created in 1972 to lend rmgaimecounties,
cities, towns, school administrative districts, community schoolricist and quasi-municipal
corporations to finance certain capital expenditures (the “Ofifir@agram”). Bonds and notes issued
by the MMBB shall not be in any way a debt or liability of the Statd shall not create any debt or
debts, liability or liabilities, on behalf of the State or be orstibute a pledge of the full faith and credit
of the State. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal amount EiMIBEB’s bonds outstanding
was $1,563,951,380 of which (a) $24,915,000 is attributable to loans to certain municipadiisist in
financing certain wastewater and drinking water treatmentitfasilpursuant to a revolving loan fund
program, (b) $82,360,000 is attributable to certain grant anticipation bonds psgkatyefrom annual
federal highway grants to the State, (c) $197,860,000 is attributable andeansportation revenue
bonds payable solely from certain State revenues, (d) $32,846,380 is fore@uadihool Construction
Bonds (e) $220,660,000 is attributable to certain liquor revenue bonds paylahldrem certain State
revenues and (f) substantially all of the balance is attributaldlee Original Program. The MMBB is
expected to close its $19,250,000 2014 Series A Bonds on May 22, 2014. Such bonds will be
attributable to loans to certain municipalities. The statutes rgimge the MMBB include Capital
Reserve Provisions. The State has not been asked to restdi®BR’'s Capital Reserves since the
inception of its Capital Reserve Provisions. See “Governmengan@mation — Independent Authorities
and Agencies” herein.
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Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority

The Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority (‘tMEHFA”) was created in
1971 to provide the means to expand, enlarge and establish health care, hospitglhaos and other
related facilities and to assist institutions of higher educatiothe State to provide facilities and
structures. Bonds and notes issued by MHHEFA do not constituteade engy debt or debts, liability
or liabilities, on behalf of the State or any political subdivislwréof other than MHHEFA or a loan of
credit of the State or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State or of anyapeliticlivision other than
MHHEFA. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal amount of MHH&EBANds outstanding
was $1,034,975,000. The statutes governing MHHEFA include a Capital ResavrigioR. The State
has not been asked to restore MHHEFA's Capital Reserve siadaddption of its Capital Reserve
Provision. See “Governmental Organization - Independent Authorities and Agemeiest.

Maine Educational Loan Authority

The Maine Educational Loan Authority (“MELA”) was established in 1988carry out
programs making financial and other assistance available to students andréres fpafinance costs of
attendance at institutions of higher education. Bonds of MELA do notittbasir create any debt or
debts, liability or liabilities, on behalf of the State or of any palltsubdivision of the State, other than
MELA, or a loan of the credit of the State or a pledge of #in fand credit of the State or of any
political subdivision, other than MELA. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregateipai amount of
MELA's bonds outstanding was $130,310,000. The statutes governing MELA include a Capital Reserve
Provision. The State has not been asked to restore MELA's CReisalrve since the inception of its
Capital Reserve Provision. See “Governmental Organization - IndegeAdehorities and Agencies”
herein.

Loring Development Authority

Loring Development Authority (“LDA”) was established in 1993 tauice and manage the
former Loring Air Force Base in northern Maine. Bonds of LDA angpke solely from the income,
proceeds, revenues and funds of LDA and do not constitute an indebtednessheithieaning of any
constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restrictiohs of March 31, 2014, LDA had not issued any
bonds. The statutes governing LDA include a Capital Reserve Provisgee “Governmental
Organization - Independent Authorities and Agencies” herein.

University of Maine System

The University of Maine System (the “University System”) ineésidhe University of Maine,
established in 1865, and all other public institutions of higher educatidaiime, except the Maine
Maritime Academy and the seven colleges of the Maine Communitggeéabystem. Money borrowed
by the University System and evidences of indebtedness issued by the ityni8gstem do not
constitute any debt or liability of the State or of any municipalit political subdivision of the State,
but shall be payable solely from the revenues of the University Systany project for which they are
issued. As of March 31, 2014, the aggregate principal amount of the UtyivBysitem’s bonds
outstanding was $153,310,000.

Maine Turnpike Authority

The Maine Turnpike Authority (“MTA”) was created in 1941 and has cood and operates
and maintains a turnpike approximately 109 miles long between York and tAugBends issued by
MTA shall not be deemed to be a debt of the State, but such bonldbesipalyable exclusively from
tolls. The bonds shall not directly or indirectly or contingently obligla¢eState to levy or pledge any
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form of taxation whatever therefor or to make any appropriation for §yrague thereof. As of March
31, 2014, the aggregate principal amount of MTA’s bonds outstanding was $423,135,000.

Maine Public Utility Financing Bank

The Maine Public Utility Financing Bank (“MPUFB”) was created1i981 to lend money to
public utilities in the State. Bonds and notes issued by MPUFB do nottatsstidebt or liability of the
State or of any municipality therein or any political subdivision ther@of pledge of the faith and
credit of the State or of any such municipality or political subdivisi&s. of March 31, 2014, there
were no outstanding bonds of MPUFB.

Maine Port Authority

The Maine Port Authority (“MPA”) was established in 1945 and is awbdrito acquire,
construct and operate any kind of port terminal facility withinStete and to acquire and construct any
railroad facility within the State. Bonds of MPA do not constiauidebt of the State, or of any agency
or political subdivision thereof, but are payable solely from the revesfud®A, and neither the faith
nor credit nor taxing power of the State, or any political subdivigieretf, is pledged to the payment
of MPA’s bonds. As of March 31, 2014, there were no outstanding bonds of MPA.

LITIGATION

The State is a party to nhumerous lawsuits. Such lawsuits inaktass to recover monetary
damages from the State, disputes over individual or corporate inese® tisputes over sales or use
taxes, and actions to alter the regulations or administrative qggaaif the State in such manner as to
cause additional costs to the State. The State is not awarey gdending or threatened litigation or
claim against the State, the outcome of which will have a rahtadverse effect on the financial
condition of the State. The matters set forth under the headingdiridovernment — Litigation” in
Note 15 Commitments and Contingencies to the Financial Statemgatthed as Exhibit B hereto
should be noted.

The Maine Association of Retirees, now joined by the Maine Statddyses Association, the
Maine Education Association and the Maine State Troopers Assogiatied the Board of Trustees of
the Maine Public Employees Retirement System in federal coullerngiag the constitutionality of
legislation that changes the cost of living adjustments (“COLA”) for retirébe Plaintiffs seek to have
that portion of the legislation that reduces the COLA, determined null and void. No daragesght,
but attorney fees and costs are requested. If the Plaprtéfsil on all counts, the State will have to
make provision to retroactively reinstate COLA payments to tlor f@vel. Such provision may have
an impact on the System’s unfunded actuarial liability. To avoigpgearance of conflict, the Office
of the Attorney General has contracted outside counsel to defend ttte Baarent federal case law is
such that predicting the outcome of this case cannot be done with ang degoeuracy. More details
regarding the challenged legislation and the pending lawsuit caoubpe in the section “Recent
Legislative Changes Affecting Benefits Levels”. The U. S. Qis@ourt granted MainePERS motion
for summary judgment and motion to dismiss. The Plaintiffs fileg@peal with the U. S. Appeals
Court. The matter has been fully briefed and argued and the parties await the decisaoaftt

In fiscal year 2011, the Legislature enacted certain changes tdateés Setirement plan and
related benefits. One of the changes requires State employees whori@tite their normal retirement
age to pay 100% of their retiree health insurance premiums untiteheit normal retirement age. A
claimant has alleged that the requirement to pay 100% of theerdtgalth insurance premium
discriminates on the basis of age. The claim is in the eadyes of administrative process and limited
facts are available. If a court were to conclude thattttete is discriminatory, the State may have to
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reestablish funding for early retiree health insurance premiunts lludget. It is uncertain whether this
claim may affect other possible claimants or benefits. Accornglirige probability and extent of the
budgetary impact, if any, are unknown.

In IMS Health v. Schneider, plaintiffs prevailed on the merits lavesuit that challenged the
constitutionality of a Maine statute. The case was resdiyetie payment of less than $1 million in
attorney fees.

There is pending arbitration regarding the “diligent enforcement” hef 1998 Tobacco
Settlement Agreement, by which 46 states and territories sétibdd claims against major tobacco
companies in return for annual payments of funds in perpetuity. Thisrrdatte not contemplate a
“liability” of the State, but it may result in substantiak$ of revenue. The Agreement required the
states to “diligently enforce” certain tobacco laws against tmbaompanies that did not enter into the
Agreement. If the states or some of them did not “diligently eefathose laws, the settling tobacco
companies could seek to decrease the amounts they paid through bindiradiarbit The settling
companies filed such an arbitration for the year 2003, but the caseesa@ved in favor of the State.
The companies and the states are now in the preliminary stagespafing for an arbitration for the
year 2004. If Maine loses the arbitration, the future payments to Mainkl be diminished by as much
as $47,824,637.78 (the amount Maine received in 2004). It is unlikely thdeaisyon would issue
within the next 18 months. For more details regarding the Settlehggaément and this dispute, see
the section “Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement”.

Another matter may result in reduction of future payments to Mainke dispute involves
whether Maine, as part of its Temporary Assistance for Neadylies Program (TANF), met its two-
parent work participation rate for the federal fiscal year 200FAe U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services has assessed a penalty against Maine of justlongltion. The State entered into
and has been proceeding under a corrective action plan that requiredanoceplith federal
requirements by the end of fiscal year 2012. The State has mebnth@iance date. There is yet no
indication that the U. S. Department of Health and Human Servidesbate or eliminate the penalty.
The State is cautiously optimistic that such abatement or elimination vidttheoming.

The U. S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service $FNseeked to recoup
overpayments by the Maine Department of Health and Human Seniizidsi$”) to recipients of food
supplement benefits in the amount of $2.8 million. FNS asserted HidSDmay not recoup these
overpayments from recipients. The State agreed to invest $2i8nniil activities to improve SNAP
(Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program ) recipient integrity in tite.St

In John F. Murphy Homes v. State of Maine, a provider of Maine Caresgng claiming that
the State failed to pay it $7.5 million for services it provided betw2001 and 2011. It also claims that
the State has improperly received $15.7 million in federal paymentisefse services. This litigation is
at its earliest stages and, therefore, its outcome is uncertain at this time

Aldrich v. LePage, is a class action suit filed on behalf of devedopaily disabled adults on the
waiting list for certain home- and community-based services wanagrams has seeking an expansion
of services. The suit was filed under Medicaid law, the Amesicgith Disabilities Act, and various
state laws. The state settled the Medicaid portion of thensiitty 2013, and the case was stayed until
April 2014 to allow implementation of the settlement and assessshéme remaining claims. The suit
is now active, with a trial expected in late 2014 or early 2015. Thiepare exploring settlement of
the remaining claims. Given the complexity of the Americarik Disabilities Act claim, it is difficult
to assess the probability of success. Were plaintiffs succeas@burt could order injunctive relief
costing the State over $6 million, plus attorney’s fees.
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APPENDIX B
STATE OF MAINE
OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR
66 STATE HOUSE STATION
AUGUSTA, MAINE 043330066

TEL: (207) 624-6230
FAX: (207) 624-6273

MARY GINGROW-SHAW, CPA
DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR
MICHAEL J. POULIN, ClA
DIRECTOR OF AUDIT and ADMINISTRATION

POLA A. BUCKLEY, CPA, CISA
STATE AUDITOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Justin L. Alfond, President of the Senate and
the Honorable Mark W. Eves, Speaker of the House of Representatives

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, which
collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. ,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the following component units: Child Development Services, Connect
ME Authority, Efficiency Maine Trust, Finance Authority of Maine, Loring Development Authority,
Maine Community College System, Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Maine
Educational Loan Authority, Maine Governmental Facilities Authority, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, Maine Maritime Academy, Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Port
Authority, Maine Public Employees Retirement System, Maine State Housing Authority, Maine
Technology Institute, Maine Turnpike Authority, Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority, Northern
New England Passenger Rail Authority, Small Enterprise Growth Fund, and the University of Maine

. System. These financial statements reflect 100% of the assets and net position of the Aggregate
Discretely Presented Component Units and 95% of assets and 96% of net position/fund balance of the
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information. These statements were audited by other auditors whose reports
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for these entities,
are based on the reports of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial

~ audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial statements of the
Maine Educational Loan Authority, the Maine Technology Institute, Northern New England Passenger
Rail Authority and the Small Enterprise Growth Fund were not audited in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Maine, as of June 30, 2013, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required S‘ upplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5-16, Budgetary Comparison information, State Retirement Plan and
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans and Information about Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the
Modified Approach on pages 108-119, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consist of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State of Maine’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements on pages 122-173 are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
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of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
described above, and the report of other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our report on our consideration of the State’s
internal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters will be issued under separate cover, The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of our audit.

Pola A. Buckley, CPA, CISA
State Auditor
Office of the State Auditor

December 23, 2013



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the State of Maine’s annual financial report ptesthe State’s discussion and analysis of
financial performance during the year ended June 30, 2013. Please ireadnjunction with the transmittal
letter at the front of this report and with the State’s financial statemdmitd) ¥ollow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

[l The State’s net position increased by 6.7 percent from the previaa fisar. Net position of
Governmental Activities increased by $388.5 million, while net positioBudiness-Type Activities
decreased by $70.1 million. The State’s assets exceeded iitidsmbiy $5.1 billion at the close of fiscal
year 2013. Component units reported net position of $2.8 billion, an incre& .6f million (2.9
percent) from the previous year.

Fund level:

[0 At the end of the fiscal year, the State’s governmental funds egpooimbined ending fund balances of
$244.6 million, a increase of $244 thousand from the previous year. The GEunedd total fund
balance was a negative $144.4 million, an improvement of $205.6 million froprakimus year. The
Highway Fund total fund balance was $34.3 million, a decline of $1.8 million from the prior year.

[1 The proprietary funds reported net position at year end of $574.6 millionreadecof $57.7 million
from the previous year. This decrease is due to several fa@argicrease in the Alcoholic Beverages
Fund of $12.5 million, an increase in the Employment Security Fund of $25.5 millitset by a
decrease in the Transit, Aviation & Rail Transportation Fund of $103.4 million.

Long-term Debt:
[0 The State’s liability for general obligation bonds decreased by $103i8nnduring the fiscal year,
which represents the difference between new issuances and pagimeuatstanding debt. During the
year, the State did not issue any new bonds and made principal payments of $102.3 million.

Additional information regarding the government-wide, fund level, and long-tiefoh activities can be found
beginning on page 8.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State of Maiasis financial statements, which are
comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial staten2@ritind financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains satpptementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the Stateftasle using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement &fobiéibn presents all of the State’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reportedeiposition. Over time, increases and decreases in net
position are an indicator of whether the financial position is improving or detemirati

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the’Staet position changed during the most

recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reportexb@s as the underlying events giving rise to the
change occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. fotereesvenues and expenses are reported in
these statements for some items that will only result ih laws in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused leave).



Both government-wide statements report three activities:

Governmental activities - Most basic services, such as health and human services, educatiomnmgmiel
support and operations, justice and protection, and transportation are inclutliexiciategory. The Legislature,
Judiciary and the general operations of the Executive departmentwitfalh the Governmental Activities.
Income taxes, sales and use taxes, and State and federal grants finance moshaifviiese

Business-type activities - The State charges fees to customers to help cover all oraiht® costs of certain
services it provides. Operating costs not covered by customerréesstmsidized by the General Fund. Lottery
tickets, transportation services, and the State’s unemployment esatipa services are examples of business-
type activities.

Component units - Although legally separate, component units are important becausgtatee is financially
accountable for these entities. The State has “blended” twparmnt units, the Maine Governmental Facilities
Authority (MGFA) and Child Development Services (CDS) with Govesntal Activities as described above.
Maine reports 18 other component units (7 major and 11 non-major) asalispreisented component units of
the State, and one component unit is reported with the State’s fidfieiats. Complete financial statements of
the individual component units may be obtained directly from thgierttye administrative offices as shown in
Note 1 A to the financial statements.

Government-wide statements are reported utilizing an economic cesomeasurement focus and full accrual
basis of accounting. The following summarizes the impact dréimsition from modified accrual to full accrual
accounting:

[ Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported ammeweal fund statements but are
included on government-wide statements.

[0 Certain tax revenues that are earned, but not available, are repsrtedenues in the Governmental
Activities, but are reported as deferred revenue on the governmental fund statements.

[0 Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for curreiold pexpenditures are deferred in
governmental fund statements, but not deferred on the government-wide statements.

[0 Internal service funds are reported as Governmental Activitiegepotted as proprietary funds in the
fund financial statements.

[0 Governmental fund long-term liabilities, such as certificates ofiggzation, pension obligations,
compensated absences, bonds and notes payable, and others appeaties tialyilin the government-
wide statements.

[0 Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the governrntenstatements, but is recorded as
expenditures on the governmental fund statements.

[0 Proceeds from bonds, notes and other long-term financing arrangementsirrdsaliilities on the
government-wide statements, but are recorded as other financing soar¢be governmental fund
statements.

[0 Net position balances are allocated as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets are capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by

outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt attributed to the aoguisiistruction or
improvement of those assets



Restricted Net Position are those with constraints placed on the use by external sooredgofs,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governments) or imhpbgelaw through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resousdafitidis,
and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet any of the above restrictions.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information dbe#tate’s most significant funds. Funds
are fiscal and accounting entities with self-balancing setsafumts that the State uses to keep track of specific
revenue sources and spending for particular purposes. The State’s feirdigided into three categories —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — and use different measurement fanddssses of accounting.

Governmental funds. Most of the basic services are included in governmental funds, waiatrally focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left meénedhat are available for future
spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed shortiegrrithat helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be Bp¢he near future to finance the programs of the
State. The governmental fund statements focus primarily on the sousess and balance of current financial
resources and often have a budgetary orientation. These funds aredregortea flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of agroBcause this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-widenstete a separate reconciliation provides
additional information that explains the relationship (or differenbe$yveen them. The governmental funds
consist of the General Fund, special revenue, capital projects, and permanent funds.

Proprietary funds. When the State charges customers for the services it prowidether to outside customers

or to other agencies within the State, these services are jengparted in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service) apply the accrual basis of actpuritlized by private sector businesses.
Enterprise funds report activities that provide supplies and setweitks general public. An example is the State
Lottery Fund. Internal service funds report activities that provigelges and services to the State’s other
programs and activities — such as the State’s Postal, Printing and Supply fendal service funds are reported

as Governmental Activities on the government-wide statements.

Fiduciary funds: The State is the trustee or fiduciary for assets that b&boothers. The State is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended pudpogésose to whom the
assets belong. These funds include pension and other employee bengfadnisiistered by the Maine Public
Employees Retirement System, a component unit, private-purpose @angtagency funds. Fiduciary funds are
reported using the accrual basis of accounting. The State exthedesactivities from the government-wide
financial statements because these assets are restnigtepose and do not represent discretionary assets of the
State to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional informatibistbasential to a full understanding of the
data provided in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information includes budgetary comparison sshédulthe General Fund and
major special revenue funds. Also included are notes and a redoycibé fund balance from the budgetary
basis to fund balance determined according to generally acceptedntieg principles. This section also
includes schedules of funding progress for certain pension and other posy#ee benefit trust funds and
condition and maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State’s infaastruct
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statesméort non-major governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. These funds are added together, by fundngp®eaented in single columns
in the basic financial statements. Budgetary comparison schedusggebygy are also included for the general
fund, the highway fund, federal funds, and other special revenue fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS AWHOLE

The State's net position increased by 6.7 percent to $5.1 billion at June 30, 2013, as detailed i T aloid
A-2.

Table A- 1: Condensed Statement of Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Gowver nmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current and other
noncurrent assets $ 1937953 $ 1911603 $ 362,402 3%0,609 $ 2,300,355 $ 2,262,212
Capital assets 5,418,957 5,085,498 55,340 152,763 5,474,297 5,238,261
Total Assets 7,356,910 6,997,101 417,742 3,802 7,774,652 7,500,478
Current liabilities 1,444,030 1,424,285 33,778 37,185 1,477,808 1,461,4f0
Long-term liabilities 1,232,666 1,287 4,981 17,117 1,887 1,298,254
Total Liabilities 2,676,696 2,705,422 38,759 54,302 2,715,455 2,759,72p
Net position (deficit):
Net investment in
capital assets 4,740,708 4,408,377 55,340 152,763 4,796,048 4,561,140
Restricted 404,218 398,122 * 327, 295,632 725,330 B98,*
Unrestricted (deficit) (464,712) (514,820) * 531 675 (462,181) 4345) 4
Total Net Position $ 4,680,214 $4,291,679 $ 378983 449070 $5059,197 _ $4,740,749
* Amounts reported as restricted and unrestrictetewestated. Total net position did not change.

Changes in Net Position

The State's fiscal year 2013 revenues totaled $7.8 billion. (See Adl)le Taxes and operating grants and
contributions accounted for most of the State's revenue by contributing 4%@&ntpend 39.1 percent,
respectively, of every dollar raised. The remainder came frongehdor services and other miscellaneous
sources.

The total cost of all programs and services totaled $7.5 billionhryear 2013. (See Table A-2) These
expenses are predominantly (70.1 percent) related to health & humaresamit education activities. The
State's governmental support & operations activities accounted forreghpef total costs. Total net position
increased by $318.4 million.



Table A-2 -Changes in Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Gowernmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Rewvenues
Program Revenues:
Chages for Services $ 508039 $ 488,832 $ 543,926 $ 540,924 $ 1,051,965 $ 1,029,756
Operating Grants/Contributions 3,047,714 3,160,241 7,032 7,823 3,054,746 3,168,064
General Revenues:
Taxes 3,540,712 3,472,588 - - 3,540,712 3,472,588
Othe 161,340 130,091 - - 161,340 130,091
Total Revenues 7,257,805 7,251,752 550,958 548,747 7,808,763 7,800,499
Expenses
Governmental Activities:
Governmental Saport 428,011 456,622 428,011 456,622
Education 1,581,556 1,610,095 1,581,556 1,610,095
Health & Human Services 3,657,573 3,750,402 3,657,573 3,750,402
Justice & Protection 401,656 401,740 401,656 401,740
Trangortation Safet 384,852 376,689 384,852 376,689
Othe 516,398 591,281 516,398 591,281
Interest 46,541 45,551 46,541 45,551
Business-Vpe Activities:
Enmployment Secunt 169,334 187,703 169,334 187,703
Lottery 176,094 176,837 176,094 176,837
Military Equip. Maint. 36,971 35,058 36,971 35,058
Dirigo Health 56,229 56,702 56,229 56,702
Othe 19,213 28,430 19,213 28,430
Total Expenses 7,016,587 7,232,380 457,841 484,730 7,474,428 7,717,110
Excess (Deficiency) before
Special Items and Transfers 241,218 19,372 93117 64,017 334,335 83,389
Special ltems 92,401 - (108,288) - (15,887) -
Transfers 54,916 54,968 (54,916) (54,968) - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 388,535 74,340 (70,087) 9,049 318,448 83,389
Net Position, beginning of year 4,291,679 4,217,339 449,070 440,021 4,740,749 4,657,360

Ending Net Position $

4,680,214 $ 4,291,679 $ 378,983 $ 449,0¢

$ 5,059,197 $ 4,740,749

Governmental Activities

Revenues for the State's Governmental Activities totaled $7.3 billiole total expenses equaled $7.0 billion.
The increase in net position for Governmental Activities was $388lmin 2013, much of which was the
result of transfers from the State’s Business-Type Activitissudised below. Program revenues were insufficient
to cover program expenses, therefore, the net program expenses of thesmguotad activities were supported
by general revenues, mainly taxes. Tax revenue increased by $68.1 froftiothe prior year, primarily in the
Individual Income and Sales and Use Tax lines. Net expenses supporteak bgvenue decreased by
approximately $122.5 million, primarily in the Health and Human Servioess, alue to program changes in an
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effort to nenage costs Additionally, the State’8Business-Tpe Activitiestransferred $47.3 million (net) to the
Governmatal Activities, which irtluded statudrily required profit trarefers, capitalcontributins, and the
transfer ofbalances ftm the Trand, Aviation and Rail TnsportationEnterprise fend. Theseransfers are
discusseduther on pag 11.

The usersof the States programsfinanced $88.0 million of the cost. The federh and Stategovernments
subsidizectertain proggms with grats and contbutions of &.0 billion. $2.7 billion of the State'set costs were
financed ly taxes and ther miscellaeous reveng

Table A-3:Total Soures of Revenes for Govenmental Actvities for Fis@l Year 2013
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Other 2%
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Table A-4: Total Expenses foGGovernmerdl Activities for Fiscal Yar 2013
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the State's Business-Type Activities totaled $550i@nmvhile expenses totaled $457.8 million.
However, due to the conversion of the Transit, Aviation and Rail Transpaortanterprise Fund to an Other
Special Revenue Fund and the disposal of assets and transfer oéddtaaling $103.6 million (see Note 17),
the net position for Business-Type Activities decreased by $70.1 million in 2013.

Table A-5 presents the cost of State Business-Type Activitieployment security, alcoholic beverages, lottery,
military equipment maintenance, Dirigo Health and other. The &fteshows each activity's net cost (total cost
less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid prdeidspecific programs). The net cost
shows the financial burden placed on the State's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table A-5:Net Cost of Business-Type Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Cost Net (Cost) Revenue
Category 2013 2012 2013 2012
Employment Secunit $ 169,334 $ 187,703 $ 26,531 $(3,235
Alcoholic Beverges - - 533 12,532
Lottery 176,094 176,837 53,471 54,178
Military Equip. Maint. 36,971 35,058 (1,157 46
Dirigo Health 56,229 56,702 9,225 13,594
Other 19,213 28,430 (7,489 (13,099
Totd $ 457,841 $ 484,730 $ 93,117 $64,017

The cost of all Business-Type Activities this year was $457 Bomil The users of the State's programs financed
most of the cost. The State's net revenue from Business-Typatiéetwas $93.1 million, with the Lottery
making up $53.5 million of the total. The State’s Business-Type Activiaasferred $147.3 million (net) to the
Governmental Activities, which included statutorily required profihgfars of $53.5 million and the transfer of
balances totaling $92.4 million from the Transit, Aviation and Rail Trartation Enterprise Fund (see Note 17).

Additionally, the Governmental Activities contributed $7.3 million to purehzapital assets that are recorded in
the Business-Type activities.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE'S FUNDS

Table A-6 Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fund 2013 2012 Change
General $ (144,375) $ (349,935) $ 205,560
Highway 34,324 36,109 (1,785)
Federal 24,751 15,128 9,623
Other Special Revenue 247,223 443,250 (196,027)
Other Governmental 82,713 99,840 (17,127)
Total $ 244,636 $ 244,392 $ 244

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the State’s governinfemids reported combined ending fund balances
of $244.6 million, an increase of $244 thousand in comparison with the prior @éahis total amount, $22.7
million (9.3 percent) is classified as non-spendable, either dueftoritsor legal constraints, and $505.6 million
(206.7 percent) is restricted for specific programs by externalre@rist constitutional provisions, or contractual
obligations. Unspent bond proceeds, revenue restricted for transportation, nestumeces or other programs are
included in restricted fund balance. At the end of the currentl fy&za, the unassigned fund balance of the
General Fund was a deficit of $151.3 million, an improvement of $204.6 million.

General Fund revenues and other sources surpassed General Fund expamditotbéer uses resulting in an
increase in the fund balance by $205.6 million. Revenues and other sourgcesGaneral Fund increased by
approximately $128.1 million (3.88 percent) which is mainly attributedrtancrease in tax revenue ($87.0
million from Individual Income and Sales and Use Taxes) and an s&ramtransfers in from other funds ($47.2
million). General Fund expenditures and other financing uses decrea$&8hy million (5.6 percent). This is
due, primarily, to a decrease in accrued expenditures for health and beiwviaes. Prior to fiscal year 2013, the
State’s share of the accrual related to the settlemehe@tate’s hospital debt was recorded in the General Fund.
In fiscal year 2013 the State’s share was recorded in both theaGEnad ($12.4 million) and the Other Special
Revenue Fund ($183.5 million) to reflect the payment of the debt that occurred in fiscz20yéar

The fund balance of the Highway Fund decreased only $1.8 million froal fisar 2012, due mainly to the
Highway Fund’'s reimbursement of approximately $12.3 million from the raédeund for prior period
expenditures that were ultimately approved for federal funding.

Budgetary Highlights

For the 2013 fiscal year, the final legally adopted budgeted expendituréee fGeneral Fund amounted to $3.1
billion, an increase of about $154.8 million from the original legally adopted budgepproximately $3.0
billion. Actual expenditures on a budgetary basis amounted to approximately ri##h less than those
authorized in the final budget. After deducting the encumbered obligations and other cenisitrat will come
due in fiscal year 2014, including the budgeted starting balance for FisaaP013, there were funds remaining
of $57.9 million to distribute in Fiscal Year 2013. Actual revenuegeaded final budget forecasts by $57.7
million. As a part of the final budget adjustment for Fiscal Y2&3, the Legislature approved net transfers of
$27 million from the State’s Budget Stabilization Fund to unappropriatgdusur In addition, the year-end
cascade transferred $42.1 million to the Budget Stabilization Fund.edhtsarnings along with the legislatively
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and statutorily approved transfers increased the balance in thed-666.7 million as of June 30, 2013. This
item is further explained in Note 2 of Notes to the Financial Statements.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

By the end of fiscal year 2013, the State had roughly $5.5 billion in a broad raragstaf @assets, including land,
infrastructure, improvements, buildings, equipment, vehicles and intangibleggDiscal year 2013, the State
acquired or constructed more than $352.3 million of capital assetsmdstesignificant impact on capital assets
during the year resulted from continued construction and rehabilitation db raad bridges, and major
construction and renovation of State-owned facilities. More detimfedmation about the State's capital assets
and significant construction commitments is presented in Notes 8 and 15 to theafis@tiements.

Table A-7 -Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Land $ 571,268 $ 497,893 $ 7292 ¢ 58888 $ 578560 $ 556,781
Buildings 660,538 626,202 4,395 9,449 664,933 635,651
Equipment 265,956 272,567 36,339 80,892 302,295 353,459
Improvements 52,251 20,843 48,767 74,889 101,018 95,732
Software 72,551 41,789 - - 72,551 41,789
Infrastructure 4,212,934 4,018,966 - - 4,212,934,018,966
Construction in Progress 68,346 48,473 1,138 18,555 69,484 67,028
Total Capital Assets 5,903,844 5,526,733 97,931 242,673 6,001,775 5,769,406
Accumulated Depreciation 484,887 441,235 42,591 89,910 527,478 531,145
Capital Assets, net $ 5,418,957 $ 5,085,498 $ 55340 $ 152,763 $ 5,474,297 $ 5,238,261

Modified Approach for Infrastructure

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted aratitemprocess for recording depreciation
expense on selected infrastructure assets — highways and bridges. Under thivalteetiaod, referred to as the
modified approach, the State expenses certain maintenance and pimseceats and does not report
depreciation expense. Utilization of this approach requires #te ®t 1) maintain an asset management system
that includes an up-to-date inventory of infrastructure assets; )ripexdondition assessments that use a
measurement scale and document that the infrastructure asséting preserved at or above the condition level
established; and 3) estimate the annual amounts that must be exgepaEtive and maintain the infrastructure
at the condition level established by the State. As long astdite rBeets these requirements, any additions or
improvements to infrastructure are capitalized and all other maintenance sexygtion costs are expensed.

Highways and bridges are included in the State’s infrastructurere Hne 8,822 highway miles or 17,953 lane
miles within the State. Bridges have a deck area of 11.8 méltjoare feet among 2,964 total bridges. The State
has established a policy to maintain its highways at an avepadéion assessment of 60. At June 30, 2013, the
actual average condition was 76. Its policy for bridges is an avewfjgency rating condition assessment of



60. The actual average condition for bridges was 78 at June 30, 2013rva&i@seosts for fiscal year 2013
totaled $105.2 million compared to estimated preservation costs of $97.8 million.

Transportation bonds, approved by referendum, are issued to fund improvements to hagtduaydges. Of the
amount authorized by Chapter 645, PL 2009, $1.1 million in General fund bonds was spent during FY2013.

Additional information on infrastructure assets can be found in Required Supplemerdganatidgn (RSI).
Long-Term Debt

The State Constitution authorizes general obligation long-term borrowitig 2{8 approval of the Legislature
and ratification by a majority of the voters, and general obligation-géront notes, of which the principal may
not exceed an amount greater than 10 percent of all moneys appropriatedizedtand allocated by the
Legislature from undedicated revenues to the General Fund and dedesatedes to the Highway Fund for that
fiscal year, or greater than 1 percent of the total valuation of the State of, Mhinkever is the lesser.

At year-end, the State had $1.4 billion in general obligation and otherdamgaebt outstanding. More detailed
information about the State's long-term liabilities is presented in Note hé fmancial statements.

Table A-8 -Outstanding Long-Term Debt
(Expressed in Thousands)

Gowver nmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

General Obligation

Bonds $ 369,725 $ 472,055 $ - $ - $ 369,725 $ 472,055
Other Long-Term

Obligations 1,035,226 1,001,843 5,147 4,726 1,040,373 1,006,56
Total $ 1,404,951 $ 1,473,898 $ 5,147 $1,726 $ 1,410,098 $ 1,478,624

During the year, the State reduced outstanding long-term obligations by $10#8 foilloutstanding general
obligation bonds and $629.3 million for other long-term debt. Also duringl fjgaa 2013, the State incurred
$663.1 million of additional long-term obligations.

Credit Ratings

The State’s credit was rated during fiscal year 2013 by Moody'stimgeService as Aa2 with a negative outlook
and by Standard & Poor’s as AA with a stable outlook.



FACTORS BEARING ON THE FUTURE OF STATE AND NEXT YEAR'S BUES' S

According to the November 2013 report of the Maine Consensus Economic gaoiggc@ommission (CEFC),
the Maine and U.S. economies continued on a slow and bumpy road to recovery sinast tineieting in March
2013. Maine’s economy continued to grow more slowly than the nation Bsla. wMaine’s Gross Domestic
Product for 2012 was slightly higher than 2011, with all of the growth comamg private industry. Personal
income in Maine grew 2.3 percent year-over-year in the first hal?@f3, while wage and salary income grew
2.1 percent over the same period. The Consumer Price Index was 1.5 piyleentn August 2013 than it was
in August 2012.

The price of crude oil increased 6.3 percent in the third quarter oft@Gk8und $110 per barrel. Heating oil and
gasoline prices remained relatively steady. EXxisting singleyahnuime sales in Maine were up 20 percent in
August 2013 compared to August 2012 and housing permits for the September 2012-AugusaP@k3eyé3
percent higher than the previous September-August period. The median hoenia fine Portland Metropolitan
Statistical Area (York, Cumberland, and Sagadahoc Counties) indr@sspercent year-over-year in the second
guarter of 2013. Mortgage delinquency rates remain well above preioaces®ls but below peak crisis levels.
The foreclosure rate in Maine increased in the second quarter of A@1femains well above pre-recession
levels.

The federal government experienced a 16-day shutdown earlier in Oendierg shortly before the debt ceiling
deadline was reached as Congress and the President came to agogeanshort-term solution. While there are
certainly negative economic effects from the shutdown, not leashichwis an erosion of consumer confidence,
the relatively short length of the shutdown averted any severe econorsérjuences. However, the next budget
and debt ceiling debate will occur soon, with the next deadlines in Jaandryebruary 2014. If a similar
scenario were to play out, economic conditions may deteriorate fupibging a risk to the forecast in the near
term. The CEFC will review and revise the forecast by FeprLia2014, and will consider the impacts of actual
policy decisions at the federal level at that time.

The 2013 wage and salary employment forecast was revised downwaylsy,slwhile the 2014-2017
employment forecast was revised downwards as well. Wage and selanye growth was revised downwards
for 2014-2017 based on the lower employment growth. Total personal incom@swagvised downwards for
2013-2015, reflecting the lower wage and salary income growth. Personal ifmo2@d6 was revised upwards
slightly and 2017 was left unchanged. Inflation, as measured by the ConBuiogtndex (CPI), was revised
downwards for 2013 and 2014 and upwards for 2015, 2016 and 2017.

General Fund revenue estimates were revised upward in fisc&2@®é& and fiscal year 2015. Upward revisions
to the Sales and Use Tax and the Individual Income Tax offset a dodvadjaistment to the Corporate Income
Tax to account for most of the net changes to the General Fund revenue forecast.

At June 30, 2013, the deficit in the State of Maine’s Unassigned Fuadd@aAccount in the General Fund has
decreased to $151.3 million (from a deficit unassigned balance of $355.8cfdryfear 2012). This decrease is
primarily due to a decrease in General Fund expenditures for healthuman services ($219.7 million) as
described on page 12.

There are several factors that adversely affect our GelRenal Balance Sheet that we should strive to improve
over the next several years. The primary factors that have a&gnifinpact on the State’s Financial Statements
compiled and issued in accordance with Generally Accepted Accountimaiples as applicable to governments
include such items as accruing tax revenues for budgetary purposes andrfoiaf statement purposes without
accruing the offsetting liabilities for budgetary purposes and the Beieahe demand for appropriations whose
balances carry from year to year which results in a lack fuoctsiiag to the Unassigned Fund Balance of the
General Fund. This combined with the lack of significant reserves weakens thalGenedrequity position.
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These items together, conspire to cause the State of Maine’s General Funghjedied to lack of liquidity each
year and an inability to adequately manage its Balance Sheet within existingessour

CONTACTING THE STATE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, cestpimvestors and creditors with a general
overview of the finances of the State and to demonstrate thesSaatauntability for the money it receives. If
you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, please cont

State of Maine
Office of the State Controller
14 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0014
(207)-626-8420
financialreporting@maine.gov
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash with Fiscal Agent
Investments
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Inventories
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Taxes Receivable
Loans Receivable
Notes Receivable
Other Receivables
Internal Balances
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Government
Loans Receivable from Primary Government
Due from Component Units
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool

Restricted Assets:
Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Restricted Deposits and Investments

Investments

Receivables, Net of Current Portion:
Taxes Receivable
Loans Receivable
Notes Receivable
Other Receivables

Due from Other Governments

Loans Receivable from Primary Government

Due From Primary Government

Post-Employment Benefit Asset

Other Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets:
Land, Infrastructure and Other Non-Depreciable Assets
Buildings, Equipment and Other Depreciable Assets, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives
Deferred Loss on Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 281,703 $ 10,166 291,869 50,738
1,641 2,514 4,155 92,150
117,419 - 117,419 -
81,901 - 81,901 670,330
9,418 - 9,418 -
3,748 280,808 284,556 116,810
4,436 2,309 6,745 3,699
361,456 - 361,456 -
4,924 - 4,924 102,734
- - - 5,319
229,868 65,659 295,527 84,829
5,851 (5,851) - -
552,844 - 552,844 160,035
- - - 17,676
- - - 24,884
46,166 - 46,166 -
5,195 2,046 7,241 45,490
1,706,570 357,651 2,064,221 1,374,694
131,793 4,751 136,544 23,708
4,223 - 4,223 -
- - - 537,762
- - - 465,437
80,850 - 80,850 -
- - - 2,432,621
- - - 68,413
3,988 - 3,988 9,668
8,658 - 8,658 1,370,861
- - - 279,161
- - - 3,817
1,871 - 1,871 11,258
- - - 30,257
4,852,548 8,430 4,860,978 564,827
566,409 46,910 613,319 1,010,155
5,650,340 60,091 5,710,431 6,807,945
7,356,910 417,742 7,774,652 8,182,639
- - - 26,926
- - - 10,251
$ - $ - - 37,177

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 927,908 $ 4,018 $ 931,926 $ 100,337
Accrued Payroll 43,315 1,557 44,872 3,444
Tax Refunds Payable 182,956 - 182,956 -
Due to Component Units 17,676 - 17,676 -
Due to Primary Government - - - 46,166
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated Absences 5,969 166 6,135 2,227
Due to Other Governments 76,526 - 76,526 986
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 35,685
Claims Payable 29,826 - 29,826 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 83,480 - 83,480 178,993
Notes Payable - - - 2,077
Revenue Bonds Payable 18,290 - 18,290 53,097
Obligations under Capital Leases 5,944 - 5,944 395
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 14,987 - 14,987 -
Loans Payable to Component Unit 24,884 - 24,884 -
Accrued Interest Payable 5,606 - 5,606 42,186
Deferred Revenue 1,171 12,763 13,934 57,622
Other Current Liabilities 5,492 15,274 20,766 76,321
Total Current Liabilities 1,444,030 33,778 1,477,808 599,536
Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 35,743 1,214 36,957 -
Due to Component Units 3,817 - 3,817 -
Due to Other Governments - - - 3,190
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 41,081
Claims Payable 40,638 - 40,638 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 286,245 - 286,245 3,448,916
Notes Payable - - - 24,421
Revenue Bonds Payable 181,620 - 181,620 1,143,839
Obligations under Capital Leases 33,031 - 33,031 5,623
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 32,951 - 32,951 -
Loans Payable to Component Unit 279,161 - 279,161 -
Deferred Revenue 7,278 - 7,278 29,443
Pension Obligation 1,989 - 1,989 -
Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation 298,061 3,767 301,828 -
Pollution Remediation and Landfill Obligations 32,132 - 32,132 -
Other Noncurrent Liabilities - - - 139,543
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,232,666 4,981 1,237,647 4,836,056
Total Liabilities 2,676,696 38,759 2,715,455 5,435,592
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,740,708 55,340 4,796,048 979,001
Restricted:
Transportation Purposes 89,932 - 89,932 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 70,265 - 70,265 -
Justice and Protection 8,914 - 8,914 -
Natural Resources 43,883 - 43,883 -
Health and Human Services 38,035 - 38,035 -
Capital Projects 2,980 - 2,980 -
Government Support & Operations 57,097 - 57,097 -
Unemployment Compensation - 321,112 321,112 -
Other Purposes 11,085 - 11,085 1,168,018
Funds Held as Permanent Investments:
Expendable 64,233 - 64,233 -
Nonexpendable 17,794 - 17,794 218,778
Unrestricted (464,712) 2,531 (462,181) 418,427
Total Net Position $ 4,680,214 $ 378,983 $ 5,059,197 $ 2,784,224




STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Governmental Support & Operations $ 428,011 $ 89,374 % 17371 $ -
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 10,538 869 2,498 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 63,406 69,196 230 -
Economic Development & Workforce Training 240,475 7,910 173,613 -
Education 1,581,556 26,098 198,952 -
Health & Human Services 3,657,573 18,801 2,296,473 -
Justice & Protection 401,656 83,173 54,240 -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 201,979 93,531 55,060 -
Transportation Safety & Development 384,852 119,087 249,277 -
Interest Expense 46,541 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 7,016,587 508,039 3,047,714 -
Business-Type Activities:
Employment Security 169,334 188,833 7,032 -
Alcoholic Beverages - 12,533 - -
Lottery 176,094 229,565 - -
Ferry Services 12,030 4,584 - -
Military Equipment Maintenance 36,971 35,814 - -
Dirigo Health 56,229 65,454 - -
Other 7,183 7,143 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 457,841 543,926 7,032 -
Total Primary Government $ 7474428 $ 1,051,965 $ 3,054,746 $ -
Component Units:
Finance Authority of Maine 41,750 17,356 19,893 -
Maine Community College System 126,966 16,777 59,719 626
Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority 50,062 45,641 2,684 -
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 69,512 61,429 (4,408) 24,688
Maine State Housing Authority 238,020 75,911 158,791 -
Maine Turnpike Authority 95,247 109,702 - -
University of Maine System 684,261 299,106 200,065 8,106
All Other Non-Major Component Units 142,957 47,044 64,938 25,941
Total Component Units $ 1,448,775 $ 672,966 % 501,682 $ 59,361

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Corporate
Individual Income
Fuel
Property
Sales & Use
Other
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Non-Program Specific Grants, Contributions & Appropriations
Miscellaneous Income
Loss on Assets Held for Sale
Tobacco Settlement
Special ltems
Transfers - Internal Activities
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning (As Restated)
Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (321,266) $ - % (321,266) $ -
(7,171) - (7,171) -

6,020 - 6,020 -

(58,952) - (58,952) -
(1,356,506) - (1,356,506) -
(1,342,299) - (1,342,299) -
(264,243) - (264,243) -
(53,388) - (53,388) -
(16,488) - (16,488) -
(46,541) - (46,541) -
(3,460,834) - (3,460,834) -

- 26,531 26,531 -

- 12,533 12,533 -

- 53,471 53,471 -

- (7,446) (7,446) -

- (1,157) (1,157) -

- 9,225 9,225 -

- (40) (40) -

- 93,117 93,117 -

$ (3460,834) $ 93,117 $ (3,367,717) $ -
- - - (4,501)
- - - (49,844)
- - - (1,737)

- - - 12,197
- - - (3,318)

- - - 14,455
- - - (176,984)
- - - (5,034)
$ - $ -3 - $ (214,766)
294,333 - 294,333 -
1,508,024 - 1,508,024 -
235,112 - 235,112 -
49,444 - 49,444 -
1,140,645 - 1,140,645 -
313,154 - 313,154 -
10,288 - 10,288 13,841

- - - 281,543

100,329 - 100,329 4,604
- - - (7,692)

50,723 - 50,723 -

92,401 (108,288) (15,887) -

54,916 (54,916) - -
3,849,369 (163,204) 3,686,165 292,296
388,535 (70,087) 318,448 77,530
4,291,679 449,070 4,740,749 2,706,694

$ 4,680,214 $ 378,983 $ 5,059,197 $ 2,784,224







GOVERNMENTAL FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR FUNDS

General Fund — This is the State's primary operatingFederal Fund — This fund is used to account for
fund. Its purpose is to account for all financialgrants, block grants and other financial assistance
resources obtained and used for general governmemceived from the federal government, that are legally
operations, which are not required to be accounted foestricted to expenditures for purposes specified in the
in another fund. grant awards or agreements.

Highway Fund — This fund is used primarily to Other Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to
account for motor fuel tax revenues, motor vehicleaccount for revenue sources that are legally restricted
license and registration fees, and special Stat® expenditures for specified purposes, including some
appropriations that are legally restricted to themajor capital projects that are not accounted for in the
construction and maintenance of State highways arndighway and Federal Funds.

bridges.

NON-MAJOR FUNDS

Other Governmental Funds are used to account for Other governmental funds are presented, by fund type,
revenue sources that are legally restricted tdeginning on page 122.

expenditures for specified purposes, including some

major capital projects and funds held in trust for public

purposes.



STATE OF MAINE
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Total
Other Special Governmental Governmental

General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds

Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 12,691  $ 39,096 14,026 $ 212,576  $ 126 $ 278,515
Cash and Short-Term Investments 123 116 1 45 1,353 1,638
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1,079 1,028 - 103,722 - 105,829
Investments - - - - 81,901 81,901
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 380 - - - 13,261 13,641
Inventories 1,612 - 758 - - 2,370
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Taxes Receivable 407,726 23,495 - 11,085 - 442,306

Loans Receivable 1 18 - 4,905 - 4,924

Other Receivable 74,635 1,428 68,199 74,864 10 219,136
Due from Other Funds 12,513 9,869 5,701 45,382 484 73,949
Due from Other Governments - - 552,249 - - 552,249
Due from Component Units - - - 46,060 106 46,166
Other Assets 1,904 55 344 202 101 2,606
Working Capital Advances Receivable 111 - - - - 111

Total Assets $ 512,775 $ 75,105 641,278 $ 498,841  $ 97,342 % 1,825,341
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Accounts Payable $ 146,457  $ 24,592 514,942  $ 208,793 % 4413  $ 899,197
Accrued Payroll 18,063 6,758 5,052 8,491 962 39,326
Tax Refunds Payable 182,950 6 - - - 182,956
Due to Other Governments 3,792 - 70,689 - - 74,481
Due to Other Funds 80,021 3,413 16,422 3,375 17 103,248
Due to Component Units 3,731 12 5,340 281 8,331 17,695
Compensated Absences - - - - 430 430
Deferred Revenue 219,962 6,000 2,803 27,751 7 256,523
Other Accrued Liabilities 2,174 - 1,279 2,927 469 6,849
Total Liabilities 657,150 40,781 616,527 251,618 14,629 1,580,705
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:

Permanent Fund Principal - - - - 17,794 17,794

Inventories and Prepaid Items 3,341 55 1,104 296 101 4,897
Restricted 3,534 34,269 23,647 376,904 67,288 505,642
Unassigned (151,250) - - (129,977) (2,470) (283,697)

Total Fund Balances (144,375) 34,324 24,751 247,223 82,713 244,636

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 512,775 $ 75,105 641,278 $ 498,841  $ 97,342 % 1,825,341

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATE OF MAINE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 244,636
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds. 5,532,331
Less: Accumulated depreciation (295,247) 5,237,084
Other post-employment benefit assets are not financial resources 1,871
Pollution remediation receivable 8,851

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, long-term liabilities
are not reported in the governmental fund statements. However, these amounts are included
in the Statement of Net Position. This is the net effect of these balances on the statement:

Bonds payable (569,635)
Interest payable related to long-term financing (3,748)
Certificates of participation and other financing arrangements (7,723)
Capital leases (4,294)
Other accrued 9)
Loans payable to component unit (304,045)
Compensated absences (37,604)
Pension obligation (1,989)
Other post-employment benefit obligation (298,061)
Pollution remediation and landfill obligations (32,132) (1,259,240)

Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental
fund statements. 251,415

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position. 195,597

Net position of governmental activities $ 4,680,214

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Other Total
Special Governmental  Governmental
General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3077321 $ 214241 $ - $ 267,319 $ - $ 3558881
Assessments and Other Revenue 106,086 93,365 - 152,059 - 351,510
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 1,726 - 3,039,702 6,641 - 3,048,069
Service Charges 46,281 4,181 405 88,806 1,685 141,358
Investment Income 356 105 13 (18) 9,465 9,921
Miscellaneous Revenue 10,467 3,445 105 116,534 64 130,615
Total Revenues 3,242,237 315,337 3,040,225 631,341 11,214 7,240,354
Expenditures
Current:
Governmental Support & Operations 265,160 2,552 9,786 124,420 98 402,016
Economic Development & Workforce Training 31,922 - 172,478 35,052 1,664 241,116
Education 1,332,688 - 205,209 17,029 35,669 1,590,595
Health and Human Services 907,141 - 2,281,867 485,863 1,961 3,676,832
Business Licensing & Regulation 992 - 242 61,649 - 62,883
Natural Resources Development & Protection 64,184 33 53,323 87,226 3,687 208,453
Justice and Protection 258,969 29,542 55,053 48,488 300 392,352
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 6,932 - 2,348 911 107 10,298
Transportation Safety & Development - 272,371 221,016 88,104 2,710 584,201
Debt Service:
Principal Payments 103,840 16,735 12,005 10,630 19 143,229
Interest Payments 20,657 4,873 3,762 9,499 - 38,791
Capital Outlay - - - - 7,753 7,753
Total Expenditures 2,992,485 326,106 3,017,089 968,871 53,968 7,358,519
Revenue over (under) Expenditures 249,752 (10,769) 23,136 (337,530) (42,754) (118,165)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds 181,932 17,938 19,973 223,122 29,348 472,313
Transfer to Other Funds (230,298) (9,983) (33,486) (122,282) (3,742) (399,791)
COP's and Other 4,174 1,029 - 1,147 21 6,371
Bonds Issued - - - 30,290 - 30,290
Premium on Bonds Issued - - - 2,210 - 2,210
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) (44,192) 8,984 (13,513) 134,487 25,627 111,393
Special Item - - - 7,016 - 7,016
Net Change in Fund Balances 205,560 (1,785) 9,623 (196,027) (17,127) 244
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year (349,935) 36,109 15,128 443,250 99,840 244,392
Fund Balances at End of Year $ (144,375) $ 34,324 $ 24,751 $ 247223 $ 82,713  $ 244,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATE OF MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the

current period, the amounts are:
Capital outlay
Capital assets transfer, net
Depreciation expense

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and contributions)

is to increase net position.
Post-employment benefit asset funding, net

Pollution Remediation Receivable

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds which
increases long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds, but repayment reduces long-term debt in the
Statement of Net Position. This is the amount that proceeds exceed repayments:

Bond proceeds

Proceeds from other financing arrangements
Loan proceeds from component unit

New capitalized leases

Repayment of bond principal

Repayment of other financing debt
Repayment of pledged revenue principal
Repayment of capitalized lease principal
Accrued interest

Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either increase or decrease long-term
liabilities reported as expenditures on the Statement of Net Position and have been eliminated

from the Statement of Position as follows:
Pension obligation
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Pollution remediation and landfill obligations
Compensated absences

Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental

fund statements.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is included in

governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

Changes in net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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PROPRIETARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJORFUND

Unemployment Compensation Fund - This fund from employers and the payment of unemployment
accounts for unemployment insurance contributionenefits to eligible claimants.

NON-M AJOR FUNDS

Non-Major Enterprise Funds are used to account for Non-major enterprise funds are presented beginning
operations that are financed and operated in a mannan page 139.

similar to private business, where the State intends to

finance or recover the costs of providing goods ofombining fund statements for the internal service
services to the General Public on a continuing basisinds, whose combined totals are presented on these
primarily through user charges. The State also usesatements, begin on page 147.

these funds where periodic determination of net

income is appropriate for accountability purposes.




STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Other Service
Security Enterprise Total Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - 0% 10,166 $ 10,166  $ 92,000
Cash and Short-Term Investments 1,758 756 2,514 3
Cash with Fiscal Agent - - - 11,590
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments 280,808 - 280,808 3,748
Inventories - 2,309 2,309 2,066
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Other Receivable 41,161 24,498 65,659 10,636
Due from Other Funds 231 188 419 20,702
Other Current Assets - 2,046 2,046 2,589

Total Current Assets 323,958 39,963 363,921 143,334
Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - 4,751 4,751 42,981
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation - 55,340 55,340 181,873
Total Noncurrent Assets - 60,091 60,091 224,854
Total Assets 323,958 100,054 424,012 368,188
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 2,090 1,928 4,018 8,161
Accrued Payroll - 1,557 1,557 3,989
Due to Other Funds - 5,941 5,941 6,335
Due to Component Units - - - 3,798
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - 12,386

Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - 5,396

Claims Payable - - - 29,826

Compensated Absences - 166 166 442

Deferred Revenue - 12,763 12,763 409
Other Accrued Liabilities 756 14,518 15,274 492

Total Current Liabilities 2,846 36,873 39,719 71,234

Long-Term Liabilities:
Working Capital Advances Payable - - - 111
Deferred Revenue - - - 587
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - 27,829
Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - 29,285
Claims Payable - - - 40,638
Compensated Absences - 1,214 1,214 3,236
Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation - 3,767 3,767 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities - 4,981 4,981 101,686
Total Liabilities 2,846 41,854 44,700 172,920
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets - 55,340 55,340 125,099
Restricted for:
Unemployment Compensation 321,112 - 321,112 -
Other Purposes - - - 383
Unrestricted - 2,860 2,860 69,786
Total Net Position $ 321,112  $ 58,200 $ 379,312  $ 195,268
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-type activites (329)
$ 378,983

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Other Service
Security Enterprise Total Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ - % 341,996 341996 $ 410,741
Assessments 188,833 - 188,833 -
Miscellaneous Revenues - 702 702 637
Total Operating Revenues 188,833 342,698 531,531 411,378
Operating Expenses
General Operations - 284,616 284,616 370,424
Depreciation - 4,038 4,038 16,107
Claims/Fees Expense 169,334 - 169,334 11,494
Other Operating Expenses - - - 611
Total Operating Expenses 169,334 288,654 457,988 398,636
Operating Income (Loss) 19,499 54,044 73,543 12,742
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenue (Expense) - net 7,032 - 7,032 368
Interest Expense - - - (10,060)
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) - net - 12,395 12,395 (1,550)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 7,032 12,395 19,427 (11,242)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions,
Transfers and Special ltems 26,531 66,439 92,970 1,500
Capital Contributions, Transfers and Special ltems
Capital Contributions from (to) Other Funds - 7,347 7,347 730
Transfers from Other Funds - 4,566 4,566 10,469
Transfers to Other Funds (1,051) (65,778) (66,829) (205)
Special Items - (108,288) (108,288) -
Total Capital Contributions, Transfers In (Out)
and Special ltems (1,051) (162,153) (163,204) 10,994
Change in Net Position 25,480 (95,714) (70,234) 12,494
Net Position - Beginning of Year 295,632 153,914 449,546 182,774
Net Position - End of Year $ 321,112 $ 58,200 $ 195,268
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-types activities 147
Changes in Business-Type Net Position (70,087)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Other Service
Security Enterprise Totals Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users $ 178,931 $ 343,430 $ 522,361 $ 401,041
Payments of Benefits (173,088) - (173,088) -
Payments to Prize Winners - (143,938) (143,938) -
Payments to Suppliers - (112,663) (112,663) (323,684)
Payments to Employees - (26,503) (26,503) (68,233)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 5,843 60,326 66,169 9,124
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from Other Funds - 4,566 4,566 10,464
Transfers to Other Funds (1,051) (65,778) (66,829) (200)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (1,051) (61,212) (62,263) 10,264
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets - (7,699) (7,699) (33,747)
Proceeds from Financing Arrangements - - - 20,400
Principal and Interest Paid on Financing Arrangements - - - (33,551)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - - 50
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities - (7,699) (7,699) (46,848)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue 7,032 38 7,070 368
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 7,032 38 7,070 368
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents 11,824 (8,547) 3,277 (27,092)
Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 270,742 24,220 294,962 177,414
Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year $ 282,566 $ 15,673 $ 298,239 $ 150,322
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ 19,499 $ 54,044 $ 73,543 $ 12,742
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense - 4,038 4,038 16,107
Decrease (Increase) in Assets
Accounts Receivable (9,695) 732 (8,963) (10,175)
Interfund Balances (207) 784 577 (1,183)
Inventories - 188 188 2,098
Other Assets - - - (1,028)
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable (3,845) (810) (4,655) (14,888)
Accrued Payroll Expenses - 137 137 195
Change in Compensated Absences - (209) (209) (331)
Other Accruals 91 1,422 1,513 5,587
Total Adjustments (13,656) 6,282 (7,374) (3,618)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 5,843 $ 60,326 $ 66,169 $ 9,124
Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Property Leased, Accrued or Acquired - - - 9,324
Contributed Capital Assets - 7,347 7,347 730
Decrease of deferred revenue from the sale of liquor operations - 12,500 12,500 -
Special Item - (108,288) (108,288) -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



FIDUCIARY FUND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trusts —  Private-Purpose Trusts and Agency Funds are used to
accounts for funds held by the Maine Publicaccount for private-purpose assets held by the State in
Employees Retirement System (the System), a fiduciary capacity, acting as either a trustee or an
component unit included with Fiduciary Funds peragent for individuals, organizations or other funds.
GASB Statement No. 34. The System provides

pension, death, and disability benefits to its membergy listing of fiduciary funds and combining fund
including State employees, some public schootatements for private-purpose trusts and agency funds
employees, and employees of approximately 296 locélegins on page 159.

municipalities and other public entities in Maine.




STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension (and

Other
Employee Private
Benefit) Purpose Agency
Trusts Trusts Funds
Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ -8 1,800 22,227
Cash and Short-Term Investments 31,109 - 27
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
State and Local Agency Contributions 1,840 - -
Interest and Dividends 4,932 - -
Due from Brokers for Securities Sold 230 - -
Other 15,804 - -
Investments at Fair Value:
Debt Securities 3,356 - -
Equity Securities 3,830,239 - -
Common/Collective Trusts 7,734,931 - -
Other - 12,811 -
Restricted Deposits and Investments - - 11
Securities Lending Collateral 1,481,238 - -
Due from Other Funds - 20,550 -
Investments Held on Behalf of Others - - 65,519
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 8,930 - -
Other Assets - 5,543 1,775
Total Assets 13,112,609 40,704 89,559
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 5,236 80 837
Due to Other Funds - 7 89
Agency Liabilities - - 87,537
Obligations Under Securities Lending 1,481,238 - -
Other Accrued Liabilities 25,035 - 1,096
Total Liabilities 1,511,509 87 89,559
Net Position
Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death, Group
Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes 11,601,100 40,617 -

Total Net Position $ 11,601,100 $ 40,617 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.



STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension (and

Other
Employee Private
Benefit) Purpose
Trusts Trusts
Additions:
Contributions:
Members $ 160,780 $ -
State and Local Agencies 361,254 -
Investment Income (Loss):
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 1,089,235 1,310
Capital Gains Distributions from Investments - -
Interest and Dividends 128,398 300
Securities Lending Income 5,030 -
Less Investment Expense:
Investment Activity Expense 31,368 -
Securities Lending Expense 509 -
Net Investment Income (Loss) 1,190,786 1,610
Miscellaneous Revenues - 12,624
Transfers In - 767
Total Additions 1,712,820 15,001
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries 842,257 68
Refunds and Withdrawals 24,670 -
Administrative Expenses 10,959 194
Claims Processing Expense 701 -
Distribution of Assets to FAME* - 6,013,670
Transfers Out - 21,262
Total Deductions 878,587 6,035,194
Net Increase (Decrease) 834,233 (6,020,193)
Net Position:
Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death, Group
Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes:
Beginning of Year 10,766,867 6,060,810
End of Year $ 11,601,100 $ 40,617

*Pursuant to Maine law, beginning July 1, 2012, the State's fiduciary responsibility for the NextGen College

Investing Plan was transferred to the Finance Authority of Maine.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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COMPONENT UNIT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Finance Authority of Maine (FAME) — The
Authority provides commercial financing and loan
guarantees to Maine businesses and educational
financing to Maine students and their parents;
administers several revolving loan programs on
behalf of the State; and administers the Maine
College Savings Program Fund.

Maine Community College System — is Maine’s
comprehensive two-year college system and offers
certificate, diploma and associate degree programs.
The financial statements of the system include the
activity of seven colleges, the central administrative
office and the Center for Career Development.

Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities
Authority — MHHEFA assists Maine health care
institutions and institutions of higher education in
undertaking projects involving the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction and
equipping of health care and educational facilities
and the refinancing of existing indebtedness. The
Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan
Corporations Act of 1983, may finance student loan
programs of institutions of higher education.

Maine Municipal Bond Bank — is authorized to issue

bonds providing funds to counties, cities, towns,
school districts, or other quasi-municipal
corporations within the State.

Maine Sate Housing Authority — is authorized to
issue bonds for the purchase of notes and mortgages
on single- and multi-family residential units to
provide housing for persons and families of low
income in the State. The Authority also administers
various housing and energy related state and federal
programs and collects and disburses federal rent
subsidies for low income housing.

The Maine Turnpike Authority — is authorized and
empowered to construct, maintain and operate a
turnpike at such a location as shall be approved by
the State Highway Commission and to issue turnpike
revenue bonds of the Authority, payable solely from
revenues of the Authority.

University of Maine System — The State University
consists of seven universities, eight centers, and a
central administrative office.

Non-Major Component Units combining fund
statements begin on page 169.



STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Inventories
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Loans Receivable
Notes Receivable
Other Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Government
Loans Receivable from Primary Government
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Investments
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:
Loans Receivable
Notes Receivable
Other Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Government
Loans Receivable from Primary Government
Post-Employment Benefit Asset
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
Other Noncurrent Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Maine Health and

Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives -

Deferred Loss on Refunding
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Compensated Absences
Due to Other Governments
Due to Primary Government
Amounts Held Under State & Federal Loan Programs
Bonds and Notes Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments
Amounts Held Under State & Federal Loan Programs
Bonds and Notes Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases
Deferred Revenue
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Higher
Finance Maine Educational Maine

Authority Community Facilities Municipal
of Maine College System Authority Bond Bank
$ 17,644 $ 14,005 $ 3,441 $ -
3,360 8,217 2,938 312
45,534 40,472 36,436 19,475
- 1,295 - -
- - 52,624 -
1,128 11,353 401 863
92 - - 135,425
- 351 - 3,901
- - - 24,884
1,973 1,860 917 33,680
69,731 77,553 96,757 218,540
8,244 6,545 1,608 -
- 1,623 148,270 341,306
- 13,417 - -
- - 1,026,808 -
23,656 - - -
- - 203 -
- - - 1,370,861
- - - 279,161
- 11,258 - -
1,526 154,540 - 606
- 212 - 991
33,426 187,595 1,176,889 1,992,925
103,157 265,148 1,273,646 2,211,465
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 -
3,736 3,415 72 568
- 2,034 - -
- - - 180
- - - 45,732
- - - 35,685
807 622 52,945 128,866
- 10 - -
- - 22,583 12,545
1,225 2,452 2,669 -
23,846 8,676 - -
29,614 17,209 78,269 223,576
- - 302 1,178
41,081 - - -
650 23,323 1,142,275 1,353,898
- 2,208 - -
41,731 25,531 1,142,577 1,355,076
71,345 42,740 1,220,846 1,578,652
1,526 130,212 - 606
15,287 44,002 31,732 559,093
14,999 48,194 21,068 73,114
$ 31,812 $ 222,408 $ 52,800 $ 632,813

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Maine State Maine University Non-Major

Housing Turnpike of Maine Component

Authority Authority System Units Total
$ -8 - $ 14574 $ 1,074 $ 50,738
1,195 5,573 1,577 68,978 92,150
286,777 - 226,532 15,104 670,330
- 92,102 - 24,708 116,810
- 1,643 - 761 3,699
30,889 - - 19,221 102,734
3 - 63 5,253 5,319
24,086 4,068 36,986 5,944 84,829
4,456 - 12,491 7,571 160,035
- - 7,588 5,836 17,676
- - - - 24,884
- 848 4,806 1,406 45,490
347,406 104,234 304,617 155,856 1,374,694
- - 6,809 502 23,708
- 24,319 6,366 15,878 537,762
96,530 14,894 320,900 19,696 465,437
1,291,912 - - 113,901 2,432,621
101 - 40,830 3,826 68,413
627 98 6,517 2,223 9,668
- - - - 1,370,861
- - 3,678 139 3,817
- - - - 279,161
- - - - 11,258
2,236 489,031 688,079 238,964 1,574,982
6,351 19,829 1,844 1,030 30,257
1,397,757 548,171 1,075,023 396,159 6,807,945
1,745,163 652,405 1,379,640 552,015 8,182,639
26,926 - - - 26,926
- 9,147 - 1,104 10,251
26,926 $ 9147  $ - $ 1,104 $ 37,177
54,883 6,616 16,401 14,646 100,337
- 3,092 - 352 3,444
- - - 193 2,227
277 - - 529 986
- - - 434 46,166
- - - - 35,685
14,255 15,560 12,147 8,965 234,167
- - 375 10 395
6,422 - - 636 42,186
3,627 6,747 11,531 29,371 57,622
- 11,159 30,630 2,010 76,321
79,464 43,174 71,084 57,146 599,536
- - - 1,710 3,190
- - - - 41,081
1,318,895 451,304 165,763 161,068 4,617,176
- - 3,410 5 5,623
27,895 - - 1,548 29,443
26,926 13,446 99,042 129 139,543
1,373,716 464,750 268,215 164,460 4,836,056
1,453,180 507,924 339,299 221,606 5,435,592
2,236 115,190 513,909 215,322 979,001
292,357 31,776 336,572 75,977 1,386,796
24,316 6,662 189,860 40,214 418,427
$ 318,909 $ 153,628  $1,040,341 $ 331,513 $ 2,784,224




STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Program Investment Income
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Net Revenue (Expense)

General Revenues
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Non-program Specific Grants,
Contributions and Appropriations
Miscellaneous Income
Gain (Loss) on Assets Held for Sale

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of the Year (as restated)

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Maine Health
Maine and Higher
Finance Community Educational Maine
Authority of College Facilities Municipal
Maine System Authority Bond Bank
$ 41,750 $ 126,966 $ 50,062 $ 69,512
17,356 16,777 45,641 61,429
23 2,240 2,684 (4,769)
19,870 57,479 - 361
- 626 - 24,688
(4,501) (49,844) (1,737) 12,197
(67) 1,080 53 27
- 54,495 - -
18 1,601 115 1,264
(49) 57,176 168 1,291
(4,550) 7,332 (1,569) 13,488
36,362 215,076 54,369 619,325
$ 31,812 $ 222,408 $ 52,800 $ 632,813




Maine State Maine University Non-Major
Housing Turnpike of Maine Component
Authority Authority System Units Total

$ 238,020 $ 95,247 $ 684,261 $ 142,957 $1,448,775

75,911 109,702 299,106 47,044 672,966
3,380 - 22,422 152 26,132
155,411 - 177,643 64,786 475,550
- - 8,106 25,941 59,361
(3,318) 14,455 (176,984) (5,034) (214,766)
14 141 9,586 3,007 13,841

- - 209,340 17,708 281,543

- - - 1,606 4,604
- - - (7,692) (7,692)

14 141 218,926 14,629 292,296
(3,304) 14,596 41,942 9,595 77,530
322,213 139,032 998,399 321,918 2,706,694

$ 318,909 $ 153,628 $1,040,341 $ 331,513 $2,784,224
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State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Maine (#te) ®ave been prepared under guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) redated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB).

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAA&uires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the finarenatistat

A. REPORTINGENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Maine’s reporting/éntitludes the “primary government” and its

“component units.” The primary government includes all funds, orgamizatagencies, boards, commissions
and authorities. Component units are legally separate organiztaiomkich the State is financially accountable.

Component units can also be legally separate, tax exempt entitieaisigadind hold economic resources for the
direct benefit of a governmental unit.

Financial accountability is defined in GASB Statement No.Thé Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 6The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Satements No. 14
and No. 34. The State is financially accountable for those entitiesvfoch it appoints a voting majority of the
governing board and either is able to impose its will on that emtithe entity may provide specific financial
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary govetnimities for which the State does not
appoint a voting majority of the governing board may be included if theniaageon is fiscally dependent on the
primary government and there exists a financial benefit or burdeionslaip with the State. Entities that do not
meet the specific criteria for inclusion may still be includfetie nature and significance of its relationship with
the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the rgperiity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

Under GASB Statement No. 3®etermining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, an
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14, individually significant legally separate, tax-exempt entities that should be
reported as component units if their resources are for the Heeefit of the State and the State can access those
resources Although the State has not identified any organizations that woulfygas direct component units of
the State by meeting all of the criteria of GASB Statement39, a few of the component units described later in
this note have significant foundations that meet the criteria of GASB Statén. 39.

Blended Component Units — Blended component units are enkitiesute legally separate from the State, but
provide services entirely, or almost entirely to the State ornwibe exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefits

the primary government even though they do not provide services yliteétl The State reports two blended

component units.

The Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA) is a légaleparate organization that has its board
appointed by the primary government and provides services entirely, or @intiosly, to the State. Its purpose
includes assisting in the financing, acquisition, construction, imprexg reconstruction, and equipping of
additions to structures designed for use as a court facilitie Stfice or State activity space. In their separately
issued financial statements, MGFA records a lease receifash the State and a liability for bonds issued.
However, in accordance with GASB, capital leases that existeketthe State and MGFA are not recorded as
leases in this report. The assets associated with thess &Faseported in the government-wide statements along
with the related debt. The corresponding debt service activitycisded in the Governmental Funds. MGFA
financial activity associated with servicing the debt is repairteain internal service fund. Therefore, the State
reports MGFA’s balances and transactions as though they werefptré primary government, using the
blending method.



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Child Development Services (CDS) is a legally separate mafion, which ensures the provision of child find
activities, early intervention services and free, appropriate publication services to eligible children. The
State’s Education Commissioner appoints and supervises the C®wdird herefore, the State reports CDS
balances and transactions as though they were a non-major special revenue fund.

Discrete Component Units - Discrete component units argesrtnat are legally separate from the State but are
either accountable to the State or related so closely to the tBédtexclusion would cause the State’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units that ammatertial to the State’s financial
statements have been excluded. The column labeled “Component Bmiphasizes these organizations’
separateness from the State’s primary government.

The State is able to impose its will upon these discretebepted component units whose boards of directors or
boards of trustees are appointed by the Governor:

The Maine Community College System is Maine’s comprehensive two-year college system and offetificzte,
diploma and associate degree programs. The combined finanteahestds of the System include the activity of
seven colleges, the central administrative office and the CémteCareer Development (including the Maine
Career Advantage and Maine Quality Centers programs), andnitgoo@nt unit, Maine Community College
Educational Foundations.

The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) constructs, maintains and operates a turnpike at such tioloegproved
by the State Highway Commission and to issue turnpike revenue bonds psgigtefrom revenues of the
Authority. The Authority’s fiscal year ends December 31.

The University of Maine System is the State University governed by a single Board of Trusteescdrhbined
financial statements of the System include the activity efes universities, eight centers, the central
administrative office, and its component units, which include seveusditions and alumni associations that
raise funds on the System’s behalf.

There is a financial burden/benefit relationship between thesesrditd the State:

The Finance Authority of Maine provides commercial financing and loan guarantees to Maine busiresge

educational financing to Maine students and their parents. The Autladsdyprovides financial and other
services for the NextGen College Investing Plan, Potato Magkdthprovement Fund Board, the Nutrient
Management Fund Board, the Northern Maine Transmission Corporationdéptiv® Equipment Loan Program
Fund Board, the Fund Insurance Review Board, the Agricultural Marketing Eamd Board, and the

Occupational Safety Program Fund Board. The Governor appoints the fifteen voting mefitherAuthority.

Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority (MHHEFA) — MHHEFA assists Maine health care
institutions and institutions of higher education in undertaking projeetdving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of their facilitied e refinancing of existing indebtedness. The
Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983, may alacé student loan programs of
institutions of higher education. MHHEFA consists of twelve members, four of vgkoreex officio and must be
the Superintendent of Financial Institutions, the Commissioner dffHsad Human Services, the Commissioner
of Education, and the Treasurer of State. The remaining eight members msiddmtsef the State appointed by
the Governor.

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank issues bonds on behalf of counties, cities, towns, school administiitixets,
community school districts, or other quasi-municipal corporations igiblel borrowers as designated by the
Legislature (the “governmental units”) within the State. The Goveappoints three residents of the State to the
five-member Board of Commissioners. The remaining two memberadndhe Treasurer of State and
Superintendent of Financial Institutions who serve as commissi@ref$icio.
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Maine Sate Housing Authority issues bonds to purchase notes and mortgages on residential units, botnsingle
multi-family, for the purpose of providing housing for persons and fasndifelow income in the State. The
Authority also acts as an agent for the State in administeringafedeatherization, energy conservation, fuel
assistance and homeless grant programs and collecting and disbursired) fedesubsidies for low income
housing. The Governor appoints five of the Authority’s seven commissiohBestemaining two commissioners
are the Treasurer of State and the Director of the Mairte Bausing Authority, both of whom seree officio.

The Authority’s fiscal year ends on December 31.

The State’s financial statements also include a fiduciary component unit:

Maine Public Employees Retirement System administers an agent-multiple employer public employee retirement
system. It provides pension, death, and disability benefits toeitsbers, which include employees of the State,
some public school employees, employees of approximately 296 localipalitizs and other public entities in
Maine. The Governor appoints four of the Board’s eight voting trust&dith trustee is either the Treasurer of
State or the Deputy Treasurer of State.

Complete financial statements of the major component unitsbeaaobtained directly from their respective
administrative offices by writing to:

Finance Authority of Maine Maine Health and Higher Ed. Maine Public Employees Maine Turnpike Authority

5 Community Dr. Facilities Authority Retirement System 2360 Congress Street

PO Box 949 PO Box 2268 46 State House Station Portland, ME 04102
Augusta, ME 04332 Augusta, ME 04338 Augusta, ME 04333

Maine Community College  Maine Municipal Bond Bank Maine State Housing University of Maine System
System PO Box 2268 Authority 16 Central Street

323 State Street Augusta, ME 04338 89 State House Station Bangor, ME 04401
Augusta, ME 04330 353 Water Street

Augusta, ME 04330

Related Organizations

Officials of the State’s primary government appoint a voting mgjaft the governing board of the Maine
Veteran’s Home. The primary government has no material accoutytdibilithis organization beyond making
board appointments.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities régformation on all non-fiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. Primary government a&ctivdtie distinguished between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activitiegatignare financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Businessviyies ace financed in whole or
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

The Satement of Net Position presents the reporting entity’s non-fiduciary assets, deferred outifos@sources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Net position iseegarthree components:

Net investment in capital assets component consists ofat@sisets, net of accumulated depreciation,
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other bottmatiags attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
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Restricted component of net position consists of restriassets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources related to those assets. Generally, a lialeilities to restricted assets if the asset results from a
resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liabdityf the liability will be liquidated with the
restricted assets reported. Constraints placed on restrimtgolonents of net position are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed bigrtawgh constitutional provisions

or enabling legislation. The government-wide statement of net positiong&¥@5%.3 million of restricted net
position, of which $131.3 million is restricted by enabling legislation.

Unrestricted component of net position consists of the netiatrof assets, deferred outflow of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that do not rtireedefinition of the two preceding categories.
The unrestricted component of net position often is designatedlitate that management does not consider
it to be available for general operations and often have constraintssonrces that are imposed by
management, but can be removed or modified.

The Satement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of dgietion or segment is
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those thelearly identifiable within a specific function.
Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, estlydratiefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and coontigthiat are restricted to meeting
the operational or capital requirements of a particular functioxeslTand other items not meeting the definition
of program revenues are instead reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental fuogsiepary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide statemer®r ikdividual governmental funds and
major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate colunthe fund financial statements, with non-
major funds being combined into a single column.

C. MEASUREMENTFOCUS BASIS OFACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reported using the econ@micoes measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund finastatalments. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurredjlesgaof the timing of cash flows. Property
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they & |[€&fants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider havadtce

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nongpiezais. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and idgligerods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses athgnthis definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental fund statements are reported using the currentidihaesources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognizéd governmental funds when they become
susceptible to accrual, generally when they become both measurableadiadle. “Available” means earned and
collected or expected to be collected within the current period orestmugh thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the State generally considers revarailable if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the fiscal year.

Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include: income taxes, a&sad use taxes, and other taxes; federal
grants; federal reimbursements; and other reimbursements fof oegerials and services. Revenues from other
sources are recognized when received because they are gemgrafigasurable until received in cash. Property
taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied, provided thbl&aiterion is met.
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The State Tax Assessor levies taxes on properties located umahganized territory of Maine by August 1 of

each year, and on telecommunications personal properties statewidayb@0Mof each year. Unorganized
territory property taxes are due on October 1 and telecommunicaticsmnaeproperty taxes are due on August
15. Formal collection procedures begin on November 1, and unpaid propertyp¢arese a lien no later than

March 15 of the fiscal year for which they are levied.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurredweMer, expenditures related to claims and
judgments, debt service and compensated absences are recorded only when palraertd payable.

Financial Statement Presentation
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all fimhmesources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Highway Fund accounts for the regulation, construction and maintenance ofttigateays and bridges
and is funded by motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle license and rdigistfaes, special State appropriations,
and other charges.

The Federal Fund accounts for grants and other financial assistance receivedtemfederal government,
including federal block grants, that are legally restricted to experdifor purposes specified in the grant
awards or agreements.

The Other Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenue sources that are legally tedtrio
expenditures for specified purposes, and the related current liagbilitcduding some major capital projects
that are not accounted for in the Highway and Federal Funds. Exampgles wiost significant types of
revenue sources include: Fund for a Healthy Maine (tobacco settleevemiue), State municipal revenue
sharing, hospital and service provider taxes, and oil transfer fees.

The State reports the following major enterprise fund:
The Maine Employment Security Fund receives contributions from employers and provides unemployment
compensation benefits to eligible unemployed workers.

Additionally, the State reports the following fund types:

Governmental Fund Types:
Foecial Revenue Funds include operating fund activities financed by specific revenue sotiratare legally

restricted for specified purposes. An example is funds for acquisition of pesdioved lands.

Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition or construction of major capital asset other programs
financed by bond proceeds.

Permanent Trust Funds report resources that are legally restricted to the extenbiiyatearnings, and not
principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the government oiiz&git An example is the Baxter
State Park Fund.
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Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterprise Funds report the activities for which fees are charged to extermat dsr goods or services, such
as the unemployment compensation program, lottery operations and transpcetatoass

Internal Service Funds provide goods or services primarily to other agencies or funds ofdtes Bather than
to the general public. These goods and services include printing aigrsailvices, supplies warehousing,
information technology, fleet management, risk management, healtherdb@nefits, and financing for
acquisition and construction of governmental facilities.

Fiduciary Fund Types:
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds report resources that are required to be held in trust for
members and beneficiaries of the State’s pension, death anditidadilefit plans. These resources are
managed by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MPERS fund also reports resources that
are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiarithe @tate’s retiree healthcare benefits. The
investment trust, managed by the Maine Public Employees Retirenystent holds the long-term
investments of the trust. The trustees of the Other EmplogeefiB Trust Fund are the State Controller and
State Treasurer.

Private Purpose Trust Funds report resources of all other trust arrangements in whickeipal and income
benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Exanmmitide Abandoned Property,
Public Reserved Lands and the Permanent School funds.

Agency Funds report assets and liabilities for deposits and investments &atrnigsthe State as an agent for
others. Examples include amounts held for payroll withholdings, inmate and student ghgr@ieosunts.

D. FISCAL YEAR-ENDS

All funds and discretely presented major component units are repsitegl fiscal years which end on June 30,
except for the Maine Educational Loan Authority, Maine State Housitokity and Maine Turnpike Authority,
which utilize December 31 year-ends.

E. ASSETSLIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION/FUND BALANCE

Equity in Treasurer’s Cash Pool

The State pools cash and cash equivalents for a variety of Statdemgand public sector entities. The pooled

balances are reported at fair value. Interest earned on pooledscaltocated to the various funds, generally

based on their average equity balances. The Treasurer's Cash Pt gaseral characteristics of a demand

deposit account and is comprised primarily of prime commerciampaepurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury
Bills, U.S. Treasury Notes, and other U.S. Agency Obligations, certificates of f@paiscorporate bonds.

For component units that participate in the cash pool, equity is shown at fair valu

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of short-term, highly liquid investmentsatigaboth readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are near maturity. On the Statement lof-@ags, the amount reported as “Cash and Cash
Equivalents” is equal to the total of the amounts reported on then®mt of Net Position as “Equity in
Treasurer's Cash Pool,” “Cash and Cash Equivalents,” “Cash wgbalFiAgent,” “Restricted Equity in
Treasurer’'s Cash Pool,” and “Restricted Deposits and Investments.”
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Cash with Fiscal Agent

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Governmental Funds represents cashilihibé used for debt service on bonds, the
unspent proceeds of bonds and Certificates of Participation, assvelhspent funds of the Maine Biological
Research Board being held by the State.

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Proprietary Funds represents proceedertificAtes of Participation and other
financing arrangements that have not been spent.

Other investments of the State are carried at fair value. tBobmavestments are stated at fair value at the date of
donation.

Investments Held on Behalf of Others

These assets include amounts held by the State in a fiduciarytgapeating as either a trustee or an agent for
individuals, organizations or other funds. Generally, these investmenteorted at fair value or at amortized
cost which approximates fair value. The State also holds $115mullid/orkers’ Compensation, $53 million of
Bureau of Insurance, and $28 million of Maine Department of Labor sowetys and letters of credit that are not
reflected on the financial statements.

Restricted Deposits and Investments

Restricted deposits and investments include: unemployment tax recgipsstele with the United States Treasury
that are drawn down to pay unemployment benefits; cash and investmemisMdine Governmental Facilities
Authority, a blended component unit that has been independently audited; unspeiprdemstis, and funds
invested in Certificates of Deposit and other investments atusfinancial institutions within the State. The
financial institutions lend these deposits and investments to logahercial and agricultural enterprises to foster
economic growth in Maine.

Inventories

The costs of materials and supplies of the Governmental Fundsparged as expenditures when purchased.
Undistributed vaccines and food commodities are reported as inventodgfenced revenue in the Federal Fund.
Revenues and corresponding expenditures are recognized when food stampsl dEEBliscards), and when
vaccines and food commodities are issued. Inventories of niatand supplies in the Proprietary Funds are
determined by physical counts and by perpetual inventory systems. RugpFehd inventories are stated at cost
or average cost.

Inventories included in the component unit column are stated at tkee tdweost or market (using the first-in,
first-out method).

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due to the Statethwpayers and service providers. Also included in
receivables are amounts due but not yet remitted to the State from lotterysalpents. Loans receivable for the

primary government represent low interest financing arrangengeatsstruct and modernize agricultural storage
facilities and local commercial enterprises, as well apddtment of Transportation loans to local governments.
Receivables in the component units’ column arise in the normal colbgssiness. Receivables are stated net of
estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts that are detminbased upon past collection experience and
aging of the accounts.

Interfund Transactions and Balances

Numerous transactions are made between funds to finance openatavide services, and acquire or construct
assets. To the extent that transactions between funds were no¢teohgs of June 30, interfund receivables and
payables have been recorded in the fund financial statements. undtegceivables and payables have been
eliminated from the Statement of Net Position.
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Long-term loans made by one fund to another are classified as “WoGdpital Advances Receivable” and

“Working Capital Advances Payable.” In the fund financial statetisy advances receivable are offset by
nonspendable fund balance designations indicating that the long-tesrdivaot constitute expendable financial
resources.

Due from/to Primary Government/Component Units

Numerous transactions are made between the primary governmenvrapdnent units to finance operations,
provide services, acquire or construct assets, or repay bonds. @xehethat transactions between funds were
not completed as of June 30, “Due from Primary Government” and ‘©@»mponent Unit” receivables and
payables have been recorded. Two component units have December 31 year eralg, thergfue to” and “due
from” amounts may differ.

Due from/to Other Governments

Due from/to Other Governments represents amounts receivableofrpayable to municipalities or the federal
government. Due from Other Governments represents primarily federal grangsvable for Medicaid claims,

other health and human services programs, and federal grants recivaldasportation-related expenditures.
Due from Other Governments in the component units’ column represeotts receivable for grants, bond
repayment and retirement benefits. Due to Other Governmentsaryintonsist of amounts owed to
municipalities for Municipal Revenue Sharing and the federal governfoe Medicaid cost recoveries from
providers.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastrasseés (e.g., roads, bridges, ramps and
similar items), are reported in the government-wide statenamat@pplicable fund financial statements. Capital
assets that are used for governmental activities are only réportee government-wide statements. The State
capitalizes governmental fund buildings valued at $1 million or more andigisogrfund buildings valued at
$100 thousand or more. Governmental fund equipment is capitalized at $l@nthausmore and proprietary
fund equipment is capitalized $5 thousand or more. Governmental and pmypiieid software is capitalized at
$1 million or more. All land, regardless of value, is capitalizEdpital assets are recorded at cost or, if donated,
at estimated fair market value at date of acquisition. omesinstances, capital assets historical cost were not
available. The costs of these assets at the date of acquisitions havstinesie e

In the government-wide statements, most capital assets are idegatean a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives, which are 10-40 years for software, buildindsiraprovements, and 2-25 years for
equipment. The State uses the modified approach for reporting itscsighihfrastructure assets. As long as the
State maintains and preserves its infrastructure assets-def@rmined condition levels, maintenance costs are
expensed and depreciation is not reported. This approach is distusbed in the Required Supplementary
Information.

Capital assets of component units are capitalized upon purchage@ediated over their estimated useful lives.
Interest incurred during construction is capitalized. The estimateful lives of fixed assets are 5-60 years for
non-road structures and improvements and 3-15 years for equipmentiréyrintures and vehicles. Component
units reflect infrastructure in improvements other than buildingsrarard depreciation expense on them. The
Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) uses the modified approach for repgriis significant infrastructure assets.
As long as MTA maintains and preserves its infrastructuresaasere-determined condition levels, maintenance
costs are expensed and depreciation is not reported.

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expensesdias a result of normal
operations, but for which no actual payment has yet been issued to vermlidsts. Incurred but not paid
(IBNP) Medicaid claims settlements are actuarially estitd. The IBNP estimate recorded at June 30, 2013 is
$231 million.
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Tax Refunds Payable
The amount of collected or accrued tax revenues that will be refimdstimated and accrued as a General Fund
liability.

Claims Payable

Claims payable represent workers’ compensation, retiree healthoy&aphealth, and other claims payable,
including actual claims submitted and actuarially determinaiel incurred but not reported. The actuarially
determined claims liability is discounted and presented at net presaat val

Compensated Employee Absences

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statgncompensated absences are recorded
as a long-term liability as required by GASB. In the governmefuladl financial statements, vested or
accumulated leave is reported as an expenditure and fund liability mti@rred upon retirement, termination or
death. Sick and vacation payments to terminated employees as @0J@84.3 but paid after the fiscal year end
is also reported in the funds. In the discretely presented componentamitioyees’ accumulated compensated
absences are recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue.

Deferred Revenue

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund finanetdnsénts, deferred revenue is recognized
when cash, receivables, or other assets are received priorindo¢ihey earned. In the governmental fund
statements, amounts recorded as receivable that do not meetatability” criterion for recognition as revenue

in the current period are classified as deferred revenue. Resaeeived by the government before it has a
legal claim to them are also included as deferred revenuearrBafrevenue reported in the General Fund relates
to sales and income taxes. Deferred revenue in the Federal énsists primarily of food commodities not yet
issued. Deferred revenue in the Alcoholic Beverages Fund comprisesotteeds from the sale of the State’s
liquor operations.

Loans Payable to Component Unit

In the Statement of Net Position, the amount of bond proceeds redsivadcomponent unit for unmatured
GARVEE and TransCap bond proceeds is called “Loans Payable to ComplmitghThe offsetting receivables
are classified as “Loans Receivable from Primary Government.”

Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statenfong-term debt and other long-term
obligations are recorded as liabilities.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize chearfiaount of debt issued as other
financing sources.

Net Position/Fund Balances

The difference between fund assets, deferred outflow of resouradgttiéis and deferred inflow of resources is
“Net Position” on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary funtersents and “Fund Balances” on
governmental fund statements.
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Fund Balance Restrictions
Fund balances for governmental funds have been classified in accordance witlS@SBent No. 54.

The State reported the following fund balance restrictions:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - indicates items that cannot be spent. This includes acthatyis not in a
spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loarssfeatgvable, or property held
for resale unless those proceeds are restricted, committessstgned) and activity that is legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such as a principal balance in anpetrmiand.

Restricted Fund Balances — include balances that are legally restricted for specific pespasie to
constraints that are either externally imposed by creditors,agsambntributors, or imposed by law through a
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balances — indicates assets can be used only for specific purposes pursuanistraints
imposed by a formal action of the Maine Legislature, the Stdiighest level of decision-making authority.
This formal action is the passage of law by the legislatureatiog, modifying, or rescinding an
appropriation.

Assigned Fund Balances — include amounts that are constrained by the State’s intent t@thdounsa specific
purpose, but are neither restricted or committed. Legislatsigraments include formal actions passed into
law that lapse. Maine statute also set forth powers and diftis@nagement. Assignments also include
decisions made by management, including encumbrances. For governmentabfuedshan the General
Fund, this is the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or cemhmitt

Unassigned Fund Balance — is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the fmgocas
described above. Also, any deficit fund balances within the other gogatal fund types are reported as
unassigned.

F. REVENUES ANDEXPENDITUREJEXPENSES

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenues and exparesssgregated by activity (governmental
or business-type), then further by function (e.g., governmental support & operatianation, health & human
services, etc.). Additionally, revenues are classified betwesgram and general revenues. Program revenues
include: charges to customers or applicants for goods, servicesivileges provided; operating grants and
contributions; and capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicasalirces are reported as general
revenues, rather than as program revenue. General revenues ifidaxiesa Certain indirect costs are included
in the program expenses reported for individual functions.

The State’s policy is that restricted amounts are spentirsh an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassignegdiita are available. Within unrestricted
fund balance, the State’s policy is that committed amounts areeckdivst, followed by assigned amounts, and
then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes foramloights in any of those
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are repgrigdction. Capital outlay expenditures
for real property or infrastructure (e.g. highways) are included with expenditureadiiph.

Revenues and expenses of proprietary funds are classified as operatongpperating and are subclassified by
object (e.g. general operations and depreciation). Operating revenuexpamses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods. All other reveamgbsexpenses are reported as
nonoperating, capital contributions, transfers or special items.
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NOTE 2 - BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL, AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Appropriation Limits

The total General Fund appropriation for each fiscal year of tmaibi® in the Governor's budget submission to
the Legislature may not exceed the General Fund appropriation of theugréiscal year multiplied by one plus
the average real personal income growth rate, as defined én5Titlaine Revised Statutes Annotated (MRSA) §
1665, subsection 1, plus the average forecasted inflation rate. tvémeecasted inflation rate" means the
average forecasted change in the Consumer Price Index underlyingzé¢heiereprojections developed by the
Revenue Forecasting Committee.

This appropriation limitation may be exceeded only by the amoutiteofidditional costs or the lost federal
revenue from the following exceptional circumstances: unfunded or undedfardefederal mandates; losses in
federal revenues or other revenue sources; citizens' initiativesenenda that require increased State spending;
court orders or decrees that require additional State resdarcesiply with the orders or decrees; and sudden or
significant increases in demand for existing State servicesathahot the result of legislative changes that
increased eligibility or increased benefits.

The Governor may designate exceptional circumstances that anephiotlg defined, but meet the intent of, this
statute. "Exceptional circumstances" means an unforeseen coratittonditions over which the Governor and
the Legislature have little or no control. Exceptional circumstmcenot apply to new programs or program
expansions that go beyond existing program criteria and operation.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The Maine Budget Stabilization Fund, a fund designation established utides MRSA C. 142, is included in

the negative $151 million unassigned General Fund fund balance. Amounts staltiization fund may be

expended only to offset a General Fund revenue shortfall. The Govern@lsoaflocate funds for payment of
death benefits for law enforcement officers, firefighters and emergeedical services personnel.

Balances in the fund do not lapse, but carry forward each year. Motleg fand may be invested with any
earnings credited to the fund except when the fund is at its statatpryAs the fourth priority before any other
transfer, the State Controller is required to transfer 80 peofe¢he unappropriated surplus of the General Fund
when the fund is not at its statutory cap. In accordance with dhgestthe State Controller made the required
transfer for fiscal year 2013. Per Public Law 2011, Chapter 657DRand Public Law 2013, Chapter 1, Part | a
net $27 million was transferred from the Budget Stabilization Fartde General Fund unappropriated surplus.
Additionally, $253 thousand was transferred to general purpose aid forstdoadls within the Department of
Education in accordance with Title 5 MRSA C.142 Section 1532.
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The statutory cap for the fund is 12 percent of the total Generad Fevenue received in the immediately
preceding fiscal year. At the close of the fiscal year, tpeixdased on the revenue received in the fiscal year
being closed. Based on fiscal year 2013 actual General Fund reverstaiub@y cap at the close of fiscal year
2013 and during fiscal year 2013 was $371.3 million. At the close of fisaal2gd 3, the balance of the Maine
Budget Stabilization Fund was $59.7 million. No reductions to the é/Birdget Stabilization Fund balance are
required when it exceeds the balance of the statutory cap as a result of a dé&gtineraf Fund revenue.

Budget Stabilization Fund Activity
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance, beginning of year $ 44,809
Increase in fund balance 14,892
Balance, end of year $ 59,701

Budget and Budgetary Expenditures

The gross unified budget bills and budget document encompass resourctefl@eneral Fund, Highway Fund,
Federal Expenditures Fund, Federal Block Grant Fund, Other Specialueeland, internal service funds and
enterprise funds. Separate gross unified budget bills must be subfuoittthe General Fund and the Highway
Fund. All funds except trust and agency funds, bond funds and costs of goods solitungseindnternal service
funds and enterprise funds are subject to legislative allocatione blennial budget sets forth proposed
expenditures for the administration, operation and maintenance of thenusmarand agencies of the State
Government; all interest and debt redemption charges during eachyBscaand all expenditures for capital
projects to be undertaken and executed during each fiscal year. Withimutbisrst budgetary control by agency
is maintained at the program and line category level. The State BDger and the Governor must approve
budget revisions during the year, reflecting program changes or intradepartmentadtaafivmitransfers.

Except in specific instances, only the Legislature may tranpf@opriations between departments. Changes in
appropriation, allocation, or funding for new programs are presented tedgsature as a supplemental budgets
or separate pieces of legislation. For the year ended June 30, 201&gigiature increased appropriations to the
General Fund by $75.0 million.

Actual expenditures did not exceed legislatively authorized appropriatithe Bepartment level; therefore, the
State complied with all related budget laws at the legal level.
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Governmental Fund Balances — Restricted, Committed and Askign

The State’s fund balances represent: (1) restricted purposes, wblude balances legally restricted for specific
purposes due to constraints that are externally imposed by credgramtors, contributors, or laws or regulations
of other governments; (2) committed purposes, which include baldratesan only be used for specific purposes
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Legisla{@) assigned purposes, which includes
balances that are constrained by government'’s intent to be used fific gpeposes, but are neither restricted or
committed. A summary of the nature and purpose of these fund balance types at June 30 a230bBaws:

Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Restricted
General Fund:
Natural Resources Development & Protection $ 3,534
Highway Fund:
Transportation Safety & Development $ 30,445
Justice and Protection 3,463
Governmental Support & Operations 358
Natural Resources Development & Protection 3
Total $ 34,269
Federal Fund:
Governmental Support & Operations $ 5,123
Health and Human Services 11,860
Economic Development & Workforce Training 2,042
Natural Resources Development & Protection 1,433
Transportation Safety & Development 1,637
Other 1,552
Total m
Other Special Revenue Fund:
Business Licensing & Regulation $ 75901
Governmental Support & Operations 74,237
Health and Human Services 19,799
Justice and Protection 35,185
Natural Resources Development & Protection 51,983
Transportation Safety & Development 114,798
Other 5,001
Total m
Other Governmental Funds:
Capital Projects $ 2,980
Natural Resources Development & Protection 64,068
Other 240
Total $ 67,288
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NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

Accounting Changes
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the State implemented four new accounting standards

GASB Statement No. 60Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession Arrangements. This
Statement addresses issues related to service concession raemisgevhich are a type of public-private or
public-public partnership. There was no impact on the State’s finastai@ments as a result of implementing
GASB 60.

GASB Statement No. 6The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14
and No. 34. This Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusionoofponent units in the financial
reporting entity. There was no impact on the State’s financial statementesadt of implementing GASB 61.

GASB Statement No. 62X odification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. This statement incorporates into the GASB's
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting goéahat is included in the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does not caittilicr wontradict GASB
pronouncements. There was no impact on the State’s financial statementsudtsodi iraplementing GASB 62.

GASB Statement No. 6Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources,

and Net Position. This Statement provides financial reporting guidance for deferrdldwsitof resources and
deferred inflows of resources. Previous financial reporting standardst include guidance for reporting those
financial elements, which are distinct from assets and ligsiliAs a result of implementing this new standard,
government-wide statements, proprietary and fiduciary fund statenepud Statements of Net Position. The
term “net assets” is changed to “net position” throughout the fiahistatements which use the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Component Units

The University of Maine System (UMS) implemented GASB StatenMo. 61 in fiscal year 2013. This
Statement modifies certain requirements for inclusion of compametst in the financial reporting entity. UMS
determined that a component unit discretely presented as of atha fgear end June 30, 2012 does not meet the
criteria for inclusion as a component unit, and as a result, the beginning net assetdwced by $18.0 million.

As a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 63, Maine $tatesing Authority (MSHA) recognized $26.9
million in resources that arise from an effective hedging oelakiip as deferred outflows of resources. In
previous years, the accumulated decrease in fair value of hedgingtides had been reported as a long-term
asset.

GASB Statement No. 64erivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 53. This Statement clarifies the termination provisions in GA&Refent
No. 53,Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, when a counterparty of an interest rate or
commodity swap is replaced. There was no impact on MSHA's fiabsigitements as a result of the adoption of
GASB 64.

A non-major component unit, Maine Educational Loan Authority, early adoptesBGtatement No. 6%tems
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement improves financial reporting by clarifying the
appropriate use of the financial statement elements deferredvesittif resources and deferred inflows of
resources to ensure consistency in financial reporting. When staimdpedts the presentation of net position, the
resulting change is not reflected as current operating activity, thérras an accounting change presented as a
restatement of beginning balances. Beginning net position increased $dh radlia result of restating the
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deferred loss on refinancing. Additionally, $1.1 million in deferred los€fimancing is presented as a deferred
outflow of resources instead of a long-term asset.

The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) reduced its beginning net position $1ll®mas a correction of an error.
In addition, MTA reclassified $9.2 million of deferred loss orunefing bonds from a long-term asset to a
deferred outflow of resources.

A non-major component unit, Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority (MRRAluded certain
construction and engineering costs from the calculation of constructiorogneps. Beginning net position
increased $.6 million as a result of this restatement.

NOTE 4 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Three internal service funds showed deficits for the fiscal geded June 30, 2013. The Workers’ Compensation
Fund reported a deficit of $18.8 million, which reflects accrualsafbuarially determined claims payable. The
Leased Space Fund had a deficit of $3.7 million because rategedhaere insufficient to cover expenses
incurred. The Postal, Printing & Supply fund reported a deficit of $2l®mbecause expenses are recognized
when incurred; however, related revenue is not earned until jotsa@sactorily completed. All of the deficits
mentioned above are expected to be funded by future service charges.

The Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund shows a deficit of $12liemilDuring fiscal year 2004, the State of
Maine entered into a 10 year contract with a vendor to manage andeopbresale liquor distribution as the
State’s agent. The deficit reflects the deferral of license feewilhhe amortized over that 10 year period.

The General Fund shows a deficit fund balance of $144.4 million at June 30, 2013. iChisqefmarily due to
the full recognition of the State’s share of Medicaid lisileti at fiscal year end. The federal portion of these
liabilities is also fully accrued, with an offsetting receivaflem the federal government as allowed under
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 38.GAR®B 33, revenue associated
with government mandated non-exchange transactions should be recognized wheablapgligibility
requirements have been met and the resources are available aiéd&n entittement program. Therefore, the
funds are available when the payments for these liabilities are processed.

The Child Development Services Special Revenue Fund shows & défit2.3 million. This deficit has
accumulated through operating losses dating back to the year ended June 30, 2008.
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NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Title 5 MRSA § 135 governs the deposit and investment policies oftdte & Maine Office of the Treasurer.
The Treasurer may deposit State funds, including trust funds of they Btaany of the banking institutions
(including trust companies, State or federal savings and loan dsstgiand mutual savings banks) organized
under the laws of this State and any national bank or federal savings and loaniasdocéted in the State.

The State follows the practice of pooling cash and cash equivatenés\ariety of State agencies and public
sector entities. The Treasurer may invest funds that exceeashtabligations, with the concurrence of the State
Controller or the Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Servicesharmtbhsent of the Governor.

Approved investments include bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedress pbligations of the United States
that mature not more than 36 months from the date of investmpuotchase agreements secured by obligations
of the United States that mature within the succeeding 12 montimse mommercial paper; tax-exempt
obligations that mature not more than 36 months from the date aftimeet and have a long-term rating of no
less that “AA” or the equivalent; corporate bonds rated “AARdttmature within 36 months from the date of
investment; banker’s acceptances with an original maturity neteelikeg 180 days and rated in the highest short-
term category by at least one nationally recognized secuitieg organization (NRSRO); and “no-load” shares
of an investment company registered under the Federal Investroemia@y Act of 1940, which are rated
“AAAmM” or “AAAM-G” by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by anotidRSRO. Although authorized to do
so, the Treasurer does not participate in the securities loan market.

Investment policies of the permanent trusts are governed by TM&RSA § 138. The Treasurer, with the
approval of the Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Setvittess Superintendent of Financial
Institutions and the Attorney General, shall invest the fundsduarisies that are legal investments in accordance
with Title 9-B MRSA. The investments need not be segregated seffagate trusts, but the identity of each trust
must be maintained. The Treasurer may enter into custodighwdrservicing contracts or agreements negotiated
in accordance with the laws of this State for the handling of funds held in trust.

No amounts exceeding 25 percent of the capital, surplus, and undivided pfafity trust company or national
bank or 25 percent of the reserve fund and undivided profits of a mutuasdnank or State or federal savings
and loan association, shall be on deposit in any one institution at anyngneThis restriction does not apply to
deposits subject to immediate withdrawal to meet the paymentyob@nded debt or interest or to pay current
bills or expenses of the State. Also exempt are deposits sdmutieel pledge of certain securities as collateral or
fully covered by insurance.

With assistance from the Finance Authority of Maine, the Tieagarticipates in a restricted deposit program to
encourage banks to provide loans at two percent below market rat@.-reBseirer may invest up to $8 million in
lending institutions at a two percent lower-than-market rate gedvihe lenders pass the rate reduction on to the
borrowers. This program earmarks $4 million for loans to aguiallenterprises and the other $4 million are
designated for commercial entities.
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The Primary Government’'s Deposits and Investments excluding componenthatitire fiduciary in nature at

June 30, 2013:

Equity in Treasurer's Cash
Pool

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash with Fiscal Agent

Investments

Restricted Equity in
Treasurer's Cash Pool

Restricted Deposits and
Investments

Investments Held on
Behalf of Others

Other Assets

Total Primary Government

Primary Government Deposits and Investments

(Expressed in Thousands)

Business- Private
Governmental Type Purpose Agency
Activities Activities Trusts Funds Total
$ 413,496 $ 14,917 $ 1,800 $ 22,227 $ 452,440
1,641 2,514 - 27 4,182

117,419 - - - 117,419

81,901 - 12,811 - 94,712
13,641 - - - 13,641

3,748 280,808 - 11 284,567

- - - 65,519 65,519
$ 631,846 $ 298,239 $ 14,611 $ 87,784 $ 1,032,480

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of destnvargs will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. In general, the State holds secorinesurity. All debt securities are

reported at full-term.



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The following table provides the segmented time distribution of the Primary Goverarimetstmentat June
30, 2013:

Maturities in Years
(Expressed in Thousands)
Less More No Fair
than 1 1-5 6-10 11-20 than 20 Maturity Value

Governmental and Business-Type Activities, excluding Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds

US Instrumentalities $ 10,807 $145,069 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 155,876
US Treasury Notes - 8,206 - - - - 8,206
Repurchase Agreements - - - - - - -
Corporate Notes and Bonds - - - - - - R

Commercial Paper 47,713 - - - - - 47,713
Certificates of Deposit 4,832 - - - - - 4,832
Money Market - - - - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - - 233,330 233,330
Unemployment Fund

Deposits with US Treasury - - - - - 280,808 280,808

Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds

US Instrumentalities 533 8,038 28 144 713 - 9,456
US Treasury Notes 3,621 8,106 3,746 2,941 - - 18,414
Repurchase Agreements - - - - - - -
Corporate Notes and Bonds 148 3,348 7,531 7,156 1,154 - 19,337
Other Fixed Income

Securities 9,351 24 6,135 - - - 15,510
Commercial Paper 2,593 - - - - - 2,593
Certificates of Deposit 8,213 386 - - - 2,791 11,390
Money Market - - - - - 1,943 1,943
Cash and Cash Equivalents - - - - - 29,014 29,014
Equities - - - - - 70,993 70,993
Other - - - - - 5,646 5,646

$ 87,811 $173,177 $17,440 $10,241 $ 1,867 $ 624,525 $ 915,061

Other Assets -

Cash with Fiscal Agent 117,419

Total Primary Government $1,032,480

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty tonastment will not fulfill its
obligations. This credit risk is measured by the credit qualitpgatof investments as described by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. The State’s ineastpolicy limits its investments to those with high
credit quality made by or with the advice and upon the due diligentkeoState’s independent investment
advisor. The State limits credit risk in its trusts by einguthat the fixed income credit quality at the time of
purchase is a minimum bond rating of “A” by either Standard & Pawridoody’s rating service. Fixed income
holdings thereafter shall maintain a minimum bond rating of “BBB”.
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The Primary Government’s total investments by credit quality rating as oB0U2613 are presented below:

Standard & Poor’'s Credit Rating
(Expressed in Thousands)

Not
Al A AA AA+ AAA BB BBB Rated Total
Governmental and Business-Type Activities, excluding Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds
US Instrumentalities $ - $ - $ 155,876 $ - $ - 3 -8 -0 % $-155,876
US Treasury Notes - - 8,206 - - - - - 8,206
Corporate Notes ) ) )
and Bonds
Commercial Paper
Money Market - - - - -
Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds
US Instrumentalities - - 8,355 - - - - 1,101 9,456
US Treasury Notes - - 1,457 - - - - 16,957 18,414
Corporate Notes 724 225 - - 20 544 17,824 19,337
and Bonds
Commercial Paper - - - - - -
Money Market - - - - - - - -
Other Fixed Income 6.155 - - __ 9355 15,510
Securities
Total Primary
Government $ - $724 $174,119 $ - $ 6,155 $ 20 $544  $45,237 $ 226,799

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to thgnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The State limits caatientof credit risk in its trusts by requiring
that no single stock represent more than 7 percent of the total jorffbere is no concentration of credit risk
policy for the Treasurer's Cash Pool. At June 30, 2013, there were rainevds that exceeded five percent of
the Treasurer’s Cash Pool.

Custodial Credit Risk - For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in theateska failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the State will not be able to retbgevalue of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Tledi®its its custodial credit risk for the Treasurer’s
Cash Pool by maintaining a file of the most recent credit ratimadysis reports performed for each approved
financial institution. The State also requires that all sées be perfected in the name of the State and held in
third party safekeeping by a state approved custodian. Of the cash§@®al'sillion invested in non-negotiable
certificates of deposit, none exceeded the FDIC insured amounbefmstitutions at which they were held. The
State does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk ftnugits. The Percival P. Baxter Trust is held by
the counterparty’s trust department, but not in the State’s name.
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The fair value of the trust's investments as of June 30, 2013 was $a6#dh rand was comprised of the
following (expressed in thousands):

U.S. Instrumentalities $ 906
US Treasury Notes 1,011
Corporate Notes and Bonds 1,615
Other Fixed Income Securities 9,375
Equities 46,965
Cash and Equivalents 1,094
Other 3,037
Total $ 64,003

The State and certain vendors contract with a fiscal internyeditareon, for electronic disbursements from the
State to its vendors. During fiscal year 2013 these disbursements, on average, exceededli#ii 65 mionth.
The funds in transit are not collateralized and are not held bytdite Treasurer. Until the vendor receives
payment, the State retains some liability.

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System (the Systerk@srinvestments in a combination of equities,
fixed income securities, infrastructure, private equity, reatesmutual funds, commingled mutual and index
funds, derivative financial instruments, and other investmentrises established by the Trustee's investment

policy.

Derivative Securities — Derivative financial instruments are financial contradi®se value depends on the value
of one or more underlying assets, reference rates or finandiaks. They include futures, forwards, options, and
swap contracts. The System’s investments in derivative sesuoitily have nominal exposure to custodial credit
risk. Credit risk is managed, in the case of exchange-traded deriyatiyahe execution of trades through a
clearinghouse and, in the case of over-the-counter transactions, by rmsamkgediligence assessment and
approval of counterparties. Market risk is managed by imposing strict lintitstlas types, amounts and degree of
risk that investment managers may undertake. These limits arevadpby the Board of Trustees and are
monitored by the Chief Investment Officer.

Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge against teeogurisk in the System'’s foreign equity and
fixed income security portfolios. The System’s fixed income manabwmmsst in Collateralized Mortgage
Obligations (CMOs) and Asset-Backed Securities to imptbeeyield or adjust the duration of the fixed income
portfolio. At June 30, 2013, no balances of the System's CMO and Aaske# Security holdings were
outstanding. The System also invests in swaps. Interest rate areapsed to adjust interest rate and yield curve
exposures and substitute for physical securities.

Securities Lending - The System has also entered into agreements for securitiesgdratisactions, which are
collateralized in an amount generally valued at 102 percent (105 péocarternational securities) of the market
value of the securities loaned. All securities and loans canringged on demand by either the lender or the
borrower.

Cash open collateral is invested in a short-term investment poolCdhe Limited Collateral Section. Cash
collateral may also be invested separately in “term loansJulte 30, 2013 all of the collateral for securities
lending is subject to custodial credit risk. The System belichagsthere is no credit risk as defined in GASB
Statement No. 28 and GASB Statement No. 40. The collateral inelthe market value of securities on loan for
the System as of June 30, 2013 was $1.484 million and $1.450 million, respectively.
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The following table details the System’s derivative investments at June 30, 2013:

(Expressed in Thousands)

2013
Changes in
Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2013 Notional
Classification Amount Amount
Futures:
Equity Index Futures Contracts  $ (1,664) Investments $ (209) $ 50,269

COMPONENTUNITS

Generally, component unit investment policies authorize investmentsigatios of U.S. Treasury and Agency
Securities, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, certifidatieposit and money market funds. Some
component units may invest in stocks, bonds, fixed income securities,| furtds, commingled mutual funds
and index funds, guaranteed investment contracts, real estate and other invesuméatse

Certain component units also invest in the Treasurer's Cash Poobepdige approximately 14 percent of pool
assets. The component units reported their participation as €idisér and Cash Equivalents or Investments on
their financial statements. The State reclassified $74libmof the component units’ participation to “Equity in
Treasurer's Cash Pool” on the State’s financial statementsaddlition to the amounts reported, the State
Treasurer's Cash Pool includes $8.8 million, consisting of Finance Auytlodrilaine component unit fiduciary
funds that, because of GASB Statement No. 34 reporting criteeiayod shown in the accompanying financial
statements as invested in the Treasurer’'s Cash Pool.
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NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances are segregated by type, and presentedundHsméncial statements net of allowance for
uncollectibles. The following tables disaggregate amounts @masido be uncollectible by fund and type of

receivable as of the close of the fiscal year:

Primary Government — Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)

Allowance
for Net
Taxes Accounts Loans Uncollectibles Receivables
Governmental Funds:
General $556,778 $131,026 $1 ($205,443) $482,362
Highway 25,225 1,440 18 (1,742) 24,941
Federal - 123,771 - (55,572) 68,199
Other Special Revenue 11,937 87,330 4,905 (13,318) 90,854
Other Governmental Funds - 10 - - 10
Total Governmental Funds 593,940 343,577 4,924 (276,075) 666,366
Allowance for Uncollectibles (151,634) (124,441) -
Net Receivables $442,306 $219,136 $4,924 $666,366
Proprietary Funds:
Employment Security $ - $61,929 $ - ($20,768) $41,161
Nonmajor Enterprise - $25,082 - ($584) 24,498
Internal Service - 10,636 - - 10,636
Total Proprietary Funds - 97,647 - (21,352) 76,295
Allowance for Uncollectibles - (21,352) -
Net Receivables $ - $ 76,295 $ - $76,295
Component Units — Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)
Allowance
For Net
Accounts Loans Notes Uncollectibles Receivables
Finance Authority of Maine $1,128 $ - $29,230 ($5,574) $24,784
Maine Community College System 12,472 - - (1,119) 11,353
Maine Health and Educational
Facilities Authority 877 1,079,432 - (273) 1,080,036
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 863 - - - 863
Maine State Housing Authority 24,713 1,334,003 131 (11,229) 1,347,618
Maine Turnpike Authority 4,166 - - - 4,166
University of Maine System 49,101 - 42,306 7,011 84,396
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables represent amounts owed to onduSthtey another, for goods sold or
services received, or for borrowings to eliminate negative balances in #suilges Cash Pool.

Balances due within one year are recorded as Due to/Due froen Bands. The balances of current interfund
receivables and payables as of June 30, 2013 were:

Interfund Receivables
(Expressed in Thousands)

Due to Other Funds

Other

Special Other
Due from Other Funds General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 1,307 $ - $ -
Highway 5 3 9,860 - -
Federal 5,569 1 126 5 -
Other Special Revenue 43,820 75 1,294 147 17
Other Governmental 484 - - - -
Employment Securjt - - 231 - -
Non-Major Enterprise 100 86 - 2 -
Internal Service 9,493 3,248 3,604 3,221 -
Fiduciay 20,550 - - - -
Total $ 80,021 $ 3,413 $ 16,422 $ 3,375 $ 17

Employment Non-Major Internal

Due from Other Funds Security Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ 5,703 $ 5,417 $ 86 $ 12,513
Highway - - 1 - 9,869
Federal - - - - 5,701
Other Special Revenue - 1 28 - 45,382
Other Governmental - - - - 484
Employment Securjt - - - - 231
Non-Major Enterprise - - - - 188
Internal Service - 237 889 10 20,702
Fiduciary - - - - 20,550
Total $ - $ 5,941 $ 6,335 $ 96 $ 115,620

Not included in the table above are interfund loans/advances, whinbtaggpected to be repaid within one year.
Postal, Printing & Supply (an internal service fund) owes $111 thousand to the Generalrfyaaating capital.

Included in the Due to/Due from other funds is $32 million due to ther Gyecial Revenue Fund related to the
General Fund’s negative cash position in the Treasurer’'s Cash Puaisltype of temporary loan is typical; cash
is frequently borrowed and returned depending on cash flow needs.
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Transfers are made in accordance with statutory authority. Sagtificansfers are used to 1) move revenues
from the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fundsthaite requires to expend them, 2) move
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collectingettepts to the funds required to pay debt service as
principal and interest payments come due, 3) use unrestricted rewetieeted in the General Fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgethoyizations, 4) move profits from
the Lottery Fund, and 5) transfer accumulated surpluses from atias fo the General Fund when authorized by
statute.

During fiscal year 2013, the State of Maine, in accordance with giedgvely authorized budget, recorded the
following non-routine, nonrecurring transfers.

The Other Special Revenue Fund transferred $28.3 million to the unappropriated stithe General Fund.
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2013, consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other
Special Other
Transferred To General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 7,617 $ 100,722 $ -
Highway 1,935 - 12,300 3,703 -
Federal 1,067 - 17,855
Other Special Revenue 188,582 5,419 13,569 1,872
Other Governmental Funds 28,245 - - 1,103
Employment Securjt - - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise - 4,564 -
Internal Service 10,469 - -
Fiduciay - - - - 767
Total $ 230,298 $ 9,983 $ 33,486 $ 122,282 $ 3,742
Transferred From
Employment Non-Major Internal
Transferred To Security Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ 52,941 $ 205 $ 20,447 $ 181,932
Highway - - - - 17,938
Federal 1,051 - - - 19,973
Other Special Revenue - 12,837 - 843 223,122
Other Governmental Funds - - - - 29,348
Employment Security - - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise - - - - 4,566
Internal Service - - - - 10,469
Fiduciary - - - - 767
Total $ 1,051 $ 65,778 $ 205 $ 21,290 $ 488,115

Transferred From
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule details changes in capital assets for thengometal activities and business-type
activities of the primary government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013:

Primary Government — Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Beginning Increases and Decreases and Ending
Balance Other Additions Deletions Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 497,893 $ 73,495 $ 120 $ 571,268
Construction in progress 4847 65,090 45,217 68,346
Infrastructure 4,018,966 193,968 - 4,212,934
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,565,332 332,553 * 45,337 4,852,548
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 626,201 47,357 13,020 [si5t45]
Equipment 255,628 34,281 23,953 Pt si59)
Improvements other than buildings 20,843 31,419 11 52,251
Software 58,729 13,822 - 72,551
Total capital assets being depreciated 961,401 126,879 * 6,384 1,051,296
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 249,721 23,981 11,980 212
Equipment 172,827 26,817 22,183 L
Improvements other than buildings 14,058 20,633 10 34,681
Software 4,629 6,394 - 11,023
Total accumulated depreciation 445,23 77,825 * 34,173 484,887
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 520,166 49,054 2,811 566,409
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 5,085,498 $ 381,607 $ , 148 $ 5,418,957
Beginning Ending
Balance Net Additions Net Deletions Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 58,888 $ -$ 51,596 $ 7,292
Construction in progress 1&55 1,138 18,555 1,138
Total capital assets not being depreciated 77,443 1,138 70,151 8,430
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 9,449 - 5,054 4,395
Equipment 80,892 2,403 46,956 36,339
Improvements other than buildings 74,889 5,279 31,401 48,767
Total capital assets being depreciated 165,230 7,682 3,811 89,501
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 6,171 132 4,127 2,176
Equipment 52,703 1,801 37,513 16,991
Improvements other than buildings 31,036 2,094 9,706 23,424
Total accumulated depreciation 49,9 4,027 51,346 42,591
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 75,320 3,655 32,065 46,910
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net $ 152,763 $ 4,793 $ 102,216 $ 55,340

* The total Increase and Other Additions for Governmental Activities an@®bletions for Business-Type Activities includes $116.0
million in assets net of $30.9 million in accumulated depreciation deatthe transfer of assets from an Enterprise Fund in FY 2013. See
Footnote 17 - Special Iltems disclosure for additional information.
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During the fiscal year, depreciation expense was charged to the following feriotitie governmental activities
column of the Statement of Activities for the primary government:

Governmental Activities — Depreciation Expense
(Expressed in Thousands)

Amount

Governmental Activities:

Arts, Heritage and Cultural Enrichment $ 12
Business Licensing and Regulation 381
Economic Development and Workforce Training 1,037
Education 514
Governmental Support and Operations 6,063
Health and Human Services 8,676
Justice and Protection 16,756
Natural Resources Development and Protection 3,383
Transportation Safety and Development 10,095
Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental Activities $ 46,917

NOTE 9 - MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System, formerly natmedViaine State Retirement System (the
System) is a component unit of the State of Maine. For finan@alktieg purposes, the System administers an
agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retiresystem established and administered under
the Title 5 MRSA C. 421, 423, and 425. The System provides pension, disabilitgeatid benefits to its
members, which includes employees of the State, public school empldgéased by Maine law as teachers and
for whom the State is the employer for retirement contribution andfivgpurposes, or SETP) and employees of
296 local municipalities and other public entities (Participating LDé&gricts, or PLDs) in Maine, each of which
contracts for participation in the System under provisions of tlewaet statutes. The System issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report that includesmdial statements and required supplementary
information (RSI) for the plan. The June 30, 2013 report may be oththioim the Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333.

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System managementprattgion of the State of Maine statutes is
that all assets accumulated for the payment of benefits mailyide used to pay benefits, including refunds of
member contributions, to any plan members or beneficiaries. The Systeneisrtheegarded as administering an
agent, multiple-employer plan for financial reporting purposes. Tdtersénts include $2.2 billion of assets
related to the PLD’s. The Attorney General’'s Office does not concur thatdkssts are available for payment of
State benefits.

The total funds managed by the System are constitutionally redtaisteheld in trust for the payment of pension
and related benefits to its members. The System’s Board ofe@g,sh its fiduciary capacity, establishes the
System’s investment policies and their overall implementatiohe $ystem maintains separate reserves and
accounts for each participating entity and performs separatar@ttvaluations for each participating entity’s
respective plan.
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The System administers three defined contribution plans for emgloy&d.D’s that elect to participate. At June
30, 2013, there were 58 employers participating in these plans. The 86paats individually direct the $20.3
million in net assets covered by the plans.

The System also provides group life insurance under a plan admidibteeethird party insurance company and
invests long-term assets for the Retiree Health InsuranceERgstyment Benefits Investment Trust Fund. Note
10 provides for further disclosure.

BASIS OFACCOUNTING

The System’s financial statements are prepared on the accrisldbaccounting. Pension contributions are
recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant tb dommaitments or statutory or
contractual requirements. Investment income is recognized gdraed. Contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognized in the period they are contributed. Pdresiefits and contributions and premium refunds
are recognized as deductions when due and payable in accordanceatitbsSt Benefits payable incurred but
not reported are reflected as other liabilities. Distributioosifdefined contribution plans are recognized in the
period the disbursement is made.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that ddvawat an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of shares in managed invespoels is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including real ebtdtings and mortgage participation agreements,
are based on third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the spon$@r afréement. Investment
purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date.edBroslated to securities sold not yet purchased are
carried as a liability and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.

CONTRIBUTION INFORMATION
Membership in each defined benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2013

State
Employees

and Teachers Consolidated

Plan Plan for PLL

Active vested and nonvested members 42,051 11,140
Terminated vested participants 6,921 2,030

Retirees and benefit recipients 31,987 9,126

Total 80,959 22,296
Number of participating employers/sponsors 1 296

0

Contributions from members and employers and earnings from investimedtsetirement benefits. Employer
contributions and investment earnings fund disability and death berditisiber and employer contributions are
a percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contritattsrare defined by law and depend on
the terms of the plan under which a member is covered. Employeibatintr rates are determined by biennial
actuarial valuations.

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employeedbcbioins are refundable with interest,

credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of accunliledetributions results in forfeiture of all benefits

and membership rights. The annual rate of interest creditedninéged members’ accounts is set by the
System’s Board of Trustees and is currently 5 percent.
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STATE EMPLOYEES ANDTEACHERSPENSIONPLAN SPECIFICS

The System'’s retirement programs provide retirement benefits basedrirerseaverage final compensation and
creditable service. Vesting occurs upon the earning of five yeasrate credit or the earning of one year of
service credit immediately preceding retirement at or after nostiE@ment age. Normal retirement age for State
employees and teachers is age 60, 62 or 65. The normal retirageeist determined by whether a member had
met certain creditable service requirements on specific dagesstablished by statute. The monthly benefit is
reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age thamber is below her/his normal retirement
age at retirement. The System also provides disability ant/subenefits, which are established by statute for
State employee and teacher members, and by contract with otheippting employers under applicable
statutory provisions.

PARTICIPATING LOCAL DISTRICTSPLAN SPECIFICS

In the event that a PLD withdraws from the System, its individegll@yee-members can terminate membership
or remain contributing members. The PLD remains liable for contibsitsufficient to fund benefits for its
already retired former employee-members; for its terminagstied members; and for those active employees,
whether or not vested, who remain contributing System members.

SPECIAL FUNDING SITUATION — TEACHERSDEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLAN
The State is legally responsible for contributions to the TeactmmpGhat covers retirees of other governmental
entities. The State is the sole “employer” contributor for the teachers; arefotbers acting as the employer.

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLANS

The funded status of each plan as of June 30, 2013, the most recent biennial actuartal dakeg is as follows:

(Expressed in Thousands)
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)lc)

UAAL (as a
Actuarial Accrued percentage of
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) — Unfunded AAL Annual Covered covered
Plans Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
SETP 9,238,577 11,889,897 2,651,320 77.1% 1,671,668  58.6%
PLD's 2,213,417 2,504,420 291,003 88.4% 459,854 63.3%
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The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementanatioh (RSI) following the notes to
the financial statements, present multi-year trend informatiamut whether the actuarial values of plan assets are
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for fitsneAdditional information as of the latest
actuarial valuation date follows:

SETP PLD's
Valuation date June 30, 2013 June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age
Version Individual Individual
Amortization method Level percent Level dollar
closed open
Remaining amortization period 15 ! 15
Asset valuation method 3 - Year smoothed 3 - Year smoothed
market market
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25% 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.50% 3.50% - 9.50%
Includes inflation at 3.50% 3.50%
Cost of living adjustments 2.55% 3.12%
Most recent review of plan
experience: 2011 2011

! The System amortizes the unfunded liability of the Stateteacher plan over a closed period that cannot be longer tlyaardlirom July 1, 1997 but may be, and at
certain times has been, shorter than that period. In 2000, the zationtiperiod was reduced to a 19-year period from June 30, 2002004 the Legislature
relengthened the period to 25 years, the full extent of the then-remaining Constityaiamsaor the 2004-2005 biennium, and reshortened the period effective July 1, 2005
to the 13 years that will then remain in the earlier shortened pdrid2D05, the State repealed the “sunset” provision, with the resulbthpetiod for reduction of these
unfunded actuarial liabilities continues to the full extent perthitie the State constitution, or June 30, 2028. The contribution ratfedd for 2010 was determined by

the 2008 valuation, and reflects the relengthened amortizatimdpefhe unfunded actuarial accrual liability of the judicial plaan®rtized over a period of which 4
years remained at June 30, 2013.

CONTRIBUTION RATES—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLANS

The Maine Constitution, Maine Statutes and the System's funding ppliayide for periodic employer
contributions at actuarially determined rates that, based upon cessaimptions, are expressed as percentages of
annual covered payroll and are sufficient to accumulate adequate assets toghigsy Wwhen due.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the contribution mgui® are the same as those used to
compute the standardized measure of the pension obligation.
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The actuarially determined contribution rates in effect for 2013 for jgatiog entities:

State
Employees * 7.65 - 8.65%
Employer ' 11.98 - 39.36%
Teachers
Employees 7.65%
Employer 13.85%
Participating Local Entities
Employees * 3.0-8.0%
Employer * 2.8-12.2%

! Contribution rates vary depending on specific terms of plan benefits for cdetsses of employees and/or, in the case of participating local distri@s)(PL
on benefit plan options selected by a particular participating local entity. With@natities’ contributions are set in dollar amounts, not as rates.

ANNUAL PENSIONCOST ANDNET PENSIONOBLIGATION
The State is one of several employers whose employees are 3ystebers. The State’s net pension obligation
shown at the end of the year includes the pension liability relatésléamployees. It does not include the pension

liability related to PLD’s. The State’s annual pension cost anderetion obligation to the System for the current
year were:

Net Pension Obligation
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual required contribution $ 264,381
Interest on net pension obligation 146
Adjustment to annual required contribution (167)
Annual pension cost 264,360
Contributions made 264,381
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (21)
Net pension obligation beginning of year 2,010
Net pension obligation end of year $ 1,989

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual Net

Pension Percentagz Pension
Year Cost Covered  Obligation
2013 $ 264,36C 100.01% $ 1,989
2012 252,812 100.019% 2,010
2011 328,127 101.77% 2,028

Employer contributions met actuarially determined contribution requiresme
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COMPONENTUNIT PARTICIPANTS

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Maritime Academy, and the Maingid® Employees Retirement
System have defined benefit pension plans. All are participlatiad entity participants in plans administered by
the Maine Public Employees Retirement System. For finame@drting purposes, employees of the Maine
Community College System, Maine Educational Center for the Deaf ardidfl Hearing, and the Northern New
England Passenger Rail Authority are combined with State empléyeestirement benefit purposes and are
included in the pension disclosures of the State.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTHCARE PLANS

The State sponsors and contributes to two defined benefit healthcare plans: gknjlergstan for its employees,
and county and municipal law enforcement officers and firefighterst(Responders). Each plan provides
medical benefits to eligible retired employees and benefisiariStatute prescribes what portion of health
insurance costs are funded by the State. The State also agheed #oset percentage of retiree healthcare costs
for teachers. Statute prescribes what portion of health insurance costsdae by the State.

The State of Maine funds postretirement health care benefitadsr retired State employees and legislators, as
authorized by Title 5 MRSA § 285, and for a portion of the premiums fohées, as authorized by Title 20-A
MRSA § 13451. Pursuant to Title 5 MRSA § 285 most retired employett®e dflaine Turnpike Authority,
Maine Community College System, Maine Maritime Academy, Maine € @ltiployees Retirement System, and
Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearinglagible to participate in the health plan but are
not funded by the State. Specifically excluded (Title 5 MRSA § 285 Ird8jreembers of the Maine Municipal
Association, Maine Teachers Association and employees of countids naunicipalities and their
instrumentalities, except as provided in subsection 11-A. TitlRBA § 286-M included retired county or
municipal law enforcement officers and municipal firefightassdefined in subsection 286-M, who patrticipate in
an employer-sponsored retirement plan and, prior to July 1, 2007 were eimrdalextlf-insured health benefits
plan offered by the employing county or municipality.

The State pays 100 percent of postretirement health insurance premistatef@mployee retirees who were first
employed on or before July 1, 1991. A pro rata portion, ranging from zermnpéoc retirees with less than five
years participation to 100 percent for retirees with ten or mores y&faparticipation, is paid for eligible
individuals first employed after July 1, 1991. Per Title 5 MRSA § 28&agpaphs 2 and 3, coverage depends
upon terms and conditions contained in collective bargaining agreemehtshwitState Health Commission.
Retirees who are not eligible for Medicare retain coveragbeérsame group health plan as active employees.
Retirees must pay for Medicare Part B coverage to be eligilgarticipate in the State-funded Companion Plan.
Coverage for retirees ineligible for Medicare includes basic tadigaition; supplemental major medical and
prescription drugs; and costs for treatment of mental health, alcoholismylzstdree abuse.

Effective January 1, 2006, the State contribution to retired teachén peainiums was increased to 45 percent of
the retiree-only premium. The rate is based on a single rasinffle and employee plus children coverage, or 50
percent of the two party rate for two party and family coverage.

For State employees and teachers, other options exist. Pagrtipi@yees are eligible for prorated benefits with
retirees who worked 50 percent or more of full-time hours receiving 100 perdbethdnefit. Surviving spouses
and dependents may continue in the plan and pay 100 percent of the premitirees Reeligible for a State
contribution are allowed to participate and pay the retiree premium.
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County and municipal law enforcement officers and municipal firefightegan coverage in Fiscal Year 2008
with the State contributing 45 percent of the retiree-only premiuthedf respective plans. The State’s premium
subsidy is based on the Title 5 MRSA § 285 paragraph 11-A C cost oftite=’seshare of the individual
premium for the standard plan identified and offered under the grolih iresurance plan in which the retiree
enrolls. The State subsidy ends after the retiree is eliffiblMedicare. First Responders are eligible if they
retire after age 50 with 25 or more years of service and reagigrement benefit from either the MPERS or a
defined contribution plan. If retirees have fewer than 25 years\a€sgethe normal retirement benefit must be at
least 50 percent of final average compensation. Retirees nugiaalipate in their employer’s health insurance
plan or other fully insured health plan for at least 5 years. dRstican elect to participate in the plan at their
retirement date. If participation is waived at that time, the retireeiigjible to participate at a later date.

The State also administers a fourth defined benefit healthcare plaiilg@r@roup Plan), which covers two non-
major discretely presented component units.  Under the Ancillary Gptarp the State acts as the plan
administrator only.

Beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, each participating emplayeequired by GASB Statement
45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employer for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, to
disclose additional information with regard to funding policy, the emplsyerhual OPEB cost and contributions
made, the funded status and funding progress of the employer’s individual péaactarial methods and
assumptions used.

PLAN MEMBERSHIP
Membership in the four healthcare plans is as follows:

State Employee:s Teachers First Respondsars Ancillary Group
Actives 12,419 28,375 741 63
Retirees 9,587 9,520 80 13
Total 22,006 37,895 821 76
Number of employers L 2
Contributing entities 1 1 2

STATE EMPLOYEESPLAN FUNDING POLICY

Title 5 MRSA § 286-B authorized an Irrevocable Trust Fund for Othet-dfogloyment Benefits to meet the
State’s unfunded liability obligations for retiree health benéditeligible participants who are the beneficiaries
of the irrevocable trust fund. Annually, beginning with the fiscal wtating July 1, 2007, the Legislature shall
appropriate funds to meet the State’s obligations under any groliip pl@a, policy or contract purchased by the
State Employee Health Commission. Unfunded liabilities may notrbated except those resulting from
experience losses. Unfunded liability resulting from experiencesassst be retired over a period not to exceed
10 years. The unfunded liability for retiree health benefits forlddigharticipants must be retired in 30 years or
less from July 1, 2007.

Public Law 2007, Chapter 240, amended Title 5 Chapter 421 by establishingtoeable Trust for Other Post-
employment Benefits. MPERS holds and invests long-term funds inréwodable trust fund. Its fiduciary
responsibilities include setting investment policy in order to fund the pt accordance with a projected
disbursement schedule that does not begin before the year 2027.
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TEACHERSPLAN AND FIRST RESPONDERSPLAN FUNDING

A special funding situation exists for these plans. The Statwtistayily responsible for contributions to the
Teachers Plan and the First Responders Plan that cover the retirees of otlrengjoiad entities. The State is the
sole contributing entity for Teachers and the primary contributingyefar the First Responders, therefore,
making the contribution on behalf of the employing jurisdictions at a 45 percentdetie¢fcurrent portion of the
health plan costs and are not included in the Trust.

Public Law 2011, Chapter 380 Pt. Y 8§ 2 established separate Irrevocabtd-linds for Other Post-employment
Benefits to meet the State’s unfunded liability obligations fareethealth benefits for eligible participants who
are the beneficiaries of the irrevocable trust funds. Annually, begimiihghe fiscal year starting July 1, 2011,
the Legislature shall appropriate funds to meet the Stategatibhs to retire the unfunded liability for eligible

first responders in 30 years or less from July 1, 2007. Annually, beginitimghe fiscal year starting July 1,

2013, the Legislature shall appropriate funds to meet the Stat@atabis to retire the unfunded liability at June
30, 2006 for eligible teachers in 30 years or less from July 1, 2007.

No implied subsidy is calculated for either plan. The Stats doepay for any of the costs of active employees.
The State limited its contribution to 45 percent of the retiree-only premium.

ANCILLARY GROUPPLAN

The following plan, administered by the State, is financially indeperaled is not included in the State Retiree
Health Internal Service Fund. This multiple-employer agent postempiayibemefit plan covers 13 retirees of
two non-major component units: Maine Educational Center for the &ehHard of Hearing and the Northern
New England Passenger Rail Authority. All active employees pratein the State Employee Group Health
Insurance Plan. All eligible retired employees who elect coveasg@cluded in this plan. The State Employee
Health Commission establishes premiums annually.

ANNUAL OPEBCosT

Contribution requirements are set forth in statute. The annual otheempbyment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual requirddutiontiof the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of CG&®Bment 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal adstyear and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period notdeeexthirty years. The State’s annual
OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for each plan arews:foll

(Expressed in Thousands)

First

State Employees Teachers Responders
Annual required contribution $ 94,00 $ 44,000 $ 1,689
Interest on net OPEB obligation 4,000 7,000 146
Adjustment to annual required contribution (11,000) (14,000) (272)
Annual OPEB cost 87,000 37,000 1,563
Contributions made 68,000 25,000 577
Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation 000¢, 12,000 986
Net healthcare obligation beginning of year 92,228 173,956 3,658
Net healthcare obligation end of year $ 111,228% 185,956 $ 4,644
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The annual OPEB cost for the current year, the percentage of &RE& cost contributed to the plan, and the
net OPEB (asset) obligation for each plan are as follows:

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual Percentage Net

Year OPEB of OPEB Cost OPEB

Plan Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
State Employees 6/30/2013 87,000 78.16% 111,228
6/30/2012 123,000 59.359% 92,223
6/30/2011 119,000 71.439% 42,223
Teachers 6/30/2013 37,000 67.57% 185,956
6/30/2012 49,000 44.90% 173,956
6/30/2011 58,000 31.03%% 146,956
First Responders 6/30/2013 1,553 36.92¢% 4,644
6/30/2012 1,254 34.61% 3,658
6/30/2011 845 61.89% 2,838

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2013 was as follows:

(C)] (b) (b-2) (arb) © (b-a)ic)

UAAL (as a
Actuarial Annual percentage of

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered covered

Plan Valuation Date Value of Assets Liability AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
State Employees June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
(in millions) June 30, 2011 112 1,544 1,432 7.25% 567 252.56%
Teachers June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
(in millions) June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
June 30, 2011 0 801 801 0.00% 1,098 72.95%
June 30, 2012 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
First Responders June 30, 2011 0 21,921 21,921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%
(in thousands)  June 30, 2010 0 19,158 19,158 0.00% 53,821 35.60%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repoatmounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amoumtsuliject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimateadegeabout the future. The required schedule of
funding progress presented as required supplementary information pnesdtigear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing oradawgeover time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.
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ACTUARIAL METHODS ANDASSUMPTIONS

Projection of benefits are based on the terms of the substantive plan rtetlod dach valuation and include types

of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of shariegsts between the employer and plan

members to that point.  Actuarial calculations reflectoagiterm perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatibtgtirarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Valuation date

State Employees

Teachers

First Responders

June 30, 2013

June 30, 2013

June 30, 2012

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age rmorm Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent Level percent Leparicent
closed closed closed
Remaining amortization period - UAAL 24 24 25
Plan changes 30-year fixed 30-year fixed 20-year fixed
Actuarial (gains) /losses 10-year fixed 15-yeardixe rolling 15 year period
Asset valuation method investment gains and losses a n n/a
spread over a 5 - year periad
no less than 80% nor more
than 120% of market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
7.25% ultimate 7.25% ultimate
Projected salary increases 3.25% 3.25% 3.00%
Inflation rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Healthcare inflation rate initial - actual premisi initial - actual premiums 8.50%
ultimate 5.00% ultimate 5.00% ultimate 5.00%
Former actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 4.50%
Projected salary increases 3.75%
Inflation rate 3.75%
Healthcare inflation rate 8.00%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTINGPOLICIES
The State’s fiduciary financial statements are prepared oratbmual basis of accounting. Premiums are
recognized when due and benefits are paid when incurred using the hesisalf accounting. Premium refunds

reduce premium revenue and claims recoveries reduce clapaase. Investment income is recognized when

earned.
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CONTRIBUTIONS AND RESERVES

The State Employees Health Insurance Committee estabtishggutions to the plan by member employers and
employees annually. Both active and retired members pay the samarpreate. Claims liabilities of the plan
are periodically computed using statistical techniques to estgipéshium rates. Administrative costs of the plan
are allocated to plan participants.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that ddvawat an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of shares in managed invespoels is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including real ektdtings and mortgage participation agreements,
are based on third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the spon$@r afréement. Investment
purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date.edBroslated to securities sold not yet purchased are
carried as a liability and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.

POSTRETIREMENT GROUPLIFE INSURANCEBENEFIT PLAN

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System, (the System)casnponent unit of the State of Maine. For
financial reporting purposes, the System administers an agent, mahipleyer, defined benefit Group Life
Insurance Plan (GLIP) administered by a third party insuranceawyrin accordance with Title 5 MRSA C. 423
and 425. Members include employees of the State, public school empldgéasd by Maine law as teachers
and for whom the State acts like the employer for retirementribution and benefit purposes), members of the
Judiciary and the Legislature, that are eligible for membgirishthe System. Group life insurance benefits are
also provided to employees of 296 local municipalities and other putilieee (Participating Local Districts, or
PLDs) in Maine that elect to participate under provisions of thevaat statutes. The System issues a publicly
available comprehensive annual financial report that includes finastai@ments and required supplementary
information (RSI) for the plan. The June 30, 2013 report may be obtaimedilie Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333.

The Plan provides Basic group life insurance benefits, during retimeno retirees who participated in the group
life insurance plan prior to retirement for a minimum of 10 yedise 10 year participation requirement does not
apply to recipients of disability retirement benefits. The |l@fetoverage in retirement is initially set to an
amount equal to the retiree’s average final compensation. Tle anitount of Basic group life insurance benefit
is then subsequently reduced at the rate of 15 percent per ykargieater of 40 percent of the initial amount or
$2,500.

Group life insurance funds managed by the System are constituticestligted and held in trust for the payment
of benefits to participants or their beneficiaries. The SysteBward of Trustees, in its fiduciary capacity,
establishes the System’s investment policies and their ovenalkmentation. The System maintains separate
reserves and accounts for each participating entity and perfa@imgla actuarial valuation that provides separate
data for each participating entity.

BASIS OFACCOUNTING

The System’s financial statements are prepared on the accrimldbaaccounting. Premiums paid, by or on
behalf of those covered, are set and collected by the Systeminstinance company makes benefit payments.
The System remits payments to the insurance company for premiutastembl plus additional payments
representing administrative fees.

Group life insurance premiums are recognized as additions ipettied when they become due. Investment
income is recognized when earned. Employer contributions are reedguien due and the employer has made
a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Group ilifeurance benefits and premium refunds are
recognized as deductions when due and payable in accordance withsSthatwddition, an estimate is made for
group life insurance death benefits incurred before year end but notecepmthe System until after year end.
Group life insurance death benefits incurred but not reported are reflectdebababilities.



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that ddvawet an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of shares in managed invespoels is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including real ebtdtings and mortgage participation agreements,
are based on third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the spon$@r afréement. Investment
purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date.edBroslated to securities sold not yet purchased are
carried as a liability and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.

FUNDING PoLicy

Premium rates are those determined by the System’s Boardusfe@s to be actuarially sufficient to pay
anticipated claims and cover administrative costs. For Staptogee, legislative and judicial classes, the
premiums for retiree life insurance coverage are factoredth@opremiums paid for Basic coverage while
participants are active members. The State remits premiumsnglarsite that supports basic coverage for active
and retired State employees. This rate is $.56 per month for every $1 8®erage. Premiums for retiree life
insurance coverage for retired teachers are paid by the Stat dras rate of $.33 per $1,000 of coverage per
month during the post-employment retirement period.

ANNUAL OPEBCOST

Contribution requirements are set forth in statute. The annual ptstremployment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual requirddutiontiof the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters oBGR&ement 45. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover narostl each year and to amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period notdeeexthirty years. The State’s annual
OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for each plas fméows:

(Expressed in Thousands)

State

Employees Teachers
Annual required contribution $ 4592 $ 3,099
Interest on net OPEB obligation (136)
Adjustment to annual required contribution 106 -
Annual OPEB cost 4,562 3,099
Contributions made 4,673 3,099
Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation (111)
Net healthcare (asset) obligation beginning of year (1,760)
Net healthcare (asset) obligation end of year $ (1,871%
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State of Maine

The State’s OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost cordributee plan, and the net OPEB obligation are
as follows:

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Expressed in Thousands)

Annual Percentage Net
Year OPEB of OPEB Cost OPEB
Plan Ended Cost Contributed (Asset)
State Employees 6/30/2013 4,562 102.43% (1,871)
6/30/2012 3,224 145.29% (1,760)
6/30/2011 4,268 89.22% (300)
Teachers 6/30/2013 3,099 100.00% -
6/30/2012 2,959 100.00% -
6/30/2011 2,532 100.00% -
FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2013 was as follows:
(Expressed in Thousands)
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© (b-a)lc)
Actuarial UAAL (as a
Accrued Annual percentage of
Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Covered covered
Plan Valuation Date Value of Assets  (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2013 27,000 83,800 56,800 32.22% 572,800 9.92%
State Employees June 30, 2012 24,700 80,900 56,200 30.53% 553,500 10.15%
June 30, 2011 24,400 78,700 54,300 31.00% 623,600 8.71%
June 30, 2013 36,000 74,200 38,200 48.52% 652,800 5.85%
Teachers June 30, 2012 30,100 71,000 40,900 42.39% 630,800 6.48%
June 30, 2011 27,800 67,600 39,800 41.12% 659,100 6.04%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of repoateounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amoumtsuaject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimateadegeabout the future. The required schedule of
funding progress presented as required supplementary information presdtinteamtrend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing oradewgeover time relative to the actuarial accrued
liability for benefits.
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ACTUARIAL METHODS ANDASSUMPTIONS

Projection of benefits are based on the terms of the substantive plan rtetlod dach valuation and include types
of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of shariegsts between the employer and plan
members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-tperspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatibitgtirarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Valuation date June 30, 201=

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percent
open

Asset valuation method market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.25%
Inflation rate 3.50%
Cost of living increases in life benefits N/A
Participation percent for future retirees 100.00%
Form of benefit payment lump sum

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The State records its liability for general obligation bonds in the Governndartbaties column on the Statement
of Net Position. Other long-term obligations recognized by the Btatede: revenue bonds issued by the Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority, a blended component unit; obligatiodsr Certificates of Participation and
other financing arrangements; loans payable to component unit for ragagmeonds issued by the Maine
Municipal Bond Bank on behalf of the Maine Department of Transpomtatiompensated employee absences;
and the State’s net pension obligation; other post-employment Iserefit obligations for pollution remediation
and landfill closure and post-closure care costs.

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Programs for which the State issues general obligation bonds incddetive equipment loan programs;

environmental cleanup and protection; highway and transportation relatedqraggccultural and small business

job creation; and acquisition, construction, and renovation of majoratdadtlities including State parks and

historic sites. General obligation bonds are secured by the fiill dad credit of the State. Debt service
requirements are provided by legislative appropriation from the'St@aeral tax revenues and are repaid in
annual installments beginning not more than one year after issuance.



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Changes in general obligation bonds of the primary government during fiscal year 2013 were:
Primary Government - Changes in General Obligation Bond
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013 One Year

General Obligation Debt:

General Fund $ 347,090 $ - $ 85,595 $ 261,495 67845
Special Revenue Fund 124,965 - 16,735 30 108,2 16,035
Total $ 472,055 $ - $ 102,330 $ 369,725 $ 80 83,4

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for all audéhg general obligation bonds of the primary
government, from June 30, 2013 until maturity, are summarized in the following table:

Future Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal

Year Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 83,480 $ 14,704 $ 98,184

2015 69,650 11,886 81,536

2016 54,340 9,411 63,751

2017 49,105 7,102 56,207

2018 42,995 4,879 47,874
2019 - 2022 70,155 5,731 75,886

Total $ 369,725 $ 53,713 $ 423,438
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General fund, special revenue and other general obligation bonds issliedtstanding at June 30, 2013 are as
follows:

Primary Government — General Obligation Bonds Outstanding
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
Maturities
Amounts Outstanding First Last Interest
Issued June 30, 2013 Year Year Rates

General Fund:
Series 2004 $ 117,275 6,520 2005 2014 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2005 137,525 30,620 2006 2015 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2006 52,390 15,705 2007 2016 4.00% - 5.51%
Series 2007 33,975 13,580 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Series 2008 46,525 23,250 2009 2018 3.00% - 5.13%
Series 2009 96,035 52,240 2011 2019 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2010 31,755 17,360 2011 2020 1.41% - 4.00%
Series 2011 86,010 59,585 2012 2021 1.625% - 5.00%
Series 2012 49,265 42,635 2013 2022 1.00% - 5.00%

Total General Fund $ 261,495

Special Revenue Fund:
Series 2004 $ 13,000 $ 725 2005 2014 2.00% - 4.00%
Series 2007 27,000 10,800 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Series 2008 57,550 28,775 2009 2018 3.00% - 5.13%
Series 2009 37,310 27,760 2011 2019 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2010 25,080 22,475 2011 2020 1.41% - 4.00%
Series 2011 22,125 17,695 2012 2021 1.625% - 5.00%

Total Special Revenue $ 108,230

AUTHORIZED UNISSUEDBONDS

Any bonds not issued within five years of the date of ratification mayp@assued after that date. Within two
years after expiration of the five-year period, the Legislatureextgnd, by a majority vote, the five-year period
for an additional five years or may deauthorize the bonds. If thelhtagie fails to take action within those two
years, the bond issue shall be considered to be deauthorized and nobomthemay be issued. At June 30,
2013, general obligations bonds authorized and unissued totaled $104.6 million.

REVENUE BONDS OF THEM AINE GOVERNMENTAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

The State included $199.9 million in other financing arrangementsléztreévenue bonds issued by the Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA), a blended component unit. Payof the bonds is subject to, and
dependent upon, biennial appropriations being made by the State Legislineissued by MGFA is not debt
of the State or any political subdivision within the State. Tta¢eSs not obligated for such debt, nor is the full
faith and credit of the State pledged for such debt. MGFA may na securities in excess of $325.5 million
outstanding, at any one time, except for the issuance of certain revenue refunditigsecur
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, MGFA issued Series 2013A Bondsfatdilied $30.3 million at an
interest rate between 2.00 percent and 5.00 percent. At June 30, 20&3wé¢nerno MGFA in-substance
defeased bonds outstanding.

CERTIFICATES OFPARTICIPATION AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The State uses financing companies, Certificates of Parianip&OP’s), and lease/purchase agreements to
finance construction of certain State buildings, to purchase or gesefatare, and to purchase equipment and
vehicles, including school buses. COP’s are issued through a trustebeaState is responsible for payments to
the trustee that approximate the interest and principal paymewts ta the certificate holders. The State and
school districts maintain custody and use of the assets; however, the trakls a lien as security until such time
as the certificates are fully paid.

Neither COP’s nor the other financing arrangements constitggah diebt, liability, or contractual obligation in
excess of amounts appropriated. The State’s obligation to make miragments or any other obligation under
agreements is subject to, and dependent upon, appropriations being madednidla¢ute. The Legislature has
no obligation to appropriate the money for future minimum payments or other obligationgnopdgreement.

SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine did not issue or retire Bond Anticipation Notesmgldiscal year 2013. Short-term
obligations are used to meet temporary operating cash flow needrin@&30, 2013 there were no outstanding
Tax Anticipation Notes or Bond Anticipation Notes.

OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In general, expenditures and fund liabilities are not recorded in govetamends for long-term obligations until
amounts owed are “due and payable.” Fund liabilities are recorded praprietary funds when obligations are
incurred. In the Statement of Net Position, the State has rectodg-term obligations for its compensated
employee absences, net pension obligation, other post-employment benefitianigjgpollution remediation
landfill closure and post-closure care costs.
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Changes in other long-term obligations for governmental and business-tigpgeacfor the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2013, are summari

zed as follows:

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Primary Government - Changes in Other Long-Termigaions
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 One Year
Governmental Activities:
MGFA Revenue Bonds $ 187,865 $ 290, $ 18,245 $ 199,910 $ 18,290
COP’s and Other Financing 52,097 26,750 30,909 7,988 14,987
Compensated Absences 42,054 4,088 4,430 AR 5,969
Claims Payable 64,323 188,31 182,176 70,464 29,826
Capital Leases 29,778 33,2 9,040 38,975 5,944
Loans Payable to Component
Unit 328,131 - 24,086 304,045 24,884
Net Pension Obligation 2,010 264,360 264,381 ,98D -
Other Post-Employment
Benefit Obligation 266,705 221621 91,265 298,061 -
Pollution Remediation and Landfill 8,880 5,500 2,248 32,132 -
Total Governmental Activities $ 1,001,843 $60,163 $ 626,780 $ 1,035,226 $ 99,900
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences $ 1,589 $ 209 $ 1,380 $ 166
Other Post-Employment
Benefit Obligation 3,137 2,942 2,312 3,767 -
Total Business-Type Activities $ 4,726 $ 2,942 $ 2,521 $ 5,147 $ 166

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for COR&s agher financing arrangements of the primary

government, from June 30, 2013 until maturity, are summarized as follows:

Future Debt Service on MGFA Revenue Bonds, COP’s and OtimamEing Arrangements
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Funds

Internal Service Funds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 2,601 $ 81 $ 2,682 $ 30,676 $ 8,695 $ 39,371
2015 2,033 47 2,080 28,361 7,915 36,276
2016 1,359 28 1,387 26,384 6,951 33,335
2017 860 16 876 23,919 6,023 29,942
2018 870 7 877 19,312 5,168 24,480

2019 - 2023 - - - 57,187 16,417 73,604

2024 - 2028 - - - 30,790 8,427 39,217

2029 - 2033 - - - 21,300 2,395 23,695

2034 - 2038 - - - 2,196 43 2,239
Total $ 7,723 $ 179 $ 7,902 $ 240,125 $ 62,034 $ 302,159
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LOANSPAYABLE TO COMPONENTUNIT

The State of Maine has pledged various revenue streams, as struBtant Anticipation Bonds (GARVEE)
and Transportation Infrastructure Revenue Bonds (TransCap) issued byathe Municipal Bond Bank
(MMBB) on behalf of the Maine Department of Transportation to profiitencing for qualified transportation
projects.

Changes in GARVEE and TransCap revenue bonds during fiscal year 2013 were:

Primary Government - Changes in GARVEE and TransCap Loans Rayab
(Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Retirements June 30, 2013 One Year
Loans Payable to Components Unit:
Federal Funds $ 108,251 $ - $ 12,292 $ 95,959 $ 12,712
Special Revenue Fund 219,880 - 11,794 208,086 12,172
Total $ 328,131 $ - $ 24,086 $ 304,045 $ 24,884

Payment of principal and interest on the GARVEE bonds shall be subjeppropriation each year by the
Legislature in an amount sufficient to cover the principal and stteegjuirements of MMBB'’s debt for these
bonds. The State’s receipt of these funds is subject to continuinglfageropriations. MMBB insured payments
of principal and interest with a financial guaranty insurance politye Bonds do not constitute a debt or
obligation of the State.

Principal and interest on TransCap bonds are payable solely from pledgedies, pledged rights, and pledged
TransCap funds and accounts. Pledged revenues include certain motde vegistration and other fees, a
portion of excise tax on gasoline and other special fuel, andrcarteounts required to be transferred from the
Highway Fund. All pledged revenues are required to be transferred firaheCap Fund. The bonds do not
constitute a debt or liability of the State.
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GARVEE and TransCap Revenue bonds issued and outstanding at June 30, 2013 are as follows:

GARVEE and TransCap Revenue Bonds Outstanding
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Maturities

Amounts Outstanding First Last Interest
Issued June 30, 2013 Year Year Rates
Federal Funds:
Series 2004 $ 48,395 $ 96,2 2005 2015 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2008 50,000 ,685 2009 2020 3.25% - 4.00%
Series 2010A 25,915 9,845 2011 2017 2.00% - 5.00%
Series 2010B 24,085 4,085 2018 2022 4.52% - 5.32%
Total Federal Funds $ 94,825
Special Revenue Fund:
Series 2008 $ 50,000 $ 29,0 2009 2023 3.00% - 5.50%
Series 2009A 105,000 ,280 2010 2023 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2009B 30,000 7,50 2010 2024 2.00% - 5.00%
Series 2011A 55,000 4,080 2012 2026 2.00% - 5.00%
Total Special Revenue $ 208,925

Total principal and interest requirements over the life of the Z®RVEE bonds are $60.2 million, with annual
requirements of up to $5.6 million; for the 2008 GARVEE bonds total prineipdlinterest requirements are
$63.1 million, with annual requirements of up to $5.3 million; for 2010 GARVEBEdb total principal and
interest requirements are $66.3 million, with annual requiresnentp to $5.3 million. Federal transportation
funds received by the State for the federal fiscal year pregele issuance of the 2004 GARVEE bonds totaled
$175 million. Total federal highway transportation funds received in fefiecal year 2013 were $223 million.
Current year payments to MMBB for GARVEE bonds were $15.9 million (7.2eperof federal highway
transportation funds received).

Total principal and interest requirements over the life of the 2008 Trans@epuweeBond are $71.9 million, with
annual requirements up to $4.8 million. Total principal and interestregnents over the life of the 2009A
TransCap Revenue Bonds are $144.3 million, with annual requirements $40t million; for the 2009B
TransCap Revenue Bonds total principal and interest requireme®é6afemillion, with annual requirements up
to $16.9 million. Total principal and interest requirements oveliftnef the 2011A TransCap Revenue Bond are
$84.2 million, with annual requirements up to $20.3 million. Total revenuévegcéor revenue sources used as
pledged revenues were $40.0 million in fiscal year 2013.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

The State leases various assets under non-cancelable leagsingearents. Leases that constitute rental
agreements are classified as operating leases; the regxiiagditures are recognized as incurred over the lease
term. Leases that are comparable to purchases are classified @ldezgats.

In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, assets hbifilearesulting from capital leases are
recorded at lease inception. The principal portion of lease paymeehtses the liability; the interest portion is
expensed.

Most leases have cancellation clauses in the event that fundima &vailable. For reporting purposes, such
cancellation clauses are not considered because the likelihoatthelawill be exercised is considered remote.
Some lease agreements include renewal or purchase optionseffétieof such options is reflected in the

minimum lease payments only if it is considered reasonably asthatan option will be exercised. Because the
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accounting treatment for installment purchase agreements igrsimich agreements are reported with capital
leases.

Leases that exist between the State and the Maine Governmawthties Authority (MGFA), a blended
component unit, are not recorded as leases in this report. tredipeirately issued financial statements, MGFA
records a lease receivable from the State. Although payatteseaeivables technically exist between these
parties, when combined for government-wide reporting, they are elidin&dong-term liability exists on the
government-wide statements for the bonds issued by MGFA to consteuassets associated with the leases.
Future payments to MGFA are, therefore, not included in the schedule of lease cemmbgiow.

At June 30, 2013 capital assets include capitalized buildings of $7di@dhrm Governmental Activities, net of
related accumulated depreciation of $39.5 million.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATINGLEASES

The State is obligated under certain leases, accounted for asirmpégases, in the proprietary funds. Operating
leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations, and therskiseaasl liabilities related to the lease
agreements are not recorded in the State’s financial statemBetal expense incurred under operating leases
totaled $2.9 million during the year.

A summary of the operating and non-cancelable capital lease commitmentsittibyrfalows:
Future Minimum Lease Payments

Capital and Operating Leases
(Expressed in Thousands)

Capital Operating
Fiscal Year Leases Leases
2014 $ 5,944 $ 3,138
2015 5,318 2,726
2016 4,810 2,269
2017 4,449 1,765
2018 4,363 1,487
2019 - 2023 13,341 4,054
2024 - 2028 4,629 818
2029 - 2033 2,299 754
2034 - 2038 - 752
2039 - 2043 - 837
2044- 2048 - 916
2049 - 2053 - 712
Total Minimum Payments 45,153 $ 20,228
Less: Amount Representing Interest 6,178
Present Value of Future Minimum Payments $ 38,975

MGFA REVENUE BONDS, COP’s AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

MGFA revenue bonds will be liquidated by the MGFA Internal Service Finadh revenues received through
lease agreements with various governmental funds. The liabilitpdos payable to the component unit will be
liquidated from the Federal Fund and Highway Fund. The vast majority d¥’sC@nd other financing
arrangements will be liquidated by the internal service fund inhwtiie leases are recorded; the General and
Highway Funds will pay relatively small amounts.
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CLAIMS PAYABLE

Claims payable that represent Medicaid claims will be painh flee General Fund and Federal Fund. Claims
payable that represent workers’ compensation and retiree/emgiepdtd will be liquidated by the applicable
governmental and internal service funds that account for the satamitwages of the related employees. Other
claims and judgments attributable to governmental activities wiligogdated by the General Fund and related
special revenue funds.

COMPENSATEDABSENCES

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statencompensated absences are reported
as long-term liabilities as required by GASB. In the governmefuad financial statements, vested or
accumulated leave is reported as an expenditure and fund liabilityimtened upon retirement, termination or
death. Sick and vacation payments made to terminated employeéswase 30, 2013 but paid after the fiscal
year end is also reported in the funds.

COMPONENTUNITS

Bonds payable of the discretely presented component units are legatiotdige the component units and are
not general obligations of the State. The following table suimasbonds outstanding for selected material
balances of discretely presented component units, as reported inepaiately issued financial statements,
utilizing their respective fiscal year-ends:

Component Unit Bonds Outstanding
(Expressed in Thousands)

Component Unit Interest Rates Amount Maturity Dates
Finance Authority of Maine 1.00% 1,457 2013 - 2025
Maine Community College System 3.0-5.0% 23,945 2013 - 2037
Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority 1.25-6.2% 1,195,220 2013 - 2040
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 5-6.1% 1,482,764 2013 - 2043
Maine State Housing Authority 0.85-5.45% 1,333,150 2013 - 2042
Maine Turnpike Authority 2.0-6.0% 466,864 2013 - 2042
University of Maine System 2.0-5.75% 177,910 2013 - 2037

At June 30, 2013, MHHEFA had approximately $6.9 million of in-substanceasifebonds remaining
outstanding with respect to advance refunded conduit debt of bond issues of the genetiairesol

In periods of declining interest rates, MHHEFA has refunded its ldnidgations, reducing aggregate debt
service. The proceeds of the refunding bonds were principally used to puktisasGovernment securities that
will provide for future payment on the debt. On May 23, 2013, MHHEFA issudd) $@illion of reserve
resolution bonds with an average interest rate of 4.44 pemenisubstance defease $73.0 million of various
outstanding bonds. The net proceeds of $74.4 million were used to purcBaggoMernment securities that will
provide for future payment on the debt. The economic benefits assouwighethe refunding inure to the
respective institutions. At June 30, 2013 there were approximately@®b@Bon of in-substance defeased bonds
remaining outstanding with respect to all advance-refunding issues within thesries®l resolution.

On May 23, 2013, UMS issued $65.3 million in revenue bonds to currently refund $ili@8 im revenue bonds

and to advance refund $61.3 million in revenue bonds. UMS completed tinelingf to reduce its total debt
service payments over the following 22 years by $10.5 million and tonoétanomic gain (difference between
the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $ifoh.miThe principal amount of debt
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refunded through in-substance defeasance was $72.0 million. The amountstihding at June 30, 2013 was
$61.3 million. Refunding proceeds of $77.0 million were placed in amwsaccount to pay the interest due on
the refunded bonds and to retire the bonds on their respective mdatgs/which range from fiscal year 2013
through fiscal year 2015. The escrow is invested to yield enough eamipgyg required future payments, which
are $66.3 million as of June 30, 2013. The refunding resulted in a defaroeataof refunding of $4.8 million
which represents the difference between the reacquisition price andrthegaalue of the refunded bonds.

In periods of declining interest rates, MMBB has refunded its bond adbligatreducing aggregate debt service.
Where allowed, the bank retires outstanding bonds prior to their contnaattuaity. In other cases, the proceeds
of the refunding bonds were principally used to purchase U.S. Governmaertiegcthat will provide for future
payment on the debt. During the current year, MMBB issued $42.0 milli@eoéral Tax-Exempt Series 2012
FG Bonds consisting of $30.2 million in tax-exempt and $11.8 million in taxable hatidan average interest
rate of 4.65 percent and 1.57 percent; respectively, to in-substanesed&#2.7 million of various outstanding
bonds with an average interest rate of 5.01 percent. Although the in-sgbstefemsance resulted in the
recognition of a deferred accounting loss of approximately $5.6 million, MifB&fect reduced its aggregate
debt service payments by approximately $4.6 million over the next 2% gedrobtained an economic gain of
approximately $4.0 million. Future debt service requirements vesheced $2.4 million. At June 30, 2013 the
remaining balances of the General Tax-Exempt Fund Group and CleanR&atdving Loan Fund in-substance
defeased bonds total approximately $161.6 million and $16.2 million, respectively.

For the period ended December 31, 2012, MSHA redeemed prior to ma@ityldmillion of its Mortgage

Purchase Fund Group bonds and $1.5 million of its Housing Finance Revenue BupdbGnds from surplus
revenues and the proceeds of refunding bonds. Mortgage Purchase Fund I&isésnaflion and Housing

Finance Revenue Fund Group losses of $24 thousand were attributaldegmitien of the bond discount and
debt issuance expenses associated with the redeemed bonds.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, MTA issued $84.2 million of 26128 Revenue Refunding Bonds.
The proceeds from the bonds were used to in-substance defease $89nlomBeries 2003 and Series 2004
bonds outstanding. The reacquisition price exceeded the carrymgnaof the old debt by $6.4 million. This
amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized oveetbétlife old debt. The transaction resulted
in a reduction in future debt service payments of $10.7 million and an economic gain will8r8

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for ndista bonds of the discretely presented
component units:

Component Units Principal Maturities
(BExpressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ending FAME MMBB MCCS MSHA MTA ums MHHEFA
2014 $ 807 $ 125,029 $ 622 $ 14255 $ 15560 $ 10,662 $ 52,945
2015 57 121,985 649 36,220 17,820 12,164 58,050
2016 58 115,317 671 46,205 18,655 8,352 53,335
2017 58 109,094 698 44,985 19,445 8,674 53,920
2018 59 105,559 729 49,830 20,365 9,118 54,050
2019 - 2023 303 452,430 4,121 279,455 83,890 42,186 279,200
2024 - 2028 115 306,576 5,198 291,930 97,980 35,750 256,275
2029 - 2033 - 105,955 6,265 259,685 92,505 35,175 216,375
2034 - 2038 - 8,740 4,352 233,025 49,450 8,495 145,380
2039 - 2043 - 2,465 - 88,180 23,025 - 25,690
2044 - 2048 - 75 - - - - -
Net unamortized premium
or (deferred amount) - 29,539 640 (10,620) 28,169 7,334

Total Principal Payments $ 1,457 $ 1,482,764 $ 23,945 $1,333,150 $ 466,864 $ 177,910 $1,195,220
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NOTE 12 - SELF-INSURANCE

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The State maintains several types of insurance plans and acamutiteri in two funds that are combined for
financial statement purposes as the Risk Management Fund. ThBl&iskement Division provides insurance
advice and services to State governmental agencies. The Statrigidrad Fund offers similar services to quasi-
governmental entities. Statute requires the Self-Insurance Fumel teplenished by appropriation if the fund
balance drops below $1 million. The State-Administered Fund balance has no simiioprd\owever, statutes
prevent it from being used for any purpose other than providing insurance services.

Insurance plans offered include property, vehicle, boat and aircraftciattrights, employee bonds, police
professionals, and a variety of other insurance products. These planinhigs of liability of as much as $2
million per occurrence.

In some cases the State purchases excess insurance to liBtiatiie liability for insured events. For example,
coverage for property damage is $400 million per occurrence. The rBtates $2 million of this risk per
occurrence. A private insurance carrier covers the remaining eiglegs insurance). Settled claims have not
exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Coverage, risk retention, and excess insurance amounts for major types of instaréistadebelow:

Coverage Risk Retention Excess Insurance

Type of Insurance Per Occurrence Per Occurrence Per Occurrence
Property * $400 million $ 2 million $400 million
Ocean Marine Boat Liability™ 10 million 10 thousand 10 million
Boiler and Machinery* 150 million 2 million 150 million
General Liability Including

Employment Practices 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Police Professionals 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Vehicular Liability? 400 thousand 400 thousand 600 thousand
Bonding 500 thousand 500 thousand none
Foster Parents 300 thousand 300 thousand none
Inland Marine (various policies) 500 thousand 500 thousand none
Aircraft Liability* 3 3 million none 3 million

* These lines of insurance have commercial excess insurance covering thossetha risk retention amount up to the per
occurrence amount listed. All other insurance programs are wholly selédhsur

1$10 million is the maximum limit for per occurrence coverage. Some agencieshmsen $400 thousand.

2Excess insurance is only for out of state travel.

3$3 million is the maximum limit for per occurrence coverage. Some agencieshuman $500 thousand.

The plan funds the cost of providing claims servicing and claims paywyeritarging a premium to each agency
based on a review of past losses and estimated losses for the current period.

All risk-financing liabilities are reported when it is probalhiatta loss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Claims liabilities represergstimated cost of claims as of March 31, 2012. This



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

cost of claims includes case reserves, the development of known claims, ditddhadministrative expenses for
settling specific claims.

Claims liabilities are determined on an actuarial basisariéé re-evaluation occurs to take into consideration
recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other ecoreomi social factors. Because actual claims
liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes indegaines, and damage awards, the process
used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount.

At March 31, 2013 and 2012, the present value of the claims payableef@tate’s self-insurance plan was
estimated at $4.0 million and $3.8 million, respectively. The actuacyleséd this based on the State’s rate on
investments.

Risk Management Fund
Changes in Claims Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

2013 2012
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 3,770 $ 3,872
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 686 1,253
Claims Payments 424 1,355
Liability at End of Year $ 4,032 $ 3,770

As of June 30, 2013, fund assets of $26.2 million exceeded fund liabilitisDMmillion by $21.7 million. The
portion of this amount that may be reserved for catastrophic losses has not been dktermine

B. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

The State is self-insured for unemployment compensation. As et deenbursement employer, the State
recognizes all costs for unemployment compensation as claammel. These costs totaled $1.5 million for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013

C.WORKERS COMPENSATION

Workers’ Compensation is accounted for in an Internal Service Furtdrfund premiums are treated as quasi-
external transactions. Each State agency is charged a prensathdrathe number of employees to be covered
plus an added amount to reduce the unfunded liability. The Legislaturs)dtiegi Council, and Law Library
employees are self-insured for workers’ compensation purposes. ThasStatees the full risk of all claims filed
for workers’ compensation.
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Claims liabilities are actuarially determined based on estismof the ultimate cost of claims, including future
claim adjustment expenses that have been incurred but not reporteldiemgdreported but not settled. Because
actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factorsmiiation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage
awards, the process used in computing claims liability does not agbesssult in an exact amount. Claims
liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into consitmatecently settled claims, the frequency of claims,
and other economic and social factors.

The balance of claims liabilities as of June 30, 2013:
Workers’ Compensation Fund

Changes in Claims Payable
(Expressed in Thousands)

2013 2012
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 42,113 $ 39,282
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 11,069 11,468
Claims Payments 9,335 8,637
Liability at End of Year $ 43,847 $ 42,113

Based on the actuarial calculation as of June 30, 2013, the<SSliatde for unfunded claims, and incurred but not
reported claims, of approximately $52.8 million. The discounted amow#38 million and was calculated
based on a 3.0 percent interest rate on investments.

D.EMPLOYEE HEALTH INSURANCE

The employee health and retiree health insurance programscarnted for in two Internal Service Funds. The
State became self insured for employee and retiree healtt@aemge on July 1, 2003. A stop loss agreement
with Aetna provides catastrophic coverage for individual claims exceeding $500 thousand.

The State retained third-party administration (TPA) serviceddtms administration, utilization review, and case
management services. Premium equivalents are paid to théod$dl upon rates established with the technical
assistance of the plan’s consulting actuary.

There are two primary health plans available. POS Il is a pbisg¢rvice plan available to all active employees
and retirees not eligible for Medicare. Smart Value is ditége Advantage plan available to Medicare eligible
retirees. Total enroliment averaged approximately 37,901 covwstedduals. This total includes 30,162 active
employees and dependents and 7,739 Medicare retirees and dependents.

Claims expenses are recorded when premiums are paid to the ekiwicing contractor. At the end of the
period, the total of these premium payments are compared withcthal claims paid and claims expense is
adjusted for any overage or shortage with an offsetting receivable oryiabddrded. For the period ending June
30, 2013 the State recorded a receivable of $10.1 million for an overpayment of eaftheeniums.
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Expenses and liabilities for incurred but not reported claims, basad antuarial analysis of claim lag pattern,
have been recorded as liabilities in the amount of $22.6 millionnggisain the Employee Health Insurance and
Retiree Health Insurance claims liability for the fiscal year ending June 30, 20&8sf¢ih thousands):

Employee Retiree
Health Fund Health Fund
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 13,830 $ 4,610
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 148,521 28,041
Claims Payments 145,412 27,005
Liability at End of Year $ 16,939 $ 5,646

The table above reflects actual activity of the employee healthretiree health insurance programs. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, certain costs reported abkovgeaglassified for financial statement
purposes. Retiree healthcare costs of $45.5 million were re@dssdm the internal service fund to the OPEB
Trust Fund, a fiduciary fund. Additionally, $14.0 million of active eoype healthcare costs was reclassified
from the internal service fund to the OPEB Trust Fund to reflect age-adjusted.cla

NOTE 13 -JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are independently constituted entities generallgareatwo or more governments for a specific
purpose. The State of Maine participates in two separate jointireeatrangements: the Tri-State Lotto
Commission (Commission) and the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL)

Tri-State Lotto Commission

The Commission was established in 1985 pursuant to passage into lawToi-8tate Lotto Compact by the
States of Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. The Commissianthisrized and empowered to promulgate
rules and regulations regarding the conduct of lottery games, including giotes, prizes, and the licensing of
agents under Title 8 MRSA C. 16.

The Commission is composed of one member from each of the jpatitig states. Each member State’s
commission appoints one of its members to serve on the Gmomiand each member holds office at the
pleasure of his or her appointing authority. The Commission annually alectirman from among its members.
The Commission designated that 50 percent of its sales revenue be reservied twands and agent bonuses.

A prize award liability is established when the winning ticket nunideelected. If no winning ticket is selected,
the available jackpot is carried over to the following drawing. TiState Lotto Compact requires that prizes
not claimed within one year from the date of the drawing be fotfeifdl expired unclaimed prizes are credited
to future prize pools. The Commission funds its jackpots through anraityacts purchased from insurance
companies and U.S. Government Treasury Strips.

A proportional share of revenues and expenses are allocated to e@chaStal on ticket sales made by each
State. Exceptions are the facility's management fee, whiblased on a contracted percentage of operating
revenue that varies from State to State, per diem charges, isidgerand certain printing, travel, and
miscellaneous costs, which are allocated based on actual charges ddneesteh state.
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The Tri-State Lotto Commission financial report for fiscal y2@t3, which may be obtained from the Bureau of
Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 State House Station, AudWist 04333-0008, includes the
following selected financial information:

Tri-State Lotto Commission
(Expressed in Thousands)

Current Assets $ 16,116
Noncurrent Assets 37,218
Total Assets $ 53,334
Current Liabilities $ 13,077
Long-term Liabilities 29,104
Total Liabilities 42,181
Designated Prize Reserves 4,346
Reserve for Unrealized Gains 6,807
Total Net Position 11,153
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 53,334
Total Revenue $ 54,286
Total Expenses 37,126
Allocation to Member States 17,160
Change in Unrealized Gain on Investments Held fesdke (2,459)
Change in Net Position $ (2,459)

Multi-State Lottery Association

The Maine State Lottery became a member of the Multi-Siattery Association (MUSL) in July 2004. The

MUSL currently has 32 member State lotteries, including th&iEtiof Columbia and the United States Virgin

Islands. The MUSL is managed by a board of directors, which ipriged of the lottery directors or their

designee from each of the party States, and authorized to inffataulgate, administer and carry out one or
more lottery product offerings that will enhance the participating party lottesy&nue.

Participating lotteries sell Powerball tickets, collectrallenues, and remit prize funds to the MUSL, net of lower
tier prize awards. The operating costs of the board are divided yeqnading all of the participating lotteries.
Jackpot prizes payable in installments are satisfied through invgstmerchased by the MUSL. The MUSL
purchases US government obligations which are held in irrevocable trustshethbly the MUSL for the benefit
of participating State lotteries. Each week the MUSL allocates 50 peifcgaies to the prize pool. If no winning
ticket is selected, the available jackpot is carried over to the followdkgga drawing.
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The Multi-State Lottery Association’s financial report forcli$ year 2013 which may be obtained from the
Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 State H®ta®n, Augusta, ME 04333-0008,
includes the following selected information:

Multi-State Lottery Association
(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 216,478
Investments in US Government Securities 78,69
US Government Securities Held for Prize Annuities 210,014
Due from Party Lotteries 35,880
Patent, net of accumulated amortization 14,91
Other Assets 1,041
Total Assets $ 554,027
Amount Held for Future Prizes $ 317,376
Grand Prize Annuities Payable 219,135
Other Liabilities 5,492
542,003
Net Assets, Unrestricted 12,024
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 554,027
Total Revenue $ 17,258
Total Expenses 5,389
Excess of revenue over expenses 11,869
Net assets, beginning 155
Net assets, ending $ 12,024

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The State of Maine entered into memoranda of understanding with theN&&tgaal Estuarine Research Reserve
Management Authority, a jointly governed organization, through the BureaBadks and Lands. These
agreements outline each entity’s responsibilities in relatidghe operation of the Reserve and the management of
the property included within the boundaries of the Reserve. The Aythamtsponsibilities are generally to
manage the Reserve consistent with the Wells National EstiResearch Reserve Management Plan dated 2013
to 2018.

COMPONENTUNITS

The State provided appropriations and grant monies to the following telgcpresented component units:
University of Maine System, $221.6 million; Maine Community Collegee3ys$60.8 million; Maine Municipal
Bond Bank, $40.4 million; Finance Authority of Maine, $11.0 million; and M&tate Housing Authority, $10.0
million.
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FAME administers several revolving loan funds on behalf of the $fatéaine. FAME recorded these funds,
which total $34.9 million at June 30, 2013, as a liability in Amounts Held Ustite Revolving Loan Programs

in their fiduciary financial statements. The state reporta$iset as a receivable in the Special Revenue Fund.
During fiscal year 2013, the State expended $3.0 million to FAME for &tatdving loan funds. The State also
transferred $1 million from its Loan Insurance Reserves to FAMHiscal 2012, State statute required FAME to
return $5 million of the Loan Insurance Reserves. As of June 30, 2013, no balance wastbe/&late.

Title 20-A MRSA Chapter 419-A established the Maine State GReojram as a fund under the jurisdiction of
the Finance Authority of Maine. All grant revenues under this fund musttobutisd by FAME to students who
meet the eligibility requirements for a grant under this chaptemrin® fiscal year 2007, the NextGen College
Savings grant funds and the Maine State Grant funds were pooled into tistatewf Maine Grant. FAME paid
approximately $7.3 million in grants to the University of Maine System (UMS) on befelifjible students. The
UMS reflected these as grant revenues from the State.

The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) pays the State for services mautey the Maine State Police (MSP).
MSP has a separate troop responsible for patrolling the Maine Turndiké pays all costs associated with that
troop. For fiscal 2013, the amount billed totaled $5.2 million.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

LITIGATION

The State of Maine, its units, and its employees are p#otimsmerous legal proceedings, many of which are the
result of normal governmental operations. In the opinion of the Attornmyeri@l and other legal counsel
representing the State, in all of the cases listed, the Staseagieincies or employees have valid defenses. Certain
cases have the potential for liability in excess of $1 milliBren if liability is found, the State should not expect
to pay out the full amounts being sought against it in all of thescdseany given case, however, the State could
incur a large judgment.

Aldrich v. LePage. This matter involves the provision of home- and community-based seteigersons with
intellectual disabilities and/or autism. The case is befaeSuperior Court of Maine. It could potentially result
in relief costing more than $1 million. Probability of losing is moderate.

In various lawsuits, Plaintiffs seek damages in excess of $ibmilfjainst the State or against State officials, and
various notices of claim also specify damages in excess of $armilfiere no lawsuit has been filed. In none of
these lawsuits, in the view of the Attorney General, is there esgonable possibility that the State’s liability
could reach or exceed $1 million. Therefore, these suits have not been individuallyeidientif

Numerous workers’ compensation claims are now pending against v&tates agencies. Since most claims
involve the possibility for significant long-term damages, and since thiatedemonstrating a causal relationship
between the employment and the illness or injury is not as rigosomsaadinary civil cases, these cases involve
the possibility of significant liability for the State. Since gibke damages include future medical costs and wage
replacements for the employee (and in some cases spousejffitust do estimate the total potential liability to
the State.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of managememtadhsultation with the Attorney General,
likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Stat
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ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances are reported in the restricted, committed, and asfiguebalances of the governmental funds.
General fund, highway fund, federal fund, other special revenue fund andyottegnmental funds balances are
$23.3 million, $2.8 million, $103.0 million, $22.0 million and $.6 million, respectively.

FEDERAL GRANTS

The State receives significant financial assistance frorfetteral government. The receipt of grants is generally
dependent upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreemeératpplicable federal regulations,
including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Grarsistgeet to the Federal Single Audit Act.
Disallowances by federal officials as a result of these auothisbecome liabilities of the State. The amount of
expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be deterthisetihae.

POLLUTION REMEDIATION

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) and Departmentasisgortation (DOT) have pollution
remediation obligations as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GA®B)eBt No. 49. The
State’s total amount of pollution remediation obligation asuoieJ30, 2013 is $24.7 million. Superfund sites
account for approximately $13.5 million. Superfund is the federal govetnpnegram to clean up hazardous
waste sites.

The following are Superfund sites for which the State has recorded a liabiltglfation remediation activities:

Eastland Woolen Mill — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediationvét@s of approximately $1.5
million. Currently the State shares the costs with Environmenté®ion Agency (EPA) in a cost-sharing ratio
of 10 percent State, 90 percent EPA. Beginning in September of 2018athewill assume 100 percent of the
operation and maintenance and long-term monitoring costs.

Eastern Surplus — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation actigiof approximately $5.1 million.
Beginning in August of 2012, the State assumed 100 percent of theimpenad maintenance and monitoring
costs. As of June 30, 2013 the State has received $2.2 million in recorarighé Department of Defense. The
State expects to recover additional costs of $4.9 million.

Callahan Mine — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediatiotivies of approximately $6.9 million.
Currently the State shares the costs with EPA in a costagheaiio of 10 percent State, 90 percent EPA. The
State will assume 100 percent of the cost for the operation and maintenancetef the s

The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation actisitéapproximately $11.9 million (net of unrealized
recoveries of $660 thousand) related five uncontrolled hazardous substascelbie State expects to recover $4
million in costs. The Uncontrolled Hazardous Substance Sites Progaaroreated in response to the threats and
potential threats to human health and the environment posed primaribabgicmed hazardous waste sites. The
Uncontrolled Hazardous Substance Sites program is the State’s equivalentadetsd Superfund Program.

The State has the knowledge and expertise to estimate the rémmedtzigation based on prior experience in
identifying and funding similar remediation activities. The stahdaquires the liability to be measured using
the expected cash flow technique. The remediation obligationatstimare subject to change over time. Cost
may vary due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, changes in potespiahsible parties, results of
environmental studies, changes to statues or regulations and othes fhatocould result in revisions to these
estimates. Prospective recoveries from responsible parties may redtate'eobligation.
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MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE LANDFILLS

Dolby Landfills — On September 16, 2011 the State entered into an agreement vettdiKaPaper Company
(KPC) to acquire the Dolby Landfills, a solid waste disposdlitfaclocated in the Town of Millinocket. The
State, as a holder of the permits, is responsible for closurpashalosure monitoring and maintenance activities
and costs.

The State will recognize a portion of the estimated totakaticost of closure and postclosure care as an expense
and a liability on the Statement of Activities and StatemeNaifPosition, respectively, in each period that the
landfill accepts solid waste. The $7.4 million reported as iustiisure and postclosure care liability at June 30,
2013, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on th&4peiment of the estimated capacity

of the landfill. The State will recognize the remaining eated cost of closure and postclosure care of $465
thousand as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. Basedtonated annual disposal volumes of 500 cubic
yard to 1,000 cubic yards per year, the estimated remaining landfidifidkd be 400 to 800 years. Actual costs
may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in applicable lawsatioregyul

Cogst-Sharing Program — Title 38 M.R.S.A., 81310-F establishes within the Department of Envéotah
Protection (DEP) a cost-sharing program for the closure and reroadid municipal solid waste landfills that
pose an actual or potential hazard to the environment and public health.

The State's obligation to provide cost sharing to municipalities iscuigj the availability of funds approved for
that purpose. During fiscal year 2013, there was no Solid Waste fundifepbevto reimburse municipalities for
closure or remediation activities until the final quarterti#t time, a new fee on disposal of Construction and
Demolition Debris earmarked for landfill closure and remediataamecinto effect (38 MRS §2203-A), resulting
in receipt of $83 thousand for reimbursement of the obligations detussdow. The fee doubles effective
January 1, 2014, when it will generate roughly $770 thousand per year.

Regarding landfill closures, at the end of fiscal year 2012 DEPnhet all its existing obligations and no
expenditures were made by DEP in fiscal year 2013. However, retanges (PL 2011, c.544) to landfill
legislation at 38 MRSA § 1310-F(1-B)(E) now obligates the DEP itolnerse 75 percent of landfill closure
expenses at several municipal landfills until fiscal year 2015e (@) application for past closure costs was filed
in fiscal year 2013 for a total outstanding State obligation of $liomilseveral more closure reimbursement
filings are anticipated in fiscal year 2014.

For landfill remediation, State expenditures totaled $18 thousand &h yisar 2013. Under the law the State is
obligated to pay for 90 percent of the cost of remediation for thpeaed by municipal landfills to wells or other
structures constructed on or before December 31, 1999. The maximumngement for remediation funding is
50 percent for structures constructed after that date. As ehthef fiscal year 2013, the DEP owed $2.6 million
for remedial work completed between calendar year 2008 and 2011. Imflighgoing investigations and the
increasing frequency of residential development near closed mungipHills, the State’s obligation for landfill
remediation is expected to grow.

SAND AND SALT STORAGE PROGRAM

The State estimates the potential aggregate cost to complythgitenvironmental requirements associated with
the Sand and Salt Storage program to be $9 million. This consappafximately $5 million for State-owned
facilities and approximately $4 million for the State’s share, uadeost sharing arrangement, for municipal
facilities.

POLLUTION ABATEMENT PROGRAM

Title 38 MRSA § 411, § 411-A, 8§ 412 establishes within DEP cost-sharing predaa pollution abatement
projects. Subject to funding by the Legislature and the approval &famenissioner, the State may contribute to
the planning of municipal pollution abatement facilities; the gtesengineering and construction of private,
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commercial and municipal pollution abatement facilities; and rpakenents to the Maine Municipal Bond Bank
to supply the State’s share of the revolving loan fund establishedlby3UiA §6006-A. During the 2013 fiscal
year, $1.1 million of general obligation bond funds were expended for pollutionredsdterojects. As of June
30, 2013, amounts encumbered for pollution abatement projects totaledndiliéd; and general obligation
bonds authorized for these projects, but not yet encumbered or expended, $4t58 million. As of June 30,
2013, DEP estimated the total cost (federal, State, and local) of futureptojee $1 billion.

GROUNDWATER OIL CLEAN-UP FUND

The Ground Water Oil Clean-up Fund is established in Title 38 MBRSB9-A. Fund activities include, but are
not limited to, providing insurance to public and private entitiechesnup of oil spills. The program is funded
by a per barrel assessment on petroleum products imported intoatke $overage is up to $1 million per
occurrence for both aboveground and underground storage tanks. Third party injungeaway not exceed

$200 thousand per claimant.

A report to the legislature dated February 15, 2007, submitted by the Ndajpa@rtment of Environmental
Protection (DEP), identified 359 long-term remediation sites damfary 2007 that are covered by the insurance
program. As of August 28, 2007 there were 377 sites on the long-teradliegion priority list. Since it is not
possible for the DEP to estimate the cost of remediation, tite 8as not accrued a liability in the financial
statements.

CONSTRUCTIONCOMMITMENTS

A portion of the payment that is made to municipalities for Gerrargdose Aid to Local Schools is allocated for
debt service. Although the outstanding indebtedness for school construojeeipis debt of the municipalities,
the State subsidizes 47.29 percent of the annual payments. As @QJu2@l3, outstanding commitments by
municipalities for school bond issues that are eligible for State subsithdt&thO billion.

At June 30, 2013, the Department of Transportation had contractual coemtstof approximately $157.4
million for construction of various highway projects. The State’sestdrthat amount is expected to be
approximately $24.7 million. Of these amounts, $4.7 million has already beeredc Federal and State funds
plus bond proceeds are expected to fund these future expenditures.

TOBACCO SETTLEMENTS

On November 23, 1998, Maine along with 45 other states and six civil giggdi (collectively known under the
MSA as the "Settling States"), entered into a Master épettht Agreement (MSA) with certain Participating
Tobacco Manufacturers (PM’'s). The MSA is a settlement of ddasdrought by many States against the four
largest tobacco companies alleging multiple counts of misconduct lamding punitive and compensatory
damages, including a claim for all the State's Medicaid costsedaby or related to tobacco use. The MSA
includes provisions to annually compensate the State for smokingerdhatdicaid costs and to impose marketing
and advertising restrictions on PM's to protect public health. In étilement, the PM’'s agreed, among other
things, to make annual payments to the states and jurisdictions badeglrcallocable share of the market. In
return, the states agreed to relinquish claims to further damegaiéing from, among other things, Medicaid
costs. Annual payments fluctuate subject to various adjustments apdraadly contingent on the passage and
enforcement of a State statute imposing economic conditions rétateé State's public health claims on the
Nonparticipating manufacturers (NPM’s) in the form of an annuabespayment due from each NPM with in-
state sales. The NPM Adjustment is set forth in the M&tdiement Agreement (MSA). If the PM'’s claim an
NPM Adjustment for a given year and prove that they lost market shdre NPM’s and it is determined that the
MSA was a significant factor contributing to that lost market share then anAtiRMtment ‘shall apply’ unless a
Settling State passed a qualifying statute and ‘diligently enforted’ dtatute. In effect this means that the
Allocated Payment to a Settling State that diligently enforcéichai be reduced, but a Settling State that did not
diligently enforce its qualifying statute will be subject teeduction in its payment due to the NPM Adjustment.
NPM Adjustment Due to the provisions of the MSA, a State thdbund not to have diligently enforced its
qualifying statute may lose up to its entire annual payment amount due to the NPM &djusina given year.
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The NPM Adjustment may be claimed each year and has been clfaimeach completed calendar year since
2003. Frequently PM's claim entitlement to the NPM Adjustmeidt either withhold the amount from their
annual payments, or place the amount in what is known as a 'disputed pagomntt'. Each year beginning in
2003 Maine's annual payments have been lower than calculated becauseofnrthe PMs have claimed
entitlement to the NPM Adjustment and either withheld moneputed it to the disputed payments account. For
the year 2003, the Adjustment claimed by the PM's, and calculatetfastls in the MSA, was approximately 18
percent of the total amount paid by the PM's and distributed among the Sittiliess However, the total amount
related to the NPM Adjustment to which the PMs are entitled is dependdrd narhber of non-diligent states.

In addition, in the MSA, the PM’s agreed to pay $8.6 billion in Strategitribution Payments (SCP) to certain
states and jurisdictions as compensation for their contribution to tihallsettlement. Maine’s share of this total
amount is approximately $114 million. Maine will receive this amdlrttugh ten annual SCP payments starting
in 2008. In April 2013, Maine received a total of $51 million including kibthannual payment amount and the
strategic contribution amount.

ESCHEAT PROPERTY

The State Abandoned Property Statute requires the deposit of aafimied and unclaimed assets into a state-
managed Abandoned Property Fund (Private Purpose Trust Fund). Th&t&tate provides that whenever the
cash balance of the fund exceeds $500 thousand at fiscal year-end, tisenexsebe remitted to the General
Fund where it is reported as operating transfers from other fuAtislune 30, 2013, the Fund included $5.5
million of securities not yet liquidated that were not subjettansfer to the General Fund. Net collections from
inception (1979) to June 30, 2013 of approximately $192.1 million represent agemttiiability to the State
since claims for refund may be filed by the owners of such property.

A liability representing the probable amount of escheat propertyilidie reclaimed and paid to claimants and
other third parties is reported in the Fund. To the extent thatsedsain the Fund are less than the claimant
liability, a receivable (due from other funds) is reported in Euend and an equal liability (due to other funds) is
reported in the General Fund. At June 30, 2013, the amount reported in thioiFdiaimant liability is $26.6
million. The General Fund shows a $20.5 million payable to the Escheat Fund.

CONSTITUTIONAL OBLIGATIONS

Article 9, § 14-A, C, and D of the Maine State Constitution providesthi®gaState may insure the payment of
mortgage loans for industrial, manufacturing, fishing, agricultural anmdagenal enterprises; mortgage loans for
the acquisition, construction, repair and remodeling of houses owned oownbd by members of two tribes on
several Indian reservations; and mortgage loans to resident Maaranseof the Armed Forces of the United
States, including loans to a business organization owned in whole ortihypeesident Maine veterans. The
aggregate of these obligations, at any one time, may not exceed $&h,n$ll million, and $4 million,
respectively. At June 30, 2013, loans outstanding pursuant to these authoreai$ig.5 million, less than $1
million, and less than $1 million, respectively. The State hapaidt nor does it expect to pay, any amounts as a
result of these authorizations as of June 30, 2013.

Article 8, § 2, of the Maine State Constitution provides that theeSnay secure funds, through the issuance of
bonds authorized by the Governor, for loans to Maine students attenditgtiorst of higher education. The
amount of bonds issued and outstanding shall not at any one time exaaglibfidn the aggregate. At June 30,
2013, no bonds were outstanding. The State has not paid, nor does it eppgciny amount as a result of this
authorization as of June 30, 2013.



State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

MORAL OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine, through statute, enables certain Authoritiestablish capital reserve funds. These funds
may be used to secure a variety of financial undertakings incluggnigguance of bonds. The minimum amount
of the capital reserve fund may be determined by statute or se¢ Buthority. The statutes may also limit the
amount of debt that may be secured by the capital reserve funds|candhal Authority to issue debt that is not
secured by these funds.

On or before December first of each year, the Authority is requo certify to the Governor the amount, if any,
necessary to restore any capital reserve fund to its requirdchum. If there is a shortfall, the Governor is
required to pay first from the “Contingent Account” the amounts secgdor restoration. The Governor shall
certify any remaining unpaid amounts to the Legislature, which is thgumired to appropriate and pay the
remaining amounts to the Authority during the then-current State fiscal year.

These moral obligations are not considered to be “full faith and caditjations of the State, and voter approval
of the underlying bonds is not required. No capital reserve fund adetts have been made in the current or
previous years.

The following summarizes information regarding outstanding moral obligations:

Moral Obligation Bonds
(Expressed in Thousands)

Required Obligation
Bonds Debt Debt
Issuer Outstanding Reserve Limit Legal Citation
Maine Health and Higher Educational
Facilities Authority - debt $ 1,195,220 $ 104,316 no limit 22 MRSA § 2075
Finance Authority of Maine 35,705 - $ 642,000 10 MRSA §1032, 1053

- - 50,000 20-A MRSA §11449
- - 50,000 38 MRSA §2221

Loring Development Authority * - - 100,000 5 MRSA §13080-N
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1,117,779 126,845 no limit 30-A MRSA 86006
Maine Educational Loan Authority * 149,935 15,118 225,000 20-A MRSA 811424
Maine State Housing Authority 1,296,880 86,862 2,150,000 30-A MRSA 84906
Total $ 3,795,519 % 333,141

* Reported in combining non-major component unit financial statements.
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State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

COMPONENTUNITS

CONSTRUCTIONCONTRACTS
At June 30, 2013, UMS had outstanding commitments on uncompleted constoacticacts that totaled $24.2
million.

At June 30, 2013, MCCS had $5.7 million remaining in construction commiisnpeimarily to improve existing
academic buildings.

MORTGAGECOMMITMENTS

Mortgage commitments are agreements to lend provided there is ntioviadé any term or condition of the
agreement. Generally, once exercised, the loans made under thefteutis commitments are secured by a lien
on the related property and other collateral as deemed necesdaBecénber 31, 2012 Maine State Housing
Authority (MSHA) had outstanding commitments to originate multi-fanuBnis of approximately $48.4 million.

MSHA, under its single-family program, enters into purchase agrégsrte lenders to purchase mortgage loans.
At December 31, 2012, single-family loans being processed by lenders totaled $9.4 million.

INSUREDL OAN COMMITMENTS

The Finance Authority of Maine (FAME) insures loans made by finamesitutions to qualifying businesses

under various insurance programs. FAME is contingently liable fansueed portion of payments due on these
loans. At June 30, 2013, FAME had insurance outstanding for commigaied under the Loan Insurance

Program totaling approximately $96.3 million. At June 30, 2013, FAMEim&asing loans with an aggregate

outstanding principle balance approximating $4.5 million which were 90 or deyedelinquent. The aggregate
insured balance of these loans was approximately $2.1 million at Jugé1®0, In addition, FAME has entered

into commitments to insure loans at some future date. At June 30, B6%8, dommitments under the Loan
Insurance Program were approximately $7.6 million.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

On August 1, 2013, September 15, 2013 and October 30, 2013 the State entered ipirdbase agreements
with Apple Computer for $71.6 million, $891 thousand, and $550 thousand respewtitreipterest rates of 0
percent and maturity dates of 2017, for the purchase of computer equipment for schootratin@rdsstricts.

On September 5, 2013, the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, issued $220.7 million of [GQgévations Revenue

Bonds on behalf of the State of Maine. The bonds mature from 2015 to 2D24raninterest rates ranging from
1.068 percent to 4.352 percent. The proceeds from the bonds funded the Steges$ BlagneCare payments due
to health care providers for services prior to December 1, 2012. The Wwdhde repaid from future net liquor

sales and operations received by the state. The bonds do not constitute a debttionadfitie State.

On September 27, 2013 the State entered into lease-purchase atgeeitheHewlett-Packard for $1.7 million

and $67 thousand with interest rates of 3.111 percent and 3.114 percentivalgpaad maturity dates of 2017,
for the purchase of computer equipment for school administrative districts.
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State of Maine Notes to the Financial Satements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

COMPONENTUNITS

Through March 1, 2013, Maine State Housing Authority (MSHA) redeemed &t1g8.4 million of bonds in the
General Mortgage Purchase Bond Resolution. On February 21, 2013, MSHA isqeed;&8.0 million and at a
premium $27.0 million of bonds in the General Mortgage Purchase Bond Resolution.

After year-end several borrowers made payments to Maine Health and Highetidigudaacilities Authority in
the amount of $88.9 million to pay off the balance of their reserve fund bonds.

NOTE 17 - SPECIAL ITEMS

During the fiscal year, the State transferred $4.7 million oftasssociated with Mack Point Cargo Port Facility
from the Marine Ports enterprise fund to the Maine Port Authority,gdadhe Town of Searsport, Maine. The
transfer is recorded as a Special Item in the Proprietary Fatennt of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position.

Pursuant to Public Law 2011, Chapter 649 Section E-2, the State Thanaitpn and Rail (STAR) Enterprise
Fund was converted to an Other Special Revenue Fund. Accordingly, thecBisfierted balances totaling $92.4
million from the STAR Fund to the Other Special Revenue Fund. Asgpdhe conversion, the State also
transferred STAR assets with a net value of $11.2 millioratus non-state providers of public transit. These
transfers are recorded as Special Items in the Proprietiawy tatement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Position ($103.6 million), the Governmental Fund StateofieRévenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances ($7 million), and the Entity-wide Statement of Activities ($108i&nn
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Required Supplementary Information - Budgetaryd@®&pg

STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund

Highway Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 2,914,171 $ 2,934,176 $ 2,984,987 $ 50,811 $ 219,694 213,301 $ 214,542 1,241
Assessments and Other 105,285 104,617 105,360 743 88,442 93,084 95,167 2,083
Federal Grants 1,915 1,594 1,726 132 - - - -
Service Charges 64,692 45,681 44,346 (1,335) 4,372 4,210 4,181 (29)
Income from Investments 142 84 277 193 111 100 105 5
Miscellaneous Revenue 8,613 8,296 15,402 7,106 1,912 2,584 3,445 861
Total Revenues 3,094,818 3,094,448 3,152,098 57,650 314,531 313,279 317,440 4,161
Expenditures
Governmental Support and Operations 285,958 281,801 266,830 14,971 36,683 38,168 33,720 4,448
Economic Development & Workforce Training 33,481 32,879 31,728 1,151 - - - -
Education 1,397,224 1,359,539 1,341,083 18,456 - - - -
Health and Human Services 921,119 1,110,554 1,079,612 30,942 - - - -
Business Licensing & Regulation 37 578 3,070 - - - -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 66,305 66,022 63,852 2,170 33 33 33 -
Justice and Protection 278,971 283,342 264,824 18,518 30,861 30,196 28,584 1,612
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,106 7,130 6,932 198 - - - -
Transportation Safety & Development - - - - 245,391 301,160 265,385 35,775
Total Expenditures 2,990,127 3,144,915 3,055,439 89,476 312,968 369,557 327,722 41,835
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 104,691 (50,467) 96,659 147,126 1,563 (56,278) (10,282) 45,996
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers Net (49,753) (59,516) (125,614) (66,098) 2,127 2,127 7,955 5,828
Proceeds from Pledged Future Revenues
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (49,753) (59,516) (125,614) (66,098) 2,127 2,127 7,955 5,828
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses $ 54938 $  (109,983) $ (28,955) $ 81,028 $ 369 $ (54,151) $ (2,327) 51,824
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 219,616 61,101
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 190,661 $ 58,774
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Federal Funds

Other Special Revenue Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
- $ - $ - $ - 273,687 270,729 $ 267,413 $ (3,316)
4 4 - “4) 171,633 179,900 152,980 (26,920)
2,672,310 3,285,285 2,619,838 (665,447) 17,969 21,472 6,641 (14,831)
435 435 405 (30) 149,551 223,185 184,563 (38,622)
- - 13 13 1,493 1,503 328 (1,175)
39 795 105 (690) 283,763 252,523 198,696 (53,827)
2,672,788 3,286,519 2,620,361 (666,158) 898,096 949,312 810,621 (138,691)
6,770 14,437 8,154 6,283 166,193 176,557 170,723 5,834
115,035 213,132 173,552 39,580 43,424 44,951 34,855 10,096
262,214 290,128 201,686 88,442 18,948 21,435 14,283 7,152
1,945,189 2,299,111 1,837,633 461,478 517,001 579,405 473,593 105,812
8 248 72,677 74,346 63,469 10,877
51,406 77,349 50,390 26,959 126,641 141,164 87,272 53,892
127,139 130,111 48,460 81,651 37,741 47,342 37,708 9,634
3,236 3,253 2,366 887 1,782 1,773 909 864
186,312 259,619 229,843 29,776 37,604 123,464 87,247 36,217
2,698,593 3,288,442 2,552,332 736,110 1,022,011 1,210,437 970,059 240,378
(25,805) (1,923) 68,029 69,952 (123,915) (261,125) (159,438) 101,687
(49,971) (53,335) (59,257) (5,922) 120,448 141,299 194,237 52,938
19,737 97,737 68,905 (28,832)
(49,971) (53,335) (59,257) (5,922) 140,185 239,036 263,142 24,106
(75,776) $ (55,258) $ 8,772 $ 64,030 16,270 (22,089) $ 103,704 $ 125,793
6,402 151,638
$ 15,174 $ 255,342

B-111



B-112



Required Supplementary Information - BudgetReporting

STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
(Expressed in Thousands)

Special
General Fund Highway Fund Federal Funds Revenue Fund
Fund Balances - Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis $ 190,661 $ 58,774 $ 15,174 $ 255,342
Basis Differences
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:
Taxes Receivable 221,811 2,245 - 10,093
Intergovernmental Receivables - - 552,035 -
Other Receivables 47,426 1,335 67,563 68,324
Inventories 1,610 - 758 -
Due from Component Units - - 46,060
Due from Other Funds 13,676 12,878 5,548 146,924
Other Assets 1,729 55 293 296
Deferred Revenues (219,962) (6,000) (2,803) (26,254)
Total Revenue Accruals/Adjustments 66,290 10,513 623,394 245,443
Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable (147,964) (24,783) (516,119) (208,261)
Due to Component Units (3,301) ?3) (4,169) (167)
Accrued Liabilities (15,298) (6,758) (6,418) (8,491)
Taxes Payable (182,950) (6) - -
Intergovernmental Payables (3,792) - (70,689) -
Due to Other Funds (48,021) (3,413) (16,422) (36,643)
Total Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments (401,326) (34,963) (613,817) (253,562)
Fund Balances - GAAP Basis $ (144,375) $ 34,324 $ 24,751 $ 247,223
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NOTES TOREQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY REPORTING

Statutory/Budgetary Presentation

In accordance with statute, the Governor presents a biennial buddet f8eberal Fund and special revenue funds to
the Legislature for enactment or revision. Effective Nover@@er1995, a State Constitutional Amendment provided

the Governor a “line item” veto of dollar amounts, allowing aatadubstitution for those amounts disapproved, as
long as an appropriation or allocation is not increased (or a deajapimpior deallocation decreased) either in the

specified line or in any other line in the legislative document. Hero€onstitutional Amendment requires the State to
fund at least 90 percent of the annual cost of future mandgveseaah on local governments; any exception requires a
two-thirds vote of the elected members of the House and Senate.

Once passed and signed, the budget becomes the financial plan for thbiemewtim. It includes proposed
expenditures for all departments and agencies, interest and debiptiedenharges, and expenditures for capital
projects to be undertaken and executed during each fiscal year. Thé d&laddecludes anticipated revenues and any
other means of financing expenditures. The State Budget Officeqisred to use the revenue projections of the
Revenue Forecasting Committee in preparing the General Fund and Highway Fund budgets.

Exceptional circumstances do not apply to new programs or proggaam&ons that go beyond existing program
criteria and operation.

Detailed budgetary control is maintained at the program and lingocgtievel at which appropriations and allocations
are approved by the Legislature, principally through a quarterly altaystem. The State Budget Officer and the
Governor must approve budget revisions during the vyear, reflecting prognamges or intradepartmental
administrative transfers. Except in specific instances, onlylLt@mgslature may transfer appropriations between
departments. Increases in appropriation, allocation, or funding Yopregrams are presented to the Legislature as a
supplemental budget or separate pieces of legislation. For thengsd dune 30, 2013, the legislature increased
appropriations to the General Fund by $75.0 million.

Governmental funds use encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orderstscamd other commitments for
the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve a portion of theadgplappropriation or allocation. Unencumbered
appropriations in the General Fund and Highway Fund lapse at June 3Q byl&ss, they are carried forward to a
subsequent year. In the State’s accounting system, amounégsi ¢darvward are shown as reservations of fund balance.
For financial statement purposes, unless amounts would creatasdédfiod balance is classified based on existing
resources, if any, which will liquidate the encumbrances outstandihghat30 (shown as restrictions, commitments or
assignments of fund balance).

The State’s budget is prepared primarily on a cash basis. Sales\e, corporate and fuel taxes include a modified
accrual basis adjustment to recognize revenues that are exfgebtedollected within 60 days of the end of the fiscal
year.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented as Required Suppienméotaation (RSI) in this report. Actual
amounts in this schedule are presented on a budgetary basis. Baaussis differs from accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), a riéiatina between the budgetary and GAAP basis is
presented in the RSI.

The various funds and programs within funds utilize a number of diffénedgetary control processes. Annual
legislative appropriations and revenue estimates are provided for mosttitagefands.
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The original executive budget and original legislative appropriatioogid® general purpose (unrestricted) revenue
estimates in order to demonstrate compliance with constitutoalsions. Revenues restricted by law or outside
grantors to a specific program are estimated at a level of detail cahgigitecontrolling related expenditure accounts.

For programs financed from restricted revenues, spending authorizagjenerally contingent upon recognition of the
related revenue. Reductions of spending authority occur if revenueshdatl of estimates. If revenues exceed the
estimate, supplemental appropriations are required before the additemalces can be spent.

The budgetary comparison schedule presented for the General FundglieayiFund, the Federal Fund, and the
Other Special Revenue Fund presents the original and final apprdgriatgets for fiscal year 2012-2013, as well as
the actual resource inflows, outflows and fund balances stated on the budgetary basis.

The original budget and related estimated revenues represent thengpenthority enacted into law by the
appropriation bills as of June 20, 2011, and includes encumbrances carried foowatloefiprior year.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require thdirtaklegal budget be reflected in the “final budget”
column. Therefore updated revenue estimates available for apgoyzias of June 30, 2013 rather than the amounts
shown in the original budget, are reported.

The final appropriations budget represents original and supplemental agiwopr carry-forwards, approved
transfers, and executive order reductions. Expenditures, transferstrart,financing uses, and encumbrances are
combined and classified by policy area rather than being reported ctehaand function as shown in the GAAP
statements. This policy area classification is used to bedfkyct organizational responsibility and to be more
consistent with the budget process.

Compliance at the Legal Level of Budgetary Control

The Budgetary Comparison Schedules by Agency depict budgeted to actual experalitthe Department level,
which is the legal level of budgetary control for all governmental furidgee schedules provide further detail at the
agency level within departments for transparency.
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Required Supplementary Information — State Retirement Plan

Schedule of Funding Progress

(Expressed in Thousands)
(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)/c)

UAAL (asa
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued percentage of
Valuation Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) — Unfunded AAL Annual Covered covered
June 30, Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
2013 9,238,577 11,889,897 2,651,320 77.7% 1,671,668 158.6%
2012 8,939,788 11,605,891 2,666,103 77.0% 1,727,667 154.3%
2011 8,795,250 11,335,259 2,540,009 77.6% 1,652,576 153.7%
2010 8,369,772 12,676,367 4,306,595 66.0% 1,681,593 256.1%
2009 8,383,148 12,377,262 3,994,114 67.7% 1,678,931 237.9%
2008 8,691,076 11,721,272 3,030,196 74.1% 1,628,421 186.1%
2007 8,302,467 11,209,708 2,907,241 74.1% 1,595,200 182.2%
2006 7,556,515 10,598,346 3,041,831 71.3% 1,546,316 196.7%
Major changes in actuarial assumptions include the following:
Valuation date June 30, 2012 June 30,2011 June 30, 20une 30, 2008
Former actuarial assumptions:
Lowered to reflect the
. . closing of the retirement
Retirement assumption . .
window for early retiree
health coverage
Version of actuarial cost method New entrant Nangfes
Investment rate of return 7.25% were made 7.75%
Projected salary increases 3.50% to 2008 4.75% - 10.00%
Includes inflation at 3.50% plan 4.50%
Cost of living adjustments 2.25% assumptions 3.75%

The June 30, 2011 valuation included changes to the plan and actuarightassaimFor members with fewer than 5
years of creditable service on July 1, 2011, the normal retiremenheagased to 65. Projected salary increases
include a 3.5 percent across the board increase at each yeaiax. SEhe first 2 fiscal years assume a flat 1.5 percent
pay increase across the board. The cap on annual cost of livirggnaelpts was lowered from 4 percent per year to 3
percent per year on the first $20,000 of annual benefit (indexed). No COLA will be ma@&eptember 2014.

The Maine Public Retirement System (the System), whichc@ngponent unit of the State, is the administrator of an
agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit public employee retiremgstem. The June 30, 2013 report may be
obtained from the Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State Hoimse Btajusta, ME 04333.

The System amortizes the unfunded liability of the State and &e&t&n over a closed period that cannot be longer
than 31 years from July 1, 1997 but may be, and at certain times dmssherter than that period. In 2000, the
amortization period was reduced to a 19-year period from June 30, 20@004, the Legislature relengthened the
period to 25 years, the full extent of the then-remaining Constitutipeals for the 2004-2005 biennium, and
reshortened the period effective July 1, 2005 to the 13 years thahevillremain in the earlier shortened period. In

B-116



2005, the State repealed the “sunset” provision, with the result thag¢tioel for reduction of these unfunded actuarial
liabilities continues to the full extent permitted by the Statestitution, or June 30, 2028. The contribution rate in
effect for 2013 was determined by the 2010 valuation, and reflects thgthedaed amortization period. The unfunded
actuarial accrual liability of the judicial plan is amortized over #opesf which 4 years remained at June 30, 2013.

Note: Unless plan changes occur, actuarial valuations arerpeddsiennially on even years. Rollforward valuations
occur on odd numbered years. The latest actuarial valuation occurred June 30, 2012.

Required Supplementary Information — Other Post-employment BéHahs

Schedules of Funding Progress

Healthcare Plans
() (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© (b-a)/c)

UAAL (as a
Actuarial Annual percentage of
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered covered
Plan Valuation Date Value of Assets Liability AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
State Employees June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
(in millions) June 30, 2011 112 1,544 1,432 7.25% 567 252.56%
Teachers June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
(in millions) June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
June 30, 2011 0 801 801 0.00% 1,098 72.95%
June 30, 2012 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
First Responders June 30, 2011 0 21,921 21,921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%
(in thousands)  June 30, 2010 0 19,158 19,158 0.00% 53,821 35.60%
Group Life Insurance Plans
(BExpressed in Thousands)
(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)lc)
Actuarial UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Covered of covered
Plan Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
State June 30, 2013 27,000 83,800 56,800 32.22% 572,800 9.92%
Employees June 30, 2012 24,700 80,900 56,200 30.53% 553,500 10.15%
June 30, 2011 24,400 78,700 54,300 31.00% 623,600 8.71%
June 30, 2013 36,000 74,200 38,200 48.52% 652,800 5.85%
Teachers June 30, 2012 30,100 71,000 40,900 42.39% 630,800 6.48%
June 30, 2011 27,800 67,600 39,800 41.12% 659,100 6.04%
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Required Supplementary Information — Other Post-employment BéHahs (continued)

(Expressed in Thousands)

Schedule of Employer Contributions

State First
Employees Teachers Responders
Fiscal Annual Annual Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage| Required Percentage| Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution | Contributed | Contribution | Contributed| Contribution | Contributed
Healthcare - 2013 $94,000 77.66% $44,000 56.82% $1,689 34.16%
Healthcare - 2012 126,000 57.94% 55,000 40.00% 1,350 32/15%
Healthcare - 2011 120,000 70.84% 61,000 29.51% 916 57|10%
Group Life - 2013 4,591 101.79% 3,099 100.00% N/A N/A
Group Life - 2012 3,25( 144.13% 2,959 100.00% N/A N/A
Group Life - 2011 4,268 89.20% 2,532 100.00% N/A N/A
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Required Supplementary Information —
Information about Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the Mddpproach

As allowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted an alternatassgoncecording depreciation expense
on selected infrastructure assets. Under this process, tked8tst not record depreciation expense nor are amounts
capitalized in connection with improvements to these assets, unlesptbgements expand the capacity or efficiency
of an asset. Assets accounted for under the modified approach iB@2@highway miles or 17,953 lane miles of
roads and 2,964 bridges having a total deck area of 11.8 million square feet that tler&sptansible to maintain.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the State is required to:
[ Maintain an asset management system that includes an up-to-date inventorplef iefigistructure.
[0 Perform condition assessments of eligible assets and summarizeult® ueing a measurement scale.
[ Estimate each year the annual amount to maintain and preservedtseatthe condition level established and
disclosed by the State.
[0 Document that the assets are being preserved at, or above, the established condlition leve

Roads and bridges maintained by the Department of Transportation are accounted faeusdjfited approach.

Highways

Measurement Scale for Highways
The Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) uses six indicabadetermine the condition of highway adequacy.
The six indicators and their relative point weighting are listed in the taloe.be

Point Rating
Data Element (%) Description
Pavement Condition 45 PCR is defined as the composite condition of the pavement on a roadway
Rating (PCR) only, and is compiled from the severity and extent of pavement distregses
such as cracking, rutting and patching. It is the key indicator used to
determine the optimum time to treat a particular section of road. Points
decrease as PCR decreases.
Safety 20 Statewide crash rates are used to allocate points. Locatlohgivitates
get fewer points.
Backlog (Built vs. 15 A “Built” road is one that has been constructed to a modern standard,
Unbuilt roadway) usually post 1950. This includes adequate drainage, base, and pavement to
carry the traffic load, and adequate sight distance and width to meet current
safety standards. “Unbuilt” (backlog) is defined as a roadway section that
has not been built to modern standards. Yes or No (15 or 0).
Annual Average Daily 10 This ratio measures how intensely a highway is utilized. As a highway
Traffic divided by the facility’s AADT/C ratio increases, the average speed of vehicles on that
hourly highway facility tends to decrease. This decrease in average speed is evidence of
capacity (AADT/C) reduced mobility. As congestion increases, points decrease (0-10).
Posted Speed 5 Lower speeds equal fewer points.
Paved Shoulder 5 In general, roadways with paved shoulders perform at a higher leve| and
last longer than those without shoulders or with only gravel shoulders| Yes
or No (5 or 0).
100
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Bridges

MDOT uses four separate factors to obtain a numerical valuetosedicate the ability of bridges to remain in service
at the current level of usage. The numeric value is a percentage ranging frome@¥dent an entirely insufficient or
deficient bridge, and 100% to represent an entirely sufficient bridgee fdur indicators and their relative point
weighting are listed in the table below. The composite numeric iml@sed on the sufficiency rating formula in the
Recording and Coding Guide for Structure Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation’s Bridges.

Point Rating
Data Element (%) Description

Structural Adequacy and 55 This category considers inventory rating, superstructure, substructure g

Safety culverts.

Serviceability and 30 Serviceability and functional obsolescence that addresses the number

Functional Obsolescence lanes, average daily traffic, roadway width, bridge width, deck condition
under clearances, waterway adequacy, alignment, and defense highwa|
designation.

Essentiality for Public Use 15 This considers detour length, average ddity ttafl defense highway
designation.

Special Reductions (13) The sufficiency rating also includes consaterdtspecial reductions for

detour length, safety features, and type of structure.

Assessed Conditions

The following table shows adequacy ratings for maintenance levels from ExoelRourt

Adequacy Rating Total
Excellent 80-100
Good 70-80
Fair 60-70
Poor 0-60

MDOT intends to maintain highways and bridges at an adequacy ratingasflé@her. The following table shows
adequacy ratings achieved by MDOT.

Fiscal Year | Highways Bridges
2013 76.0 78.0
2012 75.4 79.0
2011 74.8 78.0
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Comparison of Estimated-to-Actual Preservation Costs

The following table presents the State’'s preservation costs farastefive fiscal years. It also shows the estimate of
spending necessary to preserve and maintain the roads and bridgeabatyegra sufficiency rating of 60 for both
highways and bridges (in millions).

Actual Preservation Costs
(Expressed in millions)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Highways $ 905 $ 915 $1014 $686 $745
Bridges 14.7 13.2 9.3 9.2 1.6
Total $ 105.2 $104.7 $110.7 $77.8 $76.1

Estimated Preservation Costs
(Expressed in millions)

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Highways $ 841 $1550 $ 861 $485 $558
Bridges 13.7 30.0 7.9 6.5 1.2
Total $ 978 $1850 $ 94.0 $55.0 $57.0

Transportation Bonds
Transportation bonds, approved by referendum, are issued to fund improvements aysighabridges. Of the
amount authorized by Chapter 645, PL 2009, $1.1 million in General fund bonds was spent during FY2013.
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GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX C
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STATE OF MAINE
UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND JUNE 30, 2011

Sales and Use Tax
Service Provider Tax
Individual Income Tax
Corporate Income Tax
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax

Public Utilities Tax (1)
Insurance Companies Tax
Inheritance & Estate Tax

Property Tax - Unorganized Territory

Fines, Forfeits and Penalties (2)

Income from Investments

Transfer for Tax Relief Programs
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing
Transfer from Lottery Commission

Other Taxes and Fees (3)
Other Revenues

Total Undedicated Revenue

2010 2

Actual Percent
Actual Budget More/(Less) More/(Less) Actual Budge
$ 897,938,873 $ 883,839,994 $ 14,098,879 1.6%% 923,686,973 $ 916,746
56,086,391 55,590,852 495,539 0.9% 52,672,306 55,2144
1,298,036,055 1,299,630,000 (1,593,945) (0.1%) 1,415,283,534 1,392,702,
175,292,433 147,718,716 27,573,717 18.7% 208,996,598 193,182
149,066,678 140,139,902 8,926,776 6.4% 145,229,303 146,209,
80,019,145 71,985,000 8,034,145 11.2% 76,930,329 76,765,
31,209,840 29,593,253 1,616,587 5.5% 49,323,494 45,052,
32,787,060 32,853,721 (66,661) (0.2%) 28,513,040 28,799,
265,091 103,246 161,845 156.8% 277,770 245,1
(113,604,905) (112,559,862) (1,045,043) (0.9%) (113,934,585) (113,986,5
(97,425,079) (95,899,642) (1,525,437) (1.6%) (93,156,725) (91,930,3
52,201,531 49,843,299 2,358,232 4.7% 49,547,800 49,034,
149,588,680 148,808,830 779,850 0.5% 151,676,495 149,672,
44,220,707 41,358,080 2,862,627 6.9% 49,910,424 48,357,
$ 2,755,682,500 $ 2,693,005,389 $62,677,111 2.3% $2,944,956,756 $ 2,896,064

(1) Starting in FY 2010 this revenue source was included with “Other Taxes arid Fees
(2) Prior to FY 2010 this revenue source was included with “Other Revenues”

(3) Prior to FY 2010 revenue sources included in this category (unless otherwise mealtionedwere included in “Other Revent
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STATE OF MAINE
UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND JUNE 30, 2013

Sales and Use Tax

Service Provider Tax

Individual Income Tax

Corporate Income Tax

Cigarette and Tobacco Tax

Public Utilities Tax

Insurance Companies Tax
Inheritance & Estate Tax

Property Tax — Unorganized Territory
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties

Income from Investments

Transfer for Tax Relief Programs
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing
Transfer from Lottery Commission
Other Taxes and Fees

Other Revenues

Total Undedicated Revenue

2012 z

Actual Percent
Actual Budget More/(Less) More/(Less) Actual Budge
$ 981,257,805 $ 973,215,697 $ 8,042,108 0.8%% 986,747,637 $ 984,914
48,255,501 50,366,313 (2,110,812) (4.2%) 50,139,878 48,739,
1,434,217,189 1,444,897,209 (10,680,020) (0.7%) 1,521,862,756 1,495,000
232,117,995 218,610,460 13,507,535 6.2% 171,987,073 171,021,
139,729,147 142,123,350 (2,394,203) (1.7%) 137,951,824 138,180
82,985,771 79,215,000 3,770,771 4.8% 79,609,419 80,7150
44,865,567 38,260,185 6,605,382 17.3% 79,083,058 70,2307
25,120,959 25,754,504 (633,545) (2.5%) 23,748,503 24,552,
155,531 106,808 48,723 45.6% 148,434 83,8
(115,336,149) (114,418,263) (917,886) (0.8%) (111,674,333) (112,086,
(96,876,964) (96,854,505) (22,459) (0.0%) (95,974,153) (95,086,¢
53,785,567 50,700,000 3,085,567 6.1% 52,908,602 52,5500
131,943,407 132,077,778 (134,371) (0.1%) 153,796,137 150,894
53,316,896 51,390,200 1,926,696 3.7% 44,049,007 38,6379
$ 3,015,538,222 $ 2,995,444,736 $ 20,093,486 0.7% $ 3,094,383,842 $ 3,048,342




¥ -0

STATE OF MAINE
PRELIMINARY UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND

TEN MONTHS ENDED April 30, 2014

Sales and Use Tax

Service Provider Tax
Individual Income Tax
Corporate Income Tax
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax
Insurance Companies Tax
Estate Tax

Fines, Forfeits & Penalties

Income from Investments
Transfer from Lottery Commission

Transfers for Tax Relief Programs

Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing

Other Taxes and Fees

Other Revenues

Total Undedicated Revenue

NOTES:

Month Year to Date
Variance Percent Variana
Over/ Over/ Over/
Actual Budget (under) (under) Actual Budget (undej)
$ 83,574,715 $ 84,597,206 $(1,022,491) (1.2%) $ 816,007,908 $ 814,204,507 .
4,053,290 4,293,672 (240,382) (5.6%) 36,320,125 36,651,034 |
224,548,467 215,832,613 8,715,854 4.0% 1,121,946,622 1,093,891,691 ¢
24,799,701 24,500,000 299,701 1.2% 137,658,221 134,206,958 :
10,744,765 10,769,410 (24,645) (0.2%) 112,133,476 111,896,481 ¢
16,784,729 12,065,444 4,719,285 39.1% 46,097,166 41,150,676 .
2,091,309 2,659,365 (568,056) (21.4%) 16,202,065 17,064,381
1,778,106 1,907,358 (129,252) (6.8%) 19,266,463 19,505,572 |
(11,177) (31,664) 20,487 64.7% 175,751 142,217 :
4,086,439 4,115,380 (28,941) (0.7%) 42,986,502 44,240,380 @,
(184,879) (175,777) (9,102) (5.2%) (64,959,343) (62,039,540) (2
(3,266,537) (1,750,350) (1,516,187) (86.6%) (50,050,213) (48,369,012) (
8,796,652 8,872,727 (76,075) (0.9%) 106,452,058 105,302,119 (
14,916,713 14,412,168 504,545 3.5% 31,303,800 30,813,218 !
$ 392,712,293 $382,067,552 $ 10,644,741 2.8% $ 2,371,540,601 $2,338,660,682 (

(1) Included in the above is $3,266,537 for the month and $50,050,213 year to deds Heitaside for Revenue Sharing with cities and towns.

(2) The amounts set forth above under the headings “Month — Budget,” “Year to Date — Banit)éTdtal Budgeted” reflect estimated adjustments in pre
Maine State Revenue Forecasting Committee in its March 2014 report, updated by PL5P213For additional information concerning the revisionst
budget, see “Revenues of the State — General,” including the table therein, in AppémdinsfOfficial Statement.

(3) This report has been prepared from preliminary month end figures andeist saljhange.
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Fuel Taxes

Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees
Inspection Fees

Miscellaneous Taxes and Fees (1)
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties
Earnings on Investments

All Other Revenues

TOTAL

Source:

STATE OF MAINE
HIGHWAY FUND
REVENUES
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2010 AND JUNE 30, 2011

2010 2011
Actual Percent
Actual Budget More/(Less) More/(Less) Actual Budget
$ 219,190,706 $ 220,305,526 $(1,114,820) (0.5%) $ 217,033,892 $ 215,546,4C
78,082,290 75,043,693 3,038,597 4.0% 80,841,240 78,986,39
3,834,421 3,896,915 (62,494) (1.6%) 2,977,702 3,032,500
- - - - 1,358,069 1,325,823

1,440,062 1,745,049 (304,987) (17.5%) 1,145,044 1,205,049
162,488 113,330 49,158 43.4% 124,518 120,434
8,480,405 8,387,253 93,152 1.1% 7,870,691 8,072,531
$ 311,190,374 $ 309,491,766 $ 1,698,608 0.5% $ 311,351,155 $ 308,289,137

Revenue Highway General Accounting

(1) Prior to FY 2011 revenue sources included in this category were includell @ttar Revenues”
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Fuel Taxes

Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees
Inspection Fees

Miscellaneous Taxes & Fees
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties
Earnings on Investments

All Other Revenues

TOTAL

Source:

STATE OF MAINE
HIGHWAY FUND
REVENUES
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND JUNE 30, 2013

2012 2013
Actual Percent

Actual Budget More/(Less) More/(Less) Actual Budget M

$ 219,463,118 $ 218,088,754 $1,374,364 0.6% $ 214,539,829 $ 213,301,215 ¢
83,563,402 82,738,186 825,216 1.0% 89,333,202 87,785,489
2,997,951 2,982,500 15,451 0.5% 3,495,704 2,982,500
1,361,888 1,313,165 48,723 3.7% 1,309,810 1,276,365
1,044,271 993,049 51,222 5.2% 1,030,267 1,039,868
141,082 121,761 19,321 15.9% 105,414 99,513
8,630,697 8,734,112 (103,415) (1.2%) 9,011,474 8,920,662

$ 317,202,409 $ 314,971,527 $ 2,230,882 0.7% $ 318,825,700 $ 315,405,612 $

Revenue Highway General Accounting
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STATE OF MAINE
PRELIMINARY HIGHWAY FUND
REVENUES
TEN MONTHS ENDED April 30, 2014

Month Year to Date
Variance Percent Variane
Over/ Over/ Over/

Actual Budget (under) (under) Actual Budget (under)
Fuel Taxes $ 16,098,329 $16,135,879 $ (37,550) (0.2%) $ 161,997,109 $ 157,626,370 7

Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees 8,529,479 8,475,159 54,320 0.6% 69,681,376 69,357,896
Inspection Fees 85,455 550,680 (465,226) (84.5%) 2,353,775 2,832,400 :
Miscellaneous Taxes & Fees 108,135 114,756 (6,621) (5.8%) 986,262 13002,33 (16,0
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties 79,057 80,598 (1,542) (1.9%) 810,558 834,171 ’
Earnings on Investments 9,688 2,948 6,740 228.6% 52,438 40,987 4
All Other 521,402 549,228 (27,824) (5.1%) 8,067,812 7,932,075 7
Total Revenue $ 25,431,545 $25,909,248 $ (477,703) (1.8%) $ 243,949,330 $ 239,626,232 :

Note: This report has been prepared from preliminary month end figures abeist $0 change.
The amounts set forth above under the headings “Month — Budget,” “Year to Date — Budlly&Tdt@l Budgeted” reflect estit
projected revenue provided by the Maine State Revenue Forecasting Committééaircit2014 report, updated by PL 2013
information concerning the revisions to the State’s fiscal year 2014 budget, seauBe of the State — General,” including &
A to this Official Statement.
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STATE OF MAINE

APPENDIX D

Selected Information Regarding Authorized
and Outstanding Debt of the State

Authorized Expenditures

General Fund Bonds, Debt Service Requirements to Maturity,
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Highway Fund Bonds, Debt Service Requirements to Maturity,
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Information Regarding Lease Financing Agreements

Debt Ratios

Debt Ratio Statistics

Debt Service Paid Over Past Ten Fiscal Years

Bonds Outstanding at June 30 of Certain Fiscal Years
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AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES

The purposes for which authorized expenditures may be made, the expempdirighdat or agency, the authorizin
authorized expenditures were as of the date hereof as follows

Agency Law

DAG 2009 PL Ch. 414

DECD 2009 PL Ch. 414

DECD 2009 PL Ch. 414

DEP 2009 PL Ch. 414

DEP 2009 PL Ch. 414

DEP 2009 PL Ch. 414

DEP 2009 PL Ch. 414

DEP 2011 PL Ch 695

DHHS 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DHHS 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DHHS 2011 PL Ch 695

DOC 2011 PL Ch 696

DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645
DOT 2011 PL Ch 697

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697

Description An

Agricultural water source depehent grant program.
Brunswick Naval Air Station Redevelopment

Communities for Maine's futpregram investment
Small Community Grant Program

Uncontrolled hazardous substamnvestigation and clean up
Wastewater treatment facility construction grants

Overboard discharge
Revolving Loan for Wastewater treatment facilities

Health anddb@iinic Upgrades

Community-based Teaching Clinic

Drinking water systems
Land for Maine's Future Board
Land acquisitions for conservation, water accestlaor
recreation, wildlife, etc.
Working waterfront preservation

State Parksamtl Management

Working farmland preservation

Highway and Bridge Construction
:Z;(l);] i(;westment/development at Searsport, MacktPaim Sears

Equipment for Mack Point port

Auviation facilities

D-2



Agency
DOT

DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
DOT
MCCS
Hist/Pres
MTI
UMS
UMS
DOT
DVEM
DVEM
MCCS
MMA

UMS

Law
2009 PL Ch 645 Part A

2011 PL Ch 697

2011 PL Ch 697

2009 PL Ch 645 Part A

2011 PL Ch 697

2011 PL Ch 697

2009 PL Ch 414 Part A

2009 PL Ch 414 Part A

2009 PL Ch 414 Part A

2009 PL Ch 414 Part A

2009 PL Ch 414 Part A

2009 PL Ch. 414

2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645

2009 PL Ch. 414

2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645

2009 PL Ch. 414

2013 PL Ch 429

2013 PL Ch 432

2013 PL Ch 432

2013 PL Ch 431

2013 PL Ch 433

2013 PL Ch 430

Description
Taxable Railroad

Lifeflight
Warehousing facilities at the port at Eastport
Marine/SHIP
Transit buses
Industrial Rail Access Program
Ports (includes port improvements in Ea&fi@@arsport)
Ferry
Aviation-FAA
Island Airport Program
Augusta Airport Upgrade
Energy and infrastructure upgrades at MCCS campuses
Downtown revitalizati
R&D for Science & Technology Action Plan for Maine
Maine Marine Wind Energy F&bd R
Energy and infrastructure upgrades at UMS campuses
Highway and bridge construction and Port facilities
Armory Upgrades
Land for Training Facility
Facility upgrades at MCCS campuses
MMA new science facility

Updating and improving lab and classroom facilities of UMS
Total




GENERAL FUND BONDS
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
June 30, 2013

FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2014 67,445,000 10,159,578 77,604,578
2015 54,375,000 7,971,839 62,346,839
2016 39,040,000 6,146,326 45,186,326
2017 28,090,000 4,500,967 32,590,967
2018 24,710,000 3,187,587 27,897,587
2019 20,090,000 2,079,769 22,169,769
2020 11,650,000 1,204,332 12,854,332
2021 11,360,000 804,750 12,164,750
2022 4,735,000 236,750 4,971,750

$261,495,00C $36,291,898 $297,786,898
HIGHWAY FUND BONDS
DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
June 30, 2013
FISCAL YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL
2014 16,035,000 4,544,279 20,579,279
2015 15,275,000 3,914,654 19,189,654
2016 15,300,000 3,265,079 18,565,079
2017 21,015,000 2,600,579 23,615,579
2018 18,285,000 1,691,210 19,976,210
2019 12,500,000 905,540 13,405,540
2020 7,610,000 389,668 7,999,668
2021 2,210,000 110,500 2,320,500
$108,230,00C $17,421,508 $125,651,508
GF + HF $369,725,00C $53,713,405 $423,438,405

D-4



INFORMATION REGARDING LEASE FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Agency

Department of Transportation
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Public Safety

Administrative & Financial Services
Public Safety

Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Department of Education
Department of Education
Department of Education
Department of Education
Department of Education
Administrative & Financial Services
Administrative & Financial Services
Public Safety

Administrative & Financial Services

TOTALS:

Principal Principal &
Original Amount Interest
Principal Outstanding Due 4/1/2014 -
Date of Agreement Amount 3/31/2014 6/30/2014
January, 2010 1,820,000 381,875 -
May, 2010 4,700,000 1,193,122 1,205,411
July, 2010 10,000,000 4,449,017 -
October, 2010 5,000,000 2,578,924 387,655
May, 2011 4,200,0 1,063,133 -
May, 2011 5,000,0 2,569,579 -
May, 2012 600,000 3,459,359 1,165,711
May, 2012 2,100,000 348, 281,752
January, 2013 5,000,000 11,805,409 1,117,172
March, 2013 2,100,000 1,438,407 315,110
March, 2013 5,800 4,060,284 -
March, 2013 4,250,000 3,840,375 438,312
August, 2013 71,560,416 143837 4,472,525
September. 2013 891,324 724,200 55,708
September. 2013 1,682,978 1,555,111 108,352
September. 2013 67,646 62,515 4,360
October, 2013 550,176 447,018 34,386
December, 2013 900,000 900,000 -
December, 2013 11,500,000 10,638,928 -
March, 2014 2,100,000 2,100,000 360,000
April, 2014 ,8@0,000 4,800,000 -
$ 158,222,540 $ 117,056,371 $ 9,946,454
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Debt Ratios

The following table sets forth certain ratios relating to the State’s denidigation debt as of
June 30, 2013.

Debt to
Amount Estimated Debt to
of Debt Full Personal
(P&I) Per Capitd”  Valuation® Income®
General Fund $297,786,898 $224.19 0.19% 0.55%
Highways & Bridges 125,641,508 94.59 0.08% 0.23%
Total $423,428,405 $318.77 0.27% 0.78%

(2) Based on population estimate of 1,328,302 for 2013 by the U.S. Department of
Commerce, Bureau of the Census.

(2) Based on assessed property valuation at full value by the Maine Revenue Senfices as
January 2014 of $158,661,600,000.

3) Based on State of Maine total personal income reported by the U.S. Department of
Commerce for 2013 of $54,478,552,000.

Debt Ratio Statistics
June 30, 2013

Debt to Full Value

2011 0.32%
2012 0.34%
2013 0.27%

Debt to Personal Income

2011 1.03%
2012 1.04%
2013 0.78%

Per Capita Debt

2011 $391.68
2012 $409.46
2013 $318.77

D-6



DEBT SERVICE PAID OVER PAST TEN FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30

General General Fund Highway Highway Total Total
Fiscal Fund Interest Fund Fund Principal Interest
Year Principal Principal Interest
2002 $64,225,000 $15,444,189 $23,300,000 $5,299,529 $87,525,000 $20,743,718
2003 63,880,000 12,941,300 21,215,000 4,003,828 85,095,000 16,945,128
2004 56,240,000 12,567,264 16,015,000 3,022,015 72,255,000 15,589,279
2005 53,440,000 12,525,813 13,280,000 2,477,535 66,720,000 15,003,348
2006 57,915,000 15,253,937 13,950,000 2,007,306 71,865,000 17,261,243
2007 69,280,000 17,364,513 10,415,000 1,387,084 79,695,000 18,751,597
2008 66,230,000 16,057,428 10,750,000 2,050,995 76,980,000 18,108,423
2009 65,685,000 15,179,120 13,505,000 3,848,227 79,190,000 19,027,347
2010 74,905,000 15,451,420 11,820,000 4,803,042 86,725,000 20,254,462
2011 72,905,000 13,609,228 15,100,000 5,312,205 88,005,000 18,921,433
2012 81,055,000 14,015,648 16,385,000 5,698,368 97,440,000 19,714,016
2013 85,595,000 12,924,559 16,735,000 5,151,841 102,330,000 18,076,400
BONDS OUTSTANDING AT JUNE 30
of Certain Fiscal Years
Compared to Total Governmental Funds Revenue
Total Percent
Year General Highway Self- Total Governmental of
Ended Fund Fund Liquidating Funds State
Revenue Revenues
1991 $277,710,000 $102,870,000  $14,840,000 $395,420,000 $2,533,777,000 15.6%
1992 308,890,000 107,395,000 13,395,000 429,680,000 2,995,325,000 14.0
1993 405,823,000 136,320,000 2,562,000 544,705,000 3,178,491,000 17.2
1994 383,618,000 143,355,000 2,312,000 529,285,000 3,311,809,213 16.0
1995 377,055,000 136,950,000 2,055,000 516,060,000 3,381,332,000 15.3
1996 369,457,945 144,440,000 1,792,055 515,690,000 3,598,717,000 14.3
1997 339,620,600 129,060,000 1,529,400 470,210,000 3,756,557,734 12.5
1998 337,575,000 139,180,000 1,290,000 478,045,000 4,168,141,000 11.5
1999 334,725,000 133,700,000 1,115,000 469,540,000 4,257,340,458 11.0
2000 341,205,000 111,230,000 940,000 453,375,000 4,604,954,195 9.8
2001 297,405,000 108,635,000 765,000 406,805,000 4,608,742,000 8.8
2002 260,790,000 85,335,000 600,000 346,725,000 4,808,788,859 7.2
2003 293,990,000 64,120,000 445,000 358,555,000 5,114,542,674 7.0
2004 355,025,000 61,105,000 290,000 416,420,000 5,902,866,220 7.1
2005 439,110,000 47,825,000 160,000 487,095,000 6,114,225,943 8.0
2006 433,585,000 33,875,000 90,000 467,550,000 6,336,819,316 7.4
2007 398,280,000 50,460,000 20,000 448,760,000 6,906,395,835 6.5
2008 378,575,000 97,260,000 0 475,835,000 6,406,301,524 7.4
2009 408,925,000 121,065,000 0 529,990,000 6,827,986,832 7.7
2010 365,775,000 134,325,000 0 500,100,000 7,157,520,886 7.0
2011 378,880,000 141,350,000 0 520,230,000 7,383,247,000 7.0
2012 347,090,000 124,965,000 0 472,055,000 7,239,851,000 6.5
2013 261,495,000 108,230,000 0 369,725,000 7,240,354,000 5.1
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APPENDIX E

The information contained in this Appendix E is derived from infolmnatontained in
the actuarial valuation reports for the year ended June 30, 2013 for theEStployee and
Teacher Retirement Program, the Legislative Retirement ProgitemJudicial Retirement
Program, and the Group Life Insurance Program. These actuariaioaliggiorts are available

at www.mainepers.org/bonds.htm.

Maine Public Employees Retirement System
State Employees and Public School Teachers
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2013

ASSETS
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets
(a) Members Contribution Fund

(b) Retirement Allowance Fund
(c) Total Invested Assets (a + b)*

(2) Future Contributions
(a) Member Contributions

(b) Actuarial Costs
(c) Total Contribution Income (a + b)

3) Present Value of Total Income (1 + 2)
LIABILITIES
(Present Value of expected benefit payments)
(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits

(b) Future Benefit Accruals

(c) Total Active Benefits (a + b)
(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1 + 2)

*Actuarial Value

State
Employees

$ 797,302,631
2,282,437,562
$3,079,740,193

$ 295,157,669
1,305,171,798
$1,600,31,

$4,680,069,660

$1,175,588,928
722,414,552
$1,898,003,480

$2,782,066,180

$ 4,680,069,660

E-1

MTRA
Teachers

$3,203,308
4,604,806,126
$6,098,009,434

$ 531,205
1,722,475,923
$2,253,881,217

$8,351,890,651

$2,555,252
1,360,142,502
$3,952,697,754

$9,392,897

$8,351,890,651

All
Employees

$2,290,505,939

6,887,243,688

$9,177,749,627

$ 826,562,963

3,027,647,721

$3,854,210,683

$13,031,960,311

$3,768,144,180

2,082,557,054

$5,850,701,234

$7,181,259,077

$13,031,960,311



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Judicial Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2013
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 9,464,604
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 41,590,647
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 51,055,251

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 1,976,009
(b) Actuarial Costs 5,112,939

(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ 7,088,948
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 58,144,199
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 23,831,025
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 7,707,900
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 31,538,925

(2) Inactive Employees
(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 26,605,274

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 58,144,199

*Actuarial Value



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Legislative Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2013
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 2,363,217
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 7,408,738
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 9,771,955

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 1,119,092
(b) Actuarial Costs (1,631,013)
(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ (511,921)
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 9,260,034
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 1,879,285
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 2,415,063
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 4,294,348

(2) Inactive Employees
(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 4,965,686

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 9,260,034

*Actuarial Value



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
State Employees and Public School Teachers
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2013

ASSETS State
(Present Value of expected income) Employees

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 26,513,561
(c) Total Invested Assets (a + b)* $ 26,513,561

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0
(b) Actuarial Costs 61,229,089
(c) Total Contribution Income (a + b) $ 61,229,089

3 Present Value of Total Income (1 +2) $ 87,742,650

LIABILITIES
(Present Value of expected benefit payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 21,936,900
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 13,351,231
(c) Total Active Benefits (a + b) $ 35,288,131

(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 52,454,519

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1 + 2) $ 87,742,650

*Actuarial Value

MTRA
Teachers

$ 0
35,944,780
$ 35,944,780

$ 0
41,356,530
$ 41,356,530

$ 77,301,310

$ 23,183,521

11,968,149

$ 35,151,670

$ 42,149,640

$ 77,301,310

All
Employees

$ 0
62,458,341
$ 62,458,341

$ 0
102,585,619
$ 102,585,619

$165,043,960

$ 45,120,421
25,319,380
$ 70,439,801

$ 94,604,159

$165,043,960



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Judicial Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2013
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 464,622
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 464,622

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0
(b) Actuarial Costs 1,075,346

(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ 1,075,346
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 1,539,968
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 591,025
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 163,184
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 754,209

(2) Inactive Employees
(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 785,759

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 1,539,968

*Actuarial Value



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Legislative Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2013
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 8,249
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 8,249

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0

(b) Actuarial Costs 17,362

(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ 17,362
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 25,611
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 0

(b) Future Benefit Accruals 0

(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 0
(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 25,611
(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 25,611

*Actuarial Value



STATE OF MAINE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX F

Selected Economic Information
with Respect to the State

APPENDIX F

Maine Population

Year Population Rank U.S. Percent Change Per Square Mile
1920 768,000 35 24.9
1930 797,000 - 3.80% 25.8
1940 847,000 35 6.30% 27.5
1950 914,000 35 7.90% 29.6
1960 969,000 36 6.00% 31.4
1970 992,000 38 2.40% 32.2
1980 1,126,000 38 13.50% 36.5
1990 1,227,928 38 9.10% 39.8
2000 1,274,923 40 3.80% 41.3
2001 1,284,470 40 0.70% 41.6
2002 1,294,464 40 0.80% 42.0
2003 1,305,728 40 0.90% 42.3
2004 1,317,253 40 0.90% 42.7
2005 1,321,505 40 0.30% 42.8
2006 1,321,574 40 0.01% 42.8
2007 1,317,207 40 -0.30% 42.7
2008 1,316,456 40 -0.06% 42.7
2009 1,318,301 40 0.14% 42.7
2010 1,328,361 41 0.76% 43.1
2011 1,327,844 41 -0.04% 43.1
2012 1,328,501 41 0.05% 43.1
2013 1,328,302 41 -0.01% 43.1

Source: US Census Bureau
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Personal Income and Earnings by Industry in Maip@22013

Personal income (thousands of dollars)

Earnings by place of work
Farm earnings
Nonfarm earnings

Forestry, fishing, related activities, and other

Mining

Utilities

Construction

Manufacturing

Wholesale trade

Retail trade

Transportation and warehousing

Information

Finance and insurance

Real estate and rental and leasing

Professional and technical services

Management of companies and enterprises

Administrative and waste services

Educational services

Arts

Accommodation and food services

Other services, except public administration

Government and government enterprises
Source: U.S.Bureau of Economic Analysis

2009

2010

2011

48,938,905 49,360,227 51,653,256

32,524,942

147,798

32,992,232
200,902

32,377,144 32,791,330
confidential
confidential
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192,532
2,019,638
3,462,161
1,318,245
2,758,888

868,872

577,655
1,839,609

402,976
2,093,728

571,559
1,100,098

575,976

270,675
1,126,526
1,106,052
6,408,937

399,171
13,731
205,680
2,005,349
3,433,303
1,304,355
2,774,867
866,304
575,457
1,889,555
460,211
2,062,196
585,242
1,132,122
595,771
278,738
1,177,148
1,142,205
6,487,337

33,663,173
177,342
33,485,831
370,326
16,453
195,069
2,108,664
3,486,259
1,352,873
2,814,438
884,487
526,246
1,947,219
583,488
2,174,803
621,885
1,211,627
619,091
284,409
1,231,851
1,173,536
6,394,504

2012
53,283,432

34,675,001
177,570
34,497,431
confidential
confidential
198,206
2,246,638
3,543,202
1,424,731
2,857,076
923,532
521,437
1,981,045
620,490
2,280,544
690,109
1,241,062
663,789
307,515
1,301,523
1,212,807
6,401,964

2013
54,478,552

35,695,237
235,722
35,459,515
confidential
confidential
209,745
2,375,145
3,561,979
1,473,768
2,894,468
959,154
524,496
2,088,476
650,064
2,416,489
690,244
1,322,563
692,810
334,631
1,359,194
1,284,299
6,344,802



Per Capita Income*

Per Capita Personal Income
Maine, New England, and US

Maine as a Percent of

Annual Befrincrease

us NE Maine us NE us NE Maine
2001 31,524 38,229 28,275 89.7% 74.0%
2002 31,798 38,268 29,009 91.2% 75.3% 0.9% 0.1% 2.6%
2003 32,676 39,160 30,253 92.6% 77.3% 2.8% 2.3% 4.3%
2004 34,300 41,334 31,717 92.5% 76.7% 5.0% 5.6% 4.8%
2005 35,888 43,003 32,255 89.6% 75.0% 4.6% 4.0% 1.7%
2006 38,127 46,078 34,103 89.4% 74.0% 6.2% 7.2% 5.7%
2007 39,804 48,388 35,509 89.2% 73.4% 4.4% 5.0% 4.1%
2008 40,873 49,414 36,656 89.7% 74.2% 2.7% 2.1% 3.2%
2009 39,357 48,176 36,808 93.5% 76.4% -3.7% -2.5% 0.4%
2010 40,163 49,416 37,180 92.6% 75.2% 2.0% 2.6% 1.0%
2011 42,298 51,900 38,880 91.9% 74.9% 5.3% 5.0% 4.6%
2012 43,735 53,600 40,087 91.7% 74.3% 3.4% 3.3% 3.1%
2013 44,543 54,640 41,0.4 92.1% 75.1% 1.8% 1.9% 2.3%

Source: U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis

State Valuation of Taxable Real and Personal Property
January 1991 $ 64,905,350,000

January 1992
January 1993
January 1994
January 1995
January 1996
January 1997
January 1998
January 1999
January 2000
January 2001
January 2002
January 2003
January 2004
January 2005
January 2006
January 2007
January 2008
January 2009
January 2010
January 2011
January 2012
January 2013
January 2014

Source: State Revenue Services.

The State valuation of taxable property is equal to 100% of value.

The State valuation filed in January of each year is based ealtheof property as of April 1, 21 months prior to the fildege.
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68,471,100,000
67,751,400,000
66,565,550,000
66,425,500,000
67,102,925.900
68,286,600,000
69,691,900,000
71,779,350,000
74,260,000,000
78,389,400,000
84,874,550,000
94,034,050,000

104,219,950,000
118,038,020,000
133,628,600,000
148,946,200,000
162,744,550,000
168,006,150,000
170,336,350,000
166,990,700,000
163,424,200,000
160,011,900,000
158,661,600,000



Selected Labor Market Information for Maine

Annual Average

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Nonfarm Wage and Salary Employment 596,300 593,000 594,700 598,100 601,700
Manufacturing Employment 52,300 50,800 50,700 50,800 50,400
Nonmanufacturing Employment 544,000 542,200 544,00 547,300 551,300
Average Weekly Hours of Manufacturing Production 40.0 41.7. 40.3 41.3 41.7
Average Hourly Earnings of Manufacturing Production $19.97 $20.18 $20.21 $20.50 $2C.86
Unemployment Rate 8.1% 8.2% 7.7% 7.2% 6.7%
Number Unemployed 57,000 57,500 54,200 50,900 47,400

Source: Maine Department of Labor, Center for Worké Research & Information.
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Employed and Unemployed by Labor Market Area, Not Seasonallysteiju

Civilian Labor Force

March, 2014

Maine Labor Force Estmates for Labor Market Areas

Civiian Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemploynent Ra
LABOR MARKET AREA Mar-14 Feb-14 Mar-13 Mar-14 Feb-14 Mar-13 Mar-14 Feb-14 Mar-13 Mar-14 Feb-14 Mar-13
Augusta Micro 47,040 46,701 46,230 44,208 43.779 43,145 2,832 2,922 3,085 6.0% 6.3%
Bangor MA 73,973 74,287 72,877 69,459 69,509 67,775 4,519 4,778 5,102 6.1 6.4
Belfast LMA 14,015 13,883 13,580 12,896 12,758 12,361 1,119 1,125 1,219 8.0 8.1
Boothbay Harbor LMA 3,652 3,643 3,484 3,293 3,253 3112 359 390 372 9.8 10.7
Bridgton-Paris LMA 14,248 14,207 14,409 13,159 13,056 13,171 1,089 1,151 1,238 7.6 8.1
Brunswick Micro 34,343 34,067 33,492 32,361 31,963 31,239 1,987 2,104 2,253 5.8 6.2
Calais LMA 5,56 5,539 5,563 4,961 4,908 4,381 600 631 682 10.8 11.4
Camden LMA 7,242 7,197 6,992 6,705 6,635 6,414 537 562 578 7.4 7.8
Conway LMA 3,890 3,938 3,862 3,694 3,725 3,528 196 213 234 5.0 54
Dover-Foxcroft LMA 9,212 9,176 9,355 8,398 8,322 8,409 814 854 946 8.8 9.3
Elsworth Micro 27,211 27,116 26,839 24,506 24,143 23,962 2,705 2,973 2,927 9.9 11.0
Farmington LMA 17,113 17,062 17,139 15,798 15,668 15,683 1,320 1,394 1,456 7.7 8.2
Houlton LMA 8,213 8,153 8,241 7,574 7,493 7,472 639 665 769 7.8 8.2
Lewiston-Auburn MA 58,807 58,649 58,431 55,305 54,986 54,279 3,502 3,663 4,152 6.0 6.2
Lincoln LMA 3,512 3,540 3,596 3,124 3,118 3,211 388 422 385 11.0 11.9
Machias LMA 7,437 7,291 7,413 6,621 6,480 6,619 816 811 794 11.0 111
Madawaska LMA 2,754 2,737 2,750 2,545 2,514 2514 209 223 236 7.6 8.1
Milinocket LMA 3,336 3,397 3,523 2,777 2,753 3,029 559 634 494 16.8 18.7
Pittsfield LMA 7,470 7,402 7,532 6,756 6,626 6,739 714 776 793 9.6 10.5
Portland-S. Portland-Biddeford MA 212,643 211,166 209,937 201,732 199,585 197,111 11,111 11,581 12,826 5.2 5.5
Portsmouth MA 9,356 9,3.7 9,127 8,975 8,907 8676 381 410 451 4.1 4.4
Presque Isle LMA 23,73 23,651 23,586 21,665 21,439 21,368 2,069 2,212 2,218 8.7 9.4
Rochester-Dover MA 11,744 11,717 11,616 11,191 11,109 10,931 553 608 685 4.7 52
Rockland Micro 13,703 13,543 13,234 12,345 12.634 2,246 858 909 988 6.3 6.7
Rumford LMA 10,127 10,264 10,031 9,297 9,389 9,096 830 875 985 8.2 85
Sanford Micro 12,308 12,269 12,155 11,178 11.054 10,893 1,130 1,215 1,262 9.2 9.9
Skowhegan LMA 14,650 14,606 14,493 13,261 13,136 12,992 1,389 1,470 1,501 9.5 10.1
Waldoboro LMA 9,437 9,318 9,187 8,837 8,681 8,508 600 637 679 6.4 6.8
Watervile Micro 22,861 22,85 22,591 21,339 21,222 20,854 .,522 1,612 1,737 6.7 7.1
York LMA 16,344 16,259 16,391 15,331 15,153 15,229 1,013 1,106 1,162 6.2 6.8
MAINE 706,153 702,932 697,755 659,793 654,007 645,545 45,360 48,925 52,210 6.6 7.0
UNITED STATES (000) 155,627 155,027 154,512 145,090 144,134 142,698 10,537 10,893 11,815 6.8 7.0

10.4
10.4

7.7
7.1

7.6
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EDWARDS

WILDMAN

APPENDIX G

PROPOSED FORMS OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

[Date of Delivery]

The Honorable Neria R. Douglass
Treasurer of State

The State of Maine

39 State House Station

Augusta, Maine 04333

$40,045,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A
(Federally Taxable)
Dated Date of Delivery

We have acted as bond counsel to the State of Maine (the “State”) in connection with the
issuance by the State of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”). In such capacity, we have
examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we haceroamssary

to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the State contained in the certified proceedings and otheratienti$ of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the State and the full faith
and credit of the State are pledged for the payment of the principal of and interesBondke

2. Interest on the Bonds is included in the gross income of the owners of the Bonds
for federal income tax purpose¥/e express no opinion regarding any other fedexal t
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for State of Maine income
tax purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other State of Maine tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax consequences arising with respe@dodbe
under the laws of any state other than the State of Maine.

This opinion is not intended or written by Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP to be used and cannot

be used by you for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed under federal tax law
in connection with the Bonds.
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EDWARDS
WILDMAN

The Honorable Neria R. Douglass
[Date of Delivery]
Page 2

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any actioortake
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the inttiqureéhereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be ubject
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecéditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionallyadpeliand their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in apjeropses.

EDWARDS WILDMAN PALMER LLP
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[Date of Delivery]

The Honorable Neria R. Douglass
Treasurer of State

The State of Maine

39 State House Station

Augusta, Maine 04333

$72,900,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series B
Dated Date of Delivery

We have acted as bond counsel to the State of Maine (the “State”) in connection with the
issuance by the State of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”). In such capacity, we have
examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we hackrdsmssary

to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the State contained in the certified proceedings and otheratienti$ of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the State and the full faith
and credit of the State are pledged for the payment of the principal of and iotetiestBonds.

2. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternativeum taxes,
although such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculatingteorpora
alternative minimum taxable income. In rendering the opinions set forth in this parageaph, w
have assumed compliance by the State with all requirements of the Internal Revdaud C
1986, as amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that
interest thereon be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federaltawcome
purposes. The State has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failuredg the St
to comply with certain of such requirements may cause interest on the Bonds to bedaseel inc
in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuandgooidse

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for State of Maine income
tax purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other State of Maine tax consequences



EDWARDS

The Honorable Neria R. Douglass
[Date of Delivery]
Page 2

arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax consequences arising with respe&dodbse
under the laws of any state other than the State of Maine.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any actioortake
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the intiqureéhereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be ®ubject
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecéditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionallyadpeliand their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in apjeropses.

EDbwWARDS WILDMAN PALMER LLP



STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX H

Secondary Market Disclosure

Pursuant to the Municipal Securities Disclosure Rule, 17 CFR 8240.15chd2 (
“Rule”), promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (teC”)S the
Underwriters shall not purchase or sell the Bonds unless the Unigeswhiave reasonably
determined that the State, as issuer of the Bonds, has undertaewritten agreement or
contract for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to provide gertimrmation in the manner
and to the locations described below. In order to assist the Unitgeswn complying with the
Rule, the State has covenanted in the Bonds for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners that

A. Within one year after the end of each fiscal year of théeSthe State will
provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB#aficial information and
operating data, for the prior fiscal year, of the type set forth in Agipes B, D and E of this
Official Statement;

B. If not submitted as part of the annual financial information daestiin paragraph
A above, then when and if available, the State will provide to the BAS&lited financial
statements for the State prepared in accordance with ggreeceéipted accounting principles in
effect from time to time;

C. The State will provide in a timely manner, not in exceger{10) business days
after the occurrence of the event, to the MSRB notice of athedbllowing events with respect
to the Bonds:

0] principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(i) non-payment related defaults, if material;

(i)  unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

(iv)  unscheduled draws on the credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determination of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinatiatis w
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax status of the Bonds;
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(vii)  modifications to rights of bondholders, if material;
(viii)  Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
(ix) defeasances;
(x) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment &fothas,
if material,
(xi)  rating changes;
(xii)  bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the State
(xiii)  the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the

State or the sale of all or substantially all of the assetseoftate, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitiv

agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant tonss te
material; and

(xiv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the chamgenaf of
a trustee, if material; and

D. The State will provide, in a timely manner, to the MSRB, naifcany failure of
the State to comply with paragraph A above.

The State expects to provide the information described in paragrapbove @y
providing an official statement or a preliminary official staént for its bonds, notes or other
obligations that includes such information for the preceding figeat or, if no such official
statement is available within one year after the end of such precedaig/ésc, by providing its
controller’s annual financial report within such one year.

The State may from time to time choose to provide notice of tharreoce of certain
other events in addition to those listed above if, in the judgment @ttie, such other events
are material with respect to the Bonds, but the State does natakedé provide any such
notice of the occurrence of any material event except those events listed above.

The covenants described in this Appendix H (the “Covenants”) arbddrenefit of the
Beneficial Owners and shall be enforceable by any Beneficial OwreBeNeficial Owner may
institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equityd¢Beding”) for the enforcement of

* As noted in the Rule, this event is considered to occur whenbfahg following occur: (i) the appointment of a receiver,disagent or similar
officer for the State in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptmye or in any proceeding under state or federal law in whicbua or

governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over subdhargtihof the assets or business of the State, or if sudhdjation has been
assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officialsfmeos in possession but subject to the supervision and coflersourt or
governmental authority, or (ii) the entry of an order confirmanglan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by at@ugovernmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantiallyf the assets or business of the State.



the Covenants, unless such Beneficial Owner shall have filed witfirdlasurer of State and the
Attorney General a written request to cure such breach, and teesB#dl have refused or failed
to comply within a reasonable time. Any assertion of beneficial ahipemust be included in
such written request and must be supported by independent evidence or dacumknts
Proceedings shall be instituted only in a State court located @ithef Augusta, Maine for the
equal benefit of all Beneficial Owners of the outstanding Bondsa d¢burt of competent
jurisdiction finds that the State has breached any of the Coverterighe sole remedy for any
such breach shall be an order of specific performance of the Cosearahthere shall be no
right of acceleration of the Bonds. Moreover, Proceedings filed by Bethe@wners against
the State may be subject to the defense of sovereign immunity whickuhstantially limit the
scope and nature of any legal action against the State or of any order of geefofmance that
may be granted against the State.

The Covenants may only be amended if:

0] the amendment is made in connection with a change in circurastémat arises
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change iotetitey, nature, or status of
the State, or type of business conducted; the Covenants, as amended, woutzres with
the Rule as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, after takingceworg any amendments or
changes in circumstances; and the amendment does not matemnply the interest of
Beneficial Owners, as determined by parties unaffiliated with the State; or

(i) all or any part of the Rule, as interpreted by thef stbfhe SEC at the date of the

adoption of such Rule, ceases to be in effect for any reason, andatkeefects that the
Covenants shall be deemed amended accordingly.
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APPENDIX |

AMENDED AND RESTATED NOTICE OF SALE
of the
STATE OF MAINE
relating to

$40,270,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

and

$77,895,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series B

Notice is hereby given that bids will be receivetdilu
10:30 a.m., Eastern Daylight Saving Time, with extfo the Series A Bonds; and
10:45 a.m., Eastern Daylight Saving Time, with extfio the Series B Bonds,
on Thursday, June 12, 2014

via Parity®, subject to the terms and conditionseb& for the purchase of the $40,270,0@ate of
Maine General Obligation Bonds, 2014 Series A (Fatle Taxable) (the “Series A Bonds”) and
$77,895,000 State of Maine General Obligation Bonds, 2014 é3ei (the “Series B Bonds” and,
together with the Series A Bonds, the “Bonds”).

Description of the Bonds

The Bonds will bear interest from the date of thitivery payable semiannually on June 1 and
December 1 of each year, commencing December 4, 201l payment of the principal of the Bonds.
Interest on the Bonds will be paid on the intepsgtment dates, and principal of the Bonds will bl @t
maturity, to The Depository Trust Company, New Y,ddew York (“DTC") or its nominee as registered
owner of the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds willcbenputed on the basis of a 30-day month and a 360-
day year.

Principal of and interest on the Bonds are pay#&bole the General Fund of the State of Maine
(the “State”). Article V, Part Third, Section 5 tife Constitution of the State provides that iffisidnt
funds are not appropriated to pay the principamd interest on the Bonds when due, then the Trelasu
of State (the “Treasurer”) is obligated to set ageom the first General Fund revenues received an
amount sufficient to make payment of principal nflanterest on the Bonds as such principal andeste
become due.

" Preliminary, subject to change.



The Bonds are being issued (i) to pay at matunityJone 30, 2014 the principal amount of certain
bond anticipation notes issued by the State t@imecertain capital expenditures of the State @heb(
finance certain additional capital expenditurethef State.

Details of the Bonds
The Series A Bonds will be dated their date ofva#ly and will mature on June 1 in each of the

years 2015 to 2018, inclusive, in the principal amts described in the table below, subject to any
adjustments described in “Adjustment of Maturityh&dule” below:

Year Principal Amount
2015 $11,820,000
2016 11,815,000
2017 11,815,000
2018 4,820,000

The Series B Bonds will be dated the date ofvdei and will mature on June 1 in each of the
years 2018 to 2024, inclusive, in the principal amts described in the table below, subject to any
adjustments described in “Adjustment of Maturityh&dule” below:

Year Principal Amount
2018 $ 7,000,000
2019 11,820,000
2020 11,815,000
2021 11,815,000
2022 11,815,000
2023 11,815,000
2024 11,815,000

Authorization and Security

The Bonds will be general obligations of the Statd the full faith and credit of the State will be
pledged for the punctual payment of the principal anterest on the Bonds.

Redemption

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior &bumity.
Adjustment of Maturity Schedule

The State reserves the right to change the aggregicipal amount of either or both series of
the Bonds and the maturity schedule for eitheresedfter the determination of the winning bid by
increasing or decreasing the principal amount ohematurity by such amount as may be necessaiy to (

produce sufficient funds for the purposes for which Bonds are being issued after taking into agtou
any premium to be received by the State, and diipioduce substantially level annual payments of

*Preliminary, subject to change as described herein.



principal on the Bonds. In such event, the finajragate principal amount of each series of the Bond
will be increased or decreased by the net amoustidi change or changes in principal amount ofoone
more maturities, which net change will not excesd percent (10%) of the original aggregate prifcipa
amount of each series of the Bonds. The Stateipates that the final maturity schedule will be
communicated to the successful bidders by 1:00 gastern Daylight Saving time on the date of award
provided the State has received the reofferingeprand yields for the Bonds from the successfudéisi
within one hour after being notified of the awamfsthe Bonds. The adjusted bid prices will reflect
changes in the dollar amount of the underwriteissaunts and original issue discount/premiumsnif,a
but will not change the per-bond underwriter’'s disat as calculated from the bid and reoffering gsic
required to be delivered to the State as statedirheThe successful bidder for each series may not
withdraw its bid or change the interest rates bithitial reoffering prices as a result of any chas made

to the principal amounts within these limits.

Book-Entry Only

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-esygtem with no physical distribution of Bonds
made to the public. One Bond certificate for eactturity of each series will be issued to The Dejpogi
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), and imimitized in its custody. A book-entry system
will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Bomdprincipal amounts of $5,000 or integral mukigl
thereof, with transfers of ownership effected oa tcords of DTC and its participants pursuanutesr
and procedures established by DTC and its partitgpalhe successful bidder of each series, as a
condition to delivery of the Bonds, shall be reqdito deposit the Bond certificates with DTC, résyisd
in the name of Cede & Co.

Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannualtly December 1 and June 1, beginning
December 1, 2014. Principal of the Bonds will lzédpannually on June 1, as set forth in the fonegoi
maturity schedules subject to adjustment as desti@pove under “Adjustment of Maturity Schedule,” t
DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Bofidansfer of principal and interest payments to
participants of DTC will be the responsibility ofTQ; transfer of principal and interest payments to
beneficial owners by participants of DTC will beetlesponsibility of such participants and other
nominees of beneficial owners. The record datepforcipal and interest payments will be the fiftden
day of the month next preceding the date on whbérest is to be paid. The State will not be resjine
or liable for maintaining, supervising or reviewitige records maintained by DTC, its participants or
persons acting through such participants.

In the event that (a) DTC determines not to car®ito act as securities depository for the Bonds
or (b) the Treasurer determines that continuatibthe book-entry system of evidence and transfer of
ownership of the Bonds would adversely affect thterests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, the
State will discontinue the book-entry system witl@ If the State fails to identify another qualdfie
securities depository to replace DTC, the Staté avithenticate and deliver replacement Bonds in the
form of fully registered certificates.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbaevill be printed on the Bonds, but neither the
failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor amgrewith respect thereto shall constitute cause fo
failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to ptcelivery of and pay for the Bonds in accordawih
the terms of its bid. No CUSIP identification numbsehall be deemed to be part of any Bond or agfart
the contract evidenced thereby and no liabilitylishereafter attach to the State or any of itsagffs or
agents because of or on account of such numbeesSTie shall pay all expenses in connection wiigh t
initial assignment and printing of CUSIP numberke Tinderwriter for each series will be responsdibte
applying for and obtaining CUSIP identification nloens for the Bonds.



Bid Specifications

Bidders may bid on the Series A Bonds only, theeSeB Bonds only or both series. Bidders
should state the rate of interest that the SeriB®®ds and the Series B Bonds are to bear, in phestiof
1/8 or 1/20 of one percent. In order to fund itarmed capital expenditures, the total proceeds
payable to the State (par plus premium, if any) hinesat least $125,000,000. Accordingly, the par
amount of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bovilbe adjusted, as needed, and as described
above, in order that the total proceeds of théeSek Bonds and the Series B Bonds are as nearly
as practicable (within $5,000) to $40,000,000 aB88,800,000, respectively. No bids for other thkn a
of the Series A Bonds and the Series B Bonds véllalscepted. No bid for less than 100% of the
principal amount of the Series A Bonds or the SeeBonds will be accepted (subject to adjustmasts
provided above.) Each bid for the Series A Bondsstnibe for the entire issue at a price not lesm tha
100% and not greater than [105]% of the par amotitihe Series A Bonds. Each bid for the Series B
Bonds must be for the entire issue at a price esg than 100% and not greater than [120]% of tihe pa
amount of the Series B Bonds. All bids must beomditional and submitted electronically via Parity®
accordance with this Notice of Sale.

Receipt of Bids

Sealed bids for the Series A Bonds and the S&i@®nds will be received electronically via
Parity until 10:30 a.m., Eastern Daylight Savingh&i with respect to the Series A Bonds and 1045, a.
Eastern Daylight Saving Time, with respect to tlegi€s B Bonds, on Thursday, June 12, 2014 (or on
such later date as may be established by the &tdteommunicated through Thomson Municipal Market
Monitor not less than twenty-four (24) hours priorthe time the bids are to be received). To tttera
any instructions or directions set forth on Pacibnflict with this Notice of Sale, the terms ofghotice
of Sale shall control. For further information ab®arity, potential bidders may contact I-Deal LBC
1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10018, depdone (212) 849-5021. The use of Parity shall
be at the bidder’s risk and expense, and the Sta# have no liability with respect thereto. Ohligls
submitted through Parity will be considered. Nepdlone, facsimile, mail, courier delivery or petaon
delivery bids will be accepted. To participate,ds#ds must be a contracted customer of the BIDCOMP
Competitive Bidding System (the “System”). If theoppective bidder(s) do not have a contract with th
System, call (212) 849-5021 to become a customer tanobtain a list of the bidding rules and
procedures.

Basis of Award

The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder(s) offgrin purchase the Bonds, as applicable, at the
lowest interest cost to the State. Separate aweitidise made with respect to the Series A Bonds tre
Series B Bonds. Such award shall be determined tuea interest cost (TIC) basis. True interest
cost (expressed as an annual interest rate) slealldiermined for each bid by doubling the
semiannual interest rate, compounded semiannuakgessary to discount the debt service
payments from the payment dates to the date of@sliand to the price bid. In the event there is
more than one bid specifying the lowest such raéeh series of Bonds will be awarded to the bidder
whose bid is selected by the Treasurer by lot feonong all such bids. It is requested that eachbbid
accompanied by a statement of such interest costpeted at the interest rate or rates stated ibithen
accordance with the above method of computatiomfeded to six decimal places), but such statement
will not be considered as part of the bid.

Bids will be accepted or rejected promptly afteceipt and not later than 10:30 a.m., Eastern

Daylight Saving Time, with respect to the SerieBAnds; and 10:45 a.m., Eastern Daylight Saving
Time, with respect to the Series B Bonds, on the dathe sale.
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The State reserves the right to reject any orpadiposals and to reject any proposals not
complying with this Notice of Sale. The State algserves the right, so far as permitted by lawydore
any irregularity or informality with respect to apyoposal.

CUSIP Numbers

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numberill be printed on the Bonds. All expenses in
relation to the printing of CUSIP numbers on then8® shall be paid for by the State. However, the
CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignmenudfi sumbers shall be the responsibility of and be
paid by the successful bidder.

Expenses

The State will pay: (i) the cost of the prepanatod the Bonds; (ii) the fees and expenses of Bond
Counsel; (iii) the fees of the rating agenciesthetpto the Bonds, and (iv) the cost of preparation
printing of the Official Statement.

Undertakings of the Successful Bidder(s)

The successful bidder(s) shall make a bona fiddipwffering of the Bonds. The successful
bidder(s) must, by facsimile transmission or deljveeceived by the Deputy Treasurer within 24 hours
after notification of the award, furnish the follmg information to Bond Counsel to complete the
Official Statement in final form, as described helo

A. Selling compensation (aggregate total anti@@atcompensation to the
underwriters expressed in dollars, based on theaapon that all Bonds are
sold at the prices or yields at which the succé&dfider(s) advised the Treasurer
that the Bonds were initially offered to the puhlic

B. The identity of the underwriters if the sucdabbidder(s) is part of a group or
syndicate.
C. Any other material information the Treasuretedmines is necessary to complete

the Official Statement in final form.

On or prior to the date of delivery of the Sere8onds, the successful bidder for the
Series B Bonds shall furnish to the State a cedtifi acceptable to Bond Counsel to the State ggntra
the effect that (i) as of June 12, 2014 (the “S2dee”), the successful bidder had offered or reabbyn
expected to offer all of the Series B Bonds to glemeral public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or
similar persons acting in the capacity of undemvsitor wholesalers) in a bona fide public offeratghe
prices set forth in such certificate, plus accrinterest, if any, (ii) such prices represent faarket prices
of the Series B Bonds as of the Sale Date, anda@iiof the date of such certificate, all of thei&eB
Bonds have been offered to the general public boma fide offering at the prices set forth in such
certificate, and at least 10% of each maturityhef $eries B Bonds actually has been sold to thergken
public at such prices. To the extent the certifiees described in the preceding sentence areactudlly
accurate with respect to the reoffering of the &8 Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the
bidder as to alternative certifications that wi# buitable to establish the “issue price” of thei€3eB
Bonds for federal tax law purposes. If a municipathd insurance policy or similar credit enhancenien
obtained with respect to the Series B Bonds bystieessful bidder, such bidder will also be requtce
certify as to the net present value savings onSbees B Bonds resulting from payment of insurance
premiums or other credit enhancement fees.
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Delivery of the Bonds

The Bonds will be delivered on or about June 24,42in New York, New York at DTC against
payment of the purchase price therefor in Fedanatls.

Documents to be Delivered at Closing

It shall be a condition to the obligation of theceessful bidder(s) to accept delivery of and pay
for the Bonds that contemporaneously with or befaceepting the Bonds and paying therefor, the
successful bidder(s) shall be furnished, withoustcavith (a) the approving opinions of the firm of
Edwards Wildman Palmer LLP, Boston, MassachusBtiad Counsel to the State, as to the validity and
tax status of the Bonds, substantially in the foprm/ided in Appendix G to the Final Official Statent,
referred to below; (b) a certificate of the Treasuo the effect that, to the best of her knowledbe
Final Official Statement referred to below does cartain any untrue statement of a material factroit
to state a material fact necessary to make therstatts made therein, in light of the circumstanceter
which they were made, not misleading; and (c) aniop of the Department of the Attorney General of
the State, dated as of the date of delivery oBthieds, to the effect that there is no litigatioraafy nature
pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin theasse or delivery of the Bonds or in any way caimgs
or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any oétproceedings taken with respect to the issuantsae
thereof or the levy or collection of any taxes &y principal of or interest on the Bonds. In aiahif
such opinion will state that, based on consultatiaith certain officers of the State, there is itigdtion
of any nature now pending or threatened by or afdire State wherein an adverse judgment or ruling
could have a material adverse effect on the fir@remndition of the State or adversely affect tever
of the State to levy, collect or enforce the cdltmt of taxes or other revenues for the paymenitsof
Bonds which has not been disclosed in the FinaktfaffStatement referred to below.

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, tteteSwill undertake in the Bonds to provide
annual financial information and notices of certairents pursuant to Municipal Securities Disclosure
Rule, 17 CFR 8240.15c2-12 (the “Rule”), promulgatgdhe Securities and Exchange Commission.

Official Statement

The Preliminary Official Statement dated June @142 and the information contained therein
have been deemed final by the State as of itswlilén the meaning of Rule 15c2-12 of the Secusitie
and Exchange Commission ("Rule 15¢2-12") with p#ediomissions, but is subject to change without
notice and to completion or amendment in the Cdficdtatement in final form (the "Final Official
Statement").

The State, at its expense, will make availabléh#o successful bidder(s) up to 75 copies of the
Final Official Statement, for delivery to each putel investor requesting a copy of the Final Qé#ic
Statement and to each person to whom the biddan@)members of its bidding group initially sell the
Bonds, within seven business days of the awarchefBonds, provided that the successful bidder(s)
cooperate in providing the information requirecctmplete the Final Official Statement.

The successful bidder(s) shall comply with theursgments of Rule 15¢2-12 and the rules of the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, including abligation, if any, to update the Final Official
Statement.



Continuing Disclosure

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rafec2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the State will undertakgrdvide annual financial information and notices
of certain significant events. A description ofstlundertaking is set forth in the Preliminary ©iti
Statement.

Right to Change the Notice of Sale and to Postpofiering

The State reserves the right to make changesdd\titice of Sale and also reserves the right to
postpone, from time to time, the date and time bdisteed for the receipt of bids. ANY SUCH
POSTPONEMENT WILL BE ANNOUNCED NOT LATER THAN 1:0B.M. (E.D.T.) ON THE LAST
BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO ANY ANNOUNCED DATE FOR RECEIPOF BIDS. If any date and
time fixed for the receipt of bids and the saldhaf Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale datdiue
will be announced at least 48 hours prior to sutdrraative sale date. On any such alternative date
and time, any bidder may submit a bid for the pasehof the Bonds in conformity in all respects it
provisions of this Notice of Sale, except for thatedand time of sale and except for any changes
announced at the time the sale date and time auaned.

Good Faith Deposit

The State is not requiring the submission of adgi@aith deposit prior to the date of award of the
Bonds to the successful bidder. Rather, the suftddsisider, as determined by the State in accordanc
with this Notice of Sale, must submit a good faiposit in the amount of $402,700 for a bid on the
Series A Bonds, and in the amount of $778,950 fbideon the Series B Bonds. The good faith deposit
will secure the State from any loss resulting fritra failure of the successful bidder to comply wtik
terms of its bid. The successful bidder shalld¢fanthe good faith deposit by wire transfer disetd the
State upon natification, but in any case, no lab@n 3:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Saving Time, am th
date of award of the Bonds. The good faith depesitoe held by the State and applied toward aipor
of the total purchase price of the Bonds. No igeron the good faith deposit will accrue to the
successful bidder. Wire instructions will be praddto the successful bidder upon notification @& th
Preliminary Award.

Additional Information

For further information relating to the Bonds, eefince is made to the Preliminary Official
Statement dated June 5, 2014 prepared for and raagtidby the Treasurer. The Preliminary Official
Statement may be obtained by accessing the follpwirbsite:_http://www.imagemaster.com/. For
further information, please contact Kristi Carlo@gputy State Treasurer, 39 State House Station,
Augusta, Maine 04333 (telephone: 207-624-7477 jffigitess 207-287-2367).

THE STATE OF MAINE

By Neria R. Douglass
Treasurer of State

Date: June 11, 2014



Attachment A
INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMIT A BID VIA Parity

You must be a contracted customer of Parity’s Cditipe Bidding System. If you do not have a contra
with Parity, call (212) 849-5021 to become a cugiom

In Parity select the State of Maine sale amondishef current sales.

Go to the bid form page. Keep notice of the tinoek and be sure to read all bid specifications on
bottom.

Once you have created and saved a bid in Paritk ttle final bid button in Parity to submit thedlid
Parity.

Upon clicking the Final Bid button, the bidder wsite a message box in Parity that states: “Do yant w
to submit this bid to Parity? By submitting thel lelectronically via PARITY, you represent and vaautr
that this bid for the purchase of the Bonds is sttbohby the representative who is duly authoriteed
bind the bidder to a legal, valid, enforceable caxttfor the purchase of the Bonds. The Officiatibe

of Sale is incorporated herein by this reference.”

If during bid calculation Parity warns you that yaurrent bid violates the bid parameters, ple&sage
your bid to meet bid specifications. The Paritgteyn will submit bids, which violate the bid paraers,
but the State does not intend to consider anythatsdo not meet its parameters.

You may choose to proceed with submission of tkdedbichoose to cancel the submission.

Contact Parity at (212) 849-5021 or with questionproblems.
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